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SUMMARY OF THE YEAR

Transformation and reform have been the defining themes for both the Department and the health and
care system during 2011-12. A year of unprecedented change has seen royal assent for the Health &
Social Care Act 2012. This modernising legislation will open up the pace of reform and put patients and
their communities at the heart of service delivery — with change driven by local service providers and
clinicians. It will also transform the way in which healthcare is commissioned, and will redefine the
relationship between commissioners and providers.

The Health & Social Care Act 2012 responds to the clear imperative for action driven by the rising
incidence of chronic, long-term and lifestyle-related health conditions and by the increasing pressure that
a rapidly ageing population puts on the health and care systems. With this in mind, the empowerment of
both patients and the users of care, in the context of local priorities and decision-making, rests at the
heart of these reforms.

The Government has set out a number of aspirations for the health and care systems:

= A focus on ensuring that the people they serve have the best possible health, with cutcomes that are
as good as those in the healthiest nations in the World;

= A focus on prevention — ensuring that the services provided are as effective at keeping people in
good health as they are at treating ill-health;

* A focus on people and patients, responding to their needs according to local priorities, and led by
clinicians and health care professionals; and

= A focus on improving health outcomes, increasing productivity and ensuring that quality lies at the
heart of every service provided.

Progress has been made in terms of creating the new structural architecture that will support system
transformation. For example, the NHS Commissioning Board Authority was established in October 2011,
and has laid solid foundations for the authorisation of the 212 Clinical Commissioning Groups. The NHS
Trust Development Authority (NTDA) was established in June 2012, with a principal aim of supporting
the transition of the remaining NHS Trusts to achieving NHS Foundation Trust status.

Throughout 2011-12, the Department has also begun a period of significant change as it develops its
new role in response to the substantial changes in the wider health and care system. Crucially, DH will
no longer have a direct relationship with NHS organisations, but will instead operate via its Arms Length
Bodies — in particular, through the NHS Commissioning Board, Monitor and the NTDA. By means of a
thorough planning exercise, the Department has already begun to establish the scope and size of its own
future workforce, so that by April 2013, there will be significantly fewer permanent and non-permanent
staff employed by DH across five rather than the current 10 Directorates.

As part of this process of self-examination, and to support the Coalition Government's principles of
reducing the costs of Non-Departmental Public Bodies, the Department has undertaken a detailed review
of the purpose and functions of its own Arms Length Bodies (ALBs). As a result, seven of these
organisations will either leave the sector (to become self-funding) or will be abolished. Continuing ALEs
will be required to operate more efficiently, making the best use of commercial opportunities. Their
relationship with the Department, especially in terms of relative roles and responsibilities, will be clearly
defined in formal framework agreements.

In a further very significant change, from 2011-12, overall DH administration costs have been extended
to cover the costs of running both the Department itself and all other non-provider NHS organisations
(including Primary Care Trusts, Strategic Health Authorities and all Arms Length Bodies). In this context,
the Department has continued to work towards the challenge set in the 2010 Spending Review of
reducing total administration expenditure by one third by 2014-15. The key results are set out below.

In terms of the Department's Annual Report & Accounts, the Treasury's Clear Line of Sight legislation
(designed to bring consistency between budgets, estimates and accounts) has led to a very substantial
increase in the Department’s Resource Accounting Boundary in 2011-12, Essentially, the number of
individual organisations’ accounts consolidated into the DH group account has increased to 437,
compared to 169 in 2010-11. This is mainly because the financial results of the entire provider sector are
now included for the first time. To allow proper comparison between the years, the Department has
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restated its 2010-11 accounts, and the new comparators (with appropriate explanatory notes) are
presented in the 2011-12 financial statements.

1.9 In summary, key results for the year have included:

The Department met all of its financial duties for the year, managing its resources within the
budgets set by Treasury or the amounts voted by Parliament. Overall revenue expenditure for the
Department of Health increased by 2.9% to £101.6 billion in 2011-12 (compared to £100.3 billion in
2010-11). The Department recorded a £829 million (or 0.8%) underspend against this revenue
resource limit.

Total capital expenditure in 2011-12 was £372 million lower (9%) in cash terms when compared to
2010-11. At the end of the year, there was an underspend of £566 million, which mainly resulted
from lower than expected expenditure by both NHS Connecting for Health and the NHS Foundation
Trust sector.

Spending on front line services for patients increased in real terms by 1% in 2011-12. Primary Care
Trusts reported a 4% increase in expenditure on secondary healthcare (driven by an increase in
activity, a change in case mix and a degree of price inflation) and a 1% increase in the purchase of
primary health care.

In contrast by the end of the year, the Department's administration spend was some £662 million
lower in real terms than had been forecast in the revised impact assessment for 2010-11. This
significant reduction reflected a faster pace of decrease than anticipated, and resulted both from
the downsizing of the Department and the NHS commissicning sector, a targeted reduction in
certain categories of administration spend and a reduction in staffing and other costs. This means
that, over the life of the current Parliament, the expected savings associated with this programme
of reform have increased from £4.5 billion to £5.6 billion.

Total DH expenditure (revenue expenditure plus capital expenditure less depreciation) in 2011-12,
including expenditure on both administration and front- line services was 0.1% higher in real terms
than in 2010-11.

Compared to 2010-11, the Core Department (including NHS Connecting for Health) and its Arms
Length Bodies reduced expenditure on consultancy by £2.9 million (13%) and on temporary and
agency staff by £79 million (43%).

The average number of whole time equivalent staff employed by the core Department fell by 605
{18%) compared to 2010-11. The total number of whole-time-equivalent staff employed by NHS
organisations decreased by 28,697 (2.6%) over the same period.

Despite the focus on reform, the NHS, acting through its 1.1 million staff, continued to ensure that
health services were provided to 1.5 million patients every day, and that waiting times remained
low and stable. In this context, the NHS as a whole delivered a surplus of £2.0 billion (comprising
£1.58 billion in the Commissioning sector and £497 milion from NHS providers, before
impairments).

The Department continued to set the overall strategic framework for adult social care during the
year, with 1.6 million social care workers providing services to 1.6 million care users through
25,000 registered providers.

The NHS has delivered against five key ambitions for the year:
» All performance measures relating to A&E attendance, cancer treatment, access to dentistry

and waiting times were met;

= MRSA and C. Difficile infection rates are at their lowest level since mandatory monitoring and
reporting were introduced;

= For the first time, all ambulance trusts exceeded the performance measure to respond to
immediately life-threatening calls within eight minutes,
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s The lowest ever level of patients waited more than 18 weeks for treatment, with bath the 90%
target for admitted patients and the 95% target for non-admitted patients met in each month;
and

= In terms of the Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) challenge, the NHS
delivered its target savings for 2011-12 of £5.8 billion.

ACCOUNTING & LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

The Department's Annual Report and Accounts are published each year by HM Treasury, and form an
essential part of the Department's accountability to both Parliament and the public for financial
performance and the use of resources. These accounts also provide details of the high-level
management and governance of the Department, and summarise performance, policy and financial
achievements for the year just ended. There are a number of significant differences in this year's
accounts compared to previous years. Most notably, the impact of the Treasury’'s Clear Line of Sight
legislation (Constitutional Reform & Governance Act 2010) means that from 2011-12, the Department's
accounts now cover @ much wider group, because the individual accounts of all 256 NHS provider
organisations, and all Arms Length Bodies, are consclidated for the first time. In turn, the Annual Report
now focuses to a much greater extent on financial results across the whole group, and brings together
the key financial and performance material which used to be published in the annual report to the NHS
Summarised Accounts, and which Monitor has published in respect of NHS Foundation Trusts in the
MHS Foundation Trusts: Consolidated Accounts 2011-12.

In July, the Secretary of State published his Annual Report: 2011-12 National Health Service and Public
Health Service in England. This described the developments in the comprehensive health system in
2011-12 and reported on performance across the health service. The Secretary of State’s Report
complements the material in this Annual Report to the accounts, and, as it develops in future years, it will
focus on demonstrating the Secretary of State's accountability for the National Health Service, and in
assessing the performance of MHS organisations in exercising their functions. Further, more detailed
information in respect of NHS financial and operational performance can also be found in The Year — Sir
David Nicholson's annual report on the NHS which was published in June.

In addition to the Annual Report and Accounts, the other key elements of financial accountability
published during the year are as follows:

« Parliamentary Estimates — Estimates are the Government's requests for resources from
Parliament, presented annually in a cycle prescribed by the Treasury. Details of each Department's
Estimate can be found on the Treasury website: www.hm-treasury.gov.uk:

= Main Supply Estimates start the supply procedure and are presented at the beginning of the
financial year to which they relate;

* In 2011-12, as a consequence of the changes introduced by the Treasury's Clear Line of
Sight (alignment) legislation, only one Supplementary Estimate was permitted, and this was
voted in February 2012, This further Estimate represented the final changes to supply and
funding required by the Department for the year. In previous years, Supplementary Estimates
were presented, as necessary, in June (Summer Supplementary), NMovember (Winter
Supplementary) and February (Spring Supplementary).

= Public Expenditure Statistical Analyses — The Government regularly publishes information on
departmental and other government spending in the Public Expenditure Statistical Analyses
(PESA). This analysis covers both spending plans and outturn expressed in terms of budgeting
aggregates, and functional spending based on the Total Expenditure on Services framework (TES),
which broadly represents the total revenue and capital spending of the public sector. Treasury
published these outturn forecasts for 2011-12 in April and July 2012 showing provisional
expenditure against the Departmental Expenditure Limits and the Administration Cost Limit (which
covers the Department's running costs).

For the first time, the Annual Report includes a discrete annex to report performance on sustainability by
all heallth organisations within the accounting boundary. This new reporting requirement includes a
comparison of financial and non-financial information in respect of organisations’ emissions, waste and
finite resource consumption, and is consistent with the Greening Government commitments.
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Accounting framework

These Accounts relate to the financial year 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012. They have been prepared in
accordance with a direction issued by HM Treasury under section 7 of the Government Resources and
Accounts Act 2000. A copy of this direction is available online, by accessing the HM Treasury website at
www. hm-treasury.gov.uk.

The Department's Annual Report & Accounts consolidates the financial information of organisations
within the Department's Resource Accounting Boundary. As such, this consolidation includes the
Department itself, those Special Health Authorities that are not funded by trading activities, all Strategic
Health Authorities and Primary Care Trusts, and for the first time in 2011-12, the accounts of 8 Executive
Non-Deparimental Public Bodies, 9 Arms Length Bodies, 113 NHS Trusts (including & which became
NHS Foundation Trusts in year), 143 NHS Foundalion Trusts (FTs) and one other body (the Skipton
Fund) classed by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) as central to government and sponsored by the
Department of Health. This change is a result of HM Treasury's alignment legislation, the main
consequences of which are set out in paragraph 2.17 below. Mote 32 to the accounts provides a
complete list of the organisations included within the Departmental boundary. In a very significant
change, therefore, the individual accounts of 437 organisations are now consolidated into the
Department's group account, a 268 increase from the 169 organisations in 2010-11.

The relationship between organisations within this Resource Accounting Boundary is substantially
different from the concept of a group in the commercial sector, as it is based on in-year budgetary
controls, rather than strategic controls or profit motive. In general terms, the primary focus of the
Government-funded organisations within the Resource Accounting Boundary lies with the commissioning
of healthcare from the provider sector. The group is essentially characterised by the relatively complex
trading relationship that exists between NHS commissioners and the NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation
Trusts that comprise the provider sector.

The primary statements and related disclosures contained within these accounts show the tolal financial
effects of all the activities in the year for all bodies within the Resource Accounting Boundary. The
Comptroller and Auditor General audits these financial statements, and gives an opinion as to whether
they provide a true and fair view. His opinion is provided with these accounts.

The rules for completing the accounts in each financial year are provided in HM Treasury’s Government
Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) which is available at www.financial-reporting.gov.uk. The Manual is
given the force of law by an accounts direction issued by HM Treasury under section 5(2) of the
Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000.

NHS organisations are statutorily obliged to comply with both the determination and directions given by
the Secretary of State for Health in the preparation of their annual report and individual accounts. These
directions require NHS organisations to prepare their accounts in accordance with guidance contained in
the NHS Manual for Accounts, as agreed with HM Treasury and the Financial Reporting Advisory Board
(FRAB). The NHS Manual for Accounts, which is prepared by the Department, provides an NHS context
to the accounting rules provided in the FReM. Similarly, NHS Foundation Trusts are required to prepare
their accounts in accordance with the Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM), in accordance with an
accounts direction issued by Monitor and agreed with HM Treasury and FRAB. The Department will
continue to define the accounting framework for the DH group as the structural reforms of the NHS
continue to take effect, and this will ensure that consistency can be maintained across all organisations
for both accounting and audit purposes.

These various Manuals for Accounts reflect the rules in professional accounting standards to the extent
that they are appropriate to both the public sector and Government accounting requirements. From 2009-
10, HM Treasury has required Government Departments to prepare their annual accounts on the basis of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). A number of older international standards, many of
which remain in use, are described as International Accounting Standards (IAS). However, other than
where referring to a specific standard, these terms can be used interchangeably.

MHS bodies and MHS Foundation Trusts are required fo follow the FReM guidance referred to above,
except where a divergence has been formally agreed between the Department or Monitor and HM
Treasury. Treasury agreed that charitable funds should once again not be consolidated into local NHS
accounts in 2011-12. For NHS Foundation Trusts the only further departure relates to the discounting of
future cash flows to measure fair value, where it was agreed that organisations should use a market rate
to measure value, rather than the higher of either the rate intrinsic to the financial instrument or the real
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discount rate set by Treasury. The statement of accounting policies (Mote 1 to these accounts) provides
further details of the accounting framework.

The financial statements consist of five primary statements (which provide summary information) and
accompanying notes. The five primary statements are:

» Statement of Parliamentary Supply: This is the prime Parliamentary accountability statement. It
provides a comparison of outturn against the Supply Estimate voted by Parliament and a summary
of the cash required to finance expenditure.

+ Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (CSCNE): This reports net
resources (administration costs, programme costs and income) consumed by organisations within
the Resource Accounting Boundary in the year.

« Consolidated Statement of Financial Position: This shows the current and non-current assets,
liabilities and taxpayers’' equity of crganisations within the Resource Accounting Boundary at the
beginning and end of the financial year.

= Consolidated Cash Flows Statement: This shows how cash has been used during the year on
operating, investing and financing activities.

» Consolidated Statement of Changes in Taxpayer's Equity: This shows the changes in the
General Fund and reserves in the year.

Note 6 to these Accounts provides a Statement of Operating Costs by Operating Segment. This very
comprehensive note reflects the significantly expanded parameters of the Departmental Group, and
provides a detailed analysis of income and expenditure (categorised into either administration or
programme elements as appropriate) for each sector within the DH group. These sectors, or operating
segments, cover the core Department of Health, NHS Commissioners (Primary Care Trusts and Strategic
Health Authorities), NHS Providers (NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) and all Arms Length
Bodies. Financial information relating to each of these segments is regularly reported to the Departmental
Board for financial management purposes. There is considerable trading aclivity between all
organisations in the DH group — principally between NHS Commissioners and NHS Providers. Such
inter-company transactions are eliminated during preparation of the consolidated group account, and the
value of this elimination is shown in Note 6 so that the flow of funds through the system is more
transparent.

The expansion of Note 6 to include financial information relating to each NHS sector reflects the fact that,
as a direct consequence of the Treasury's alignment legislation, the Department (subject to agreement
frorm Treasury) has opted to no longer prepare separate NHS Summarised Accounts as it has done in
previous years. With the expansion of the Resource Accounting Boundary under alignment, all key
financial information relating to each NHS sector is now presented on a fully consolidated (and therefore
more meaningful) basis within the Department's group account. In effect, the accounting boundary for
each of the NHS Summarised Accounts is now completely contained within the Department's overall
group account boundary. Appropriate commentary relating to NHS financial performance (including the
performance of NHS Foundation Trusts) is now included within this Annual Report (Section 3 below). It
should be noted, however, that Monitor (the independent regulater of NHS Foundation Trusts) continues
to prepare and publish a consolidated account for the NHS Foundation Trust sector: NHS Foundation
Trusts: Consolidated Accounts 2011-12.

When reading the Department's Annual Report and Accounts, a number of accounting issues should be
considered;

Resource Account Boundary — Alignment

2.7

The 2010-11 Annual Report & Accounts began the process of implementing HM Treasury's changes to
the budgetary framework as set out in the Constitutional Reform and Governance Act 2010. The aim of
this legislation has been to align budgets, estimates and accounts, bringing the HM Treasury budgeting
framework into line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In summary:

= From 201@—11. HM Treasury introduced changes to the budgetary framework; consequently, all
budgetary information disclosed in the 2010-11 Annual Report was presented on an aligned basis,
with comparators restated wherever possible;

. me 2011-12, the Department of Health's Resource Accounting Boundary has been substantially
increased. Consequently, in addition to the Core Department, Primary Care Trusts and Strategic
Health Authorities, the group account also consolidates the individual accounts of NHS Trusts,
NHS Foundation Trusts, and all Arms Length Bodies and Executive Non-Departmental Bodies
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(except those with public corporation status). This is a fundamental change, and more than doubles
the size and scope of the Department’s Annual Report & Accounts (i.e. from 169 organisations to
437). Whilst 2011-12 has seen the abolition of a number of the Department's Arms Length Bodies,
a handful of new, and very significant organisations have also been created — most notably the
NHS Commissioning Board Special Health Authority in October 2011. The Board has become a full
Executive Mon-Departmental Body from October 2012 as it takes up its full powers in respect of
NHS commissioning;

» Two bodies remain outside the Department's Resource Accounting Boundary — NHS Blood &
Transplant and the Medicines & Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency — as these both have
public corporation status,

= The magnitude of change is demonstrated by the difference in the Net Book Value at 1 April 2011
in Property Plant and Equipment from £8.7 billion as reported as the closing balance in the 2010-11
Resource Account to £47 4 billion as shown in the Statement of Financial Position for the revised
group. However, the net operating costs for 2010-11 in the account has only changed by £19 billion
(from EB5 billien in the 2010-11 Resource Account to £104 billion as restaled in this account) as
NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts receive their main income through trading activity with
healthcare commissioners, so by far the majority of their transactions are with organisations within
the boundary and, as such, are eliminated on consolidation;

s A Treasury-led change in the treatment of Government Grant and Donated Asset Reserves has
been implemented across the group, and is reflected in these financial statements;

» A change in the treatment of National Insurance Contributions has been implemented, such that, in
the DH group account, these contributions are now recorded as funding rather than income as was
the case in previous years,

» The Department has also implemented the new Treasury control in respect of reporting
expenditure between its administration and programme components. This control has been applied
to the Core Department, NHS Commissioners, and most Arms Length Bodies, With the agreement
of the Treasury, all income and expenditure within the accounts of NHS Providers has been
classified to programme to reflect the fact that these organisations are primarily concerned with the
delivery of front line health services; and

s The Parliamentary Estimate for 2011-12 is now prepared on a net basis. This means that the
Department is able to retain and spend all the income generated in the categories that Parliament
has approved through the estimate.

Restatement of the 2010-11 accounts and application of the IAS8 exemption

2.18

2.189

One significant consequence of the issues listed above, has been the requirement to restate both the DH
group account and the accounts of individual consolidating organisations for 2010-11. More detail relating
to the rationale and mechanics of this restatement is provided in Note 1b to these accounts. In preparing
the prior year comparators for this account, the main principles applied by the Department can be
summarised as follows:

+ Prior period comparative figures disclosed in the 2011-12 accounts are as comparable, accurate
and meaningful as possible to the users of the accounts within the meaning of IAS1; and

+« The methods and accounting principles used to create prior period comparators have been clearly
disclosed either in this Annual Report or as appropriate narrative disclosure in the Primary
Statements or Notes to the accounts.

In terms of the restatement of the 2010-11 accounts, the accurate elimination of trading (e.g. income &
expenditure and/or payables & receivables) and other balances between organisations within the group
has proved particularly challenging. The Department undertook a number of exercises to attempt to bring
the overall level of mismatch to within a materially acceptable level. However, for a number of very valid
reasons, this has proved impossible to achieve without undertaking further resource intensive exercises
in respect of all affected organisations. The main cause of the material imbalance is the fact that over half
the organisations (i.e. NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) now within the DH Resource Accounting
Boundary were not included in 2010-11, which means that those organisations were not required to
agree balances at the time their 2010-11 accounts were being prepared and audited.
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2.20 Having made every reasonable effort to reduce the level of material imbalance in the 2010-11 (and
relevant 2009-10) comparators, the Department has concluded that it is impraclicable to do so within the
meaning of IAS8. The standard allows, for example, that “applying a requirement is impracticable when
the entity [in this case the Department of Health] cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to
do s0". The most important principles of the 2010-11 restatement are described below.

2.21 In the interests of presenting comparative information that will be of value to the readers of these
accounts, and with the support of both the Treasury and the National Audit Office, the Department has
restated its 2010-11 (and where relevant 2009-10) comparatives to the greatest extent possible (although
it has not been possible to achieve full comparability). This means that all practicable restatements,
required either as a result of Clear Line of Sight or other accounting changes (as detailed in Note 1b)
have been applied. In effect, the Department has adopted a “best endeavours® approach in relation to the
elimination of trading and other balances in prior periods, with the Department replicating, as far as
possible, the elimination techniques applied in relation to 2011-12 balances.

2.22 The Department recognises, however, that the material level of residual mismatch (as described above)
will cast doubt over the accuracy of these eliminations, such that the income, expenditure, payables and
receivables figures presented in the consolidated prior period columns in this account may not represent
a true and fair view of the Department's activities. For this reason, therefore, the Department has applied
the IAS8 impracticability exemption. As such, these consolidated comparative figures have not been
subject to audit. Mevertheless, whilst the NAO has not provided an audit opinion in respect of these
comparatives, they have included an Emphasis of Matter report within their overall opinion on the 2011-
12 account. Both the Department and the NAO agree that the unique set of circumstances arising from
the Clear Line of Sight legislation have made it necessary to apply the IASB impracticability exemption to
the 2011-12 accounts. The Department does not expect the same set of conditions to apply in future
years, so the application of the IASE exemption is confined to the 2011-12 accounts. It should also be
noted that, notwithstanding the level of residual imbalance described above, the closing balances of the
2010-11 primary statements, and therefore the opening balances for 2011-12, are not misstated,
because, for example, an expenditure imbalance in one direction, would be exactly off-set by an income
imbalance in the opposite direction .

2.23 Clear disclosure in respect of this issue has been provided throughout these financial statements. In
particular, Note 1b Restatement explains the extent to which the Department has been able to produce
comparable prior period consolidated restated figures and the methodology used to derive those
comparatives. Where either primary statements or disclosure notes have been directly affected, detailed
explanatory footnotes have been included, and these have been cross-referenced to Note 1b as
appropriate. The staterment of accounting policies (Note 1) also refers to the non-comparable nature of a
limited number of consolidated prior period figures. The Governance Statement refers to both the IAS8
exemption and the difficulties experienced with the agreement of balances exercises, which have
ultimately made it impracticable to accurately eliminate trading and other balances in prior years.

Transfer of Community Health Services from PCTs

2.24 As was the case last year, during 2011-12 certain provider functions continued to be transferred between
organisations consolidated into the Department's Annual Report & Accounts. The majority of such
transactions relate to the “Transforming Community Services” initiative, whereby elements of PCT
provider functions have transferred to NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts or social enterprises. HM
Treasury require that merger accounting principles are applied in full in these circumstances. However,
for TCS transactions specifically, as was the case in 2010-11, both HM Treasury and the Financial
Reporting Advisory Board have agreed that it is impracticable to adjust prior period comparators as would
normally be required. Prior period restatement is therefore effected by an adjustment to 1 April 2011
opening balances rather than by a full restatement of prior year comparators.

Disclosures in the Underlying Accounts

2.25 Given the range and number of individual accounts consolidated into the Group Accounts, it is not
practical for the fn!lowing local disclosures to be summarised in this report. However they are disclosed,
and therefore publicly available, in the Annual Reports of the individual underlying organisations:

* Management commentary;

* The legislative, regulatory, operational and external environment in which the individual
organisation operates:

* Remuneration and pension entitlements in respect of senior managers;
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= The organisation's policies for managing risk;

» Significant differences in asset values compared to market values;

» |Interests of board members;

» Data loss incidents;

* Environmental, social and community issues;

» [Key performance indicators relating to employee matters and environment; and

« Auditors’ remuneration in respect of non-audit services.

3 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

These financial statements show how the Department's activities have been funded, and its resources
deployed, during the 2011-12 financial year. For the third year, the Department's accounts and
supporting notes have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Department has two primary sources of funding: Parliamentary (Supply) funding and Mational
Insurance Contributions. In 2011-12, National Insurance Contributions amounted to around £16.9 billion
(a decrease from the £17.9 billion in 2010-11). HM Treasury (HMT) sets the Depariment's budgets
independently from the level of National Insurance Contribulions and, as such, they have no impact on
the resources available to cover expenditure on healthcare. As noted in paragraph 2.17 above, National
Insurance Contributions are now treated as funding within these accounts and not as income as was the
case in previous years.

The Department is required to contain expenditure within a series of controls operated by both HMT and
Parliament:

= Revenue expenditure must be contained within either the Revenue Departmental Expenditure Limit
(RDEL) or Annually Managed Expenditure (AME). Details of 2011-12 revenue expenditure are set
out below in Table one for RDEL and Table two for AME;

s Administration revenue expenditure must be contained within the Department’'s Administration limit,
which is a subset of the overall revenue DEL. Details of 2011-12 administration expenditure are set
out in Tables six and seven; and

» Capital expenditure must be contained within the Capital Departmental Expenditure Limit (CDEL).
Details of 2011-12 capital expenditure are set out in Table four.

In 2011-12, the Department met all its financial duties, by managing resources within the budgets set by
HM Treasury and the amounts voted by Parliament.

Revenue expenditure

3.5

Table one details the 2011-12 RDEL outturn compared to budget and 2010-11.
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Table One: Revenue Departmental Expenditure Limit (RDEL) 201112

2010-11

2011-12  2010-11 (exc PSS)' Growth  Growth

Em Em £m £m %

Revenue DEL budget 102,418 101,384 99,819 2,598 2.6%

Revenue DEL expenditure 101,589 100,286 o8, 765 2824 2.9%
Under/{over) spend Em 829 1,098 1,054
Under/{over) spend % 0.8% 1.1% 1.1%

Breakdown of 2011-12 Revenue DEL underspend (Note 2):
NHS Surpluses (Primary Care Trusts, Strategic Heaith 2,048
Authorities, NHS Trusls and Foundation Trusts)
SHA & PCT End Year Flexibilly Allocation (1.372)
NHS 674

DH Central & ALBs 154

Notes
1. In order to calculate growth on a consistent basis, 2010-11 figures have been restated to exclude P35 as this was transferred

to DCLG as part of the 2010 Spending Review
2 The breakdown is before the elimination of intra-group transactions so the figures do not malch those in table 3.

3. Figures may not sum due to roundings

The Department underspent by £829 million (0.8%) against its final RDEL budget in 2011-12. (This
compares to a £1,054 million (1.1%) restated underspend in 2010-11).

The 2011-12 underspend has been broken down by spending sectors. The overall NHS underspend of
£674 million comprises an underspend of £2,046 million offset by an allocation of £1,372 million to PCTs
and SHAs. This allocation relates to the underspend that PCTs and SHAs delivered in 2010-11 and was
returned to them in 2011-12 (known as End of Year Flexibility).

In 2011-12. as announced in the 2010 Spending Review, HMT introduced the Budget Exchange
Scheme. This scheme allows departments to surrender an underspend in advance of the end of the
financial year in return for a corresponding increase in their budget in the following year, subject to a
prudent limit. DH took advantage of this scheme and transferred £250 million of the 2011-12 REDEL into
2012-13. This transfer was based on a prudent estimate of the forecast underspend in December 2011.

In cash terms, RDEL expenditure increased in 2011-12 by £2,824 million (or 2.9%).

Disposition of the Department’s 2011-12 Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) expenditure (Revenue)
3.10 Figure 1 below illustrates the high-level disposition, by spending sector, of the expenditure that scores

against the Departmental Revenue Expenditure Limit (RDEL). The distribution does not represent an
allocation of resources, rather it relates to the outturn position by sector. The figure for the provider sector
represents the actual surplus, before PDC dividend, of both NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts.
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|Figure 1: Revenue Disposition Outturn

Revenue DEL Outturn £101,588m

. 1
SHA/PCTs £96,472m Providers -E516m ALBs £1,015m Central £4,618m
|
Met Operating Cosl [Reported Surpluses -£463m Mon Departmental Public EEA Madical Costs EG85m
£96,816m {MHS Trusts -E45m) Bodes £272m

{Foundation Trusts -£E418m)

Research & Development
HMT Budgeting HMT Budgeting Adjustmenis Special Health Authaorities E880m

Adjustments  -£345m -£523m E744m

Connecting for Health
£1,108m

Healthy Start  £140m

Admin E453m

Social Care £1,326m

' Other £46m
Motes

1. Negative numbers indicate benefit to the DEL - eg Providers reported a DEL surplus of E518m

2. Further explanation of the provider surplus is in the NH3 Finance and Performance paragraphs below

3. RDEL outtum is before impairments and adjustments for service concession IFRIC 12 arrangements and donated assels /

government grant reserves.
Figures may not sum due to roundings

£

Revenue — Annually Managed Expenditure (AME)

3.11 Expenditure that HM Treasury has deemed to be demand-led or exceptionally volatile scores against the
Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) budget. For DH, this includes expenditure on provisions, certain
impairments relating to assets and Credit Guarantee Finance. Details of the AME budget and
expenditure are set out in Table two below:
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Table Two: Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) 2011-12
2011-12 2010-11 Growth Growth

£m £m £m Yo
AME budget 3,943 4 844 (901) -18.6%
AME expenditure 3,183 3,207 {14) -0.4%
Under/(over) spend £m 750 1,637
Under/(over) spend % 19.0% 33.8%

The Department underspent by £750 million (or 18.0%) against its final AME budget in 2011-12. This
underspend is mainly because actual spend was lower than the estimated redundancy provisions relating
to the NHS reforms. See paragraph 3.31 for more details.

AME expenditure in 2011-12 reduced in cash terms by £14 million or 0.4% compared to 2010-11.

Table three provides an explanation of the differences between provision and outturn in the
Parliamentary Estimates for both DEL and AME expenditure, relating to the figures in Note 2.1 of the

accounts.
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Table Three: Explanation of Differences between Provision and Outturn

Provision Outturn  Diference Diference Explanation of differencé
£m Em Em %

Ravenue DEL

PCT & SHA @xpenddung 19,248 18371 BT 5% The underspend on this line of E8TT millon
or 5% results from:
1. An under forecast of the level of intra
group eimingtions of £894 milkion; and
2. the remaining diference is because
PCT/SHA expenditine was £183 million
knwer than foracast in the Supplementany
Parkamentary Estimate.

DH Programeme expenditure (NHS) 1,685 1,842 44 2%

Special Health Authonties éxpendiure 1,830 2270 540 -39% The overspend on this Ene of £842 million
of 30% results from:
1, An under fonecast of the level of inlra
group elimenations expenditure of £615
millicn; and
2. the remaining difference of E28 milkon
of 1.7% i because Spacial Heaith
Authonity expendiune was higher than
forecast in the Supplementarny
Parfamantary Estimate.

DH Programrmié & Administration expenditune 2162 1,789 ez 16% The underspend on this line i5 becausa the
Department underspant cwirall on tE
Revenue DEL by £825 million

Social Cane Expenditune 1,328 1,326 o 0%

MHS Trust net expendibune 28,241 27.530 T2 3% The underspend on thes line of 712 maon
of 3% results from
1. An under forecast of the level of intra
group elminations of E504 mion, and
2. thie remaaning difference is because
Trust expendiung was £107 million lower
than forecast in the Supplementary
Parliamentary Estirmile

NHS Foundation Trusls net expanditure 30,815 31,320 {514) -2% The cverspand on this Ene of E517 milkon
of 2% results from:
1. An under forecast of the beved of intra
group eliminations of £713 million; and
2. the remaining differenca is bacause
Foundation Trust expenditune was £158
million lower than fonecast in the
Supplernentiany Pariameéntary Estimala.

Non Departmental Bodies net expendiure 281 284 (B -I%
PCT & SHA expenditure financed by NI contibutions 18,825 18,844 (35) 0%
Total RDEL 102,418 101,589 829

annually Managed Expenditure (AME)

PCT & SHA expandiure ] 218 748 77% The underspend of £748 million or 77% on
thig Bne is bacawse actual spend was Iower
than the estimabid redundancy provisicns
retating b thé NHS reforms. See
paragraph 3.31 of tha Annual Repor for
mong Gitaals,

DH Programme expendiure (WHS) 1 45 (45) -A5824%, A rivvew ol provisions undértaken prior o
the Supplementary Supply Estimale,
identified the need to increase AME cover
for plood borne disease provisions. Thes
ncrease was necorded in ol Bgains] the
AME estimale kine “DH Programma
expandiung”

Spacial Health Authorities expendiure 2,084 2,018 &7 ]

OH Programme & Administration expenditure 168 80 Fi:3 45% Please soe the explanation for the "DH

Programme expenditure (NHS5)" ine
Ak
418 ] 2%

300 {87} =32% The overspend of ES7 millon or 32% on
this ne is because expenditune on
Empairmants and provisions n this secior
was higher than forecas! in the
Supplementary Supply Eslimate.
Mon Departrmemal Bodies nel expenddune [t} - (1:1] 240°%
19%

Total AME 3,943 3193 T80

MHS Trust net expandiure
NHS Foundation Trusts nef expendibure

£8
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Capital Departmental Expenditure Limit

3.15 Table four below provides details of the CDEL outturn for 2011-12 compared to both the budget and the
2010-11 position.

Table Four: Capital Department Expenditure Limit (CDEL) 2011-12
201112 201011 Growth  Growth

£m Em Em %
Capital DEL budget 4,353 4,897 (544} -11.1%
Capital DEL expenditure 3,786 4,158 (372) -9.0%
Under/{over) spend £m 566 738
Underf/{over) spend % 13.0% 15.1%
Breakdown of 2011-12 Capital DEL underspend (note 1):
NHS Bodies (Primary Care Trusls, Strategic Health 363
Authorities, NHE Trusts and Foundalion Trusts)
DH Central & ALBs 204

Notes

1. Breakdown of the underspend 15 based on the oniginal planning assumptions for @ach sector so figures do not match
those in Note 2.2 in the accounts

2. Figures may not sum due to roundings

3.16 CDEL expenditure in 2011-12 reduced in cash terms by £372 million (or 9.0%) compared to 2010-11.
The 2011-12 CDEL underspend of £566 million (or 13.0%) has been broken down by spending sectors.
The main reasons for the CDEL underspend relates to the fact that.

« expenditure in Connecting for Health was around £400 million lower than criginally planned,

» NHS expenditure, mainly in NHS Trusts, was around £363 million lower than originally planned,
offset by

» increased capital expenditure of £300 million by the NHS Supply Chain within the NHS Business
Services Authority's accounts.

3.17 The impact of the tighter financial position has contributed to the reduction in spend between years, as
organisations make decisions about the prioritisation of spending locally. A contributory factor has been
that spending has had to be contained within a lower budget as set by HM Treasury in the 2010
Spending Review.

3.18 The Department took advantage of HMT's Budget Exchange Scheme and transferred £66 million of the
CDEL into 2012-13, this was the maximum permitted for capital within the scheme.

Disposition of the Department’s 2011-12 Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) expenditure (Capital)

3.19 Figure 2 below illustrates the high-level disposition, by spending sector, of the expenditure that scores
against the Department's Capital DEL. The distribution does not represent an allocation of resources,
rather it relates to the outturn position by sector.
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Figure 2: Capital Disposition Qutturn

Capital DEL Outturn
£3,786m

NHS Bodie

s £2864m

ALBs

£363m

Central

£559m

SHAs & PCTs E448m Non Departmental Public Connecting for Health £298m
Bodies E39m
NHS Trusts £1,045m Special Health Authorities Admin E4m
£324m
(Of which £300m NHS Supply
Chain)
Foundation Trusts £1,373m Social Care E144m
Other E114m

Muote
1) Figures may not sum due to rounding

Total Departmental Expenditure Limit (TDEL)

The Treasury’s presentation of departmental expenditure in its publications (e.g. Spending Review and
Budget reports) is on a Total DEL basis, calculated as the total of RDEL expenditure plus CDEL
expenditure less depreciation. Table five below sets out TDEL expenditure for 2010-11 and 2011-12

3.20
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Table Five: Total Departmental Expenditure Limit (TDEL) and Real Terms Growth 2011-12

3.21

2011-12 2010-11 Growth in Growth in  Real

£m £m cash realterms terms
terms Em, growth
£m S

RDEL 101,589 100,286 1,304 (1,043) -1.0%
CDEL 3,786 4159 (372) (470) -11.3%
Less PSS, (1,520) 1,520 1,556 -102.3%
Less depreciation (1,193) (1,210) 16 45 3.7%
TDEL 104,182 101,714 2,468 88 0.1%

Motes

1. In order to calculate growth on a consisient basis, 2010-11 figures have been restaled to exclude PSS as this was
transferred to DCLG from 2011-12 as part of the 2010 Spending Review

2. Real terms are the cash figures for 2010-11adjusted to 2011-12 prices using GDP deflators
3. Category also includes some types of impairment
4, Figures may not sum due to roundings

Total DH expenditure in 2011-12 was 0.1% higher in real terms than in 2010-11 = this includes
expenditure on both administration and front- line services. Expenditure on front-line services increased
in cash terms by £3.4 billion or 3.5% in 2011-12 and in real terms by £1.1 billion or 1.1%.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

As part of the 2010 Spending Review, the Department's administration cost limit, which had previously
applied only to the core department, was extended to include the administration costs of Primary Care
Trusts, Strategic Health Authorities, Special Health Authorities and Non-Departmental Public Bodies.
This extended administration limit took effect from 2011-12.

The revised impact assessment for the Health and Social Care Bill (now the Health and Social Care Act
2012) published in September 2011, set out a revised trajectory of how the Department planned to
implement the required one-third reduction in administration costs by 2014-15 as set out in the 2010
Spending Review. The one-third reduction is measured against the 2010-11 baseline in real terms, ie the
baseline in subsequent years is uplifted for inflation.

From 2011-12, therefore, administration costs reflect the costs of running the Department and other non-
provider NHS organisations, and do not directly relate to the provision of front-line services. Programme
costs reflect non-administration costs, including payments of grants and other disbursements by the
Department, as well as certain staff costs where they relate directly to, or support, front-line service
delivery. Expenditure on the direct provision of healthcare by NHS provider organisations (including the
running costs of those bodies) is also classified as programme.

In 2011-12, HM Treasury recategorised a number of expenditure types between administration and
programme with the movement predominantly being from programme to administration. Reclassified
items include certain grant-in-aid expenditure and policy payments. The Department estimates the net
impact of this recategorisation to be in the region of a £250 million increase in administration costs, with a
corresponding decrease in programme costs. The analysis of 2010-11 Core Department expenditure has
not been adjusted and continues with the categorisation in place at the time. This ensures a consistent

date of application of the revised administration costs regime across the Departm
: he revis ental Group, and the
impact of the recategorisation is not material. i :
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The analysis of 2010-11 income and expenditure between administration and programme categories has
not been restated to reflect the wider interpretation of administration costs adopted in 2011-12, rather it
continues to reflect the administration costs regime in place at the time. As agreed with HM Treasury and
the Financial Reporting Advisory Board, the Department deems it to be impracticable, per the |1AS 8
definition, for NHS bodies to restate prior pericd income and expenditure figures based on an
administration costs regime that was not in place at the time.

Table six provides a comparison of the Department's 2011-12 administration expenditure against the
2011-12 administration limit.

Table Six: Administration Limit 2011-12

3.28

329

3.30

201112
201112 Admin
Admin Limit Outturn Underspend Underspend
£m Em Em o
Administration - excluding depreciation 4,073 3,307 767 18.8%
Administration depreciation 359 234 125 34.8%
Administration total 4,432 3,541 B892 20.1%

Notes

1. Figures may not sum due to roundings

The Department underspent by £892 million (or 20.1%) against the 2011-12 administration limit. This
resulted from a combination of a faster pace of administration reductions than were expected at the time
of setting the administration limit particularly in PCTs and SHAs and the fact that contingencies to
account for the uncertainty in the split of expenditure between administration and programme were not
required.

Table seven below provides a comparison of the 2011-12 administration outturn against the revised
impact assessment for the Health and Social Care Bill (now the Health and Social Care Act 2012).

Table Seven: Administration Costs Forecast 2011-12 to 2014-15

Baseline
2010-11  2011-12 2012-13 201314 201415
Em £m £m Em E£m
Administration costs forecast | 5 4 500 3,969 3,811 3,553 3,337
2011-12 outturn 5 3,307
Under/(over) spend 662

Hotes

1. The administration costs forecast ks as published in the revised impact assessment for the Health and Social Care
Bill. Mote, the actual published figures were in 2010-11 prices

2. Administration figures do not include depreciation

4. The 2011-12 outturn includes PCT redundancy costs of £70 million - as per HMT's budgeting guidance, these costs
scone to administrabion rather than programme

4. Figures may not sum due (o roundings

The Impact Assessment forecasted administration costs (excluding depreciation) in 2011-12 to be £3 969
million (below the £4,073 million administration limit in Table six). The administration costs outturn in
2011-12 is £662 million lower than forecast in the published Impact Assessment. This is because the
Health and Social Care Act 2012 reforms have delivered faster administration reductions than were
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expected at the time of the Impact Assessment. These faster reductions mean the savings over the
course of this Parliament associated with the reforms have increased from £4.5 billion to E5.6 billion. This
allows more spending on frontline services.

In 2011-12 lower redundancy costs were incurred than forecast in the Impact Assessment. This is likely
to be the result of a number of factors: more natural wastage than expected, lower payouts per person
than expected, greater reductions in non-staff costs and the redundancies required to deliver the skill mix
for the future organisations are happening later than expected.

NHS Administration

3.32

By 2014-15 the overall administration costs of the new NHS superstructure, compared to the
administration costs of the current NHS group, will decrease by one third. The NHS baseline for the
reduction was set at £3,205 million in the Impact Assessment published in September 2011, which also
recorded that £240 million was achieved in 2010-11 year. SHA and PCT administration costs in 2011-12
excluding depreciation totalled £2,423 million a further reduction of £542 million. The total reduction of
£782 million against the baseline shows good progress towards the one-third real reduction.

Arm’s Length Bodies' Administration and Programme Costs

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

3.38

Arm's Length Bodies (ALBs) are stand-alone national organisations sponsored by the Department of
Health, created to help support and manage the health and social care system. They are accountable to
the Department of Health and sometimes directly to Parliament, and typically provide the following type of
functions:

« regulating the health and social care system and workforce;
« establishing national standards and protecting patients and the public; and
+ providing central services to the NHS.

The White Paper Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS and the subsequent Command Paper,
Liberating the NHS: Report of the arm's-length bodies review (‘the ALB review' published July 2010), set
out the Government's commitment to reduce and streamline the NHS, including the Department's ALEs.

The ALB review provided the opportunity to undertake a detailed look at the functions of each body to
determine whether in the future health and social care system their functions were essential and whether
they:

« are sufficiently technical that there is a scarcity of capability and expertise for the function to be
provided by other means;
need to be performed independently of Ministers to ensure political impartiality;
provide accountability and assurance to patients, service users and taxpayers by independently
establishing facts.

The review found that some seven ALBs currently within the Resource Accounting Boundary would leave
the sector, to become self-funding, or to be abolished and have their continuing functions transferred to
other bodies. Continuing ALBs will operate more efficiently, streamlining support services wherever
possible and making use of commercial opportunities where this is appropriate. The Department will also
clarify and strengthen the system of governance that supports them. Formal Framework Agreements will
set out roles and responsibilities with the Department, and how they will deliver their objectives within
their resource limit.

The Department's current Arms Length Bodies (ALBs) are listed in Note 32 to the accounts. Nine of
these organisations have Special Health Authority status and eight are Executive Non-Departmental
Public Bodies (ENDPB). The Skipton Fund is included as an ENDPB. This organisation was set up to
make payments to people infected with hepatitis C through NHS blood or blood products.

The establishment of four new ALBs was highlighted in Equity and excellence - Liberating the NHS. Two
new special health authorities commenced in 2011-12, the NHS Commissioning Board Authority in

October 2011 and the Health Research Authority in December 2011. Health Education England and NHS
Trust Development Authority were established in June 2012,
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3.39 The seven ALBs that are leaving the sector in 2012-13 are listed below. In 2011-12 these bodies have
prepared for the transfer of their continuing functions.

3.40

3.41

The Appointments Commission will close in October 2012, and the senior NHS appointment
functions will transfer to NHS Trust Development Authority,

The National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) residual functions will move to the NHS Commissioning
Board, and it closed in July;

The General Social Care Council closed in July 2012 and its residual functions transfer to the Health
and Care Professions Council;

The Health Protection Agency's main functions will transfer to Public Health England at the end of the
year,

The National Treatment Agency for Substance Misuse (NTA) will close by April 2013, and its residual
functions will move to Public Health England;

The functions of the NHS Institute relating to quality improvements will transfer to the NHS
Commissioning Board and alternative delivery models are being explored for their other functions;
and

The Council for Healthcare Regulatory Excellence will be made into a self funding body and it will be
renamed Professional Standards Authority.

As part of the requirement to achieve the overall efficiency savings set out in the Spending Review, and
following the review of their functions, many ALBs received lower parliamentary funding in 2011-12
compared to 2010-11. Table 8 summarises the changes for each organisation, together with their net
operating cost position derived from Note & to the accounts.

The movements on NHSLA and NHSBESA are explained below. Excluding these two organisations, the
table shows that total parliamentary funding reduced from £510 million in 2010-11 to £422 million in
2011-12 (17%). Parliamentary funding includes administration, programme and capital funding. Some
funding within the categories are non-recurrent.
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Table Eight: Summarised Financial Performance for DH's Arm’s Length Bodies in 2011-12 and prior

Year .
Oparativeg  Oennt im Al Gurant in Akl = :
 Bok Openiing Opeiing - O e i
Arms Lengt L Conta Income {incomaj {incomal} Funding Fundirg F
01112 201112 01112 2010-11 201112 2000-11
Spacial Masith Autharities Emitliong Emillinrs. Emiilions Emillions Demilinns Cmillinne
Hsalth Fessanch Authonty (HRA) 36 30 06 oo 4.2 0.0
Health and Social Care Information Centre (15) 46.3 11.1 352 wme 40,1 355
Mational Patent Salaty Agency (NPSA) 224 28 16906 30.5 17.0 31.9
MHS Business. Services Authority (BSA) TE1.2 G064 154.8 140.0 428.2 140.8
HHS Institube for Innovaton and Imprevermient 584 a8 406 02 44 8 57.4
NHS Commissioning Board Autharity 4.4 00 4.4 0.0 50 0.0
NHS Liigation Authority (NHSLA) 33625 934.4 24281 1,864.8 408.2 858
Matisnal Inst#ule for Healh and Clinical Excallenca (MICE) 64.9 5.8 502 615 59.0 628
Hational Treatment Agency (NTA) 15.2 e a7 10.2 10.1 10.7
Total 4. 336.8 1,575.7 2,761.1 2,.207.0 1,016.7 AZ4.7
Ewdcutive Non-Departmental Fublic Bodies
Appointmients Commission 35 1.4 21 48 23 28
Care Cuality Cormmisalon (CQC) 1484 BB.5 ] 5600 453 82.3
Councd for Healthcare Regulatory Excellence (CHRE) 2T 03 8 24 15 21
Garnaral Social Care Council 57.8 385 18.3 B0 6.0 7.4
Human Ferilization and Embeyology Authanty (HFEA) 53 8T 0.4 21 0.4 23
Haalth Protection Agency (HPA) TS 1567 1608 176.5 169.8 190.0
Human Tisswe Authosity (HTA) 4.4 33 11 1.2 1.1 1.2
Monitor 237 B.2 15.5 14.8 157 14.2 10,
Skipton Fund 52.5 T3 15.1 =15.0 00 00
Total 616.9 319.9 277.0 283.T 2421 IR ﬁj
Combined Total 4,953.7 1.915.6 3.038.1 24607 1,268.8 T16.8 Tﬂ.l
Total excluding BSA and NHSLA B30.0 AT4.8 455.2 .0 IE.I- 510.4 *“J

3.42

343

3.44

3.45

Note

1. Figures are from the individual accounts and inter-group transactions have not be ehminated. So the tolals do not represant the
consolidated position.

2. Operating income i3 income which relates directly to the operating activities of the authority. It prncipally comprses fees and
charges for services provided on a full-cost basis 10 external cusiomers, as well as public repayment work, but it also includes other
income such as that from Devolved Administrations and from other NHS organisations. It includes both income appropriated-in-aid
and income 1o the Consolidated Fund which HM Treasury has agreed should be trealed as operaling income.

3. CQC received non-recurrent transition funding from the Depardment in 2010-11.

The majority of Special Health Authority spending relates to claims made to the NHS Litigation Authority
(NHSLA) in respect of clinical negligence (net £2 4 billion of £2.7 billion total spending). This figure
comprises claims settled (net of contributions from the NHS) and new claims recognised. Parliamentary
funding is provided to meet the claims outside the NHS contribution scheme paid in the year rather than
the estimated costs of those future claims.

Claims can take a significant length of time to be reported to the NHSLA, and the settlement of claims
can take a long time depending on the circumstances of the claim. Claims can take over 30 years to be
reparted, over 10 years to be seltled and, if the claim is settled as a periodic payment order, the claim
payments can potentially span a further period of 50 years.

IAS 37 requires the inclusion of liabilities in respect of incidents which have been incurred but not
reported (IENRs) to the NHS Litigation Authority as at 31st March 2012, Given the long-term nature of
the liabilities, these incidents form the most significant and uncertain part of the NHSLA's total £18.8
billion provisions. The numbers of clinical claims reported to the NHSLA have increased in recent years.
This is believed to be the result of more incidents converting to claims as well as claims being reported to

the NHSLA more quickly. It is uncertain to what extent each of these factors is driving the change in the
total number of claims.

NHS Business Services Authority received a non-recurrent capital funding of £300 million in 2011-12.
This followed the Public Accounts Committee recommendations regarding the aggregation of NHS spend

for capital equipment purchases to deliver savings across the wider NHS via the NHS Supply Chain. This

arrangement was made as a supplemental agreement to the existing master services agreement
goveming the relationship between NHS Business Services Authority and the NHS Supply Chain.
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Total departmental spending o
2007 08 200809 2008-10 201011 2011-12 201213 201314 2014~
Dutturn®®  Outtum **  OQuttun™® Outtwm®®  Outturn** Plans * Plans Pla
Rasource DEL B4 207 717 90,156 640 97075200 100,285 509 101,588,191 105 474 9495 108,155,452 111,056.3
of which daoraciation” 733,404 §71,188 1187318 1.208.730 1.193.265 1,181,699 1,224,240 1.2668.3
Resource AME 3,479,949 1,586,034 3,699,212 3,206,683 3,183 101 3,948,792 2325673 28554
o ahich denraciation® 548,759 386,765 2499238 1000777 716,384 900,000 700,000 700,0
Total Resource Budget BT BET B66 §1,744 674 100,774,412 tﬂiliﬂw 109,423,787 11 113.611.7
Capital DEL 066,103 4 358 533 5182275 4,158 605 3. 7TR8.2T0 4455435 4,437,000 4848 C
Capital AME ar142 13,831 6441 7876
Total Capital Budget 4,003,245
Total deparimental 90,608,748 94769085 102276574 105448157 106,658,913 111,837,523 112,984,185 116,291 .4
of which:
Total DEL A7 440416  GISEI GBS 101,070,157 103234375 104,182,196 108,788,731 111,368,212 114 4358
Total AME 3,168,332 1,215,100 1,206,417 2213782 2478717 3,048,782 1,825873 1,855
HNoles
1 Tobs cepmrtmentsl sgerdey o Pe S0 OF e filon Tl Guacige S B capatal Budige? Bua, depreiated Savday, iots DL B Drep wasm oo Bran romcenon buckpet DEL ] ¢l Ddet DE L s cebpessmaingn m
DEL wrd ot AME 1o i o S0 bt AN s Copabinl Bucioet AME e el i AE
T, E e o T 0 2 ) G G W G i e T - N iy el TS A P TRy DR UBUCEON TPt rrutes_ U T I
I WDkl AT AN
i, TP G Bgune ion JO0U-00 K JON0-TT i Hiser0n DL PR el 1,000 0 {10 11500 e Uikl LREL. 000 107 1RT 1R
& o presanistons pussossm, M tullern ke 0708 b 0% 10 ol ten. the Machimeny of Gowermemnt Fianatet o e Food Standass Agency T iranabe: aciusly ook efiec! heredng 201011
& Al gores i B pore Libkes B Leken b R Tressary's (M) pubic gupendibure Selahike “DSC AR
T Fogures may sl 8m gt i 1oarading
Spending by local authorities on functions relevant to
E'l
2007-08 200809 2009-10 2010-11 201112 201213 201314 2014
Qutturm Cutturm Outturm Quttum Duttum Plans Plans Pz
Current spending
of wihich:
financed by grants from 1,608,036 1,073,644 1,228,087 1,330,179 1325814 1,357,000
budgets abowe
Capital spending A -
o wihich:
financed by grants from 116,389 108,382 120,420 118,416 123,760 126,580
budgats abowe
Core Table 2 Public Spending Control
201112 201112 2011-12
Original plan Final plan Outturn
£'000 £'000 E'000
Resource DEL 102,652,756 102,417,984 101,589,191
Capital DEL 4,429 000 4,352 565 3,786,270
Resource AME 2,964 845 3,942 954 3,193,101
Capital AME = z =
Note

1. All figures in the core table are taken from HM Treasury's (HMT) public expenditure database "OSCAR".
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Core Table 3 Capital Employed
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NHS Finance and Performance

347 As described in the first section of this Annual Report, the scope of the Department's annual accounts
has significantly increased this year through the inclusion of the individual accounts of NHS Providers
(both NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) and all Arms Length Bodies. The financial performance of
this expanded group is now reported in detail for the first time within Note 6 to these accounts (Statement
of Operating Costs by Operating Segment). This note also reflects the outcome of the trading activity
between the commissioners and providers of healthcare that are eliminated on consolidation.

NHS Financial Duties

3.48 Each NHS organisation is subject to a series of either statutory or departmental financial duties. These
differ slightly depending on the type of organisation, and in particular, on whether an organisation’s
income is received as a result of direct Government funding allocations (ie. the commissioners of
healthcare), or whether it is derived through trading activity (i.e. NHS providers). A summary of these
various duties is set out in the following paragraphs.

Primary Care Trust (PCT) Financial Duties

3.49 PCTs first came into existence in April 2000, and are responsible for the commissioning of health care on
behalf of their resident populations. They also ensure that the health and social care systems work
together for the benefit of patients, and that other health services are provided as required, including
services from dentists, opticians, mental health professionals, NHS walk-in centres, NHS Direct, patient
transport, screening and pharmacies. In addition, many PCTs have, in past years, also provided
healthcare and community services direct to the people in their area. However, as part of the ongoing
Transforming Community Services (TCS) programme, PCTs are transferring these services and other
provider functions to NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts or social enterprises. The majority of these
services transferred during 2010-11 and 2011-12, and both local and national accounts have been
restated to reflect this change.

3.50 Early in 2011-12, as an integral part of transition arrangements and to ensure resilience in the system
prior to close down on 31 March 2013, all 151 PCTs were clustered into 51 separate groups. This was to
ensure that managerial capacity and financial performance management could be maintained across the
NHS during this transition period. This clustering led to a degree of change in terms of both geographical
areas and to the executive and non-executive membership of each organisation. Clustering has not
changed the status of any individual PCT as a statutory accounting entity. The senior leadership of the
NHS took steps to ensure that the focus on data quality was not lost during the movement of staff under
clustering arrangements, and that individual statutory organisations produced sufficiently detailed hand-
over documents.

3.51 PCTs have four main financial duties:
« To keep revenue expenditure (on an accruals basis) within approved revenue resource limits;
s To keep cash expenditure within approved limits;
» To keep capital expenditure (on an accruals basis), within approved capital resource limits; and

« For the reducing number of PCTs that retain a provider function, that the full cost of those functions
is recoverad.

Strategic Health Authority (SHA) Financial Duties

152 SHAs are responsible for the performance management of NHS Trusts and PCTs in their particular
geographical area and for elements of specialist commissioning. They effectively act as local
headquarters on behalf of the Department of Health. In a similar way to the PCTs, by October 2011 all 10
SHAs had been organised into four clusters. This is to ensure that managerial capacity and focus will be
maintained during transition, and that system-wide resilience will not be lost as these organisations
continue to prepare for closure on 31 March 2013. This clustering did not affect any individual
organisation’s status as a distinct accounting entity.

3.53 SHAs have three main financial duties:

» To contain resource expenditure, measured on an accruals basis, within approved revenue
resource limits (a statutory duty),

* To contain cash expenditure within approved limits (a statutory duty); and
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» To contain capital expenditure, measured on an accruals basis, within approved capital resource
limits (a statutory duty).

MHS Trust Financial Duties:

3.54

355

3.56

3.57

Until 2011-12, all healthcare providers (i.e. NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) were outside the
Department's Resource Accounting Boundary. Consequently, this is the first year that the financial
results of individual provider organisations have been consolidated into the Department's Annual Report
& Accounts. These organisations receive the vast majority of their income through trading activity with
healthcare commissioners, and not through direct funding from the Government.

In relation to the provider sector, there were a number of organisational changes during the year. An
additional seven NHS Foundation Trusts were established, with the corresponding NHS Trust being
dissolved. Six of these new trusts were established part way through the year, and one was created from
1 April 2011. Two NHS Trusts merged during the year, and a further two NHS Trusts merged with
Foundation Trusts. In accordance with merger accounting rules, the income and expenditure of these
NHS Trusts, together with the opening and closing balances on their respective Statements of Financial
Position, are now included within the NHS Foundation Trusts figures.

Moreover, as part of the Transforming Community Services initiative, six new Community Service NHS
Trusts were established on 1 April 2011, a further twoe on 1 July 2011 and one more on 1 September
2011. These new trusts assumed responsibility for the community services previously provided by PCTs
in their area.

NHS Trusts have the following five financial duties:

« A statutory break-even duty, by which the organisation must ensure that revenue is sufficient,
taking one year with another, to meet expenditure. NHS Trusts normally plan to meet this duty by
achieving a balanced position on their Staterment of Comprehensive Income each and every year.
However, the duty is to break-even "taking cne financial year with another”, which provides a
degree of flexibility about the time-scale for matching income with costs where timing is uneven
(such as early retirement and clinical negligence, and when managing a financial recovery).
Exceptionally, and with the express agreement of the relevant SHA, a recovery period can be
extended to five years,

* A departmental/regulatory duty to break-even each and every year,

s A duty to absorb cost of capital at a rate of 3.5% on average relevant net assets, through the public
dividend payment to the Department of Health;

« To manage within the External Financing Limit (EFL) set for each NHS Trust by the Department,
which is calculated by reference to the difference between internal cash generated from operations
and cash needed for fixed assets and working capital, and

« To remain within the Capital Resource Limit (CRL) set for each NHS Trust by the Department of
Health.

NHS Activity

3.58

Overall, in seeking to meet the efficiency challenge, the aim of the NHS has been to redesign care
pathways to ensure that patients are treated in the most appropriate way in the most appropriate setting.
This focus is expected to reduce the need for unplanned emergency admissions. A modest overall
reduction in activity in 2011-12 compared to 2010-11 suggests that this ambition is being delivered. In
particular, (as indicated in the Deputy NHS Chief Executive’s report The Quarter for the final three-month
period of 2011-12, published in June 2012) the position at the end of the financial year indicates a slow
down in GP referrals for first outpatient appointments. Despite an increase in other referrals, elective
growth in 2011-12 remained the same as for 2010-11. This suggests that the NHS is starting to treat
more people in the most appropriate setting whilst reducing the level of unnecessary admissions. In
addition, taken as a whole, the levels of non-elective activity have remained stable, or were lower, when
compared to 2010-11. This indicates that, despite a continuing increase in the demand for acute
services, emergency admissions are being avoided or patients are being treated in more appropriate
settings.
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NHS Financial Performance

3.59 The following table provides a summary of NHS financial performance by sector and SHA area in 2011-12,
showing the surpluses (or deficits) by the NHS organisations in each geographical area. Comparable figures
are provided for 2010-11 below, In relation to both PCTs and NHS Trusts, Table ten shows the number of
organisations in each sector reporting a gross surplus or deficit in 2011-12 and provides comparable figures
for 2010-11. The financial results for NHS Foundation Trusts are shown separately in Table fourteen.

Table Nine: Summary of NHS financial performance by sector and SHA geographical area.

FO11.12 09011 Wavement between 2011-12 and 20101

Crganisaticn SHA PCT  |MHS Trusy Total SHA PCT  |MHS Trust| Taotal 5HA PCT  [NMS Trusy Tou

Em Ern Em __Em Lm £m £m Em Em Em Em £m|
Morth Easl SHA 9 b 1) 35 3 TH (L] (L1 {1H
Horlh West SHA 218 52 1 il | 175 q il 4 12 11
Yorkshire and the Humbes SHA 118 T {ny 162 1 65 9 1 i) &l {15} {
(Eagl Miflansdy SHA 45 45 Pt 115 A L a 22 [Z2)
et Medlands SHA k| 54 33 125] Fx 50 =5 14 4
[East of England SHA = 13 P 120 B4 17 s 124 11 [L1] (1M
[London SHA 256 187 {72) am 287 135 |35 57 i 52 (37K
Soaith East Coasl SHA a2 24 {3} B3 48 14 18 4 {18y
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Sowith WWiEst SHA, 118 54 Fal) 206 51 &4 il 14 &7 £ 1
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MHS Darect i 3 [z
MHS Trust Impainments T {4B5) (3125
MWHS Trust including Impakments [T18) {3&7) {354)
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1. 2010-11 figures ane not réstated
2. Paragraph 3.75 balow explains the difference to the NHS Trusts reported surplus of E45m in Figure 1 and The Year.
3. Figurés may not sum dues o rounding

Table Ten: Number of Primary Care Trusts and NHS Trusts reporting a gross surplus or deficit

2011-12 2010-11

PCT|NHS Trust] PCT|NHS Trust]
Gross Deficit (Em) (49 (920) (18) (516)
Gross Deficit (number of orgs) 3 41 2 48
Gross Surplus (Em) 575 202 494 149
(Gross Surplus (number of orgs) 148 T2 149 B
Net Surplus / (deficit) 527 (7T18) 476 {367)

Mole
1. 2010-11 figures are nol restated
2. Figures may not sum due o rounding

Primary Care Trust Financial Performance

3.60 In 2011-12, PCTs reported a revenue resource limit under-spend of £527 million, an increase of £51
million when compared to 2010-11.

3.61 As Table ten indicates, the overall PCT underspend for 2011-12 derives from:
» 148 PCTs reporting an aggregate under-spend of £575 million; and
* 3 PCTs reporting an aggregate over-spend of £49 million.
* Asin 2010-11, no PCT reported an exactly balanced position in 2011-12.

362 The PCT sector also reported an aggregate under-spend of £69 million against the overall capital
resource limit, an increase of £5 million compared to 2010-11.

* 127 PCTs reported an aggregate capital under-spend of £70.8 million. In 2010-11, 126 PCTs
reported an under spend of £61 million: 2 - | I
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= 2 PCTs reported an over-spend of £1.4 million. In 2010-11, just one PCT reported an over spend of
£3 million; and

« A total of 22 PCTs reported a balanced position (24 in 2010-11).

363 In 2011-12, a total of 24 PCTs retained their provider functions. Of this total, one PCT had not fully
recovered its provider function costs from income provided by commissioners by the end of the year
(2010-11: 6 PCTs).

164 The transfer of provider functions from PCTs under the “Transforming Community Services® initiative is
reflected in the reduction of PCT staff costs from £7.4 billion in 2010-11 to £2.4 billion in 2011-12. The
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position also indicates that £67 million of net assels transferred
outside the Resource Account Boundary as a result of TCS transfers.

165 Table eleven analyses PCT operational expenditure, and shows how this relates to the purchase of
healthcare on behalf of PCT resident populations.

Table Eleven: PCT Operating Expenditure relating to primary and secondary healthcare

purchased
201112 2010-11 Change from
£000 £000 2010-11
Purchase of Primary Healthcare %%
GP Senvices 7,761,467 7,685 150 1.0
Prescribing Costs 8,248,643 8,279,046 (0.4)
Dental Services 2,859,325 2818288 1.5
General Ophthalmic Services 490,712 478 163 26
Pharmaceutical Services 2,135,655 2,008 408 6.3
Other 140,756 115,512 218
Total Primary Healthcare purchased 21,636,558 21,384, 567 1.2
Purchase of Secondary Healthcare
Learning Difficulties’ 2,710,359 2,584 481 4.9
Mental liness 8,608,022 8,377,303 2.8
Maternity 2,620,977 2,532,350 3.5
General and Acute 40,203,872 38,927 492 3.3
Accident and Emergency 2,326,344 2,224 765 4.6
Community Health Services 9,118,775 8,413,929 8.4
Other Contractual 3,170,415 3,067,336 34
Total Secondary Healthcare Purchased 68,758,764 66,127,636 4.0
Capital Grants 59,439 129,197
Revenue Grants 152,917 0
Total Healthcare Purchased by PCT 90,607,678 87,635,649 34
Hole
1. £1,294m to Local Authorities for Leaming Difficulties was provided cenirally by the Depariment in 2011-12 rather than incleded in
PCT allocations,

.66 Expenditure on secondary healthcare has increased by 4% (after adjusting for the central funding for
Learning Difficulties), with 1.3% of this increase relating to increased activity and the 2.7% balance
relating to change of case mix and price increases in non-tariff activity.

LB7 Overall, the cost of primary healthcare rose by 1.2%, with some of the volume growth offset by lower
prices; for instance, dental volumes increased by 1.6% and prescribing volumes by 3.9%. PCT
expenditure on pharmaceutical services increases each year as a result of the continuous increase in
prescription volumes and new services that pharmacy confractors can choose to provide.

168 The Govermnment is committed to ensuring the best value for money for the taxpayer from NHS
expenditure on drugs. It has two principal ways of achieving this:

s Through the Pharmaceutical Price Regulation Scheme (PPRS) - which controls the price of
branded prescription medicines supplied to the NHS by the regulation of manufacturer profits; and
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« Through the community pharmacy contractual framework — which uses the prir:.esl. of a group of
generic medicines to adjust the reimbursement prices of around 500 drugs. This allows profit
margins to be monitored, and any excess profil, above that agreed in the framework, to be
removed.

369 These actions have driven substantial savings in the cost of medicines in recent years, and is partly
shown by the decrease in prescribing expenditure indicated in the table above, as the figure also reflects
an increase in the volume of drugs prescribed.

Strategic Health Authority Financial Performance

3.70 As with last year, all ten SHAs met their statutory financial duties in 2011-12, reporting a £1,061 million
under-spend against the overall revenue resource limit. This compares to a £900 million under spend in
2010-11. SHAs also reported a £4 million under-spend against the capital resource limit, compared to an
£11 million under-spend in 2010-11.

3.71 This level of financial performance continues to be important as the NHS works towards delivering its
efficiency savings target.

MHS Trust Financial Performance

372 A summary of the key financial figures for 2011-12 and the restated 2010-11 year is shown in Table
twelve below. This shows that the 113 NHS Trusts generated total revenues of £30.9 billion, an increase
of £1.4 billion (4.9%) compared with the prior year. Part of this increase related to revenues arising from
the transfer of functions from PCTs. The total revenue increase was off-set by a reduction caused by the
conversion of a number of NHS trusts to NHS Foundation Trusts during the year.

Table Twelve: Summary of NHS Trust financial performance

201112 20011 (restated)

Before After Batare Altir

Impairments Impairmants Impadrments. Impairments ImpEirments Impaimme

L mibond £ milong [ ] E iy E iy & il
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Totsd Fres Axseis 12118 13

Mote
1. Figures may not sum due o rounding.
2. Impairments exclude inventory write-offs which s the difference to the figure in Nole 6.2

3.73 Overall, NHS Trusts reported an operating surplus of £60 million (i.e. before the impact of non-current
asset impairments). However, when impairments are taken into account, NHS Trusts reported a deficit of
E£718 million in 2011-12. It is this accounting deficit which is reported in individual statutory accounts.

3.74 Some 92 out of a total of 113 NHS Trusts generated an operating surplus for the year before
impairments. A further 21 reported deficits before these impairments were taken into account, and for 12
of these organisations, this deficit is considered material (i.e. it is greater than 0.5% of revenue). Finally,
as Table Ten above indicates, 72 of the 113 Trusts generated an operating surplus of £202 million after
the impact of impairments was taken into account.

3.75 Please note that, in the quarterly financial and service performance report on the NHS. The Year
(incorporating The Quarter) 2011-12, published by Sir David Nicholson in June 2012, a surplus of £45
million was reported in relation to the NHS Trust sector. This value is calculated by adjusting for
impairments, service concession arrangements under IFRIC 12 and the elimination of donated asset and
government grant reserves. The operating surplus of £60 million reported in paragraph 3.73 above is an
aggregate value from the NHS Trust accounts, which is adjusted for impairments only.

Cash balances and borrowing

3.76 Total cash balances amounted to £1,161 million at 31 March 2012 (2010-11: £826 million), an increase of
£335 million. The two main components of this increase related to lower spending on capital and the net

receipt of additional Public Dividend Capital. Of the total cash balance, £1,153 million was held with the
Government Banking Service at the year end.

3.77 Total long-term and working capital borrowing at 31 March 2012 was £5.6 billion (2010-11: £4.6 billion).
Of this total, £5.1 billion relates to PFI schemes and finance leases (2010-11: £4.1 billion) and £524
million relates to loans from the Department of Health (2010-11: £515 million). The principal driver for the
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increase in borrowing is 3 PFI schemes which have become operational during the year. This increase in
long-term borrowing is reflected in the reduction in NHS Trust net total assets at 31 March 2012 to £12.1
billion (from £13.3 billion at 31 March 2011).

3.78 A summary of NHS Trust performance against duties relating to the capital absorption rate, External
Financing Limit and Capital Resource Limit, is set out in Table 13 below:

Table Thirteen: Performance against Financial Duties

NHS Trusts achieving Targets 201112 2011-12 2010-11 2010-11
Mumber Percenta Mumber Percentage
ge
Total number of NHS Trusts 113 100% 116 100%%

Capital Absorption Rate
Total achieving 3.5% or more

38 36% 54 50%
After adjusting for |mmatﬂnal_re:sults- a2 a7% 104 954,
External Financing Limit (EFL)
O TG el 109 96% 114 98%
After acu::stmg for immaterial results 110 97% 115 a9%
Capital Resource Limit (CRL)
Total achieving target 113 100% 113 97%
After adjusting for immaterial results 113 100% 13 97%

HNole

1. Source: 2011-12 and 2010-11 audiled summarisation schedules individual MHS Trusts.
2. A shorifall on the rate of return duty of less than 0.5% is (reated as immaterial.

3. An EFL overshoot of kess than £10,000 is treated as being within immaterial imis.

4. A CRL overshoot of less than £50,000 is treated as being within immaterial Emits.

3.79 The six NHS Trusts which achieved NHS Foundation Trust status part-way through the year had an
opportunity to set their EFL and CRL control totals to match the charge against the EFL and CRL
incurred during the part of the year that they were NHS Trusts so they could report a balanced position.
In addition those Trusts are shown as achieving the capital charge absorption duty, which is an annual
measure.

NHS Foundation Trusts Financial Performance

3.80 A summary of the key financial results for NHS Foundation Trusts for 2011-12 and the restated 2010-11
year is shown in the table below. This shows that in the year to 31 March 2012, 143 NHS Foundation
Trusts generated total revenues of £35.8 billion, an increase of £5.15 billion (17%) compared with the
prior year. Over 50% of this increase related to revenues arising from the transfer of functions to NHS
Foundation Trusts from PCTs under the TCS initiative. A further 29% of the increase is due to the impact
of the new NHS Foundation Trusts authorised during the year (E0.7 billion) together with the full year
impact of the new NHS Foundation Trusts authorised during 2010-11 (£0.8 billion), with the balance
being driven by increased activity across the rest of the sector (£1.1 billion).

Table Fourteen: NHS Summary of Foundation Trust Accounts 2011-12 and prior year

201112 201011 [restated)
Bafore After Beirf i After
Impairmants impairments. Impairments Impadrmants Impairmants Impairments
£ millons £ milons  malbgros £ millces E milllons £ malions
FRevenue 35,856 25,856 30, To5 30,705
Esprrnadiiure (35 418 361) [ A5, ?ﬁi (30313 [rasy 31,1000
Ristaired Surplus | [Deficil) for the fnarcial year 15!" %ﬁl] a3 [T88] Ll

Hotes
1, Figures may ol SuT dui 10 Pourdng
7. Impalmments i a nel figuns Bnd Sxchades Fveniony wite-offs
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Overall, NHS Foundation Trusts reported an operating surplus of £437 million in 2011-12 (i.e. before the
impact of non-current asset impairments). However, when these impairments were taken into account,
this surplus reduced to £76 million.

NHS Foundation Trusts at 31 March 2012 had net assets of just under £17.5 billion, compared with £16.3
billion at 31 March 2011(restated). The main increase related to property, plant and equipment where the
net asset value increased by £1.2 billion, with about £0.2 billion of the increase arising from PFl schemes
coming into operation.

Cash balances and borrowing

Total cash balances amounted to £3.95 billion as at 31 March 2012 (2010-11: £3.26 billion), an increase
of £690 million. This was caused by an increase in cash flow from operations, together with lower
spending on capital. Of the total cash balance, £3.79 billion was held with the Government Banking
Service at the year end.

Total long-term and working capital borrowing at 31 March 2012 was £5.5 billion (2010-11: £5.2 billion),
which compares with the aggregate prudential borrowing limit for all NHS Foundation Trusts of £11.8
billion (2010-11: £10.8 billion). Of the £5.5 billion long-term and working capital borrowing, £4.4 billion
relates to PFl and finance leases (2010-11: £4.3 billion) and £1 billion relates to loans (2010-11: £0.8
billion). The principal driver for the increase in borrowing relates to three PFl schemes which have
become operational during the year. The prudential borrowing limit is set at the beginning of the year by
Monitor for each NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with the Prudential Borrowing Code, and
represents the maximum that each trust may borrow.

The consolidated accounts of NHS Foundation Trusts are published on Monitor's website: NHS
Foundation Trusts: Consolidated Accounts 2011-12.

NHS Workforce position

3.86

3.87

3.88

3.89

3.80

3.91

3.92

On the basis of financial year average whole time equivalent numbers reported in the accounts of NHS
organisations, the total number of staff employed by the NHS reduced during 2011-12 by 28,697, or
2.55% (from 1,125,877 in 2010-11 to 1,097,180 in 2011-12).

Woaorkforce statistics published by the Health and Social Care Information Centre indicate that the overall
number of managers and senior managers within the NHS has reduced by 3.3%, whilst the total number
of doctors, including locums, has increased by 2% and the number of professionally qualified clinical staff
has increased by 0.4%.

The overall number of qualified nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff has decreased by 0.3%.
Although the number of nurses has reduced in the year, the nurse to bed ratio has increased from an
annual average of 1.7 in 2010-11 to an average of 1.8 in 2011-12. This gives an extra two to three hours
of nursing time per week per occupied bed. In 2011-12 the number of health visitors has increased by
4%, and the NHS is on track to meet the Government's commitment to increase the number of health
visitors by an extra 4,200 by April 2015.

Nurses and other frontline staff are central to plans for the future of the health service and nurses in
hospilals are being given more time for caring responsibilities. The Department wanls to remove
excessive paperwork and bureaucracy and has asked the Nursing and Care Quality Forum to find ways
to free up nurses to spend as much time as possible with patients.

Improvements in the NHS will mean changing patterns of care and services being provided in different
settings and with a different skill-mix of staff. This local reconfiguration of services may mean that some
clinical posts are no longer required and that is why it is important that decisions on the appropriate
workforce needed to deliver high quality care need to be taken locally.

The Department recognises that local organisations will, in some cases, have to make difficult choices
about staffing changes in the coming years, and has advised that organisations must ensure that, where
changes are made, the safety and quality of care is maintained or improved and the changes have been
signed off by the relevant clinical directors.

Where there does need to be change to the workforce locally, the Department expects organisations to
put in place comprehensive programmes of support and retraining to enable frontline staff to make the
transition to other roles. The Department has developed a HR Transition Framework and series of
associated guidance to support staff who are affected by the proposed Healthcare reforms. Staff who
are displaced are given preferential access to vacancies and support with retraining and redeployment.
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The average number of staff employed by MHS Trusts in 2011-12 increased by 25207 or 5.68%, (from
449 852 in 2010-11 to 475,059 in 2011-12). The main reason for this increase has been the transfer of
provider functions from Primary Care Trusts to NHS Trusts under the Transforming Community Services
(TCS) initiative.

Similarly, the average number of staff employed by NHS Foundation Trusts in 2011-12 increased by
80,586, or 16.6%, (from 486,116 in 2010-11 to 566,702 in 2011-12). Once again, one of the principal

reasons for this increase has been the transfer of provider functions from Primary Care Trusts under
TCS.

The average number of staff employed by PCTs reduced by 134,124, or 72.2% in 2011-12 to 51,528,
This very significant reduction is a direct result of the transfer of functions under TCS. As a result of the
separation of PCT provider and commissioner functions, large numbers of staff moved into NHS
Foundation Trusts, NHS Trusts and a small number of community interest companies and social
enterprises.

In addition, workforce statistics published by the Health and Social Care Information Centre, indicate that
the number of PCT managers and senior managers reduced significantly (30% in FTEs) in 2011-12
reflecting the commitment to reduce administration costs, the TCS transfer and the clustering of PCTs in
advance of their abolition in March 2013.

Strategic Health Authorities will remain statutory bodies until the end of 2012-13 and will oversee the
handover of duties to Health Education England, local education and training boards, the NHS
Commissioning Board and Clinical Commissioning Groups by the end of March 2013, The average
number of staff employed in the SHA sector reduced by 366 or 8.6% in 2011-12 compared to 2010-11.
This modest decrease reflects the fact that SHA staffing levels have been maintained to manage close
down across SHA areas, and to ensure the proper transfer of commissioning functions o successor
bodies — most notably the NHS Commissioning Board and Health Education England.

MANAGEMENT & GOVERNANCE OF THE DEPARTMENT

Accountabilities within the Department of Health Group

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The Department is led by a team of Ministers supported by officials, the most senior of whom are: the
Permanent Secretary, the NHS Chief Executive and the Chief Medical Officer.

The Permanent Secretary, Una O'Brien, is also the Principal Accounting Officer for the Department.
As such, she has personal responsibility for the proper presentation of the Depariment’'s Annual Report
& Accounts and its transmission to the Comptroller & Auditor General for audit. She is also responsible
for the use of public money and the stewardship of assets. In particular, in the context of Treasury's
guidance: Managing Public Money, the Accounting Officer's responsibilities can be summarised as
follows:

« To ensure that the expenditure of the Department, its Arm's Length Bodies and the NHS (including
NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) is contained within the overall budget for the Department
- the Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL);

« To be assured that the individual organisations within the group are performing their functions and
duties effectively, and have the necessary governance and controls in place to ensure regularity,
propriety and value for money, and

« To ensure that Ministers are appropriately advised on all matters of financial propriety, regulanty
and value for money across the system for which the Department is responsible.

Therefore, as well as leading the Department — the Permanent Secretary must also ensure that it
operates effectively, that Ministers receive the advice and support they need, and that there is effective
working with all Department of Health partners across local and national government, the NHS and in
the private, public and third sectors.

The NHS Chief Executive, Sir David Nicholson, is appointed by the Treasury as an Additional
Accounting Officer for NHS expenditure. He is directly accountable for the Depariment's own
programme expenditure relating to the NHS, and for managing the expenditure of all NHS
organisations that are subject to direction by the Department (namely Primary Care Trusts, Strategic
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Health Authorities, NHS-facing Special Health Authorities and NHS Trusts). [The Permanent Secretary
is therefore responsible for the remainder of the Department's budget, including expenditure of non-
Departmental public bodies, and for ensuring that the net expenditure of NHS Foundation Trusts (which
are not subject to direction by the Department) is contained within the overall DH budget]. In addition to
his financial accountabilities, Sir David Nicholson is responsible for leading the NHS, and is chief
advisor to the Secretary of State in respect of all aspects of NHS delivery and management, and he
also took up an additional role as Chief Executive of the NHS Commissioning Board Authority in

October 2011.

The Chief Medical Officer, Professor Dame Sally Davies is the most senior professional advisor to
both the Department of Health and Government Ministers in respect of medical and public health
issues.

The accountabilities described above will continue until the end of March 2013, after which the
Accounting Officer roles will change significantly. From 1 April 2013, the Department will have a single
Permanent Secretary, accountable for the Parliamentary Estimate as a whole. DH will allocate NH3S
funding to the NHS Commissioning Board, with the Chief Executive of the NHS Commissioning Board
becoming directly accountable to Parliament for the regularity, propriety and value for money in respect
of this funding. Within the new system, the Department and its Ministers will remain ultimately
accountable for the overall health and care legislative framework. By contrast, day-to-day operational
management for the NHS will take place at arms length from DH, as front-line professionals are
empowered to deliver services according to local priorities. A robust governance and assurance
structure will remain in place across the group, however, to allow the Permanent Secretary to continue
to discharge her responsibilities as Accounting Officer for the Department of Health.

Further information on the role of the Accounting Officer in relation to the NHS, public health and adult
social care and arrangements after April 2013 is available in the Accounting Officer system statement
on the Department’s website: http:/iwww.dh.gov.uk/health/2012/01/accounting-officer-statement/

Ministers

4.8

The following Ministers were responsible for the Department in 2011-12:

s Secretary of State for Health with overall responsibility for the work of the Department:
Rt Hon Andrew Lansley CEE MP

« Ministers of State with responsibility for the NHS and Social Care, including long term care,
disability and mental health:

Rt Hon Simon Bums MP, Minister of State for Health
Paul Burstow MP, Minister of State for Care Services

« Parliamentary Under Secretaries with responsibility for Health and Public Health:
Anne Milton MP, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State Public Health

Earl Howe, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Quality (Lords)

Board Structure and Membership

4.9

4.10

The Departmental Board (DB) and its supporting governance structures were revised in January 2011
to reflect both the Department's priorities and the Cabinet Office Protocol on Enhanced Departmental
Boards. The DB is chaired by the Secretary of State and brings together ministerial and civil service
leaders with a strengthened team of non-executive directors. The Board provides the collective
strategic and operational leadership for the Department. It advises on strategic and operational issues
affecting the Department's performance, as well as scrutinising and challenging Departmental policies
and performance, and this includes appropriate oversight of sponsored bodies.

Membership of the Departmental Board during 2011-12 was as follows:

Rt. Hon Andrew Lansley CBE MP Secretary of State (Chair)

Rt. Hon Simon Burns MP Minister of State for Health

Paul Burstow MP Minister of State for Care Services

Anne Milton MP Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Public Health
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Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Quality (Lords)
Permanent Secretary

NHS Chief Executive and Chief Executive of NHS
Commissioning Board Authority

Chief Medical Officer

Director General of Social Care, Local Government and
Care Partnerships

Director General for Strategy, Finance and the NHS
Lead non-executive member (1 May 2011)
Non-Executive member

Non-Executive member

Non-Executive member

Mon-Executive member (1 April 2011)

411 The Departmental Board is responsible for:

-

Supporting Ministers to manage and shape strategic issues relating to the development and
implementation of Government objectives for the health and social care systems;

Ensuring that there is strategic alignment across all those organisations which are accountable to
the Department for the health and care system,

Agreeing the Department’s three-year rolling business plan, and providing appropriate oversight of
progress against all milestones within it, including performance against efficiency metrics;

Ensuring sound financial management in the Department, especially in the context of the business
plan;

Gaining assurance on performance by the Department’'s sponsored bodies; and

Ensuring, with the advice of the Executive Board, the effective management of risks within the
Department and its sponsored bodies.

The lead non-executive member's report follows in Section 5.

412 The Departmental Board is supported by:

The Executive Board, which is chaired by the Permanent Secretary, and includes the NHS Chief
Executive, the Chief Medical Officer, the Director General for Strategy, Finance and the NHS, and
the Director General of Social Care, Local Government and Care Partnerships. This Beard
supports the Permanent Secretary in the discharge of her responsibiliies as Principal Accounting
Officer, and is responsible for escalating key risks to the Departmental Board where that becomes
necessary,

The DH Management Committee, which is chaired by the Permanent Secretary, and includes all
Directors General and Managing Directors. The Committee provides corporate leadership for the
Department of Health and supports the Executive Board in supporting the Permanent Secretary in
the discharge of her responsibilities as Accounting Officer for the Department.

The Audit and Risk Committee, which is chaired by Mike Wheeler, one of the Department's Non-
Executive Board Members, comprises other non-executive members. The Audit and Risk
Committee advises the Department of Health's Principal Accounting Officer and the Departmental
Board on risk management, corporate governance and assurance arrangements in the Department
of Health and its subordinate bodies. This Committee also reviews the Department's Annual Report
& Accounts, and recommends these for signing to the Permanent Secretary;

The Nominations and Governance Committee (from October 2011), which is chaired by Peter
Sands, the Department's lead Non-Executive Board Member, with Una O'Brien, the Fermanent
Secretary, and Dr Catherine Bell, a Non-Executive Board Member, as the other members. This
Committee advises the Departmental Board on matters relating to leadership and succession
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planning for the Department and the Board, and scrutinises governance arrangements in the
Department. It also considers matters relating to leadership and succession planning for non-
executive board members amongst the Department's arms-length bodies.

« Transition Boards were created to oversee and manage the design and implementation of the
changes to the new health and social care system. The Programme Transition Board operated until
September 2011, and was chaired by the Director General for Strategy, Finance and the NHS, and
comprised of the directors leading each of the transition work streams. The format of subsequent
transition boards from October 2011 are set out below.

Until October 2011, the NHS Management Board supported the NHS Chief Executive in his
responsibility as Accounting Officer for NHS .expenditure and provided leadership for the NHS,
ensuring effective two-way communication, managing NHS performance and shaping policy and
strategy for the NHS. The role of this Board has largely been assumed by the Board of the NHS
Commissioning Board Authority following its establishment in October 2011, along with the NHS
Transition Executive Forum which provides oversight of NHS operational delivery and the development
of NHS future systems within the Department.

With the above change, the transition management was further split between the Cross Cutting
Functions Board and the Department, Social Care and Public Health Transition Board as shown in the
diagram below.

The Department's performance in meeting its equality and human rights aspirations and legal
obligations, including the Public Sector Equality Duty, is overseen by the Equality and Human Rights
Assurance Group (EHRAG). The committee is chaired by the Director General for Social Care, Local
Government and Care Partnerships and comprises other Directors General with responsibilities for the
major policy and operational activity relating to equality and human rights.

The Department puts equality and diversity at the heart of all its business, not least by following a
systematic approach to considering equality as a matter of course in policy development and service
design. The public sector equality duty, implemented in April 2011, provides a simpler, more focused
and less process-based mechanism for ensuring that all public bodies act specifically to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance equality of opportunity, and promote good
relations.

The relationship between the principal Departmental Boards and Committees and the overall
governance structure for the Department, is illustrated in the following diagram:

Board Structure From October 2011

Audit & Risk Ministars
Other DGs as
: - required
i t'“""“"'“"‘ S Executive Board
ommitiea

[

DH Secial Care and Public Cress Cuiting Functions INHE Tranditicn Exsoulivg
Health Trarsition Board Board Fosrurn
e T
il u,
Futing Systems Executive NHS Operations
Board Excutive Board
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Remuneration of Ministers and senior officials

418 Minister;' remuneration is set by the Ministerial and Other Salaries Act 1873 (as amended by the
Ministerial and Other Salaries Order 1986) and the Ministerial and Other Pensions and Salaries Act
1991. Further details are included in the Remuneration Report.

Appointment of senior officials

419 Senior Civil Servants, including the Permanent Secretary. are appointed in accordance with the
Department's procedures, the Civil Service Commission's Recruitment Principles, and Guidance on the
Civil Service Commission's Recruitment to Senior Posts. Non-Executive members are appointed to the
Departmental Board by the Secretary of State for Health following consultation with the Government
Lead Mon-Executive and consideration by a Departmental panel. The appointments follow the
principles of selection based on merit, with an open and transparent process, and information is placed
in the public domain about vacancies.

Details of Company Directorships & other significant interests held by the Board

420 Other than those interests disclosed in Note 28 (Related Party Transactions), Board Members hold no
company directorships or other significant interests.

Department of Health Workforce

421 From the end of the 2009-10 financial year, the Department has been following a plan to reduce
staffing costs and numbers on a permanent basis to reflect year-on-year reductions in departmental
budgets. The strategies initially adopted to achieve this goal were:

« To significantly reduce the number of programme-funded non-permanent workers, with a target
date of 31 March 2011,

« The operation of central recruitment controls (including those prescribed by the Cabinet Office);
and

» A reduction in the Senior Civil Service (SCS) pay bill.

422 The first two strategies operated throughout 2010-11 and 2011-12. The SCS target reductions have
subsequently been subsumed in a more comprehensive target to reduce the overall pay bill by one
third over the Spending Review period.

423 Following the general election in May 2010, further strict controls on staffing levels were introduced by
the Cabinet Office and applied across the whole of central Government including ALBs. These controls
have included a restriction on external recruitment into the Civil Service in respect of all non-front line
posts, a continuing freeze on SCS pay, followed by a freeze on non-SCS pay from 1 August 2011.
These will continue until 2013-14, when both groups emerge from the pay freeze. These measures are
intended to contribute to the Government's overall programme of control over public spending and
deficit reduction.

424  In December 2011, the Department completed a large-scale bottom-up planning exercise to prepare for
its new role in the Health and Social Care system and establish the shape and size of its waorkforce
from April 2013. This included transferring a significant range of functions in NHS-facing argas to other
bodies in the new system. This exercise followed an earlier voluntary exit scheme which had been run
in February with the specific objective of reducing the number of senior staff in DH, as well as reducing
overall paybill costs significantly. The aim of both of these exercises was to:

« Develop an affordable workforce which was focussed on delivering DH business objectives,
» Ensure safe delivery of the transition agenda; and
« Minimise the need for compulsory redundancies.

425 These exercises resulted in the design of a new Department with five Directorates (instead of 10).
These changes will take full effect from April 2013, and will lead to a significantly smaller number of
permanent and non-permanent staff. The size of the Department will reduce further through 2013-14
and 2014-15 through further productivity and efficiency gains.

426 The average number of whole-time equivalent staff employed by the Core Department, (excluding
Connecting for Heaith), during the 2011-12 financial year fell by a total of 605 (18%) compared to 2010-
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11. This is reported in Note 7 to these accounts. Including Connecting for Health staff, the average
number fell by 727 between the two years. A breakdown of the Core Department figures is set out in
table fifteen below, and this also shows the £96 million reduction in costs associated with the decrease
in numbers.

Table Fifteen: Average number of persons employed by the Core Department

Average number of Staff Employed (WTE basis) Total Staff
Cost
Permanantly Other Total Em
employed
staff
2010-11 2,551 B0O 3.351 ary
2011-12 2,350 396 2,746 281
Reduction 20 404 605 96

Most of this decrease in the number of average staff employed in the Core Department arose through a
reduction in the non-permanent workforce (down by 50.5%), accompanied by a reduction of 7.9% in
the permanent workforce. The latter was largely the result of departures under the voluntary exit
scheme (which occurred mainly between 31 March and 30 June 2011) and the application of
recruitment controls. The scheme resulted in 276 departures during 2011-12, significantly reducing the
number of permanently employed staff funded by administration expenditure. Most of the associated
costs accrued in 2010-11 when departure dates and exit terms were agreed.

The table below provides a snapshat of the actual number of permanent DH core staff in post at year
end for the last three years, and is therefore presented on a different basis to the average numbers
shown in Table 15 above. These actual figures indicate that reductions in staff have continued through
the year, with the March 2012 actual year end figure being below the 2011-12 average.

Core Table 5: Core Department Permanent Staff in Post at 31 March

March 2009 March 2010 March 2011 March 2012
number number number number
Core Department 2,256.50 2627.2 2.555.9 2,2B4.5

Note

1. Figures reprasent the position at the end of each financial year, and are fallowing Cabinet Office guidelines

The initiative to reduce the number of non-permanent workers in the Department has made substantial
progress, with many of these workers leaving DH between the last quarter of 2010-11 and the first
quarter of 2011-12. Conseqguently, by the end of the first quarter of 2011-12, there had been in excess
of an B0% reduction in the number of programme-funded non-permanent staff. Some of this reduction
has been off-set by the reclassification of a number of programme-funded workers into the
administration-funded category following the changes in the funding categories set out in section 2.
However, overall in net terms aver 200 non-permanent programme staff left the Department.

The average number of staff employed by NHS Connecting for Health (CfH) in 2011-12 was 1,311, a
reduction of 122 (18%) compared to the previous year. The employment contracts or secondment
agreements of almost all of its staff are held for the Department on a “hosted” basis by the NHS
Business Services Authority. The numbers and costs associated with these staff as in 2010-11 are

reported in the “Others” column as they do not have a permanent employment contract with the
Department.
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Pension Liabilities

4.31

4.32

4.33

The transactions and balances of the NHS Pension Scheme are not consolidated in the Department of
Health accounts. The report and accounts of the NHS Pension Scheme are prepared separately by the
Chief Executive of the NHS Business Services Authority (BSA) who is the Accounting Officer for the
scheme. Further information is available at: hitp:/fwww nhsbsa.nhs.uk/iPensions.

The Department's share of the transactions and balances of the Principal Civil Service Pension
Scheme (PCSPS), to which its employees belong, are also not consolidated into the Department of
Health's accounts: separate accounts are prepared, and details can be found at
hitp:/fwww civilservice gov uk/pensions.

Some NHS Foundation Trusts and Arm's Length Bodies have employees who are members of defined
benefit schemes other than the NHS Pension Scheme, including the Local Government Pension
scheme. Where the individual body is able to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities
these are recognised in the accounts and are consolidated.

Equal Opportunities Policy

4.34

4.35

4.36

The Department of Health set out its strategic commitments to equal oppertunities and diversity in its
Single Equality Scheme, published in 2009. These commitments incorporate an extensive range of
activities, and include targets to increase the representation of women, ethnic minority and disabled
staff in the Senior Civil Service (SCS); a comprehensive suite of equality polices; work-life balance and
mental health initiatives: workforce monitoring by diversity characteristics;, staff awareness
programmes; and targeted action such as career progression support for ethnic minority staff. The
Department intends to refresh its diversity strategy in line with the requirements of the Equality Act
2010.

At an operational level, the Department's Equal Opportunities Policy underpins the development and
implementation of all policies, guidance and activities:

The Department of Health is committed to treating all staff faily and responsibly. The aim of the
Department's equal opportunities policy is to promote equality of apportunity whereby no employee or
job applicant is discriminated against on the grounds of their race, colour, éthnic or national origin, sex,
disability, age, sexual orientation, religion or belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy or maternily
status, marital or civil partnership status, responsibility for children or other dependants, work pattemn,
Trade Union membership or aclivity.

The Department uses a range of measures to track progress — including specific SCS targets, trends in
staff survey data, and participation in external benchmarking exercises such as the cross-sector
Stonewall Workplace Equality Index. During the course of 2011-12, the Department achieved its
targets for the proportions of women, ethnic minority and disabled staff in senior grades. It also
increased its position by 19 places to a ranking of 53 in the Stonewall "Top 100 Employers’ Workplace
Equality Index.

Recruitment and Retention of Disabled Persons

4.37

The Department has put in place a number of policies and activities to aid the recruitment and retention
of disabled staff. These include: involving the disabled staff network in the assessment (by equality) of
all workforce policies and guidance; a comprehensive suite of flexible working policies; development of
specific guidance for managers and staff, (covering such issues as "Making reasonable adjustments’,
‘Mental health’, ‘Support for carers’, ‘Anti-bullying and harassment’ and the ‘Guaranteed Interview
Scheme'); occupational health support; and accessible IT systems, information, accommodation and
facilities.

Sickness absence data

4.38

Sickness absence data is provided in the table below for the Core Department, NHS Connecting for
Health, Primary Care Trusts, Strategic Health Authorities, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts.
Sickness absence data for Special Health Authorities, and other Arms Length Bodies consolidated into
these accounts is available in the underlying accounts of each organisation.
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Table Sixteen: Sickness Absence

0112
Total Staft
Empioyed in
Days Lost  Days Lost Total Staff Pariod with % Staff with
{Bhart Term) (Long Term] Total Days Lost Average Employed in no sickness no sickness
Headeourt  Haadscunt 112 menth Tedal Sam Waorking Period absence abeence
Days Days Period) Yoears  Days Lost [Headoound) (Headoound]  Heasoount
Core Dapartment 4558 4975 9,531 7354 40 2777 1,587 7
Connactng for Haalth [3) 2120 3.920 8,040 1,168 52 12333 (-] =
Sirateges PN ALthonts 13,871 2.8 48
Priemary Ciee Trasis (4) 1,004,737 113,458 89
NHS Trusts wnd FTs (5) B484 362 507 097 4
Nate

1. Sickness absence data is collected by the Health and Social Care Information Centra

2. Sickness absence is based on available staff days on a headcount basis

3. NHS Connecting for Health is managed by the Depariment's Direclor General for Informatics and Chief Information Officer,
Information relating to staff is disclosed separalely from the core Depariment

4. PCT figures include some staff relating to provider functions which transferred to NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts in 2011-
12.

5. Dala relating 1o NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts staff cannol ba disaggregaled in the information available from the
Health and Social Care Information Centre. Two NHS Foundation Trusts have opted oul of the information returns and DH has
estimated the numbers of extra days applicable on an average basis.

Provision of information to, and consultation with, employees

4.39

The Department has a series of communication channels in place to deliver information about
organisational and business developments to staff, and to provide an opportunity for feedback, both at
a corporate and local level. Methods of communication range from regular electronic messages to all
staff via e-mail or the Department's intranet site (including the Permanent Secretary's updates) to face-
to-face briefings by DH Management Committee members and the Department's senior managers. The
Department also works in partnership with the Departmental Trade Unions through consultation and
negotiation to encourage involvement and build engagement in decision-making processes. There are
a number of sites on the DH intranet which are dedicated specifically to informing staff about progress
with transition in both the Department and the wider health and care system. The “Permanent
Secretary's corner” also allows staff to communicate their ideas and concerns directly to the Permanent
Secretary and her senior team.

Well-being of DH staff

4.40

4.41

4.42

The Department's Health & Well-being (H&WB) Board has been active throughout the year. It has
developed the concept of H&WEB partners in conjunction with the Civil Service Benevolent Fund
(CSBF), HASSRA Sports and Social Club, Medigold Occupational Health Services and NHS Choices
joining DH directors on the board to ‘promote, support, encourage and inspire health and wellbeing of
DH staff through transition and beyond".

The Health and Well-being Board is committed to ensuring that the Department of Health is (and
continues to be) a good place to work, where:

+ The health and well-being of all staff is given the attention it deserves;

+« Any barriers to returning to, or remaining at, work or to being productive whilst at work, are
removed or minimised;

+» The health of staff is not adversely affected by work, and good quality advice and support is
available and accessible;

« Staff have opportunities to improve their individual health and well-being — both physically and
emntlnnqlll'_.r. and staff with health conditions or disabilities can make the most of their work
opportunities with the active support of their employer; and

* The Department’s culture promotes, supports, encourages and inspires positive life-style choices.

In the context of unprecedented structural and organisational change in the Department, the Health &
Well-being Board has implemented a coordinated programme of activities and events under three core
work streams covering emotional, physical, and workplace well-being. This year, over 500 staff
members took part in ‘Impact of Change' workshops: over 1.000 colleagues participated in the NHS
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Choices 'health check' and other physical follow-up activities, and a similar number engaged in surveys
and focus groups to look at flexible working initiatives in DH.

In addition, DH buildings now include designated health and well-being spaces, such as ‘Quiet rooms’
and private facilities specifically for new mothers. Together with special projects designed to enhance
existing support in dealing with long-term health conditions or caring responsibilities, the Health and
Well-being Board has promoted other health-related activities and awareness sessions.

Through these and other initiatives, the Department has been able to sign up to all of the Responsibility
Deal pledges on work and health issues. It has started work with key cross-Whitehall stakeholders,
including Dame Carol Black, to promote DH as an exemplar across government, share best practice
and extend the reach of Responsibility Deal pledges. The October 2011 Civil Service People Survey
showed a 60% positive response from staff on health and well-being, up from 50% in May 2011.

Health and Safety at Work

4.45

The Department of Health recognises its responsibilities, under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act
1974, for ensuring, so far as is reasonably practicable, the health, safety and welfare of its employees,
temporary staff, and visitors to its premises and to others who may be affected by its operations and/or
activities. Health and safety is regarded as a key component of the organisation's strategy and its
operational considerations and a prime responsibility of the management team. In 2011-12, there were
41 reported accidents; 1 of which resulted in absence and 4 near misses.

Social and Community Policies

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

The Department encourages staff working within the Department and its ALBs to take part in
community activities, through volunteering in the local area and offering work experience opportunities
to people from disadvantaged backgrounds.

The Department's volunteering policy encourages staff to work with people from all strands of the local
community, particularly those from under-privileged backgrounds. As part of its implementation plan
for employer supported volunteering, the Department has set up partnership arrangements with
Southwark Volunteering Centre, Time and Talents (Westminster), and Leeds Ahead (Yorkshire) - to
help put people and teams in touch with local community groups for volunteering opportunities.

The Department also offers work experience opportunities as part of its commitment to the social
mobility agenda. This includes the cross-govermment Whitehall Summer Internship scheme, which
provides school-age students from under-represented socio-economic backgrounds with an opportunity
to experience life in Whitehall and undertake interesting work placements in high-profile policy teams.
The Department supported three interns in 2011-12, and will continue to run this scheme on an annual
basis. For graduates and under-graduates, there is the cross-government Summer Internship
programme — targeting students from ethnic minority backgrounds or who have a disability. Each year,
the Department takes four to five candidates.

In addition, the Department embarked on a local work experience initiative in 2010. This programme —
‘Building Bridges' — is aimed at high-achieving pupils from local schoals in Southwark and Westminster,
focusing in particular on schools in disadvantaged areas. Participants are given the opportunity 1o see
policy-making in action, through two-week placements in the Department. The programme offers four
placements a year, and will increase to seven in 2012-13, due to increasing demand. Last year, we
adapted the programme to provide a placement for a young person with a learning disability.

5. LEAD NON-EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER'S REPORT

Performance and priorities

S

5.2

The Department of Health has demonstrated commendable resilience and flexibility over the last year,
simultaneously confronting a vast range of issues from ensuring ongoing delivery of quality health
services, to driving the productivity programme and managing the transformation of the overall health
system.

The care system faces considerable challenges, given demographic changes, rising e:;:ectatliun_a and
the pressures on public finances. The policy response to these challenges, set out primarily in the
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Health and Social Care Act 2012, bring with them significant structural change, as well as the need to
develop common purpose around continuous quality improvement. The Depariment's staff have
responded to the challenge impressively, recognising the scale of the task ahead, and the imperative
for change.

The Board plays a vital role in the governance of the Department, helping it navigate the multiple and
complex challenges it faces as it embarks on this transformation without compromising current
performance, either in terms of quality of services or financial discipline. Given members’ wealth of
experience across the public, charitable and private sectors, the Board can offer constructive challenge
as well as support. For example, the non executive members have led the Board's work, in partnership
across Whitehall, on supporting economic growth.

The Board met formally four times in 2011-12, and informally on five occasions. The Board took care to
plan its agendas around the Department's key responsibilities, overseeing current performance and
ensuring a detailed understanding of the important issues facing the Department and the wider system,
including risks and strategic priorities. Of particular importance was the Board's developing a
comprehensive understanding of the Department's - and thus the system's - finances. This has enabled
the Board to help the Department live within its limits as well as to underpin more informed planning for
the future.

Topics the Board devoted particular attention to include:

« Ensuring the development of effective relationships between the Department and the key
arms-length bodies (ALBs) in the transformed health system. To deliver better outcomes, the
Department and its partner agencies must work together seamlessly. This requires clearly defined
mechanisms for communication, consultation and decision-making. Board members have
discussed these topics on several occasions, including with members of the ALBs’ own Boards.
Building common purpose across the system is a key priority for the year ahead.

« Overseeing the transition programme and its associated risks. As the Depariment has been
leading the transformation of the health and social care system, the Board has kept a close eye on
the transition programme. The Board has kept the Department's strategic risk register under
continuous review, and offered considered advice in both the main Board and in its Audit and Risk
sub-committee.

» Overseeing the Department's Capability Review. The Department's role is undergoing
significant change, becoming less about controlling and directing the system, and more about
being the architect and ongoing guardian of the care system as a whole — developing its structure
and ensuring that it works. This change in role required the Department to strengthen its
capabilities in key areas. For this reason, the Board, and particularly the Non-Executive Members,
took as a priority to engage in depth with the Department's Capability Review, significantly
influencing the Department's final scores and the substance of the resulting Action Plan. Board
members are keen to ensure the Department maintains its understanding of its strengths and
weaknesses as it grows into this role; and that the comprehensive Action Plan continues to
address the gaps, and develop the Department’s capabilities. Thanks to solid progress against the
Action Plan, the Board are more confident in Summer 2012 that the Department is on track than
they were able to be in Autumn 2011,

« Enhancing communication across the Department and the ALBs to ensure common
purpose and understanding across the system as a whole. The Capability Review reinforced
the importance of effective communication to build trust, confidence and effective collaboration.
Given the scale of change within the Department and across the system as a whole, it is vital that
the overarching purpose of the changes, the mechanics of how they will work and the roles of the
new bodies are well understood by all staff within the system. The Board sees this as an ongoing
priority for the Department.

« Reinforcing performance management. The Board has been impressed by the wide range of
performance and management information it has received over the past year. However, Board
members have on occasion found it difficult to engage fully with this information due to the amount
and format of information supplied. The Board discussed this issue, and as a result, the
Department is developing a performance scorecard to summarise this information, whilst at the
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same time allowing members to drill down in greater depth where required. The Board will
continue to encourage the Department to refine the quality and clarity of performance metrics.

Actions from the Board effectiveness review

56

6.1

6.2

In early 2012, the Board undertook its first effectiveness evaluation, through a survey and interviews
with individual Board members. This was a useful exercise which demonstrated that the Board i1s
making good progress in its core objective of improving the govemnance of the Department of Health.
As expected, the evaluation process also identified some areas for improvement. Some changes the
Board needs to consider stem from the Department’s changing role within the wider healthcare system.
Others relate more to the practical details of how we make best use of the Board's time, ensuring we
are focused on the most critical issues. As a result of the effectiveness review, the Board has identified
a number of key acltions, summarised below:

« Determine the Board's role in ensuring effective governance of the health care system as a
whole. The Board needs to work out how to fulfill its role in ensuring effective governance across
all aspects of the health and care system, without compromising the independence of the Boards of
the individual ALBs.

+ Reinforce focus on outcomes in monitoring performance of the Department and the system
as a whole. Cumrent performance metrics focus mainly on inputs. The Board would like to see
these complemented by metrics from the Outcome Framework, which highlight performance
against critical health and patient care indicators.

+ Ensure the Board spends sufficient time on the big strategic issues affecting the longer
term shape and performance of the health and care system. The Board is determined to
ensure that the requirement to monitor current performance and deal with more tactical issues
does not detract from the Board's ability to debate more strategic issues that will shape the
performance of the system over many years.

« Enhance the Board's ability to identify and discuss the most critical risks. Whilst the Board
has regularly discussed the risks facing the Department and its objectives, it seems appropriate to
devote more time to such issues as we embark on the transformation of the system.

« Continue to build the Board's effectiveness through refining formats, scheduling and
prioritization.

« Refine the composition of the Board to reflect it's changing role in the governance of the
system.

DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE REPORTING

The overall purpose of the Department of Health is to improve the health and well-being of the people
of England. Consequently, the principal focus of the Department's work, for which it is accountable to
both Parliament and the public, includes setting appropriate national policies and standards to shape
the direction of the NHS and adult social care systems, and to promote healthier living in the
population. In working with its partners to achieve these goals, the Department is responsible for
around £105 billion of public funds. It advises Ministers on how best to use this funding in order to
inform and achieve their decisions and to carry out their objectives. DH staff are responsible for leading
and driving forward change in both the NHS and social care, as well as setting the direction on
promoting and protecting the public’s health. This includes taking the lead on issues such as
environmental hazards to health, infectious diseases, health promotion and education, the safety of
medicines, and ethical issues.

The Department of Health in its current form was formally created in 1988, through The Transfer of
Functions (Health and Social Security) Order 1988. This Order split the Department of Health and
Social Security (DHSS) into two government departments, one being Health, and the other being what
is now the Department for Work & Pensions. The very first department responsible for the nation's
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health, was the appropriately named Ministry of Health, which was created in 1919 by the Ministry of
Health Act. This new Department consolidated under a single authority the medical and public health
functions of central government.

The Department of Health continues to be one of the busiest departments of state in Whitehall.
Working through and with the 1.1 million NHS staff operating in maore than 400 organisations and
approximately 8,200 GP practices, the Department is responsible for the provision of health services to
around 1.5 million patients and their families every day.

The Department also sets the strategic framework for adult social care. It gives advice and guidance to
local authorities, which are responsible for managing social care funding according to local priorities
and the principles of local accountability. Over 1.6 million staff work in the social care sector. Local
authorities provide or arrange services for 1.6 million users through the year through almost 25,000
social care providers registered with Care Quality Commission, of which the great majority are smaller,
independent sector organisations.

Structural Reform Plan priorities

6.5

6.6

6.7

Following the 2010 general election, the Department published its five principal strategic priorities in its
Structural Reform Plan. These Plans are intended to replace targets and onerous top-down
management, and for the Department of Health will:

+ Create a patient-led NHS - strengthen the ability of patients to exercise extended choice, have a
greater say in managing their own care, and have their voice heard in the NHS;

s Promote better healthcare outcomes — shift focus and resources away from top-down process
targets towards better healthcare outcomes, including national health outcome measures, patient
reported outcome measures and patient experience measures,

« Revolutionise NHS accountability — create a long term, sustainable framework of institutions,
with greater autonomy for doctors and nurses, greater accountability to patients and the public, and
increased democratic participation in the NHS;

+ Promote public health - create a public health service which rebalances the Department's
approach to health, drawing together national leadership with local delivery and fostering a new
sense of community and social responsibility; and

« Reform social care — enable the users of care to be treated with dignity and respect, and work to
reform the social care system to give more control to individuals and those who care for them,
thereby easing their cost burden.

These priorities and ambitions for the health and social care system form the key principles of the
Health and Social Care Act 2012, and will also inform the shape of future Social Care reform and
legislation.

These Structural Reform Priorities are set out in the Department’s Business Plan 2011-15. This plan
was developed following public consultation during the Summer of 2010, and was published in
November 2010. At the start of the 2011-12 financial year, passage of the Health & Social Care Bill
through Parliament was paused to allow the NHS Future Forum to conduct a wide-ranging “listening
exercise” with all key stakeholders. This pause resulted in a delay to the publication of the
Department's 2011 Business Plan and, on the recommendation of the NHS Future Forum, led to a
revised timetable for the delivery of some SRP commitments. The refreshed Plan was published in
July, took account of the outcomes of the listening exercise, and included four additional major
responsibilities;

« Maintain Performance on Waiting Times - including the maximum 18-weeks referral to treatment,
4 hour A&E standard and cancer waiting times;

« Run an efficient and effective Department of State — provide an efficient and effective service to
the public, Parliament and Ministers through advice and timely responses to queries on health and
adult social care policy;

+ Help prepare for emergencies — work with other Government departments and public services to

ensure that both the Department of Health and the NHS are prepared for emergencies and other
critical events;

« Devolve leadership of Information Technology (IT) development — devolve the leadership of IT
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development to NHS organisations, taking implementation closer to the front line.

Except where set out in either the Structural Reform Priorities or these additional responsibilities, the
Department made a clear commitment in its 2011-15 Business Plan that it will no longer.

= manage the NHS through central process targets. Instead, the Depariment will ensure that patients
have access to the data they need to make meaningful choices about their care;

= require the publication of data which does not help inform patient choice, or the holding of public
servants to account; and

» support the existence of Arm's Length Bodies that are no longer needed or which duplicate
functions. The Department will streamling those that should continue.

The Department delivers its objectives by working with Ministers, the NHS, social care providers and
other partners through five distinct but inter-related roles:

» Setting direction for the NHS, adult social care and public health, including the integration of public
health, health care commissioning and social care at a national level;

= Supporting delivery, which includes securing the financial resources within which health and social
care providers can successfully deliver appropriate services;

« Leading health and well-being for Government;

« Ensuring appropriate accountability to both Parliament and the public in respeact of both the services
and resources for which the Department is responsible;

« Supporting staff to succeed.

Key performance indicators in the wider health and social care system are measured and challenged
by the relevant management or programme board. At each of its formal meetings, for example, the
Departmental Board receives a key information pack which includes performance data relating to both
the Department and the wider health and care system. A discussion about performance is a standing
itern on the agenda of each Departmental Board meeting, with non-executive board members providing
rigorous challenge.

From July 2011, the Department has published Quarterly Data Summaries (QDS) on its website. These
provide a quarterly snapshot in relation to the indicators included in the Deparimental Business Plan,
as well as other published data and management information. This includes details of how the
Department spends its budget, the results achieved and how its workforce is deployed. The QDS
includes the latest indicative information about the number and structure of people working in DH and
its agencies.

Progress against the Structural Reform Plan

6.12

Key SRP achievements for the Department of Health during 2011-12 were as follows:

« Royal Assent in March 2012 for the Health and Social Care Act 2012. This legislation fundamentally
changes the infrastructure for commissioning health care services through the establishment of the
NHS Commissioning Board and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). It gives more power (o
clinicians, more choice and control to patients, and provides a clear framework for the
Government's modernisation of the NHS;

« Publication of a number of key documents to communicate details of the next stages of health and
care system reform:

- Building the National Trust Development Authonty.

- Building a Public Health England = People Transition Policy ; and

- the Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPF) national update,
« Establishment of the NHS Commissioning Board as a Special Health Authority;
« Consultation on proposals to establish Clinical Commissioning Groups;

« Conclusion of Tripartite Formal Agreements between Strategic Health Authorities and NHS Trusts
that set out the commitments required from each party to enable achievement of NHS Foundation
Trust status,
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« Establishment of the Health Research Authority as a Special Health Authority;
« Launch of the Public Health Responsibility Deal and issue of the first NHS Outcomes Framework;

« Launch of the first two research partnerships between academics and the NHS to work with
industry and help turn scientific discoveries into treatments;

+ Review of the rules on charging non-residents for NHS healthcare; and
« Publication of plans for a secure e-health record data service that is viable and affordable.

Each month, the Department reports on progress made against the commitments in its SRP. DH met
66% of its current commitments on time. Reasons for delay, other than the pause in the passage of the
Health & Social Care Bill, included slippage in the pariamentary timetable, (e.g. in relation to the Care
and Support White Paper), or were the result of policy decisions, (e.9. some commitments shared with
the Ministry of Justice and overseen by the Health and Criminal Justice Programme Board).

Supporting Departmental Staff to Succeed

6.14

6.15

6.16

617

The Department can only meet its objectives or discharge its responsibilities by having a highly-skilled,
professional and motivated workforce, with staff being supported by the right tools and infrastructure to
help them succeed. Such support includes:

+ access to appropriate training and development opportunities; and

« provision of effective and efficient support services, especially relating to information technology,
human resources, accommodation and finance.

The Department's relationship with its workforce is supported by a series of core values relating to
people, overall purpose, the principle of working together, and accountability.

The Department’s Learning and Development (L&D) activity during the year focused particularly on
building organisational capability in respect of managing and leading change. In addition, there was a
strong emphasis on developing wider management and leadership skills, enhancing the quality of
support for ministers and Parliament and strengthening the skills associated with partnership building
and sector leadership capabilities. For example, in 2011-12, over 750 members of staff attended
bespoke workshops on various aspects of managing and leading change.

In each month since April 2011, the corporate L&D team has, on average, provided 40 hours of
bespoke L&D consultancy support across all directorates. Topics included in this support covered a
range of development needs: managing local change and transition, Professional Skills for
Government, teambuilding, providing emotional support, and workshops on the development of new
working systems and understanding different working styles.

Dealing with Risks and Uncertainties

6.18

5.19
6.20

The Department's strategic risk register provides the focal point for overall risk management within the
Department of Health. This register is updated on a regular basis, and the contents are considered by
the Departmental Board and the Audit & Risk Committee at each of their meetings. Supporting
Committees and groups manage those risks which fall within their specific areas of responsibility, and,
as appropriate, will escalate those risks for inclusion in the strategic risk register. During 2011-12, the
Department revised the format of its strategic risk register, with risks now categorised into one of three
areas: (i) business as usual risks; (ii) transition specific risks; and (iii) risks inherent in the new system.

Further commentary on this risk and control framework is included in the Governance Statement.

In March 2011, in circumstances which attracted significant media attention, Southern Cross, the
biggest provider of care homes in the UK, announced it was in financial difficulties. Some 31,000
residents in 750 different care homes were potentially affected. The Government's primary concemn
was the welfare of those residents. Ministers gave a commitment that, whatever the outcome, no-one
would find themselves homeless or without care. The Department, working with the Association of
Directors of Adult Social Services, the Local Government Association and the Care Quality
Commission, ensured that robust local arrangements were put in place to address the consequences
of this financial failure. The Department oversaw the negotiations that led to the Southern Cross
company being wound up and its business taken on by alternative providers during 2011-12. The risks
to the health and well-being of residents were therefore successfully mitigated.
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Transparency and Efficiency Controls

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

An emphasis on greater transparency lies at the heart of the Coalition Government's commitment to
provide a means for the public to hold politicians and public bodies to account. The Department is fully
committed to this transparency agenda and has made available a number of key documents on the DH
website via a link to data.gov.uk. During 2011-12, key DH documents were made available in respect
of:

» DH staff salaries above £150,000;
= senior DH civil servants’ pay and details;

= senior staff pay details in relation to the Department's Arms Length Bodies (ALBs), Executive
Agency, Executive Non-Departmental Bodies and Special Health Authorities;

= all new DH ICT contracts and central DH contracts;

+ all new DH tender documents for contracts over £10,000;

« the Department's organisation chart and related staff data;

» new items of central DH spending over £25,000;

= publication of expenses information for senior officials in the Department,

+ management information relating to the DH workforce (April to August 2011); and
+ details of Government Procurement Card (GPC) transactions over £500.

The DH Business Plan 2011-15 sets out the priorities for the Department. As described above, the
Structural Reform section of the Plan sets out the key commitments involved in delivering the
Department's reform programme. Each month, DH reports on the progress made in meeting its SRP
commitments. These reports are available on both the Department's and the Number 10 websites. The
transparency section of the Business Plan sets out the key indicators that the Department believes will
be most useful to the public in terms of understanding the costs and outcomes of health and social care
services.

In May 2010, the Coalition Government introduced a range of efficiency controls relating to both the
Civil Service and the work of Departments and Arms Length Bodies, with the purpose of securing
billions of pounds in efficiency savings. These controls introduced an immediate freeze on a number of
expenditure areas, including: external recruitment, new consultancy spend, new ICT projects over £1
million and paid for communications, advertising and marketing activity. In addition, the Cabinet Office
introduced tighter controls over procurement, property, pay and business travel, and, in March 2011,
announced that all these controls would remain in place until March 2015.

The Department of Health implemented these controls (with appropriate guidance) both for itself and its
ALBs in May 2010 and has, in some cases (for example, professional services), extended the scope of
the controls beyond that imposed by the Cabinet Office.

Spend on Consultancy, Agency and Temporary Workers

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

The following table provides details of expenditure by the Department and other bodies within the
Resource Accounting Boundary in respect of consultancy and temporary agency workers.

The table shows that the Core Department, Connecting for Health (CfH) and its ALBs reduced its
expenditure on consultancy by £2.9 million (13%) and on temporary and agency staff by £79 million
(43%) compared to 2010-11.

Although there has been a total reduction in spend across these organisations, reflective of the
Efficiency Reform Group (ERG) controls in place, there are some increases, predominantly within CfH
for consultancy because of increased legal consultancy requirements; and within Monitor for
transitional work related to the new economic regulator (both consultancy and temporary agency).

Across the total group accounting boundary, total consultancy expenditure increased by 1% (E6 million)
from £470 million to £476 million. The overall increase is explained by NHS Trusts and Foundation
Trusts (FTs) reporting a total increase of £49m, offset by a reduction across SHAs and PCTs of £40
million (23%) and the DH Core, Connecting for Health and ALBs of £2.9 million (1 3%).
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Table Seventeen: Department and Other Bodies Expenditure on Consultancy, and Temporary/ Agency
Woarkers

201112 2010-11
Temporary Taimporary
Cu-n-;uh.ln:y' .ﬂ.u-anl'lll;_'lri Consultancy ] Agancy a
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Core Departmeant 2,920 36 886 8,787 B7.516
Connecting for Health 11,997 34,078 4,975 80,734
Sub Total DH Core 14,917 70,964 14,772 138,250
% Change on prior year 1% A%,
RAR Special Health Authorities:
NHS Institule for Innovation and Improvement . 1,488 1.548 9,196
Mational Patient Safety Agancy 212 B2 243 2614
NHS Business Sendces Authority . 1.206 95 1.578
The Information Centre 461 4 261 187 5,664
Mational Instiuie for Health and Clinical Excellénce 20 5.970 - 4 813
MHS Litigation Authodity - 428 . 428
Mational Treatmenl Agency for Substance Misuse . 4 35 B33
MHS Commissioning Board Authority 1m “ n'a nia
Health Research Authority 86 n'a n/a
Sub Total - RAB SpHAs 794 14,2315 2,118 25,126
RAB NDPBs:
Care Cuality Commission 50 8,063 1,550 8654
Appointments Commission - - 2
Council for the Regulation of Healthcare Professionals 40 2 45 T
General Social Care Council - 1,390 129 2418
Health Protection Agency 223 6,619 2.782 7.323
Human Fertilisation and Embryology Authority 170 . 206 574
Human Tisswa Authadily 261 214 320 439
Monitor = Independant Regulator of MHS Foundation Trusts * 3,650 3.712 1,056 1,645
Sub Total - RAB NDPEBs 4,403 20,000 6,097 21,062
Sub Total - DH and ALBs 20,113 105,199 22,987 184,438
&6 Change on prior year -13% -4 3%
Strategic Health Authonities 23,525 58,733 35482 49 BE3
Primary Cara Trusts 106,750 210,778 137,860 581,470
MNHS Trusis 146,759 1,573,918 117 605 1,625 556
NHS Foundation Trusts 176,292 1,317,203 156,100 1,177,485
Sub Total - Trusts and SHAs 456,326 3,160,632 A4T 14T 3,434 1B4
2% %
RAB Taotal -l'ﬂklg 3,265,832 470,134 3,618,622
% Change on prior year 1% 0%
Notes

1. Consultancy values for Core Department reperted receipted amounts againsi purchase orders in ling with Office of
Government Commerce (OGC) definitions. This source was used in 2010-11. This differs to the source of data used in the main
body of the resource accounts (for example, notes 8 and 9), which is taken from the Department’s General Ledger. There are
definitional and timing differences between Ihese sources. For example, see footnote 4.

2. Temporary Agency values are on an accrual basis from the accounting systems

3. The 2010-11 figures have been restated both to exclude some pensions costs that were incomectly included last year and to
correct some classification emmors. The main figures affected are those for Connecting for Health, the NHS Institute and the Care

Quality Commission.
4. Monitor consultancy expenditure includes transition activity (Circa £3m) which has since been recharged to the Core
Departmant and is reflected in the DH Core resource accounts within notes Band 9.
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Other Department Efficiencies and Cost Reductions

6.30 In2011-12, the Department reduced the space within its London estate by 15%, thereby saving around
£4 million per year. It will continue to exercise tight control over its core and ALB estate and will seek to
futher reduce the future size and cost of the estate in line with operational requirements. The
Department also negotiated a new shared ICT service for the Department and its ALBs, which will help
deliver future savings of over one third against the cost of current contracts. In addition, the Department
made savings of £4.2 million through its procurement function, achieving better value for money on a

range of contracts.

631 The Department has successfully completed the Public Sector Carbon Management programme,
leading to a reduction in energy consumption by 25% compared to 1899-2000 baseline figures.

7 REVIEW OF THE YEAR

T Without doubt, 2011-12 has been a year of almost unprecedented change for both the Department and
the wider health and social care system. Successful delivery of the Health & Social Care Act, which
received the Royal Assent in March 2012, marks a fundamental shift in the way in which health care is
commissioned and delivered. There is a significantly greater emphasis on local engagement — not least
through the creation of Health and Well-being Boards and Public Health England — with the
empowerment of patients and local communities lying at the heart of the Coalition’s reforms.

7.2 The Government's aspirations for the health and care system can be summarised as being:

« To ensure that people have the best possible health, with outcomes as good as the healthiest
nations in the World,

« To be as effective at keeping the nation in good health, as itis at treating ill health;

« To have a health and care system that is built around pecple and patients (and which responds to
their needs according to locally determined priorities) and which is not focused on process.
Patients will be empowered to take more control of their own care;

« To have a health system that is led by clinicians and health care professionals;
« To drive substantial improvements in health outcomes, productivity and the quality of care; and

« To develop innovative improvements in terms of delivering patient care, especially in respect of
patients with long-term conditions and for older people.

7.3 As well as defining the future direction of the health and care systems in its new legislation during
2011-12, the Department has also:

« Maintained financial performance (as set out in Section 2 above) whilst making good progress in
terms of reducing administration costs and, for the NHS. in working to achieve QIPP efficiency
saving targets;

« Maintained successful performance across the health and care sectors, including in respect of
waiting times and healthcare associated infections;

« Promoted further integration of care services, whilst taking steps to improve the future of social
care in the face of an ageing population and rising demand; and

« Improved the efficiency of its own operations, whilst continuing to reduce costs.

Progress on the Transition to Modernise the Health and Care system

7.4 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 provides a series of powers and structural changes which are
designed to modernise and improve the health and care system. The Act reflects the proposals set out

in the Government's White Paper: Equality and Excellence: Liberating the NHS, (published in Ju
2010). This reforming legislation will g (P ly

» Hand power to doctors and nurses: Health professi i i |
. | nurses: sionals will have the power to design the bes!
local h?alt:'u services for their patients according to local priorities — this more autonomous an
accountable system will be achieved through 212 Clinical Commissioning Groups;
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s Drive up quality: healthcare commissioners will be under a duty to continuously improve the
quality of services on behalf of the people they serve. The Act places specific duties on the
Secretary of State, the NHS Commissicning Board and Clinical Commissioning Groups in this
regard;

« Ensure a focus on integration: Commissioners will be under a duty to promote the integration of
services with both providers and local authority partners. Monitor will have stronger regulatory
powers in relation to providers and will act mare explicitly in the interests of patients;

« Tackle health inequalities: For the first time, Clinical Commissioning Groups, the NHS
Commissioning Board and the Secretary of State will be placed under a duty to tackle health
inequalities;

« Develop a stronger patient voice: The Act establishes Health Watch England and local Health

Watch organisations; these will have a responsibility to represent patients' interests both locally and
nationally;

« Strengthen local democratic involvement: The Act also establishes Health and Well-being
Boards. Each Board must have at least one locally elected councillor and a representative of Health
Watch as members. It will also bring together NHS, social care and public health commissioners
and patient representatives. The particular role of these Boards will be to influence and challenge
commissioning decisions on behalf of patients. Local Authorities will also have a much greater
leadership role in respect of local health services;

« Strengthen public health: The Act transfers responsibilities for local public health services to local
authorities, who will then be able to co-ordinate the work done by the NHS, social care, housing,
environmental health, leisure and transport services in the interests of public health. Public Health
England will co-ordinate public health activities at a national level,

« Give patients more information and choice: The Act strengthens the role of the Health and
Social Care Information Centre to ensure that commissioners, patients and the public will have
improved access to information about how the NHS is performing;

« Improved provider landscape: Under the Act, patients will be able to choose, and health service
providers will compete, on the basis of clinical quality and outcomes;

» Strengthened regulation: The Care Quality Commission will continue to ensure that providers
meet safety and quality standards. The powers of Monitor, the current independent regulator for
NHS Foundation Trusts, will be significantly extended to include all NHS providers. Monitor will be
required to promote and protect patients’ interests through its key activities: the licensing of
providers, setting the NHS tariff, and ensuring the continuity of essential services; and

s Reduced bureaucracy: Two layers of administration and management, namely Primary Care
Trusts and Strategic Health Authorities, will be abolished from the end of March 2013.

The Department of Health Transition Programme is driving implementation of these reforms. The
legislative programme was ‘paused’ during April and May 2011 whilst the independent NHS Future
Forum carried out its “listening exercise”. Following this review, a number of recommendations were
made to broaden the range of expertise involved in commissioning groups, create stronger safeguards
for patients, break down barriers between health and social care and adopt 2 more phased approach to
reform. Appropriate amendments were made to the Health and Social Care Act to properly reflect the

recommendations made.

The reformed health and care system will become fully operational in April 2013. During 2011-12,
however, a substantial amount of preparatory work has taken place to design and build the
infrastructure for the new system. In this way, significant progress could be made prior to the legislation
receiving Royal Assent at the end of March 2012. This preparatory work will continue during 2012-13.

Towards the end of 2011, PCTs and SHAs were organised into clusters, both to provide resilience and
to maintain NHS performance during the transition period, especially in terms of maintaining financial
control and ensuring the accuracy of local accounts. These clusters also ensured continued
performance across a range of qualitative indicators including waiting times and key measures of
quality and safety.

In October 2011, the Department set up the NHS Commissioning Board Authority with the remit of
preparing for the establishment of the NHS Commissioning Board as an Executive Non-Departmental
Public Body in October 2012. In the few months since its inception, this Authority has managed the
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development of the new commissioning system, not least by supporting the foundation of 212 Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs). Commissioning Support Services will support CCGs in the delivery of
areas such as contract management, service redesign, analytical support and other professional
services, including finance and accountancy.

Significant progress has been made in terms of developing a robust and diverse provider sector. NHS
Trusts which have not yet achieved NHS Foundation Trust status are being actively supported to do so,
and this process will be reinforced by the NHS Trusts Development Authority (NTDA) (established as a
Special Health Authority in June 2012). Preparatory work is underway to facilitate the extension of
patient choice to any qualified provider in at least three community and mental health services by
September 2012. A new regulation regime for the provider sector is being developed and a guide for
providers of NHS-funded services has also been published.

The development of local Health & Well-being boards will bring together leaders of the health and care
system with local commissioning groups, elected representatives, public health providers, and the local
Health Watch

The Health Research Authority was established as a Special Health Authority in December 2011 and
has begun its work to promote proportionate standards for research regulation and governance. Health
Education England was established as a Special Health Authonty in June 2012 and Public Health
England will be in place by April 2013.

In all these activities, a people transition process has been put in place to ensure a co-ordinated
approach to staff movement. Staff transfers are planned in line with the Cabinet Office Statement of
Practice (COSOFP) with the aim of minimising redundancies and retaining essential skills.

In the midst of all the changes brought into effect by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, it should be
remembered that the Secretary of State for Health will remain fully accountable for the NHS. The Act
does not change the Secretary of State's duty to promote a comprehensive health service. In particular,
Ministers will set transparent objectives for the NHS through a mandate given to the NHS
Commissioning Board. Ministers will hold all national bodies to account, with powers to intervene in the
evant of a significant failure, or in the case of an emergency.

Cost of Transition

The Impact Assessment for the Health and Social Care Bill, published in September 2011, included an
estimate of the costs of implementing the changes. The most likely overall cost was estimated at
between £1.2 and £1.3 billion (in 2010-11 prices), to be incurred predominantly by April 2013. Of this,
£810 million was attributable to redundancy costs (EB52 million in nominal terms). The remainder was
mainly attributable to the costs of setting up and closing down organisations, including expenditure on
estates and IT.

Owverall, the current cost forecasts relating to transition are broadly consistent with the Impact
Assessment. Note 7.3 sets out the number and cost range of all exit packages in PCTs, SHAs, the
Department and its Arms Length Bodies in 2011-12. These figures include exits attributable to
Transition. MNon-redundancy transition costs relate to a number of account headings in different
organisations and so have not been disaggregated in these accounts.

Progress on Spending Review Commitments and the ‘Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention’
challenge

716

FAar

7.18

The Department holds the NHS in England to account through the NHS Operating Framework. The
2011-12 Operating Framework was published in December 2010 and this set out key priorities and
accountability arrangements for the NHS for the year, particularly in the context of transition. It also
described the requirement to reduce administration costs across the health system by one third in real
terms by 2014-15.

As noted in Section 3 of this Report, the NHS ended the year with a very strong financial performance,
achieving an overall surplus, before impairments, of £2 billion, in line with the target set out in the 2011-
12 NHS Operating Framework. Achieving this surplus will help the NHS to ensure funds are available
for meeting the challenges and demands throughout the transition period, as well as continuing to
improve quality and services for patients.

MHS funding was provided in line with the Autumn 2010 Spending Review settlement. This protected
healthcare funding in real terms, with growth in cash funding set to increase by £12.6 billion by 2014-
15. However, over the four-year Spending Review period, the NHS will face an additional demand for
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services from an aging population, an increase in the number of people living with multiple long-term
conditions, and the continuing need to fund new technologies and drugs. The Department believes that
to achieve these demands the NHS will have to deliver and re-invest up to £20 billion in efficiency
savings, whilst continuing to drive up the quality of the services it provides.

Since 2010-11 the NHS has been planning to meet the 'Quality, Innovation, Productivity and
Prevention’ (QIPP) challenge, with every local NHS economy required to identify opportunities for
financial efficiencies to be re-invested in meeting future demand and improving the quality of services
provided. The measures were set out in Integrated Strategic Operating Plans, which were approved by
the Department in 2011. The total efficiency savings identified across the health system were £18.9
billion, with the Department contributing £1.5 billion of these savings from central Department and Arms
Length Body budgets. This total is based on assumptions for variables such as future demand for
healthcare and likely cost pressures, and will continue to be refined and updated throughout the QIPP
period.

In 2011-12, the first year of the QIPP delivery period, the NHS delivered its forecast efficiency savings,
with PCTs reporting the delivery of £5.8 billion savings whilst maintaining or improving the quality of
services provided (as set out in The Year: NHS Chief Executives Annual report 2011-12). While these
savings are encouraging, the NHS will need to maintain its focus on quality and productivity, in
particular delivering transformational change, in order to sustain delivery of savings in future years.

The Department also established QIPP national work streams to support the NHS. To date, these work
streams have delivered a number of valuable products, namely:

« Right Care Atlases of Variation series: first published in November 2010, and extended in
November 2011. These Atlases support local commissioners to identify unwarranted variations in
services and to take steps to reduce them. A series of themed atlases, including one on child
health, will be published in 2012,

« The NHS Safety Thermometer: measures patient safety by collecting information on four high-
volume health issues (i.e. pressure ulicers, falls, catheters & urine infection and wvenous
thromboembolism (VTE)) on one day per month in respect of every patient receiving NHS funded
care on that day. From April 2012, the Department of Health will be working towards national rollout
of the NHS Safety Thermometer, with implementation due for completion by March 2013.

« Back Office Efficiency and Management Optimisation report: This report, published in
November 2010, and jointly commissioned by the Foundation Trust Network (FTN) and the
Department of Health, outlines ways to simplify core functions, drive out unnecessary work and
activities, standardise processes and maximize opportunities for shared services in order to
improve guality and drive out efficiencies.

« Urgent Care Clinical Dashboard: Developed by NHS Bolton, this tool gives GPs better, and more
immediate information, about their patients’ use of urgent and emergency services. This enables
GPs to better meet their patients’ needs and improve commissioning capability.

Delivery of Key Performance Outcomes in the NHS

7.22

7.23

The NHS continued to maintain the core performance standards set out in the 2011-12 NHS Operating
Framework. Access to services was maintained, with the NHS delivering above the NHS Constitution
commitment to provide treatment within 18 weeks of referral for 80% of admitted patients and 95% of
non-admitted services,

The Secretary of State's Annual Report on the NHS provides details of performance against the five
key areas of the Outcomes Framework. In summary:

« Standards were maintained for A&E attendance and cancer treatment;

« Nationally, the ambulance service achieved 76.1% against the 75% target to respond to
immediately life threatening calls within eight minutes. This was the first time that this target has
been achieved nationally, and by all ambulance trusts, since the cumrent system of measuring
response times was introduced;

« The number of diagnostic tests camied out in 2011-12 increased by 5.5% compared to 2010-11.
The percentage of total waiting times of six weeks or longer for the 15 key diagnostic tests had
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decreased to 0.7% by the end of March 2012 compared to 1.9% at the end of March 2011;

» Infection rates are at their lowest level since mandatory surveillance was introduced. MRSA
infections fell by 24.7% from the previous year, whilst C. Difficile infections decreased by 17% in

2011-12 compared to 2010-11; and
» In March 2012, providers of NHS-funded healthcare reported 466 breaches of the MSA guidance

compared to 5,466 in the same period in 2011. This represents a decrease of 90% and a significant
improvement from the 11,802 breaches identified back in December 2010 when monitoring started.

Integration of Care Services and Improving the Future of Social Care

7.24
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2011-12 was an important year for social care for two reasons:

+ There has been a significant improvement in the degree of integration between health and care.
The vast majority of Local Authorities opted to be early implementers of Health & Well-being boards
and this has laid the foundations for strong local relationships. Improved integration has been
further enhanced through NHS financial support for social care during the year.

« There has been a significant level of development activity with the social care sector in terms of the
priorities for social care reform. This collaborative work will inform the content of the forthcoming
White Paper on care and support, and will lay the foundation for subsequent implementation.

During 2011-12, the Department has promoted the further integration of care services through its
publication of the first ever outcomes frameworks for the NHS, social care and public health. At a local
level, Health and Well-being boards will provide an important step towards securing this improved
integration. The Department invited local authority areas to participate in the National Learning
Network, which was designed to support early implementer Health and Well-being boards in
developing their understanding of how to be most effective in improving outcomes and accountability.
Health and Well-being boards have now significantly moved on from the early implementation phase,
and out of 152 top-tier Local Authorities, almost every area has already established a shadow board.
This demonstrates a clear appetite in local government for a strengthened local leadership role, and
this lies at the heart of the Government's vision for greater integration in the health and care system.

This year, the Department allocated £648 million to Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) for onward transfer to
Local Authorities for spending on social care services. Feedback from both PCTs and Local Authorities
has been positive, with many areas stating that these funds have been used to stimulate greater co-
operation and joint planning.

In particular, PCTs and Local Authorities have used the allocation to prioritise upstream investment,
that is, to help delay or prevent future costs in the health and care systems. Feedback also suggests
that approximately 18% of the funding was used to ‘maintain eligibility criteria’ — which suggests that
the funding was used to support general social care capacity, thereby ensuring that demand would
continue to be met. There is also clear evidence that the funding has been used to maintain specific
prevention and rehabilitation capacity in councils. ‘Re-ablement services' account for a further 18% of
the transfer, intermediate care accounts for 10%, early supported hospital discharge schemes 8% and
integrated crisis response a further 8%.

The social care sector has continued to deliver the Government's reform agenda. For example, an
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) personalisation survey in March 2012
indicated that 432,349 users of care services received a personal budget. This was a significant
increase from the 338,000 recipients in April 2011. The 2012 survey data illustrates this further growth
during the last year, with provision of personal budgets now standing at around 52% (an increase from
35% last year) There are still challenges in some areas in terms of achieving the aim of all eligible
users being in receipt of personal budgets by April 2013.

During 2011-12, there were two independent reports on the reform of care and support:
* The Law Commission's proposals to modemise the social care legislative framework: and
= The Commission on Funding Care and Support

In response _'m these reports, the Department initiated a period of engagement with the social care
sector - Caring for our Future — in order to better shape its understanding of the key priorities for
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reform. This engagement focused on issues relating to quality and workforce, integration, prevention
and early intervention, markets, personalisation and financial services. Feedback from this exercise
has supported development of the draft Care and Support Bill.

In March 2012, the Prime Minister launched his Challenge on Dementia. This sets out a renewed
ambition to build on progress made through the National Dementia Strategy, and go further and faster
towards securing greater improvements in dementia care and research.

Investing in Research and Development

The Department spent £952 million on Research and Development in 2011-12. Of this, £920 million
was provided to the Mational Institute of Health Research (NIHR). This funding was utilised in four key
areas:

» £610 million — Infrastructure to provide the support and facilities the NHS needs to deliver first class
research;

s £202 million — Research Programmes to provide evidence to support decision making by
professionals, policy makers and patients;

« £91 million — Development of a research capability and talent in clinical and applied health and
social care research; and

« £17 milion — Systems to simplify and streamline the approvals and procedures underpinning
research.

The Clinical Practice Research Datalink, funded by the Department of Health through MNIHR and
MHRA, was launched at the end of March 2012. This world-class service will enable life science
researchers to draw on the power of large, linked, anonymised clinical data sets to produce evidence
that will improve the quality of care and safeguard health.

As mentioned in paragraph 7.11 above, the Health Research Authority (HRA) was also established on
1 December 2011, and has started its work to protect and promote the interests of patients and the
public in health research.

Leading Health and Well-being for Government

7.35

7.36

The Department leads on the integration of health and well-being issues into cross-Government
policies, and, conversely, on the incorporation of wider public policy considerations into the delivery of
health and social care services. The Department's work cuts across both the public and private sectors,
and Government at local, national and international level, and includes:

« Working with the wider public, third and private sectors on issues such as health protection or
lifestyle choices, including the integration of health and well-being issues into other Government
priorities at the local level through the work of regional teams, and

« Working with international partners, including the European Union (EU), World Health Organisation
(WHO) and the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD).

In providing leadership across Government on health and well-being issues, DH has:

« Continued its Act F.A.S.T stroke initiative with a further TV advertising campaign to publicise the
early warning signs of stroke, and to demonstrate the importance of a rapid response. This
campaign was supported by both public sector and industry partners;

« In this year of the 2012 London Olympics, expanded the ChangedlLife programme, a national
movement designed to help people eat more healthily and be more active. The campaign also now
focuses on the harmful effects of alcohol. Since its inception, more than half a million adults and
their families have registered to join Change4Life

« Building on the success of the Smokefree campaign — over 500,000 people ordered a Quit Kit in
2011-12. The updated kit was developed and distributed in conjunction with commercial, retail and
independent pharmacy partners; and
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« Launched a new campaign, supported by leading charities, to raise awareness about the signs and

symptoms of the three most common cancers — bowel, breast and lung — and to encourage people
to seek treatment early.

Forward Look

Developing the Department

T.37

7.38

The Department will continue to lead the way in terms of protecting and improving the heaith of the
nation, and will maintain its strategic role in shaping and designing the overall health and care system,
and in acquiring and accounting for resources at a national level. it will be the ‘architect’ of the new
system and will set a clear vision for the system's delivery of health care outcomes and the proper use
of resources

The Department's enduring purpose is to achieve better health, better care and better value: working to
help people live better for longer. The 2012-13 Corporate Plan, which was launched in May 2012, sets
out the Department's priorities for the year ahead. This Plan is available on the Department's website.
DH activities are grouped into six priority areas:

« Better health - helping people live healthier lives by:

- improving the nation’s public health system,
- ensuring the Department has the capabilities and policies in place to address threats to public
health, and

- promoting health and well-being to deliver better health outcomes and tackle health
inequalities across all age groups.

Better care - helping people get better, and ensuring people are treated with dignity and respect,
supporting a patient-led health and care system by:

- reforming social care,

- working with the NHS to strengthen people’s ability to make meaningful choices about their
care; supporting the integration of services around the individual; getting the basics right on
safety in health and care, and

- having a greater focus on health outcomes.

Better Value — providing better quality care by improving productivity and ensuring value for money

for the taxpayer by:

- reducing bureaucracy,

- supporting the NHS to save up to £20 billion to reinvest in frontline services; and

- simplifying regulation of the development and adoption of new medicines and treatments.

Successful Change - delivering the transition to a more autonomous and accountable system by:

- making sure the new partnership organisations, Clinical Commissioning Groups and Health
& Well-being Boards are ready to take on their new responsibilities by April 2013, and

- continuing the Department's transformation into a smaller, more purposeful organisation, with a
clear sense of its rale in relation to the health and care systems.

Working With Partners — achieving strategic clarity, building a common sense of purpose by
developing strong relationships with our external stakeholders, and:

-  establishing effective ways of working with the new organisations in the health and
care system, and

- playing a full role in delivering the government's priorities when these are led by
other departments.

Transforming the Department itself — improving capability and becoming a better department by:

- developing new ways of working to reflect the leadership role the Department will play in the
new system

- engaging with our partners; and building understanding of the Department's work within the
health and care system and the wider public, and
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- putting equality and diversity at the heart of the Department's work.

By April 2013, the Department and the wider health and care system will look and feel very different.
Within the Department there will be a new way of working and structural changes will be brought into

place progressively by spring 2013.

From April 2013, the Department will have a single Permanent Secretary (and single Accounting
Officer) who will oversee five directorates. The Chief Medical Officer will continue to work alongside the
Permanent Secretary and will oversee a research and development function. Of the five new
directorates, three will focus on the key delivery chains in the system: NHS, Social Care and Public
Health. One directorate will explore the means by which the Department will become better connected
to the people it works with and for, and the fifth directorate will focus on the Department's corporate
responsibilities across DH itself and the ALBs.

Implementation of the Future Health and Care System

Health and Social Care Structure following Health & Social Care Act 2012

The health & care system
from April 2013
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The reforms contained in the Health and Social Care Act are being developed over the course of 2012-
13, with some parts of the new system running in parallel to ensure no disruption or drop in standards
during transition. The new health and care system will be operational by April 2013.

In June 2012, the NHS Trust Development Authority (NTDA) and Health Education England (HEE)
were legally established as Special Health Authorities. Medical Education England (MEE) ceased

operating
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In July 2012, The National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) closed, with its functions transferring to the
NHS Commissioning Board. Operational closure of the General Social Care Council (GSCC) also
took place and the Alcohol Education Research Council (AERC) was abolished.

In October 2012, the NHS Commissioning Board (NHSCB) will be established as a Non-
Departmental Public Body and will carry out limited functions including the authorisation of Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs). Health Watch England will also be established as a statutory
committee of the Care Quality Commission. The Appointments Commission (AC) will be abolished
and its functions transferred to the NTDA. NPSA will be legally abolished, along with full closure and

abolition of GSCC.

By the end of 2012, the Council for Healthcare Regulatory Excellence's (CHRE) role will be
extended to set standards for, and quality assure, voluntary registers held by existing statutory health
and care professions regulators, and others such as professional bodies. Then over time it is intended
to become an independent, self-funding body by charging a levy on regulators, and it will be renamed
the Professional Standards Authority.

In April 2013, the NHS Commissioning Board will take on its full functions and Clinical
Commissioning Groups will take on their full statutory powers. At this point Primary Care Trusts
(PCTs) and Strategic Health Authorities (SHAs) will be abolished. From 2013-14, the Secretary of State
will hold the NHS Commissioning Board to account on the basis of its Mandate. The latter will be
developed during 2012-13, CCGs will be accountable to the NHSCE for their performance.

Those parts of the NHS estate that will not transfer to NHS community heaith providers will transfer
instead to a new government owned limited company, NHS Property Services Ltd. This company will
deliver property services, including to CCGs and social enterprises, and will dispose of estate that is
surplus to NHS requirements.

Health & Well-being Boards will be operational by April 2013, working together with community groups,
elected representatives, health and care providers and other agencies, and local Health Watch
organisations.

As local authorities take on their new public health responsibilities, Public Health England (PHE) will
be established and the Health Protection Agency (HPA) will be abolished, with its functions
transferring to PHE. The functions of The National Treatment Agency will be transferred to PHE upon
its abolition.

NTDA will take on its full responsibilities, and Monitor will take on its new role as the provider sector
regulator for health, working with the NHS Commissioning Board to regulate prices for NHS-funded
services and license providers. The National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) will
become a Non-Departmental Public Body to be known as the National Institute for Health and Care
Excellence to reflect its wider role.

Health Education England (HEE) will take on responsibility for education and training from SHAs and
Local Education and Training Boards (LETBs) will come into operation.

The Health and Social Care Information Centre will become a Non-Departmental Public Body. Some
functions of NHS Connecting for Health will transfer to the Information Centre as it is closed. The
NHS Institute will also close down.

2012-13 will also see publication of the Care and Support White Paper, the progress report on funding
reform, and the draft Care and Support Bill published for Pre-Legislative Scrutiny.

Information Strategy and NHS Informatics

7.54

.55

The Government's information strategy “The Power of Information: putting all of us in control of the
health and care information we need” was published on 21 May 2012. It set the vision, ambition and
next steps in terms of harmessing information and new technologies to achieve high quality care and to
improve outcomes for patients and service users. The strategy signals the move towards a more local
approach, encouraging diversity and innovation at a local level. The balance of funding and

responsibility for IT will increasingly become local; particularly from 2016, when nationally held
contracts wind down.

The strategy sets out a continuing role for a national IT infrastructure to ensure effective and secure
gfmrnamn flows across the health and social care system. Central organisations such as the
epartment of Health and the NHS Commissioning Board will continue to secure national infrastructure
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{such as the "spine’ allowing secure connections between organisations), but doing only what needs to
be done centrally.

Following the conclusions of a seres of reviews carried out by the National Audit Office and the Major
Projects Authority (MPA), the Government anncunced in September 2011 an acceleration in the plan to
dismantle the National Programme for IT. The Department committed to moving away from a top down
approach and will instead provide information systems driven by local decision-making. The
dismantling process is now complete, with changes to the governance of the programme. The
component programmes continue and the new governance arrangements place accountability on an
individual Senior Responsible Owner (SRO) for each programme within NHS Informatics Directorate.

The MPA found that there have been substantial achievements in the national programme which are
now firmly established, such as the Spine, N3 Network, NHS mail, Choose and Book, Secondary Uses
Service and Picture Archiving and Communications Service. These IT solutions and systems will
continue to provide vital support to the NHS. The component programmes’ major successes include:

+« The number of patients with a Summary Care Record has increased from 5.8 million in March 2011
to over 13 million in March 2012;

s+ Over 35 million patient referrals have now been booked via Choose and Book and various
upgrades to the service have been completed, on time and to budget;

+ The deployment of the Electronic Prescription Service Release 2 is increasing, with over 100
general practices and 4,000 community pharmacy sites being ready to start using the system;

+ The NHS Network, N3, Managed Video Conferencing is now routinely saving the NHS in excess of
£400,000 per month and the N3 Voice has exceeded its target for 2011-12, achieving savings for
the NHS of £1.2 million during the year. The benefits are not only financial, as the use of
technologies, such as video conferencing, reduces the requirement for travel with resulting
reductions in carbon emissions estimated to be 800 tonnes of Green House Gas (equivalents) in
2011-12; and

s Local Service Provider contracts have delivered a number of systems to support the NHS, for
example the acute sector in the South saw the completed deployment of significant additional
clinical functionality to the final three (of the eight) live Cerner Millennium sites: Nuffield
Orthopaedic Centre NHS Trust, Buckinghamshire Hospitals NHS Trust and Milton Keynes NHS
Foundation Trust.

Additional structure changes are expected going forward as the Health and Social Care Act reforms
take effect and plans are put into place to implement the information strategy.

Future of the CSC coniract

.59

.60

.61

As a result of the continuing delays to the Computer Sciences Corporation's (CSC) Lorenzo Product —
part of the NHS care record system — the Department for Health, in collaboration with the Cabinet
Office, formed a Negotiation Team to enter into discussions with CSC in October 2011. NHS
Informatics and CSC reached agreement about a non-legally binding “Letter of Intent” which was jointly
signed by both NHS Informatics, following approval by the Secretary of State and HM Treasury, and
the IT supplier on 2 March 2012.

Following negotiations with CSC, an Interim Agreement was signed in September 2012 that enacls
legally binding changes to the underlying contract for the Lorenzo product. This will now be
consolidated over the next few months into a revised contract.

Under the previous contract, the majority of trusts in the North, Midlands and East were obliged to take
the Lorenzo product. The new agreement supersedes that obligation and removes CSC's exclusive
rights as the only provider of electronic patient record systems in those areas. Local NHS organisations
now have the power to make their own decisions about which IT systems they use. This has enabled
the Department to reduce its contractual commitment to CSC. CSC retains their responsibility to roll out
the core Electronic Patient Record to current users and depending on their local needs, the NHS can
choose to roll out other parts of Lorenzo.
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PUBLIC INTEREST AND OTHER ISSUES

Accounting to Parliament and the Public

8.1

8.2

As a Department of State, the Depariment of Health supports Ministers in discharging their
accountabilities to Parliament and the public, and remains one of the busiest in Whitehall. In 2011-12,

DH:
s Laid an ungualified, IFRS-compliant Annual Report and Accounts for 2010-11 in early
September 2011;

e Published a total of 20 impact assessments. Four of these accompanied regulations which
came into force during 2011-12, and 16 were part of the policy-development process;

« Completed a total of 27 Equality Impact Assessments;

« Answered 1,945 Freedom of Information (FOI) requests, responding to 100% of these within
the deadline, (including permitted extensions); and

« Answered 5,845 Parliamentary Questions, supported 11 Health Select Committee inquiries and
8 Public Accounts Committee hearings; and 4 other section committee enquiries on cross
government issues.

In respect of the Department, the Parliamentary Ombudsman has confirmed there were no complaints
accepted for investigation in 2011-12.

Pubilic Dividend Capital

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) represents the Government's investment in NHS Trusts and NHS
Foundation Trusts. PDC is recorded on the Statement of Financial Position of NHS Trusts and NHS
Foundation Trusts, and is an asset of the Consolidated Fund.

The rules governing PDC for NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts are provided in the NHS Act
2006. This allows for the use of PDC as originating capital for NHS Trusts, and initial PDC for NHS
Foundation Trusts. The Act also sets out the Secretary of State’s powers in determining the conditions
under which PDC can be issued. Consequently, with the consent of the Treasury, the Secretary of
State may determine, in respect of an NHS Trust:

=« The dividend which is payable at any time on any PDC issued, or treated as issued, to an NHS
Trust or NHS Foundation Trust under the 2006 Act;

« The amount of any such PDC which must be repaid at any time; and
+ Any other terms on which any PDC is issued, or treated as issued.

The NHS Act 2006 also sets out how initial PDC is determined for NHS Foundation Trusts, and details
the powers that the Secretary of State may exercise in setting the terms under which PDC is treated as
having been issued and the dividend payable. Under the financial regime currently operating in the
provider sector, both NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts are required to pay a PDC dividend to
the Department. This is currently set at 3.5% of the average net relevant assets of each NHS Trust and
MHE Foundation Trust,

As Note 13 to these accounts reports, a total of £32.9 million of PDC was cancelled in 2011-12. This
represents the outstanding PDC of Worcestershire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust which was
dissolved on 1 July 2011. This NHS Trust was dissolved as a result of a merger with a Primary Care
Trust provider function under the Transforming Community Services initiative, to form a new
organisation — the Worcestershire Health and Care MHS Trust. The new Trust was issued with £32.4
million of PDC in the form of Criginating Capital. The difference between this newly issued PDC, and
the amount cancelled, reflects movements in the composition and valuation of the assets of the
dissolved NHS Trust in the years since it was established.

Payment to Suppliers

8.7

The Department complies ulmrith both the CBI prompt payment code and the British Standard on prompt
payment. The Department is a signatory to the Government's Prompt Payment Code, and has a policy
to pay all bills as soon as possible.
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8.8 The standard terms of payment for all supplier contracts is 30 days from receipt and agreement of a

8.9

8.10

B.11

8.12

B8.13

valid invoice. This is embedded in all contracts with suppliers, with any exceptions agreed as part of
contractual negotiations. Exceptions have to be fully justified and agreed by the appropriate senior
management and finance colleagues. Payment terms for most other types of valid payments for
grants, funding and to other bodies are immediate.

In 2011-12, the core Department paid 98.31% (171,866) of its invoices in accordance with the 30-day
policy. The comparable figures for 2010-11 were 99.48% (192 6E8). In the same period, the core
Department paid 97.86% (169,344) of its bills within 10 days, compared to 97.68% (189,195) in 2010-
11, and 95.46% (165,202) compared to 91.18% (176,609) invoices in accordance with the new 5-day
target. The Department’'s prompt payment performance is published on the DH website.

The Department is required to report its payment to suppliers on a payable days basis. This is
calculated as a proportion of the amount owed to trade payables at the year end compared with the
aggregate amount invoiced by suppliers during the year, expressed as a number of days in the same
proportion to the total number of days in the financial year. Under this measure, the core Department
paid suppliers within an average of 4 payable days in 2011-12 (2010-11 8 payable days).

Better Payment Practice Code — NHS Organisations

The percentage of bills paid in compliance with the better payment practice code in 2011-12 by NHS
Trusts, PCTs and SHAs is shown in the following tables. Currently, all NHS Trusts, PCTs and SHAs
must meet a Better Payment Practice Code target of paying 95% of bills within contract terms, or 30
days where no terms have been agreed. Monitor does not collect comparable supplier payment
performance from NHS Foundation Trusts.

Table Eighteen: NHS Trusts Supplier Payments

Number of NHS Trusts
By number of bills By value of bills
Non-NHS NHS Non-NHS NHS
Between 95% and 100% 27 20 34 34
Between 85% and 94.9% 56 32 44 28
Between 75% and 84.9% 10 22 17 15
Less than 75% 20 39 18 a5
Total 113 113 113 113
Overall Performance 2011-12 (%) 838 78.8 857 78.3

In 2011-12, NHS Trusts paid 83.8% (81.0% in 2010-11) of their non-NHS bills and 78.8% (71.1%) of
their NHS bills by number, and 85.7% (83.2%) of non-NHS bills and 79.3% (75.2%) of NHS bills when
measured by value within 30 days or contracted terms. The performance in 201 1-12 is in the context of

NHS Trusts processing and paying over 6 million invoices during the year.
Table Nineteen: PCTs Supplier Payments

Number of Primary Care Trusts
By number of bills By value of bills
Non-NHS NHS |HMNon-NHS| NHS
[Between 95% and 100% 66 58 72 130
Between 85% and 84.9% 63 44 57 20
Between 75% and 84.9% 13 31 13 1
Less than 75% g 18 g 0
Total 151 151 151 151
Overall Performance 2011-12 (%) | 916 87.4 93.1 98.0

In 2010-11, PCTs paid 81.6% (93.2%) of their non-NHS bills and 87.4% (87.8%) of their MNHS bills by
number, and 93.1% (93.6%) of non-NHS bills and 98.0% (97.8%) of NHS bills when measured by
value within 30 days or contracted terms. The 2011-12 performance is in the context of PCTs
processing and paying over 2.6 million invoices during the year.
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Table Twenty: Strategic Health Authorities Supplier Payments

Mumber of Strategic Health Authorities

By number of bills By value of bills

Non-NHS NHS Non-NHS NHS
Between 95% and 100% 9 [ 10 10
Between B5% and 94.9% 1 4 0 0
Between 75% and 84.9% 0 0 0 0
Less than 75% 0 0 0 0
Total 10 10 10 10

Owverall Performance 2011-12 (%) 97.2 95.5 88.0 97.8

In 2011-12, SHAs paid 97.2% (96.2%) of their non-NHS bills and 95.5% (95.2%) of their NHS bills by
number, and 98.0% (97.5%) of non-NHS bills and 97.9% (98.6%) of NHS bills by value within 30 days
or contracted terms. The performance in 2011-12 is in the context of SHAs processing and paying over
107,000 invoices during the year.

Strategic Health Authorities monitor the performance of individual NHS Trusts and Primary Care
Trusts, and work with poor performing organisations to achieve and maintain a level of payment
performance consistent with Managing Public Money regulations and the Better Payment Practice
Code. Performance management takes the form of meetings and discussions with organisations to
understand incidences of poor performance and what corrective actions should be taken to ensure that
performance improves. The Department of Health has a similar role with poor performing SHAs.

Further details on the Better Payment Practice Code can be found at www.payontime.co.uk.

Political Donations and Expenditure and Charitable Donations

817

The Department maintains a register for such items and no entries were recorded in 2011-12.

Contingent Liabilities

8.18

8.18

8.20

The Department discloses possible obligations that may arise but are dependent upon uncertain future
events or decisions partly or wholly outside the control of the Department in the Contingent Liabilities
note to the accounts. Mote 26.1 therefore reports that the Department had £98.5 million in quantifiable
contingent liabilities in 2011-12. These are disclosed under parliamentary reporting requirements but
are not disclosed under IAS37, as the likelihood of payment is remote.

In addition to these quantifiable contingent liabilities, a further 31 unquantified contingent liabilities
(indemnities) were recorded in 2011-12. These indemnities mainly relate to potential legal action
against organisations or individuals, and the Department continues to monitor the potential risks
relating to these remote contingencies.

In addition, in Note 26, the Department has reported a number of operational contingent liabiliies which
are required to be disclosed under IAS37.

Reporting on Better Regulations

821

822

In line with the Coalition Government's commitment to reducing the regulatory burden which affects
business, since April 2011 the Department has paricipated in the Cabinet Office-led Red Tape
Challenge (RTC) initiative. In preparation for the public review of regulations linked to medicines, which
took place in April 2012, the Department's internal review process revealed a high number of
regulations which may potentially be amended or scrapped altogether. Preparations for the internal
challenge phase of the DH Healthy Living and Social Care theme RTC have been underway since
January 2012, This process will review non-medicine related regulations that have an impact on
business. The internal challenge will take place in July 2012, and the public review of the relevant
regulations will take place in October 2012.

Between April 2011 and March 2012, the Department introduced five new regulations, leading to an
Increase in the One-In, One-Out (O100) deficit. The principle of OIOO is such that, for any direct net
cost imposed on business by the introduction of a regulation, departments are required to identify and
remove existing regulations with an equivalent value. The outcome of the Red Tape Challenges will
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mean that a number of DH regulations will be amended or scrapped, and this decrease will lead to a
reduction in the Department's Q10O deficit.

Sustainable development and climate change

8.23 Details of the Department's actions in respect of sustainable development and climate change are now
included in a separate report in these accounts (page 69).

5 i Reqgion and Function

8.24 Core Tables 6, 7 and 8 below show analyses of the Department's spending by country and region, and
by function for 2006-07 to 2010-11. The data presented in these tables are consistent with the country
and regional analyses (CRA) published by HM Treasury as part of the October 2011 Public
Expenditure Statistical Analyses (PESA) National Statistics release. The figures were taken from the
HM Treasury public spending database in summer 2011 and the regional distributions were completed
by autumn 2011. Therefore the tables may not show the latest position and are not consistent with

- other tables in the Departmental Report. Totals may not sum due to rounding. The 2011-12 outturn is
expected to be published later this year.

8.25 The analyses are set within the overall framework of Total Expenditure on Services (TES). TES broadly
represents the current and capital expenditure of the public sector, with some differences from the
national accounts measure Total Managed Expenditure. The tables show the central government and
public corporation elements of TES. They include current and capital spending by the Department and
its NDPBs, and public corporations’ capital expenditure, but do not include capital finance to public
corporations. They do not include payments to local authorities or local authorities’ own expenditure.

826 TES is a cash equivalent measure of public spending. The tables do not include depreciation, cost of
capital charges, or movements in provisions that are in departmental budgets. They do include pay,
procurement, capital expenditure, and grants and subsidies to individuals and private sector
enterprises. Further information on TES can be found in Appendix E of PESA 2011 available on the
HM Treasury website.

8.27 The data are based on a subset of spending - identifiable expenditure on services — which is capable
of being analysed as being for the benefit of individual countries and regions. Expenditure that is
incurred for the benefit of the UK as a whole is excluded. Regional attribution of expenditure for the
years 2006-07 to 2010-11 is based on NHS annual accounts; central expenditure is attributed pro rata
to NHS expenditure for all years.

828 The regional spending is largely driven by the recurrent revenue allocations (over 80% of total
resources) the Department currently makes directly to local PCTs, on the basis of the relative needs of
their populations and in line with pace of change policy. A weighted capitation formula determines
each PCT's target share of available resources, to enable them to commission similar levels of heaith
services for populations in similar need, and to reduce avoidable health inequalities. The formula
calculates PCTs' target shares of available resources based on PCT populations adjusted for their age
distribution. additional need above that accounted for by age, and unavoidable geographical vanations
in the cost of providing services.

829 The functional analyses of spending in Core Table 8 are based on the United Nations Classification of
the Functions of Government (COFOG), which is the international standard. The presentations of
spending by function are consistent with those used in Chapter A of the CRA October 2011 release.
These are not the same as the strategic priorities shown elsewhere in the report.
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Core Table 6 Total Identifiable Expenditure on Services by Country and Region

£ million
National 5 tatistics

Department of Health 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2008-10 2010-11

putturn outlirn outturn outturn outiurn
Morth E ast 4,139 4,482 4 899 o, 186 5.344
Meorth West 10,923 11,959 12,774 13,759 13,999
Yarkshire and the Humbser 7,604 8,230 9,010 9,626 9,563
E ast Midlands 5,300 6,443 7,008 7.401 7.682
West Midlands 7.923 8.605% 9,257 5,985 10,211
East 7,353 7.849 8,640 9,474 9,821
London 12,219 13,766 14,796 16,574 16,926
South East 11,008 11,867 12,851 13,980 14,173
S outh West 6,925 7,643 8,292 5,822 9,020
Total England 73,900 £0,845 87,527 54,808 87,138
Scotland 34 38 42 ai 51
Wales 191 -162 -164 -162 =139
Northern irgland 4 s 5 & [+
UK identtflable expenditure 73,747 80,726 87,410 94,699 97,056
Outside UK Bk 07 g816 984 1,140
Total identiflable expendHure 74,414 81,633 88,226 95683 98,196
Mon-identfiable expenditure : 2 . > -
Total expenditure on services 74,414 81,633 88226 95683 98,196
Hoite

1. Figures may not Sum dué 1o rounding.

Core Table 7 Total Identifiable Expenditure on Services per Head, by Country and Region

£ per head
National 5 tatistics

Department of Health 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

outturn outiurn outhirn outturn outturn
Marth E ast 1,621 1,751 1,906 2,007 2,050
Morth West 1,594 1,742 1,858 1,995 2,018
¥ orkshire and the Humber 1.477 1,588 1,727 1,831 1,879
E ast Midlands 1,329 1,465 1,582 1,663 1,714
West hMdlands 1,478 1,600 1,712 1,839 1,872
East 1,315 1,390 1,511 1,643 1,684
Londan 1,619 1,811 1,929 2,138 2,163
South E ast 1,339 1,431 1,536 1,657 1,663
S outh Wesit 1,351 1,476 1.591 1,686 1. 710
England 1456 1,582 1,701 1,830 1,860
Scotland ! 7 B g 10
Wales -6 -55 -55 54 -46
Maorthern Ireland F 3 k| 3 3
UK identiflable expenditure 1,217 1,324 1,424 1,533 1,559
Mobe

1. Figures may not sum due 1o rounding,
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Core Table 8 Total identifiable expenditure on services by function, country and region, for 2010-11
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B.30  Finally, the Department's Resource Accounts have been prepared under a direction issued by HM
Treasury in accordance with the Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000 and are subject to
audit by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Note 8 and 9 to the accounts disclose the audit, and
where applicable the non-audit fees for the Department and the consolidated group bodies. The
Department's audit fee is notional and is shown as a non-cash item in Note 8.

B.31 As far as the Principal and Additional Accounting Officers are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Department's auditors are unaware, and the Accounting Officers have taken all

the steps necessary to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Department's auditors are aware of that information.

Una O’'Brien
9 October 2012

Permanent Secretary & Principal Accounting Officer
Department of Health

Richmond House

79 Whitehall

London SW1A 2ZNS
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Health and Social Care Bill
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Introduction

1.  The Department of Health (DH) is committed to long-term sustainable development, and must ensure
that, by delivering better care and well-being for the nation, it is also contributing to a strong, healthy and
sustainable society for the generations of the future. This fundamental principle underpins the
Department's health and social care vision, such that sustainability resonates with both staff and

stakeholders.

2. The Government believes that it should set a good example to the country, by managing its own estate
and’ activities in a way that is compatible with the principles and objectives of sustainability. All central
Government Departments are required to report their progress in terms of reducing the environmental
impacts of their operations. This is achieved through the Greening Government Commitments (GGC),
(which have replaced the Sustainable Operations on the Government Estate (SOGE) targets). Details of
these Commitments can be found at:

http: v.uk/faov/ar

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Performance Commentary
Table 1: Greenhouse Gas Emissions 2009-10 to 2011-12

n=government/commitmen

Report and Accounts,

Tiofes: 1.The gross emissions n

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 2009-10 (2010-11 |2011-12
Total Gross Emissions 57 927 57 809 439,991
T SGross emissions Gas 13,627 13,833 10,460
Emissions (fonnes CO%) 15, 0 - = emissions Electricky 35,334 36,561 33,703
Gross emissions Travel 8,966 7,215 5,828
Elactricity: Mon rensywakble 62,439 55 527 49 024
Related Energy Elactricity: reanswvwakile 4912 14 164 15,219
Consumption (000 KWH) |Gas 74222 75,343 56,972
Gas Qi 5 470 3,400 3,853
Expenditure on sneray 9,144 8,713 7,801
Financial Indicators (Lk) |JCRC liceance expanditures 322 347 348
Expenditure on business travel 22,548 17,3332 14,821

dicalors cover core Department of Hea
Sarvices Authority, Care Guality Commission, Monitor, Health and Social Care Information
Centre, Health Protection Agency, Mational Institute for Clinical Excellance and MHS Connecting
for Health. For sustainability reports for individual organisations, please see their own Annual

i, NS Business

2. The core Department does not report on Guarry House Tor energy, waste and water. This is
included in the sustainability reporting for Department of YWork and Pensions.
3. The increase in energy consumption for 2010-11 15 due to improved data quality reporting on
buildings where data vwas not previously available.
4. Travel data Includes international travel,
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Figure 1. CO2 Output 2009-2011-12
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3 Based on current initiatives, the results presented in Table 1 indicate that DH is on track to meet the
target to reduce carbon emissions by 25% by 2015 (13% reduction between 2009-10 and 201 1-12). This
has been achieved by introducing a number of initiatives, which have included the deployment of energy
efficient IT, consolidation of estate, tighter controls, improved IT file storage facilities and the
rationalisation of local IT servers.

4. Having engaged with the Carbon Trust, the Department has produced a Carbon Management Plan. This
covers a number of ongoing projects, including an upgrade to DH Building Management Systems,
implementation of LED lighting and boiler optimisation.

5. DH continues to work towards ensuring a consistent decrease in recorded emissions from business
travel, which have decreased by 35% from 2008-10 to 2011-12. The Department has implemented a
number of additional travel initiatives, such as the increased use of cycles on official business, and the
provision of additional video conferencing facilities across the estate. For the core Department, there has
been a significant reduction during 2011-12 in the number of domestic flights, currently 1,861 less than in
2009-10.

Waste

Table 2 Waste Financial and Non-Financial Indicators

WASTE 2009-10 |2010-11 |2011-12
Tolal Waste 37638| 39823 28554
Hazardous Waste |Total 1g20] 4450| 2990
: Landfl 15244 11118] 7208
W%l NonHazardous  [REUSEdecyCled (non-prescription waste) 15740] 16128 14019
\asle Reusedirecycled (prescription waste) 2000] 5850 1140
Incinerated energy recovered 68| 22 33
[incinerated energy net recavered 68 6.7 66
encial ndictors. oA0Ldisposal cost (k) 8730 9262 6716
(&%) Hazardous Waste - Total Disposal Cost 30 3480 2280
Non-Hazardous Waste - Total Disposal costs s620] 5782|4435

Motes: 1. Increase in 201041 mainly due lo an increase in prescription waste and better data reporting.
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Figure 2: Waste and Recycling
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6. The Department has worked to significantly reduce its overall levels of waste. The results presented in
Table 2 above indicate a 24% reduction between 2009-10 and 2011-12. The core DH has a current
recycling rate of about 80%, with the greatest proportion of recycling activity relating to paper. In addition,
the introduction of a managed print service has significantly reduced the volume of paper used by the
Department. DH has also reduced the number of printers and photocopiers in use across the estate by
about 75%.

7. The Department is fully engaged with the Closed Loop Recycling initiative, launched by the Cabinet
Office to provide for the recycling, production, delivery and collection of paper, and is developing an
implementation strategy with HMRC, Arms Length Bodies and a new paper supplier.

Water

Table 3 Water Consumption Financial and Non-Financial Indicators

WATER CONSUMPTION (m?) 2009-10 |2010-11 |2011-12
: : : Supplied | 73915| 68,391| 68077
Mon-financial |Wnater Consumption (office estate) e FIE == o= =

incicato
bl hWater Consumption (total estete) |Supplied | 283,880| 256,058| 239426

Financial Indictors (£k) [Water Supply Costs (fotal estate)

3708] 3328 2871

67



Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Figure 3 Water Consumption Total Estate
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8. As Table 3 indicates, the Department and its Arms Length Bodies have reduced their water consumption
by 49,454m’ or 17% since 2009-10. The benchmark for water consumption_has changed this year to
consumption (of water) per person on a Full Time Equivalent basis. At 8.31m’ per FTE, the Department
will be consulting with its facilities suppliers on how to reduce its water consumption to meet the best
practice target of less than 4 m’ per FTE. The increase is due to the 12% reduction in staff numbers and
ongoing building rationalisation.

Sustainable Procurement

9. The Department has maintained a good level of compliance with Government Buying Standards and
strengthened arrangements with the letting of new contracts in key areas of ICT, Printing and Stationery.
Work continues under the facilities management contract to support energy efficiency and carbon
reduchion.

10. The Department recently published 'Standards of Procurement’. This sets out a range of key standards
for DH and NHS organisations, including one for Sustainable Procurement. The Department will work
over the coming year to develop further guidance to support the NHS.

11. The Department has also engaged with Defra in the development and testing of the Food and Catering
Government Buying Standards and has worked closely with the NHS Sustainable Development Unit to
develop tools and training to support the NHS Procuring for Carbon Reduction project.

Climate Change Adaptation

12.  In March 2010, the Department published its Climate Change Plan. This sets out the detail of how DH will
ensure that climate change issues are addressed as an integral part of both policies and operations. This
plan is available at:

http:

nce/DH 114929

13. The Department has a Departmental Adaptation plan (published in March 2010 and updated in May
2011). This plan can be found by following the attached link:

:/farchive.defra.gov. nm lim
health-110519. pdf
14. The Department of Health annual ‘Heatwave Plan’ was published in May 2012. The plan can be viewed
at
http:/fwww W -plan
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15. Itis a key part of the Department's national adaptation planning to reduce the health impacts of climate
change as highlighted in the first Climate Change Risk Assessment which was laid before Parliament in
January 2012.

w_ defr. ironm li r isk- n
| Biodiversity and Natural environment

16. The Department is not required to have a biodiversity action plan as the majority of sites are based in city
centres or street faced buildings.

| Procurement of Food and Catering Services

17. Defra are actively encouraging central Government Departments and the wider public sector to support
Hospitality and Food Sector Voluntary Agreements. The Department is about to go out to tender for a
new contract and this will be a requirement.

18. The Department's current catering suppliers are already committed to sustainable sourcing, which
includes providing full traceability of products and suppliers within their supply chain to ensure that
sustainability, ethical and safety standards are built in. DH is also committed to working with clients,
suppliers and distributors to reduce the impact of their business on the environment.

People

19. Improving the health and well-being of the nation is one of the Department’s key responsibilities, and this
core objective is extended to the Department's own workforce. For example, DH has implemented a
Health & Well-being Board, with the key objective of “inspiring, promoting and encouraging the health
and well-being of all staff, in line with the aspiration to become a Top 100 employer.” The Department
issues reqular communications to its staff to reinforce the role that they can take, both within the
workplace and outside, to reduce carbon emissions and change behaviour.

Governance

20. The Depariment has a dedicated team in place to deal with all Greening Government Commitments. This
team reports to the Department's Property Asset Management Board, chaired by the DH Senior
Responsible Officer for Sustainable Development. These financial statements contain core Department,
Arms Length Body and Special Health Authority data in respect of progress against Greening
Government commitments. All other health bodies fall outside the scope of the Greening Government
requirements, and, therefore sustainability reporting, unless they wish to report on a voluntary basis.

NHS Sustainable Development

21. The Department of Health works closely across Government (i.e. Defra, DECC) and, at NHS level,
supports the NHS Sustainable Development Unit. The Unit assists the NHS in developing Sustainable
Development Management Plans and making the links between sustainability and health care

improvement.
Bodies consolidated in the Department's Sustainability Report

22. The ALBs included in these annual accounts are NHS Business Services Authority, Care Quality
Commission, Monitor, Health and Social Care Information Centre, Health Protection Agency, National
Institute for Clinical Excellence and NHS Connecting for Health. MHRA and NHS Blood and Transplant
are excluded as they are catergorised as Public Corporations. The following ALBs are excluded on
grounds of immateriality: Appointments Commisssion, Council for Health HgguFatarjr Excellence, Human
Tissue Authority, NHS Litigation Authority, and the NHS Institute for Innovation and Improvement.
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STATEMENT OF FRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S RESFONSIBILITIES I

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S
RESPONSIBILITIES

Under the Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000, the Department of Health is required to
prepare Resource Accounts for each financial year, in conformity with a HM Treasury direction, which
details the resources acquired, held or disposed of, and the use of resources by the Department,
during the year.

The Resource Accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Depariment, the net resource outturn, resources applied to objectives, changes in
taxpayer's equity and cash flows for the financial year.

HM Treasury has appointed the Permanent Secretary of the Department as Principal Accounting
Officer of the Department with overall responsibility for preparing the Department's accounts and for
transmitting them to the Comptroller and Auditor General. In preparing the accounts, the Principal
Accounting Officer is required to comply with the Financial Reporting Manual, prepared by HM
Treasury, and in particular to:
= observe the relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting
policies on a consistent basis,
make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
state whether applicable accounting standards, as set out in the Financial Reporting Manual,
have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the accounts; and
* prepare the accounts on a going concern basis.

In addition, HM Treasury has appointed:

« the Chief Executive of the NHS as an Additional Accounting Officer to be accountable for the
Department's own programme expenditure on the NHS and for overseeing the spending of all
NHS bodies that are subject to direction by DH (that is, Primary Care Trusts, Strategic Health
Authorities, Special Health Authorities and NHS Trusts); and

+ a separate Accounting Officer to be accountable for the NHS Pension Scheme and NHS
compensation for premature retirement scheme Resource Account. These are produced and
published as a separate account.

The NHS Act 2006, designated Chief Executives of NHS Foundation Trusts as their Accounting
Officers for each of their organisations. They produce and publish separate annual accounts and
Menitor (the independent regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts) prepares and publishes a consolidated
account.

These appointments do not detract from the Permanent Secretary’s overall responsibility as Principal
Accounting Officer for the Department’s accounts, and the group Resource Accounts. The Principal
Accounting Officer draws assurance from the audits of the NHS Foundation Trusts accounts, in
preparing the Department’s group Resource Account.

The responsibilities of an Accounting Officer, including responsibility for regularity and accounting
accurately for their organisation’s financial position and transactions are set out by HM Treasury in
Managing Public Money.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

'Remuneration Policy
.

The remuneration of senior civil servants (SCS) is set by the Prime Minister following independent advice
from the Senior Salaries Review Body (SSRB).

The Review Body also advises the Prime Minister from time to time on the pay and pensions of Members of
Parliament and their allowances; on Peers' allowances; and on the pay, pensions and allowances of
Ministers and others whose pay is determined by the Ministerial and Other Salaries Act 1975.

In reaching its recommendations, the Review Body has regard to the following considerations:

= the need to recruit, retain and motivate suitably able and qualified people to exercise their different
responsibilities;

« regionalllocal variations in labour markets and their effects on the recruitment and retention of staff;

s Government policies for improving the public services including the requirement on Departments to
meet the output targets for delivery of Departmental services;

« the funds available to Departments as set out in the Government's Departmental expenditure limits;
and

» the Government's inflation target.

The Review Body takes account of the evidence it receives about wider economic considerations and the
affordability of its recommendations. Further information about the work of the Review Body can be found
at www.ome.uk.com.

Remuneration of Board Members and Directors General

5. The remuneration of the Permanent Secretary, the Chief Executive of the NHS and the Chief Medical

Officer is set by the Prime Minister on the recommendation of the Permanent Secretaries’ Remuneration
Committee. Departments are given discretion in some areas to adapt the pay system to local needs under
the auspices of a Departmental Senior Pay Strategy Committee and to produce an annual senior pay
strategy agreed by the Committee. The strategy document sets out how the system operates in the
Department. In 2011, the Senior Pay Strategy Committee was chaired by Una O'Brien (Permanent
Secretary). The other members were Sir David Nicholson (NHS Chief Executive), Dame Sally Davies
(Chief Medical Officer), Mike Wheeler (Non Executive Director), Harbhajan Brar (Director of Human
Resources), Simon Reeve (FDA) and Kent Woods (Chief Executive, Medicines and Healthcare Products
Regulatory Agency - MHRA). In 2012 it was chaired by Una O'Brien (Permanent Secretary). The other
members were Sir David Nicholson (NHS Chief Executive), Dame Sally Davies (Chief Medical Officer),
Mike Wheeler (Non Executive Director), Karen Wheeler (Director General of Group Operation and
Assurance Directorate), Flora Goldhill (Interim Director of People), Simon Reeve (FDA) and Kent Woods
(Chief Executive, MHRA)

From 1* April 2011, there was no change in base pay levels for the SCS.

The remuneration of Directors General is determined by a pay committee in accordance with the rules set
out in the Civil Service Management Code (Chapter 7.1, Annex A). In 2011 the relevant Committee was
chaired by Una O'Brien (Permanent Secretary). The other members were Sir David Nicholson (NHS Chief
Executive), Dame Sally Davies (Chief Medical Officer) and Mike Wheeler (Non-Executive Director). In 2012
the relevant Committee was chaired by Una O'Brien (Permanent Secretary). The other members were Sir
David Nicholson (NHS Chief Executive), Dame Sally Davies (Chief Medical Officer) and Mike Wheeler
{non-Executive Director).

In the case of the three inward secondees who served as Directors General, various remuneration
arrangements apply. One of the secondees (Sir Bruce Keogh) is subject to SCS terms and conditions,
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which means that his pay is determined in the same way as the civil servants who are permanent
employees of the Department. Sir Bruce Keogh remains a member of the NHS Pension Scheme. The pay
of David Flory is determined in accordance with the Pay Framework for Very Senior Managers (VSMs) in
the NHS which falls under the remit of the Senior Salaries Review Body. Any non-consclidated
performance pay payable is subject to recommendation from the Department's Pay Committees. Professor
Dame Sally Davies became an employee from 1 June 2011 and her pay is determined in the same way as

civil servants in the Department..

Service Contracts

9.

10.

Civil Service appointments are made in accordance with the Civil Service Commissioners’ Recruitment
Code, which requires appointment to be on merit on the basis of fair and open competition but also
includes the circumstances when appointments may otherwise be made. Further information about the
work of the Civil Service Commissioners can be found at

http://www, Civi ggwicgggmmis;igngrs.ggg,gk.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-
ended. Early termination, other than for misconduct, would result in the individual receiving compensation
as set out in the Civil Service Compensation Scheme available on the civil service website,

www.civilservice,gov.uk.

A — MEMBERS OF THE DEPARTMENTAL BOARD AND DIRECTORS GENERAL

11.

12.

This Remuneration Report covers Ministers, Non-Executive Directors, all officials sitting on the
Departmental Board (DB) and Director Generals (DGs) in the Department of Health. The following
elements of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit:

« Salaries (including non-consolidated performance pay) and allowances,
+« Compensation for loss of office;

» Mon-cash benefits;

= Pension increases and values;

» Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (CETV) and increases,

« Amounts payable to third parties for the services of senior managers.

The following table details the dates of appointment, and where appropriate, departure, of the five officials
sitting on the DB and the additional ten DGs. Twelve held permanent Senior Civil Service contracts during
this period and three were seconded. One of the secondees became a permanent Senior Civil Servant
during the year.
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Individual Job Title Date of Appointment | Employing
to Grade/Departure | Authority (if

Seconded)
SCS Contract
Dame Christine Chief Nursing Officer 19 October 2004
Beasley
David Behan Director General of Social Care, 29 August 2006

Clare Chapman

Director General of Workforce

3 January 2007 - 6
July 2011

Finance

Christine Connelly Director General — Chief Information | 22 September 2008 -
Officer 30 June 2011
Richard Douglas Director General Policy, Strategy & 1 May 2001

David Harper Director General of Health 14 October 2003 - 29
Improvement and Protection February 2012
Sian Jarvis Director General of Communications | 1 Aprl 2004 — 30
September 2011
Sir David Nicholson | NHS Chief Executive 1 September 2008
Una O'Brien Permanent Secretary 1 November 2010
Flora Goldhill Acting Director General - Transition 8 September 2010
for the Department of Health
Kate Davies Managing Director NHS Informatics 1 July 2011 (on loan)
Secondments
Dame Sally Davies | Chief Medical Officer from 3 March | 1 May 2005 - 31 May | North West
2011; 2011 London
Director General of Research and Hospitals
Development and interim Chief Trust
Medical Officer from 1 June 2010.
David Flory Director General of NHS Finance, 1 June 2007 NHS North
Performance and Operations East
Sir Bruce Keogh NHS Medical Director 12 November 2007 I.Jt:té Hospitals
NH
Foundation
Trust
Fixed Term
Appointments

Dame Sally Davies

Chief Medical Officer

1 June 2011
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13. Table 1 provides details of remuneration interests of the officials on the DB and DGs (provided on page
73).

Table 1
W01 0113
Salary  Fuall Tear Mo Banelitin  Beoef in Salary  Full Year Hon-  Beraft  [Banafi)
fencl non- Equivabing consolidal Eind  Eind [mst) jencl non- Egquivalent cormadissed in Hind = Rl
ool Sulary ol [pross) enrriand Salary parformance  [gross] i |
g gyl [erfl AON- pararman paef pay” (oacl P papmenis’
caneal -] aanual
porl pag) paymants® part )
£ 0dd (3] EO00  nesresi  nearssi [ 000 'oda
180 (40} o [ BB
[Dares Crnates HD-T4E 160-145 [} Wi Hd Dame Chrsing 6570 pEQ.14% Ml il B
Baadiep
Chrved Bahan (1% L] 160185 518 ] il Darvid Beltbin 180- 185 B0 183 B0 b M
|Crare Craperar’ WREE W03 W8 w ¥l Coaoy Chagman' BU8S  220.225 M K s
[Cranatag Comnaly 0308 200304 hal il il & hrighing Connety” BO4E% 200304 M il ]
Dl Saby Cigvens.’ FFE230 225330 L] hd mmmm.ﬂ.‘ Wit 22510 MNa kel L
Darroe Sty D 185170 200308 ™ 300 FE- S
Rechaird Diogias (ELS Y Bl 145 10 %] Bl Richied Douglai 140-145 1145 S0 kel ]
Duavid Py A0 25210 WS 3700 % 3.700 Darved Fiory” 0510 205310 18-15 &7 300 X7, Mg
Dgvedd Harpar 130135 130134 il ] [l Dharwedd Fiadpant 120- 125 130135 P Il Ha
San Janis 1210 135180 L] K i San Jars " 145150 135140 Md L] Hh
Bruce Keogh " 10105 TRE-198 Hal 3300 1000 Bruce Keage'" 190-185 1EO-198 ] 2,400 2,100
D Mecheedaen 210215 OB 1520 12,300 48,100 S D MRl 1% 0 1520 6400 45,10
(1]
Crinen T40- 145 (£ L H] =241 Fid Hill Ui OrBeen 180- 165 PEQ- 185 L1} L] i
okt 480 130138 Ml Rl il Fiorn Goldbin 130-138 130135 L] il
[ ] s HA Mis A MiA Wt Daeay 8L (LR L] LE] L] 2t |
Lisen Denaldson 6055 205280 il 00 Ligem Dignabdon HiA A A L] i
Hugh Tiyled BO-E5 155180 il 300 300 S Hugh Tiylo 1N Lo MA BaA FA
Hfigta 150" 135 Hal b il Chary Batigud MiA, A Wk [ M
Enrrar's T
Todal Remunaration
I
n Tasal
Ky CEN--rd 40,410
[Funtio BT 711
11 st o Parien wiah o wile T Doy i FEHE W] et & Pl Dy Wrowr errpiryws) goTsidy . Chptinsk oof ot widirenDedd 1d Pk el Do e (o - B
b Tha - L L2 @ sdheomty for nalany e Supccasted #apannes. T babis sbows shores Bor smourd paed i salary by e smploying sultondy nod B smcund
MBMMM
13) Pedbuirdsece jaby o e de] o) @0 i del b o ot SCoiuss b Thawahkns. e el e by e o o 0D E Codrey retate o 0D parbarmanas
Frar Ashisl papmants roeapeod of B, pariormancs year el mads b indraduae Aang 01112
1) Dot £ nlart mred wned ] o Pracniat rd Rt o Bl v ch B e i g 1
14 Perfoiraele iy & mi' i o 8% can il Sakpbad o 8% S0ras b, Tharebeg, Be e i) (o iy el oy Wt T 112 e Tt b e JO0E 132
woar Aoieal pay -mdhm_mrnﬂhmmﬂlll‘-lﬂ
1!-;#1-4" 1 e L puary oS- M pe e nupedd 1 Rl adiory pariormancs. Thes m pued i B pol I wdeoh I i roliied af o N SN S BTy Fee-
o e ry U il Wt oo’ ol Serovi Pt Wit Aila rugl ool Flirmted o gl v
NMWmewanMﬁMNH Wt Laal iy el o Sendl el Pelaleed wvpiirind wird s o by 2501
(Tiadary kv D311 bow off TR e
1E7 Bmdary for 3100112 inchrden [T mhech L = il Gpaecd COmm-Ti BT B W,
180 Doeren CRinfin aanley it parksl retrsmgnt fram | Aged 3011
171600 Guirwial bl Puiin®s v el By B WHS e Bosred o 3 iy s weitl B 1 hiovpsibary 30011 s o Ebopi iy b 35 - £408 i reignit of Mem bimlary
{11 S Bruts Habagh wered k' e MHS Commeering Boasid inf 2 deys Ser vt (£0%) bom 10 [ 2011 anad e ped L34 - il3m o o Pk mlady'

112} Inciudon compenaaon puryrrssed ol £10 131 pasd in e ol roios fo svaid o conlict of iskeesd
113i Groan Sguaw reod avvndabie for 70011 Remremston Repaet. Tes ieleim o S ek ipanied

74



Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12
REMUNERATION REPORT

14. Table 2 provides details of pension interests of officials on the DB and DGs (provided on page 73).
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Median Earnings

15. Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the salary of the most highly-paid
individual in their organisation and the median earnings of the organisation's workforce. The total
remuneration of the most-highly paid individual in Department of Health in the financial year 2010-11 was
£280-285k. This was 6.71 times the median salary of the workforce, which was £42,085. The total
remuneration of the most-highly paid individual in Department of Health in the financial year 2011-12 was
£285-£290k. This was 7.1 times the median salary of the workforce, which was £40,484.

16. Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay, benefits-in-kind as well as
severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer
value of pensions. There was no change in the most-highly paid individual in Department of Health from
2010-11 to 2011-12. The median salary reduced between the two years, largely as a result of the
Department running a voluntary exit scheme in 2011-12 which had the effect of madifying the grade mix,
resulting in a less senior workforce overall.

17. Staff from the Department's executive agency, the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency
(MHRA) are not included in the calculation because no MHRA staff costs are included in the core
Departmental account. The calculation of the median does not include agency workers, secondees in or
staff who are ‘hosted’ by other bodies as central records on the remuneration of these workers are not

currently held.
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Salary
18. ‘Salary' includes gross salary; performance pay or non consclidated performance pay, overtime, reserved

rights to London Weighting or Londen allowances; and any other allowance to the extent that it is subject to
UK taxation.

Non-Consolidated performance pay
19. The performance management and reward policy for members of the Senior Civil Service, including board

members, is managed within a central framework set by the Cabinet Office. The framework allows for non-
consolidated performance-related awards following SSRB recommendations. The Senior Civil Service
Performance Management and Reward principles, which include explanations of how non-consolidated
performance awards are determined, can be found at: www.civilservice.gov.uk. SCS non-consolidated
performance pay is allocated from a central ‘pot, which is agreed each year following SSRB
recommendations, and is expressed as a percentage of the Department’s total base pay for the SCS. Pay
Committees are responsible for assessing, in the light of the SCS Pay Strategy, the relative contribution of
individual SCS members and making the final pay decisions. Non-consolidated performance pay is
awarded in arrears. The non-consolidated performance pay included in the 2010-11 figures in Table 1
relates to awards made in respect of the 2010-11 performance year but paid in 2011-12. Similarly, the non-
consolidated performance pay included in the 2011-12 figures in Table 1 relate to awards made in relation
to the 2011-12 performance year, but which will be paid in 2012-13. Following Cabinet Office
recommendations, non-consolidated performance awards could be awarded to no more than 25% of the
SCS. A flat rate of £8,500 was paid to these 25% in 2011 and 2012.

Benefits in Kind

20.

21

22

23.

24,

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any payments or other benefits provided by the Department
which are treated by HM Revenue & Customs as a taxable emolument. For its direct employees, the
Department pays the individual a net sum and pays tax directly to HMRC.

Four members received payments deemed by the HMRC to be benefits in kind. In line with Departmental
policy, Sir David Nicholson received an allowance for the extra costs of living away from his home base. Sir
David was based in Leeds, and the payment covered the cost of rent and related expenses for staying in
London where he has an office and is required to spend several days each week. In 2011-12 Sir David
received £9,833 (gross). Sir David gave up his rented accommodation in London in May 2011. The last
payment for rent and related expenses was also in May 2011. He was also entitled to one return journey
per week from his home base to London. During 2011-12, Sir David's working pattern effectively meant that
he had a permanent base in London until the end of October 2011 and a split base between London and
Leeds from November 2011. The associated travel and accommodation costs in addition to the cost of
rented accommodation resulted in a gross benefit in kind of £46,540 (£40,897 net) during 2011-12.

David Flory has been on secondment from NHS North East (previously known as North East Strategic
Health Authority) since 1st June 2007. He is entitied to accommaodation and travel expenses for living away
from home. As the secondment has gone beyond two years, these expenses are accounted for as a
benefit in kind, which in 2011-12 amounted to £40,865 (gross). He also has the benefit of a lease car under
the MNorth East SHA's family lease car salary sacrifice scheme. Even though the car is not for work use,
there is a benefit in kind of £1,984 (gross) in 2011-12.

Sir Bruce Keogh is entitled to claim one return journey per week from his home base to London. This
amounted to £2 368 (gross) in 2011-12.

Dame Sally Davies has occasional use of an official car for the journey between her home and office. The
benefit in kind amounted to £5,629 (gross) in 2011-12

Civil Service Pensions
25. Pension benefits are provided through the Civil Service pension arrangements. From 30th July 2007, civil

servants may be in one of four defined benefit schemes; either a “final salary” scheme (Classic, Premium or
Classic Plus); or a “whole career” scheme (Muvos). These statutory arrangements are unfunded with the

76



Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12

26.

7.

28.

29.

REMUNERATION REPORT

cost of benefits met by monies voted by Parliament each year. Pensions payable under Classic, Premium,
Classic Plus and Nuvos are increased annually in line with Pensions Increase legislation. Members joining
from October 2002 may opt for either the appropriate defined benefit arrangement or a ‘money purchase'
stakeholder pension with an employer contribution (partnership pension account).

Employee contributions are set at the rate of 1.5% of pensionable earnings for Classic and 3.5% for
Premium, Classic Plus and Nuvos. Increases to employee contributions will apply from 1 April 2012,
Benefits in Classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th of final pensionable earnings for each year of service. In
addition, a lump sum equivalent to three years' initial pension is payable on retirement. For Premium,
benefits accrue at the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable eamings for each year of service. Unlike Classic,
there is no automatic lump sum. Classic Plus is essentially a hybrid with benefits in respect of service
before 1 October 2002 calculated broadly as per Classic and benefits for service from October 2002
calculated as in Premium. In Muvos a member builds up a pension based on his/her pensionable earnings
during their period of scheme membership. At the end of the scheme year (31st March) the member's
earnad pension account is credited with 2.3% of their pensionable earnings in that scheme year and the
accrued pension is updated in line with Pensions Increase legislation. In all cases, members may opt to
give up (commute) pension for lump sum up to the limits set by the Finance Act 2004.

The Partnership pension account is a stakeholder pension arrangement. The employer makes a basic
contribution of between 3% and 12.5% (depending on the age of the member) into a stakeholder pension
product chosen by the employee from a panel of three providers. The employee does not have to
contribute, but where they do make contributions, the employer will match these up to a limit of 3% of
pensionable salary (in addition to the employer's basic contribution). Employers also contribute a further
0.8% of pensionable salary to cover the cost of centrally-provided risk benefit cover (death in service and ill
health retirement).

The accrued pension quoted is the pension the member is entitled to receive when they reach pension age
or immediately on ceasing to be an active member of the scheme if they are already at or over pension
age. Pension age is currently 60 for members of Classic, Premium and Classic Plus and 65 for members of
Nuvos.

Further details about the Civil Service pension arrangements can be found at the website
www.civilservice-pensions.gov.uk.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

30.

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's
accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment
made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension s::he-_rne ar
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to
which disclosure applies. The figures include the value of any pension benefit in another scheme or
arrangement which the individual has transferred to the Civil Service pension arrang ements_ The.y_ also
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing addltmngl
pension benefits at their own cost. CETVs are worked out in accordance with The Occupational Pension
Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulation 2008 and do not take account of any actual or
potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension
benefits are drawn.

Real Increase in CETV

Nn.

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the increase in
accrued pension due to inflation or contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement). It does rely on commeon market valuation
factors for the start and end of the period.
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Table 1 - Remuneration interests of officials who are members of the DB and DGs.

Table 2 — Pension interests of officials who are members of the DB and DGS.

Compensation for Loss of Office
32. Following restructuring in the Department, the number of Director General roles in the Department

decreased. Sian Jarvis agreed to leave the Department on a voluntary basis under Compulsory
Redundancy terms on 30 September 2011, She received a compensation payment of £134,639.

B - MINISTERS

33. Ministers are political appointments made by the Pnime Minister; they do not have contracts of employment.
Consequently notice periods and terminalion periods do not apply.

34. The following Ministers were in post during the 2011-12 financial year:

Minister Date Appointed
Rt Hon Andrew Lansley CBE, MP  Secretary of State 12 May 2010
Paul Burstow MP Minister of State 13 May 2010
Rt Hon Simon Burns MP Minister of State 13 May 2010
Anne Milton MP Parliamentary Under Secretary 14 May 2010
Earl Howe Parliamentary Under Secretary 14 May 2010

Table 3 provides details of remuneration interests of Ministers:

Table 3
2010-11 2011-13]
B| FYE
Full Yean i Ministers| Full Londs Offi
Equivalent] Equiva Holders Holders
m.nJ, Salaryl m Salaryl|  Sa Allowa Allow
£ £ E E
Andrew Lansley '
£1,056] - 68,827 GB,827
Paul Bursiow ' 20,187 33,002 33.002 23002
| Simon Bums 20,187 33,002 33,002 33,002
| Anne Milion © 20894  I3667 23,607 23,607
|Ear Howe 2 60,583] 68,710 16,032 18,183] 88,710 &B8.710 18,183 18,183

T Miriiters cil ol Griw (Mandibsndl pay ida accnuing for 2009:10; Thero i ne: increass for 2010-11and 201 1-12 wiih salnnes remsn 82 T eatied rale as 81 31
March 3008
; Emrt Hovwin i ilifiged b e Rl moed of Lioncs M Maght Su L=} , ha oniy claéms: S0 of hes. enditherment which amounts b £18, 183
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Table 4 provides details of pension interests of Ministers.
Table 4
Real Pensionat CETVat CETVat Employea Real
increase in End Date S5tart Date End Date contributions increase in
pension (313M1) (310312 and transfers CETV as
in funded by
employer
To nearest To nearest
(E "000) (E '000) (E '000) (£ '000) £1,000 £1,000
Andrew Lansley 0-2.5 0-5 15 34 5 13
Paul Burstow 0-25 0-5 1 23 4 5]
Simon Burns 0-2.5 0-5 a8 52 4 9
Anne Milton 0-2.5 0-5 10 20 3 6
Earl Howe 0-2.5 10-15 160 192 8 10
Salary
35. In respect of Ministers in the House of Commaons, Departments bear only the cost of the

additional ministerial remuneration; the salary for their services as an MP (£65,738 from 1st April 2010) and
various allowances to which they are entitled are borne centrally. The Department does pay legitimate
expenses for Ministers which are not a part of the salary or a benefit in kind.

. However, the arrangement for Ministers in the House of Lords is different, in that they do not receive a

salary but rather an additional remuneration which cannot be quantified separately from their Ministerial
salaries. This total remuneration, as well as the allowances to which they are entitled, is paid by the
Department and is therefore shown in full in Table 3.

Ministerial pensions

37.

38,

40.

Pension benefits for Ministers are provided by the Parliamentary Contributory Pension Fund (PCPF). The
scheme is statutorily based (made under Statutory Instrument Sl 1993 No 3253, as amended).

. Those Ministers who are Members of Parliament may also accrue an MP's pension under the PCPF

(details of which are not included in this report). The arrangements for Ministers provide benefits on an
‘average salary’ basis, taking account of all service as a Minister. The accrual rate has been 1/40th since
15 July 2002 (or 5 July 2001 for those that chose to backdate the change) but Ministers, in common with all
other members of the PCPF, can opt for a 1/50th accrual rate and the lower rate of employee contribution.
An additional 1/60"™ accrual rate option (backdated to 1 April 2008) was introduced from 1 January 2010.

Benefits for Ministers are payable at the same time that MPs’ benefits become payable under the PCPF or,
in the case of those who are not MPs, on retirement from Ministerial office, from age 65. Pensions are re-
valued annually in line with changed Pension Increase legislation. From 1 AE\nL 2009, members pay
contributions of 5.9% of their ministerial salary if they have opted for the 1/60" accrual rate, 7.9% of salary
if they have opted for the 1/50" accrual rate or 11.9% of salary if they have opted for the 1/40" accrual rate.
There is also an employer contribution paid by the Exchequer representing the balance of cost as advised
by the Govemnment Actuary. This is currently 28.7% of the Ministerial salary. Increase to member and
Exchequer contributions will apply from 1 April 2012,

The accrued pension quoted is the pension the Minister is entitled to receive upon reaching 65, or
immediately on ceasing to be an active member of the scheme if they are already B5.
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

41.

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's
accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment
made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total Ministerial service, not just their current appointment as a Minister. CETVs are
calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 and do not take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from
Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

Real Increase in CETV

42,

This reflects the increase in accrued pension funded by the Exchequer. It does not include the increase in
accrued pension due to inflation or contributions paid by the Minister, It uses common market valuation
factors for the start and end of the period.

C — NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

43.

44,

45.

46.

The Department appointed two Non-Executive Directors (now known as Non-Executive Board Members) to
the Departmental Board for the first time in 2005. A third Non-Executive Member joined the Departmental
Board in June 2006. With the introduction of enhanced Departmental Boards in 2010, the Department
appointed two additional Non-Executive Members in spring 2011 to bring the total number of Non-
Executive Board Members to five. Guidance about the reimbursement for Non-Executive Members is
available from Cabinet Office and reimbursement ranges from simply reimbursing expenses to significant
payments for discharging substantial roles.

Non-Executive Board Members are not employees of the Department. They are appointed for a fixed term
of three years initially, with the possibility of extension. They are appointed primarily to attend and
conftribute to DB meetings, which involve an estimated time commitment of eleven three-hour meetings,
and occasional overnight events per year. One of the Non-Executive Members chairs the Department's
Audit Committee (4-5 meetings per year). The lead Non-Executive Board Member chairs the Department's
Mominations and Governance Committee, which has an additional Non-Executive Member. The Non-
Executive Members also make a significant contribution to Departmental business by working through
Committees and with senior officials..

Either party may terminate the contract for any reason before the expiry of the fixed period by giving one
month's notice in writing. There is no provision for compensation for early termination.

Mike Wheeler was entitled to charge a fee of £2,000 per day, with payments of £7,000 made in 2011-12
for the period to 30 June 2011. This amount excludes VAT. Mike was appointed on a 3 year fixed term
contract from 1 July 2011 on an annual fee of £20,000 (£15,000 as a Board member and £5,000 as Chair
of the Audit and Risk Committee) which is paid monthly in arrears. Catherine Bell was appointed on a 3
year fixed-term contract from 1st January 2011 on an annual fee of £15,000 which is paid monthly in
arrears. David Heymann was appointed on a fixed-term contract for the period January 2011 to April 2012
and was reimbursed for his expenses only. No claims have been made for 2011-12. Peter Sands and
Chris Pilling were both appointed on 3 year contract; Peter Sands from 1 May 2011 and Chris Pilling from 1
fﬁﬂpﬁf 2011. Both waived their fees and are reimbursed for their expenses only. No claims have been made
r2011-12.

47. Non Executive Directors fees are not pensionable.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN ACCOUNTING OFFICERS IN THE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, ITS AGENCIES AND THE NHS

1.

AND THE NHS |

This Note sets out the nature of the relationship between Accounting Officers in the Depariment of
Health, its Arms Length Bodies, the NHS and Foundation Trusts. It refers to Managing Public Money

published by HM Treasury.

As Principal Accounting Officer, the Permanent Secretary of the Department of Health is accountable for
the Department's administration, some central health and miscellaneous health services, those
elements of social services expenditure within the Department's responsibilities, Welfare Foods,
European Economic Area (EEA) medical costs and resources voted for the Office of the Independent
Regulator for NHS Foundation Trusts. As Head of the Department, she takes responsibility for the
consolidation of the Department's Accounts and for the voted cash requirement, and has the
Department-wide responsibility for the good management of the Department as a whole, including a
high standard of financial management. This includes the parts of the Department managing the NHS
(as distinct from the NHS itself) and the Depariment’s Agencies, since they are parts of the Department
operating in support of the Secretary of State. The Principal Accounting Officer is responsible for
carrying out the duties set out in Chapter 3 of Managing Public Money.

As an Additional Accounting Officer the Chief Executive of the NHS is directly responsible to the
Secretary of State for the management of the NHS. He is accountable for the Department's own
programme expenditure on the NHS and for overseeing the spending of all NHS bodies that are subject
to direction by DH (that is, Primary Care Trusts, Strategic Health Authorities, Special Health Authorities
and NHS Trusts) He is responsible for carrying out the duties set out in Chapter 3 of Managing Public
Money.

Chief Executives of NHS Foundation Trusts are designated by legislation as Accounting Officers, and
are accountable for the expenditure relating to those bodies and for safeguarding public funds and the
organisations’ assets. Their responsibilities are set out in the NHS Foundation Trusts Accounting Officer
Memorandum, based on Managing Public Money. NHS Foundation Trusts are financially independent
organisations and are not directly accountable to the Department. NHS Foundation Trusts are held to
account by their governors, who represent their membership and communities they service, and they
apply the national standards and legal framework for the NHS. Each NHS Foundation Trust lays their
annual report and accounts before Parliament.

The Chief Executive of the Medicines & Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency and NHS Blood &
Transplant are accountable for the expenditure relating to these Trading Funds. They are responsible
for carrying out the duties set out in Chapter 3 of Managing Public Money in respect of the Agency.
Their accountability are subject to the Permanent Secretary’s overall responsibility for the organisation
and management of the Department of Health.

Chief Executives of NHS Trusts, Primary Care Trusts and Strategic Health Authorities are designated as
Accountable Officers and Chief Executives of Special Health Autharities are designated as Accounting
Officers, who are accountable to Parliament through the NHS Chief Executive for the efficient, effective
and proper use of all the resources in their charge. The Chief Executives of Special Health Authorities
are accountable for the expenditure relating to those bodies. They are responsible for carrying out the
duties set out in Managing Public Money in respect of those Authorities. Their accountability is subject to
the Permanent Secretary's overall responsibility for the organisation and management of the
Department of Health,

The Chief Executive of the NHS Business Services Authority is also the Accounting Officer for the NHS
Pension Scheme. He is responsible for carrying out the duties set out in Chapter 3 of Managing Public
Money in relation to the operation of the NHS Pension Scheme. In respect of the administrative
expenditure of the Authority, the Chief Executive’'s responsibilities are set out in the Authonity's
Framework Document and his letter of designation as Authority Accounting Officer.
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Scope of Responsibility

1. As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal contrel that supports
the achievement of the Department of Health's policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public
funds and departmental assets for which | am personally responsible, in accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public Money. | am supported in exercising this responsibility
by the Chief Executive of the NHS in his capacity as Additional Accounting Officer for the resources voted
by Parliament for the NHS.

2. This Statement is given in respect of the Resource Account for the Department of Health, which
consolidates the financial information of organisations within the Department’s Resource Accounting
Boundary, as set out in paragraphs 2.1 and 2.6 of this End of Year Report. As paragraph 2.6 states, the
formal relationships between organisations within the Resource Accounting Boundary and the Department
are varied, encompassing Executive Non Deparimental Public Bodies, an Executive Agency, Strategic
Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts. The nature of control in
the Department of Health group is consequently substantially different from the concept of a group in the
commercial sector. Further detail on these relationships is set out in the statement of the principal
Accounting Officer's responsibilities in this Report.

3. The following sections cover the core Department, its Arms Length Bodies (ALBs), and the NHS (Strategic
Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts and NHS Trusts). The Accounting and Accountable Officers for all
of these organisations are appointed by either myself or Sir David Nicholson as Accounting Officer for the
NHS. This Statement also has a section covering NHS Foundation Trusts, whose Accounting Officers are
directly accountable to Parliament.

4. |am responsible for ensuring that there is a high standard of financial management in the Department as a
whole. Therefore, | have a duty to be satisfied that ALBs sponsored by DH and those NHS organisations
for which | am accountable, have in place adequate financial systems and procedures to promote the
efficient and economical conduct of their business and to safeguard financial propriety and regularity. | am
also accountable for ensuring that administration revenue expenditure is contained within the Department's
administration limit and across the core Department, NHS commissioners and ALBs.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

5. The detailed provisions of the Corporale Governance Code published by HM Treasury and the Cabinet
Office relate to Ministerial departments, of which the Department of Health is one. This Governance
Statement demonstrates DH's compliance with the principles set out in the Code.

Local accountability frameworks

6. The report from Sir Bob Kerslake to the Cabinet Secretary on Accountability: Adapting to decentralisation,
published in September 2011, proposed that in future departmental accounting officers should publish
accountability system statements explaining how they achieve accountability for the grants they distribute
to local bodies. This allows Accounting Officers to demonstrate that, as departmental responsibilities are
devolved, the appropriate accountability mechanisms are still in place. HM Treasury included this
requirement in guidance to accounting officers on Governance Statements on 17 February 2012
(DAO(GEN)02/12).

7. The Department of Health published on its website an Accounting Officer (AQ) System Statement in
January 2012, setting out my responsibilities for the three devolved service sectors that DH oversees in
England: the NHS, public health and adult social care. These sectors are funded and structured differently,
and have different mechanisms for accountability. The Government's reforms to the NHS and public health
will significantly affect the way accountability works, and the Statement was updated and republished on
the DH website in August 2012 in the light of amendments to the Health and Social Care Bill before it was
enacted as the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The AO System Statement sets out the accountability
arrangements in place in 2011-12 and 2012-13, but it focuses particularly on the changes to arrangements
after April 2013, when the majority of the Government's reforms are expected to be in place.

84



Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

In terms of the allocation of funds, the Department of Health used a national weighted capitation formula to
determine the recurrent allocation of resources to PCTs in 2011-12. The objectives of the formula were to
support equal access for equal need and to contribute to the reduction in avoidable health inequalities. An
independent committee, the Advisory Committee on Resource Allocation (ACRA) oversaw the development
of the formula used to determine the allocation of resources to PCTs to ensure equity in resource
allocation. ACRA's current membership comprises individuals with a wide range of relevant experience and
expertise from within and outside the NHS including NHS managers, academics, GPs and representatives
from other Government departments.

For the recurrent revenue allocations for 2011-12, the Department was clear about the priorities for the
NHS through the Operating Framework. It was then for individual PCTs to decide how their resources were
invested, to meet the healthcare needs of their local populations, taking account of local and national
priorities.

NHS trusts, Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) and Strategic Health Authorities (SHAs) are required to submit an
audited annual Governance Statement to the Department which gives a sense of how successfully the
NHS organisation has coped with the challenges it has faced and is facing and of how vulnerable the
organisation's performance is or might be. The Governance Statement constitutes a position statement and
provides evidence on governance, risk management and control in order to provide a coherent and
consistent reporting mechanism. It is a national exercise in the NHS in which SHA, PCT and NHS trust
accountable officers give assurance to the NHS Chief Executive about the stewardship of their
organisations.

A quarterly report, The Quarter, is also published which includes a summary of the overall NHS financial
forecast for each NHS trust, PCT and SHA.

The DH sets out its expectations for the NHS in the annual NHS Operating Framework. The NHS submits
plans to deliver the commitments in the Operating Framework and then data is collected in order to monitor
the delivery of these plans.

Strategic Health Authorities (SHAs) hold NHS Trusts to account for delivering Operating Framework
requirements through regular performance monitoring. The DH in turn oversees SHAs; formal performance
management discussions are undertaken at regular intervals supported by data monitoring and
intelligence from engagement with professional bodies and regulators, which feed into six monthly and
annual reviews with SHA Chief Executives.

In order to provide the Permanent Secretary and the Chief Executive of the NHS with the necessary level of
assurance on the use of money by these NHS organisations, regular monitoring by the Department and
reporting takes place.

The Department performs a monthly monitoring exercise which includes the collection of financial
monitoring returns through SHAs at organisational level, showing actual expenditure against plan. In
addition to performance monitoring, financial reporting and management, the financial returns are also
used for policy decision-making purposes.

An overall NHS finance report is presented to the NHS Operations Executive as part of the overall
performance reporting which includes activity reports and updates on Quality, Improvement, Productivity
and Prevention. In addition, on a monthly basis, reports received by the Departmental Board include
reports on the in-year performance of the NHS, spanning the areas of finance, quality, access, workforce
and efficiency. These reports also include progress on the reform agenda.

Where individual organisations are failing to meet key performance standards, DH expects SHAs (through
Primary Care Trust clusters) to remain accountable by holding the failing organisation to account—
producing plans for improvement and recovery.

In relation to grant funding, the Department has a variety of measures in place to ensure that all grants
awarded constitute value for money. Each type of grant has its own measures available. For example, the
system covering grants issued to voluntary organisations under Section 64 of the Health Services and
Public Health Act 1968, requires that prior to their award they are reviewed to ensure they offer value for
money, and fit with the Departments’ Strategic Objectives and expectations that are set out clearly when
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the grant is awarded. An “end of grant” monitoring report is compiled and reviewed, in order to ensure the
outcomes are satisfactory. Like all financial management systems, its operation and application are
regularly reviewed and the system has been tightened where necessary to ensure coverage of these high
standards.

19. The adult social care outcomes framework, together with related local authority data collections, is the key
mechanism for measuring the outcomes and experience of people who use services as well as carers, and
demonstrating what local authorities have achieved. The publication of this information allows for
assessments of the performance of individual local authorities, encourages sector-led improvement
initiatives, and supports greater local accountability.

20. The Department is working in partnership with a range of sector-led initiatives to improve performance.
These include the Think Local, Act Personal partnership (focussing on the development of personalised
and community-based care and support), the Towards Excelfence in Adulf Social Care programme
(focussing on the performance of local authorities) and the Local Government Association's Adult Social
Care Efficiency Programme (focussing on achieving value for money in care and support).

21. In terms of specific grants to local authorities, the amount allocated is relatively small. The main specific
grant is the Learning Disability and Health Reform Grant, of around £1.3 billion in 2011-12. This is not ring-
fenced, though specific guidance is attached on the intended focus of the funds. The Department accounts
for the outcomes achieved through this grant as part of its overall approach to monitoring performance in
adult social care.

The Department’s system of internal control

22. The system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the Department of Health
and the wider DH Group to ensure that the Group delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is designed to
identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

23. The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather than eliminating all
risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control has been in place in the Department for the year ended 31 March 2012 and up to the date
of approval of the annual report and consolidated accounts, and accords with Treasury guidance.

24. As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control
in the Department. Directors-General have responsibility for ensuring that their directorates are managed
on the basis of demanstrable and evidenced compliance with an internal control framework, which contains
five core assurance standards covering: planning and delivery, resource management, policy development,
risk management and governance of arms length bodies.

25. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal
auditors and the comments made by the external auditors (the National Audit Office) in their management
letter and other reports, including Value for Money reviews. Recommendations are implemented on a
timely basis.

26. | have been advised, in my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, by the
Department's Audit and Risk Committee. The priorities for 2012-13, in terms of risk management, will
continue to be the delivery of the Departmental Business Plan, particularly the commitments in the
Structural Reform Plan and the transition.

The DH Group governance framework

27. In line with central guidance on corporate governance, the Department has constituted an enhanced
Departmental Board chaired by the Secretary of State including non-executives from outside govemnment.
This brings together Ministerial and civil service leadership. In compliance with the Code of Practice on
Corporate Governance, the Board's terms of reference will be used as the basis for development of a
board operating framework in 2012-13. The arrangements for management and governance of the
Department, including the board and committee structure which underpins the Departmental Board, are set
out in detail in section 4 of this Annual Report and Accounts.
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8. The Secretary of State chaired four meetings of the main Board in 2011-12, and members met on a further

30.

.

12,

33

five occasions during the year to discuss issues of strategic importance. The following Board members
attended main Board meelings: Rt Hon Andrew Lansley CBE MP (Secretary of State for Health), myself
{Una O'Brien CB (Permanent Secretary)), Richard Douglas CB (Director General for Policy, Strategy and
Finance), David Behan CBE (Director General for Social Care, Local Government and Care Partnerships),
Peter Sands (Lead Non-Executive Member), Dr Catherine Bell (Non-Executive Member), Mike Wheeler
(Mon-Executive Member) and Professor David Heymann (Non-Executive Member).

. The remaining Board members attended three out of the four main Board meetings: Rt Hon Simon Burns

MP (Minister of State for Health), Paul Burstow MP (Minister of State for Care Services), Anne Milton MP
(Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Public Health), Earl Howe (Parliamentary Under Secretary of
Stale for Quality (Lords)), Sir David Nicholson KCB CBE (NHS Chief Executive), Dame Sally Davies DBE
(Chief Medical Officer) and Chris Pilling (Mon-Executive Member).

Elsewhere in this Annual Report, the lead Non-Executive Director of the Departmental Board, Peter Sands,
details the areas to which the Board devoted particular attention; these included:

+ Ensuring the development of effective relationships between the Department and the key ALBs
in the transformed health system:;

+ Overseeing the transition programme and its associated risks;

+ Dverseeing the Department's Capability Review, including challenging and influencing the
Department's scores and achion plan,

+ Enhancing communication across the Department and the ALBs to ensure common purpose
and understanding across the system as a whole, and

+» Reinforcing financial management and performance management, particularly developing a
new and clearer format for the monthly performance report.

The Board was impressed by the wide range of performance and management information it received over
the year. However, Board members on occasion found it difficult to engage fully with the information due to
the amount and format of information supplied. As a result, the Department is developing a performance
scorecard to summarise this information, whilst at the same time allowing members to drill down in greater
depth where required. The Board will continue to encourage the Department to refine the quality and clarity
of performance metrics.

Peter Sands conducted a Board Effectiveness Evaluation in accordance with Cabinet Office requirements.
He found that the Department had demonstrated commendable resilience and flexibility over the year,
simultaneously confronting a vast range of issues from ensuring ongoing delivery of quality health SErVICES,
to driving the productivity programme and managing the transformation of the overall health system. The
avaluation exercise found that the Board was making good progress in its core objective of improving the
governance of the Department, and identified some areas for improvement. Some of these concerned the
Board's need to consider the Department’s changing role within the wider healthcare system.

Others related to ensuring that the Board spends sufficient time on the big strategic issues affecting the
longer term shape and performance of the health and social care system, and enhancing the Board's ability
to identify and focus on the most critical risks.

Risk management

4.

Within the Department, | operate an accountability process based around compliance with five core
assurance standards, including one covering risk management. The risk management standard,
communicated to Director-Generals (DGs) in their budget accountability letters in April 2011, sets out the
DGs' accountabilities for identifying, assessing, communicating, escalating and managing risk in their
directorates. DGs are required to set out in directorate risk registers the key risks to successful delivery of
their business plans. Senior Responsible Owners are accountable for the effective management and
escalation of risks within their programmes.
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The most significant risks are escalated by DGs and SROs to the strategic risk register, which is used by
the Departmental Board to maintain an overview of high-level strategic risks. Each risk on the strategic
register has a Board level owner. During 2011-12, the Board has challenged risk ratings, suggested new
nisks and commissioned additional mitigation activity where appropriate.

The Audit and Risk Committee has been involved in the way in which the Department has managed risk.
During the year, the Committee considered and challenged the Department's strategic risk register at each
of its regular meetings. It also supported the Board in ensuring there is an effective system in place for
control, governance and risk management.

Risk management is a key component of the governance framework across the Department's ALBs and
NHS organisations. The systems in place are covered at paragraphs 61-62 and 13-16 of this Statement.

Mike Wheeler, as Chair of the Department’s Audit and Risk Committee, during the year took steps to
strengthen the relationship with the Chairs of the Audit and Risk Committees of the Department’s ALBs.

Transition — planning and implementations of reforms across the NHS

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

Since 2010, the Department has been taking forward a major programme of change, involving the planning
and implementation of reforms across the NHS, the Department of Health and the public health sector
more generally. As noted last year, the reforms represent one of the biggest change programmes the
Department has undertaken and, as with any such change programme, the delivery and transition will
involve significant risk. The risks range across a variety of areas such as system design, finance, staffing
and accountability, in addition to the inherent risks around ensuring that business as usual and levels of
performance are maintained during the period of transition.

The programme of change is being run as an integrated programme between the Department and the
NHS. Sir David Nicholson and | are the Board sponsors, and Karen Wheeler, Director-General of Group
Operations and Assurance, is the programme's Senior Responsible Owner. The programme is managed
through the Department's Executive Board (EB), which provides oversight of the design, strategic
approach, planning and implementation of the new direction of the health and care system. The EB also
serves to ensure that the transition is co-ordinated between NHS, DH, ALBs and local government, and
provides a single point for joint decision making for all aspects of transition which require senior level
decisions.

Below the Executive Board, the programme is governed primarily via three prografnm&wide boards:
+ The DH, Social Care and Public Health Transition Board;

+ The NHS Future Systems Executive; and

« The Cross Cutting Functions Board

From October 2012, this governance structure will be adapted to take account of the reality that a number
of the new bodies will be able to start activity on aspects of their responsibilities.

There are a number of individual workstreams, and each reports into one of the three Boards. Each
workstream's Senior Responsible Owner is responsible for determining, establishing, recording and
managing risks and issues within that workstream, and for providing regular risk updates to the central
Transition Integrated Programme Office (IPO), as part of an established reporting process. The information
from these reports, including that on risks, is collated and submitted to the relevant Board or Committee.

To support the senior Boards in their responsibility for co-ordinating risks and issues, the Integrated
Programme Office has established and maintains a programme-wide transition risk register. This
incorporates key risks from across the programme and is also reviewed and updated regularly. Key risks
are included in the separate Strategic Risk Register.
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45. As reported last year, the Transition Programme has been subject to a series of reviews by the Cabingt
Office’s Major Projects Authority. These include reviews of the key workstreams within the programme,
and a wider Major Projects Review Group (MPRG) review of the programme as a whole. The initial MPRG
review was undertaken in early 2012 and the Department accepted its recommendations.

46. The Department has accepted all of the recommendations arising from the review and has put actions in
place to address these. It is providing regular updates to the Major Projects Authority on progress against
the recommendations and a follow up review has been arranged for early September. The DH Board is
also kept fully informed.

Risk register

47. The Transition Programme's Risk Register was subject to a request made under the Freedom of
Information (FOI) Act in November 2010 from the then Shadow Health Secretary, John Healey MP. The
Department’s Strategic Risk Register was then subject to an FOI request in February 2011, from Nicholas
Cecil, a journalist.

48. The Department withheld both risk registers under Section 35 of the FOI Act, on the grounds that they wers
part of ongoing policy development and their release would undermine the health reform programme’s
progress. Both cases were referred to the Information Commissioner, who ruled that the registers should
be released, after which the Department appealed to the Information Tribunal, with the hearing held in
March 2012. Lord O'Donnell, the former Cabinet Secretary, and | gave evidence.

49. The Tribunal upheld the decision by the Department to withhold the Strategic Risk Register but ordered the
release of the Transition Risk Register, ruling that the public interest in the health reforms outweighed the
arguments for exemption. Having referred the matter to Cabinet for their view, the Secretary of State for
Health on 8 May announced the Cabinet’s support for his decision to veto the release of the Transition Risk
Register. In doing so, however, the Department acknowledged the importance of being more open about
transition programme risks and their management and published a document that described and explained
the areas of risk in the withheld risk register, and the mitigating actions in respect of those areas.

£0. It also published a "Scheme for Publication”, setting out key dates by which transition programme material
would be reviewed in order to identify what material could then be released. Both these documents, along
with the Secretary of State's Statement of Reasons for exercising the veto, and the Tribunal witness
statements from both Lord O'Donnell and | are available on the DH website.

Information Risk

51. Regarding information risk, the Department ensured that appropriate policies and guidance were in place to
assure compliance with Cabinet Office mandates on electronic and physical data security. DH has
continued work to raise the level of compliance with the Cabinet Office Information Assurance Maturity
Model, and is on course to achieve 100% compliance in 2012. In procuring a new ICT services contract the
Department has taken the opportunity to update its requirements for information security, specifying ICT
controls that will provide improved security, proportionate to the information risks we face while supporting
our ability to conduct our business efficiently.

52. Within the core Department, there were five recorded instances of personal data loss or mis-management
during 2011-12. Two of these incidents were reported to the Information Cemmissioner. one put patient
data at risk as it involved 1010 patient experience survey forms being sent to incorrect addresses, with the
risk of exposing the patients’ diagnoses to a third party; the other compromised NHS employee data, as it
involved data on 1822 specialist staff being inadvertently included in a report sent to a reference group.
Appropriate corrective action was undertaken in all five instances, with working processes being reviewed
and updated where necessary.

53. Information security and data loss issues in the Department's ALBs, and in NHS bodies and NHS
Foundation Trusts, are disclosed in the governance statements in their accounts.

Role of Internal Audit
54. The Department's Internal Audit Service (IAS) plays a crucial role in the review of the effectiveness of risk
management, controls and governance by:
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« focusing audit activity on the key business risks;
¢ being available to guide managers and staff through improvements in internal controls;

« auditing the application of risk management and control as part of Internal Audit reviews of key
systems and processes, and

= providing advice to management on internal control implications of proposed and emerging changes.

55. The Department's Internal Auditors operate in accordance with Government Internal Audit Standards and
to an Internal Audit Plan approved by the Audit and Risk Committee. Internal Audit updates the plan to
refiect changes in risk profile and the revised plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit and Risk
Committee. The Internal Audit Service submits regular reports on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Department's systems of internal control and the management of key business risks, together with
recommendations for improvement. These recommendations have been accepted by management
including an agreed timetable for implementation. The status of Internal Audit recommendations, and the
collection of evidence to verify their implementation, are reported to the Audit and Risk Committes.

Internal Audit Opinion

56. Following completion of the planned audit work for 2011-12 for the Department, the Head of Internal Audit
issued an independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Department's
system of risk management, governance and internal control. She concluded that:

‘| can give reasonable assurance to the Accounting Officer that the Department of Health has had
adequate and effective systems of control, governance and risk management in place for the reporting year
2011-12",

57. In addition, | also asked the Head of Internal Audit to conduct a review of the governance, risk
management and financial management of each Directorate. In compiling this statement, | have considered
the outcomes of these formal internal audit reports and the overarching management note drawing together
the results.

Governance and Control in the Core Department of Health

58. A summary report of the governance and control system in the core Department of Health has been drawn
up by my Governance Team. The report covered key issues for each Directorate, and was supported by
financial information and material supplied by the Internal Audit Service.

59. On the basis of the summary report, | have reviewed the end of year assurance statements provided to me
by all Director Generals and Managing Directors, which recorded the position in their business groups over
the year. These confirmed that the Department has adequate and effective systems of control in place, and
that where issues have arisen during the year assurance arrangements have been in place to pick up and
address any weaknesses.

Compliance with Equality & Human rights legislation

60. As part of consolidated action to strengthen compliance, the Department entered into a voluntary
Framework Agreement with the Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) for the period September
2010 to March 2012. We have provided EHRC with quarterly progress reports and published these,
alongside other equality information, on 31 January 2012. All DGs were committed to action to ensure
equality was integral to key planning and reform activities and this was overseen by a DG level Equality
and Human Rights Assurance Group. Following delivery of the EHRC Framework Agreement, we have set
new Departmental Equality Objectives, aligned to the DH business plan, and will report progress annually.

Governance and Control in the DH's Arms Length Bodies

61. The Department sponsored twenty Arms Length Bodies in 2011-12. Through its sponsorship teams, the
Department engages directly with each body proportionate to the level of risk the body poses to the
Department. ALB risks can either be escalated to the Department, through the quarterly ALB accountability

reviqw meetings undertaken by the sponsors, or highlighted to the Department through the other formal
and informal interactions that the sponsors maintain with ALBs.

62. Going fur_ward. the Department is strengthening its sponsarship responsibilities and putting in place more
systematic processes to assure the Department that ALBs are delivering against strategic objectives and
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outcomes and that risks to the DH and ALBs are understood, managed effectively and escalated as
appropriate. To achieve this, a Sponsorship Support Unit has been established in the new Group
Operations and Assurance Directorate under the new Director of Assurance.

{63. Each body compiled a Governance Statement for its Accounts, and these have been reviewed on my
behalf. There were no significant control issues in ALBs which warranted escalation for disclosure in this
Statement.

64. With regard to the Care Quality Commission (CQC), on the 31st May 2011, BBC's Panorama programme
presented footage of abuse at the Winterbourne View private hospital. Whistleblowers had previously
alerted the CQC to abuse at the home, but the Commission had not taken appropriate regulatory action.
The CQC has subsequently strengthened its arrangements for dealing with whistleblowing. During the
remainder of the year, the Care Quality Commission was subject to significant external scrutiny, and
reports on the CQC's operations have been published by the Health Select Committee, the National Audit
Office, the Public Accounts Committee and the Department of Health.

65. The Department stepped in and undertook a Performance and Capability Review of the CQC, which
concluded in February 2012. The review noted that the CQC had made significant improvements in the
previous nine months, increasing staffing and focussing more on its core duties to register and inspect
healthcare and social care providers. However, it identified that a number of improvements were still
needed. The recommendations from the Capability Review cover a range of areas including strategy.
finance, accountability and governance, communications and operational development. Based on these
recommendations, and the lessons from other external scrutiny, the Department and the CQC now have
firm action plans to drive improvements and progress is subject to monitoring by Ministers.

66. After almost four years as Chief Executive, Cynthia Bower decided to step down in February 2012, She led
the organisation from the merging of three existing regulators, and worked to establish a single system of
regulation for over 40,000 provider locations across health and social care. David Behan was appointed as
new Chief Executive in June 2012 He will continue to implement improvements including, with the Chair,
the development of the CQC's Board to enable more robust oversight, a clearer focus on strategic priorities
and better co-ordinated accountability to the Senior Departmental Sponsor at the Department and to
Parliament.

Prescription Charge Fraud

67. For several years, the Department's annual statement has noted the position on prescription fraud. The
former account in which these charges were recorded was qualified for a number of years on the grounds
of regularity, because of estimated loss of revenue due to patients fraudulently claiming entitlement to free
prescriptions. The Audit & Risk Committee has dedicated time to examining the position for the year 2011-
12. There has been no estimation exercise made; however, we believe two factors will have reduced the
fraud rate. Firstly, exemption from prescription charges was widened in 2008 to include cancer patients.
Secondly, the underlying unemployment rate (and associated claimant count) has risen significantly since
2007/8. which means that more people would gqualify for exemption from health charges through the
benefits system.

68. From April 2013, the NHS Commissioning Board will be responsible for commissioning of primary care
services and will be accountable for the payments made to community pharmacists am_:l d!apensmg .
doctors, including the amounts netted off for prescription charges. The NHS Gummigsmnlng Board will be
responsible for deciding in operational terms the discharge of these functions, and will consider options for
how best to build on the current systems used by PCTs to detect and deter prescription charge fraud. The
Board will also be responsible for terms and conditions of service for pharmacists, including the continuing
requirements for point of dispensing checks.

Governance and Control in the NHS

69. The Boards and Accountable Officers of the individual NHS Bodies covered by the Report and Accounts
are responsible for their own systems of internal control and governance.

70. For NHS Trusts, PCTs and SHAs | gain assurance through the performance management line through the
NHS Chief Executive. The SHAs have reviewed the Governance Statements of all NHS Trusts and PCTs
prepared by their Accountable Officers together with relevant internal audit reports. Similarly, the
Department has reviewed the Governance Statements prepared by the SHAs. These show that an
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adequate system of internal control was in place and there were no significant control issues that would be
material to this set of Report and Accounts.

Overall, the NHS operated within the expenditure controls set by HMT and voted by Parliament. SHAs,
PCTs and NHS Trusts delivered a combined surplus of £1,632m and Foundation Trusts a surplus of
£437m. The aggregate surplus delivered in 2011-12 by SHAs and PCTs of £1.587 billion will be carried

forward to 2012-13.

Since the end of the financial year ,one NHS Trust (South London Healthcare) has been placed into the
unsustainable provider regime with the appointment on 12th July 2012 by the Secretary of State of a Trust
Special Administrator. The aim of the unsustainable provider regime is to establish how best to deliver high
quality services for patients, within an affordable financial envelope for taxpayers. Despite some recent
improvements in the quality of services, there had been a long-standing history of underperformance at the
Trust both in service quality and financial management. The Trust Special Administrator is working to
develop a solution that will bring about the transformational level of change needed to ensure clinically and
financially viable services are secured for the people of south east London.

The Board of an NHS organisation must be assured of the management of current risks, supported by a
strong risk management culture embedded throughout the organisation. The Department operates a
“grandparent” system for the NHS Trusts and PCTs. Any major risks are initially reported to their respective
Strategic Health Authorities (SHAs). Where the risk is likely to be of significant impact, the risk would then
be repeorted to the Department by the SHA.

Governance and Control in NHS Foundation Trusts

74,

75.

76

A different system operates for Foundation Trusts under primary legislation. Monitor, the Independent
Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (FTs), is responsible for authorising, monitoring and regulating NHS
Foundation Trusts. The National Health Service Act 2006 requires Monitor to prepare an overall surmmary
of the accounts of FTs and lay this before Parliament. The NHS Foundation Trust Consolidated Accounts
2011-12 were laid before Parliament by Monitor on 12th July 2012, and contain an Annual Governance
Statement for the FT sector.

Neither the Department of Health nor Monitor is accountable for the internal control and systems of FTs,
this is the responsibility of each FT's board. The Governance Statement in the FT Consolidated Accounts
summarises the internal control issues in the FT sector, and provides details of internal control weaknesses
disclosed by FTs in their individual governance statements, together with the actions being taken to
address them. There were no significant control issues that would be material to this set of Annual Report.

There are no significant internal control issues set out in Monitor's Annual Governance Statement for the
FT sector. | am therefore satisfied that | have fulfilled my duty as Accounting Officer to ensure that all
expenditure by DH and NHS bodies (including FTs) is contained within the Department's expenditure limits.

Mid-Staffordshire Foundation NHS Trust

7.

78.

On Sth June 2010, the Secretary of State announced a full public Inquiry into the role of the commissioning,
supervisory and regulatory bodies in the monitoring of Mid Staffordshire Foundation NHS Trust from 2005
to 2009. The Inquiry, led by Robert Francis QC, builds on the work of his previous independent Inquiry,
which considered individual cases of patient care and reported in February 2010.

Robert Francis QC has indicated publically that he plans to deliver his final report to the Secretary of State
in early January 2013. The report will be laid before Parliament in due course and, once the
recommendations have been considered with care, a full Government response will be produced.

Delayed Publication of these Accounts

79.

Alengside a small number of other Departments, the Department did not meet the timetable set by HM
Treasury to publish its Annual Report and Accounts before Parliament rose for the summer recess. This is
the second year that the Department has not met the timetable. Although the Department faces the most
complex consolidation in government, it is committed to meeting the pre-recess timetable.
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80. Following the delay in 2010-11, the Department completed a lessons learnt review with the NAO overseen

81.

82.

by the Chair of its Audit and Risk Committee. As a result of this, the Department increased the resources
committed and made a number of process changes. For 2011-12, the Department and the NAO
recognised from the outset that the timetable was very challenging and allowed little room for slippage. The
task was significant this year, because for the first time, the Department had to achieve reconciliation
between all provider and commissioner accounts. This was consequent upon the Constitutional Reform
and Governance Act 2010. In the event, the Department encountered delays in two areas. First, there were
issues with the configuration of the IT system used for consolidation. Secondly, following the extension of
the boundary to include Foundation Trusts more difficulties than anticipated were encountered in agreeing
debtors and creditors between organisations within the Group. The Department acknowledges that it
under-estimated the scale of the changes that were needed to guarantee delivery by the summer recess
2012.

Planning for the financial year 2012-13 has already started. The Department is working with the NAQ on
the action needed to deliver the Report and Accounts, recognising that the structural changes being made
to the NHS (the abolition of SHAs and PCTs) will further add to the complexity of the task.

Conclusion

Prior to signing this Governance Statement, the Department's Audit and Risk Committee has
recommended that | submit this Governance Statement.

Una O'Brien
Permanent Secretary and Principal Accounting Officer
9 October 2012
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THE CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO
THE HOUSE OF COMMONS

| certify that | have audited the financial statements of the Department of Health and of its Departmental Group
for the year ended 31 March 2012 under the Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000. The Department
consists of the core Department and its agencies. The Departmental Group consists of the Department and the
bodies designated for inclusion under the Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000 (Estimates and
Accounts) Order 2011. The financial statements comprise: the Department's and Departmental Group's
Statements of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, Financial Position, Cash Flows, Changes in Taxpayers' Equity:
and Ithe related notes. | have also audited the Statement of Parliamentary Supply and the related notes. These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them. | have also audited
the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer's Responsibilities. the Accounting Officer is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. My responsibility is to audit, certify and report on the financial statements in accordance with the
Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000. | conducted my audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Department's and the Departmental Group's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Accounting Officer; and the
overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition | read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If |
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the implications for my
cerificate,

| am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Statement of Parliamentary
Supply properly presents the outturn against voted Parliamentary control totals and that those totals have not
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Opinion on regularity
In my opinion, in all material respects:

= the Statement of Parliamentary Supply properly presents the outturn against voted Parliamentary
control totals for the year ended 31 March 2012 and shows that those totals have not been exceeded:

and

* the expenditure and income recorded in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions recorded in the financial statements conform to
the authorities which govern them.

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:
= the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Department's and the Departmental
Group's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of the Department's net operating cost and Departmental

Group's net operating cost for the year then ended; and

= the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Government Resources
and Accounts Act 2000 and HM Treasury directions issued thereunder.
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Emphasis of matter: IAS 8 and Comparative Restatement under the Clear Line Of Sight Initiative

=  Without qualifying my opinion, | draw attention to the disclosures in note 1 to the financial statements
regarding the Department's decision when presenting comparative information for the consolidation of
additional entities required by the Clear Line of Sight project (CLOS). The Department applied the
exemption from restatement permitted under International Accounting Standards 8. | have obtained
sufficient and appropriate evidence that the 2011-2012 financial statements are not matenally
misstated as a result of this decision. Further detail is provided within my report.

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion:

* the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with HM
Treasury directions made under the Government Resources and Accounts Act 2000, and

= the information given in the Annual Report and Management Commentary for the financial year for

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which | report by exception
| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if, in my opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for my audit have not been
received from branches not visited by my staff, or

= the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

* | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit: or

= the Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with HM Treasury's guidance.

98




Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12
THE CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO THE HOUSE OF COMMONS

REPORT

| Treasury initiated a Clear Line of Sight project which sought to align the annual financial statements to the
budgets set by Treasury and the revised Parliamentary Supply process. As a result of these changes the
number of bodies which are consolidated into a Department's accounts has increased. These changes were
applicable for the 2011-2012 financial statements.

The Department of Health group financial statements in 2011-2012 consolidates 437 entities. The 2010-2011
group financial statements consolidated 169 entities. This significant change is due to the inclusion of NHS
Trusts and Foundation Trusts. In order to ensure that the prior year figures were comparable the Department
of Health was required to restate the prior year comparative information to include these additional entities.
Treasury guidance stipulated that Department should apply the principles outlined in International Accounting
Standard 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ to the restatement exercise.

The Department of Health has made a significant effort but has been unable to restate the comparative
information and therefore has utilised the exemption included in International Accounting Standard 8, which can
be applied when a robust restatement exercise is considered impracticable. This assessment was based on
an absence of data to support the intra group trading figures for the expanded group in the prior year. | have
considered the use of the exemption and | agree that it would be impractical to produce robust comparative
information because the detailed data required is not available and the time and cost to reproduce this data
would be prohibitive,

As outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Department of Health has opted to include group
comparative information which is presented on a 'best endeavours’ basis as opposed to including the 2010-
2011 audited figures. This was on the basis that the impact of the Clear Line of Sight Initiative had a
fundamental impact on the size and scale of the Department and that the previously audited information was
therefore of no use to the user of the accounts in the context of the current year.

Whilst the comparative information is not robust | have been able to auditit to the extent required to provide an
ungualified audit opinion on the current year financial statements. My audit opinion does not extend lo the
comparative information as this is not required to be presented since the Department has applied the
International Accounting Standard & exemption. My audit opinion on the Department's 2010-2011 group
financial statements. which did not include NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts, was unqualified.

o9






Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12

STATEMENT OF PARLIAMENTARY SUPPLY

‘Statement of Parliamentary Supply

for the year ended 31 March 2012
Summary of Resource and Capital Outturn 2011-12
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3)

From 2011-12, ihe Department implemented the new HM Treasury contrel in respect of reporting its expenddure between
administration and programme components. This control has been applied to the Core Depariment, NHS Commissioners (Strategic
Health Authorities and Primary Care Trusis) and most Arms Length Bodies. With the agreement of HM Treasury, all income and
expendilure within the accounts of NHS Providers (NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) has been classified to programme. The
2010-11 Administration Costs outturn figure has not been restated to reflact this wider interpretation of Administration costs adopted in
2011-12, rather it continues to reflect the Administration cosls regime in place at the time. As agreed with HM Treasury and the
Financial Reporting Advisory Board, it is impracticable, as per the IAS 8 definition, for NHS bodies to restate prior period income and
expendilure figures based on an Adminisiration costs regime that was not in place at the time. HM Treasury guidance relating to the
Department's cwn classification of income and expenditure between administration and programme has also been amended. As
detailed in Mot 1.6, this revised guidance re-categorised a number of Core Depariment administration and programme expenditure
types, with the movemen! predominantly being from programme (o administration. The Deparimen! has applied this revised
methodology from 1 April 2011, thus ensuring a consistent date of application for the revised Adminisiration cosis regime across the
Departmantal Group.

The 2010-11 comparators within the Summary of Resource and Capital Qutturn have been restated lo reflect the new format of the
Estimate. Further information regarding the nature and extent of the restatement can be found in Note 1b Restatement

The 2010-11 nel cash requirement has been resialed (reduced by E735,792,000) as the 2010-11 published accoun included
£7735.792 000 of excess appropfiations-in-aid in respect of Maticnal Insurance Contribution income. From 2011-12, Estimate control
tolals are voled net of income, which means that the concept of excess appropriations-in-aid no longer exisis, and the Department
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| Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure

| for the year ended 31 March 2012

Unaudited
Restated
201112 2010-11
Core  Departmental Core Departmental
Departmaent Group Departrmaent Group
MNaotes £°000 £'000 £'000 £000
Administration Costs:
Staff costs T 264 855 1,887,700 167,572 167 572
Other administration costs 8 195,642 1,872,126 76,480 76,450
Operating incorme 10.1 (12,513) (276,495) {4, 4086) (4,406)
Grant in Aid to NDPBs B 143,689 - - -
Funding to Group Bodees 8 2,828,338 - -
Programme Costs
Staff Costs T 1,482 44 402,120 182 108 48 698 102
Programme Cosis 9 5,669,901 63,661,762 6,155,691 62 876,434
Income 10.2 {1,113,836) (6,046, 266) (1,200,650} (5,608,017)
Grant in Aid to NDPBs g9 98,460 - 313,447 2
Funding to Group Bodies. 2] 94 820,215 - 96,200 452
R p oL oets Sk YRRe Setsiac o 102,896,143 105,500,956 101,890,744 104,207,175
March 2012
Total expenditure 104,022 592 111,823,717 103,085,800 109,819,558
Taotal income {1,126,449) (6,322,761) (1,205,056) (5.612,423)
fhe s peaing Costh fuf the ydr. Snded 33 102,896,143 105500856 101,890,744 104,207,175
March 2012
Other Comprehansive Net Expenditure
MNet (gam)ioss on:
- revaluation of propery, plant and
equipment (6,615) (851,133) (73.858) (8&0,110)
- revaluation of assets held for sale > (1,698) - -
- rewaluation of intangibles (533.888) (533,733) (137.726) (138,018)
- revaluation of investmenis 15,804 15,538 (115,724) {115,997)
- impairmeants and reversats transfemead 1o
revaluation reserve 42 607115 28,634 483,377
- disposal of available for sale financial
assels = 280 = -
- gther reserves : 1,087 (135)
- Actuanal gams/(losses) on defined
benefi pension schemes - 56,734 - (32,216)
- other gains and (losses) . (3.512) - (4,045)
Release of reserves to the CSCNE - 1.224 - B85
Total Other Comprehensive Net Expenditura [524,560) (698,087 (298,674) (656,180)
Total Comprehensive Expenditure for the
year ended 31 March 2012 102,371,583 104,802,869 101,592,070 103,550,995
Footnoles

1) Censolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (CSCNE) information should be disclosed in separale columng which
relate 1 the Core Depariment, the Core Department and its Executive Agencies, and the Deparimental Group as a whole. As the
Department of Health has no Execulive Agencies, all information presented in relation Lo the Core Depariment and its Agencies would
be identical to information presented for the Core Department enly. Conseguently. the CSCME includes two columns only, one relating
to the Core Department, and the other relating to the Departmental Group.

2) The Core Depariment columns have been restaled o include *Funding to Group Bodies™ as an expenditure lem ralher than asa
reserves movement, This significant change follows confimation from HM Treasury that, as a consequence of alignmant, both funding
lo Group Bodies and Grant-in-Aid 1o Mon-Departmental Public Bodies (NDPBs) should be treated consistently.
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4)

5)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE

The 2010-11 eomparatives have been restated to reflact a number of accounting policy changes which have primarily arisen because
of amendments o the FReM driven by the Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation [Constitutional Reform and Governance Act
2010). Further information on the nature and extent of each elemant of the restatement is given in Mole 1b Restalement.

The Department has applied he LAS 8 impraclicability exemption to the elimination of restaled prior period trading transactions and
balances, with all prior period consolidated figures being unaudited as a resull. Whilst the Depariment has made every reasonable
effort to produce accurate, fully comparable prior period information, this may not be the case in respect of consolidated comparative
income, expenditure, payable and receivable figures. Notwithstanding this residual level of imbalance, the closing balances of the
2010-11 primary statements, and therefore the opening balances for 2011-12 are noi missialed, because, for example, an expendilure
imbalance in one direction would be axactly off-set by an income imbalance in the epposite direction. The reasons for applying this
exemption, akong with the methedology used to produce the prior penod comparatives, are disclosed in Mote 1b below.

Included within the Grant i Ald tolal is Revenue of £204_ 709k and Capital of £37 440k,

The notes on pages 111-207 form part of these accounts.
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' Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Unarudioed Ungsasited
Rastatec' Restased™ ™ Restated' 14
Fer Alighswnt shd TCS For Aligremaint For Aligamanl and TCS
i H 1 April 2011 i 1 April 3010
000 1500 000 080
Impact of Transber of
Funcioes (TCE") and
Diparrinil Departmantyl  Othed Opsning Bulidte Deparmmental Core  Departmental
Wotw  Com Department Group Corw Depirtment Group Adpstments’ Giowp|  Dapantment Group
Mon-cament ksl
Property plan] And saudemienl " 1,197 004 AR 258 225 1,207 571 AT 366, 058 6. DEd) AT AT2 2T 1,178 B45 45 214 447
Il Propaiy 1.1 253 [T E] na .87 . 4T 313 a0
Intangile a5ssls 12 1588475 2804 457 1 485,695 1504 852 [ F#y] 1,504 B2 1547 567 1 A5 A2
Firrocasl ausats- irvebtmanis 13 507 1,304,438 25323617 1,040,933 : 10480500 M ERRAM HT3.410
Caher pon-cament Biet 16 13275 B1LHS 120875 E41.75 i B4 T02 153 540 fi70,340
Total mea-curment a5sets L0404 S 02471 51,029,980 [T 1033 3T A016M 48710520
Curmen assets
Angats clidided B4 heid bor 15l 18 BASE 246,000 B84 114882 . 582 12852 WS
ey 14 107 560 04 865 BIATE -k A1 S05.TE1 21563 1006073
Trade sl other recanailied 18 118,141 86,158 100 BES 1,007 057 19,385 108447 164,204 LALT 801
Cafier curtbnl S108% 18 475 1,567 210 184 458 LETE (65 L3 724 967 Taz 4Ty
e financial assets 18 23 453 B4 TEH 188 158 A7 561 - 7581 167.34% 5.0
Cash and cash equivalents 7 530,148 5505188 160055 55 56T 528 5 530, 719 1,337 86 ]
Tetal current kisets 1,210,003 940,202 2,184,183 [F {10, 546) S8 2022948 5,208 428
Teul idsats 30,081,018 B ETEME 441, 145 50,31 145 LR £, 345 B4 28 S SEOOT, 148
Current abilites
Teade sited o' Plryiitied 18 (148, 521) 4,978,137} (196,597 (5,184 DB1) o T (5,274 ATH) (00 A5, (B216.27)
et labltoes 19 {1.578.597) 7,759,509 {2.709,128) 15,143.534) 3143 [BI4TETT)  G2,160.458) 5,291 530
Provisions 0 (234, 316] 29801 (270,595 (3.066.331) (M5  [(0edgeh) (el  [(pSTasan
Tetal crment Hatdities {1,814 [18,037.47T] {3,178, 733) [16.354.126] 51184 (18487639} (2676885} (16087885
Rea-Curmel B354 plubiless nel
curment assatsliabilities
) 28.062.24 AT e 438541 75,788 1 EE 0 26 9T 41,515,480
Won-curnent labil ities
Oves paybies ] 2EIATI) 511,855 A52.718) (BT7 X35 [9.955) [BET AT (15, 331) (36,254
Ptpwitadi 0 [LERE Fr] (18,855, 535) {1.216.010) {16,704 55} 1425 (18, 708,12T) (964 £34) {15.112.516)
PUBL peifriac B bet uh Dukty k<R 2 (L] : (21,68} : (21,558 - [T2.108)
Fruecu ipbiirt 18 55,81 (11,815,236 (TL.9E5) {10,452 578 B0 L0 S7E) 0ET) (3,155 SE5)
Totd nen-curmen| ks bilites [1.758508) 141,10 1,654 17 098,278 BAN TRTTSY)  (1M.07F)  (M.87.880)
Aasati b as liabdited 1. 135.688 LTSN M 16,007 840 [ F] 1T858 15.HAMT 17,801 506
Tarpays’ squity and other
]
Gl kgl 75381 518 3B6 02 25,158 507 BOTATIE 5,360 EOOTAME . 24540TE TEITIE
Flieaboabat® 618 v BLIETT 10223552 4B 311 5756500 (Lol 5,800,345 0 629 L]
(O Beserves - 164,134 - 188, 104 £T8 182376 - 155 k35
Toas! Tuzpavrs’ Eguaty BT ) WEAAN 618N 16,007 040 7,259 15,570,500 2520007 AT.531, 684
Footnoles

i) The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for both 2010 and 2011 has been restated in respect of the following:
1) To reflect the increase in the Depariment’s Resource Accounting Boundary 1o include MHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and ail

Ams Length Bodies.

2) To reflect the change in accounting policy relating to the donated asset and governmen! grant resarnves.

3) To reflect the fact that investment propers are
previously included within Property, Plant and Equipment due fo its immaterial

of investment property has become much mare significant following the extension of the accounting boundary.

4) The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for 2011

now disclosed as a separate category of non-current assets. This calegory was
value, However, this is no longer appropriate, as the value

has also been restated to include the impact of the transter of provider

functions from Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) to NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts of Social Enlerprises under the “Transforming
Community Services” initialive. The impact of these transfers is shown in the column labelled “impact of Transfer of Funclions (TCSY).
The impact will be minimal, however, as the majority of transfers have occurred between bodies within the accounting boundary which
means that the result is eiminated on consolidation.

5) Other opening balances adjusiments, relate \o prior period adjustments made to financial statements al a local level. Furiher
information is available within local financial statements.
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Further information on the nafure and extent of each of these restatement items is provided in Nole 1b Restatement

if) The 2010-11 Core Department Statement of Financial Position has been restated to incorporate the working capital “float” provided 1o
the NHS Business Services Authority in support of their role as single payment agent for all injury benefit payments. The float was omitted
from the Department’'s 2010-11 Annual Report and Accounts in arror.

iii) In order 1o better reflect the true commercial nature of the oulsourced Supply Chain arrangement, the NHS Business Services Authority
(NHS BSA) has revised is accounting trealment in this area, with prior period figures having been restated to reflect this change.
Freviously, the individual components of Supply Chain werking capital, totalling £65.5 million, were repored separately in the Statement of
Financial Position and s associaled noles. This fotal, which reflects the amount which will be due 1o the NHS BSA at the end of the
arrangement on 30 Seplember 2016, is now shown as a Financial Asset in the Departmental Group account,

iv) £4 million of hosled cash used to make payments to pharmaceutical companies has been added 1o the Core Daepartment Statement of
Financial Position via a prier period adjustment. This cash is held and administered by the NHS Business Services Authority on behalf of
the Department and was previously omitted from the Depariment's accounts in arror,

v) The Department has applied the IAS 8 impracticability exemption to the elimination of restated prior period trading transactions and
balances, with all prior period consolidated figures baing unaudited as a result. Whilst the Depariment has made every reasonable affort to
produce accurate, fully comparable prior period information, this may not be the case in respect of consolidated comparative income,
expenditure, payable and receivable figures. Motwithstanding this residual level of imbalance, the closing balance of the 2010-11 primary
stalements, and therefore the opening balances for 2011-12 are not misstated, because, for example, a payables imbalance in one
direction would be exactly off-sel by a receivables imbalance in the opposite direction. The reasons for applying this exemption, along with
the methodology used to produce the prior period comparatives, are disclosed in Note 1b below,

Una O'Brien
Permanent Secretary and Principal Accounting Officer
9 October 2012

The notes on pages 111-207 form part of these accounts.
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‘Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 Maich 2012 Unaudited
g Wiz Ez:*lﬁ
£008 £ 0

Hat cashflow from operating activities
Nt Opavating Cost'™ CSCHE {105, 500,858) {104 207,175}
Adjustmants for non-cash iransactions &b 9,221,700 8,532 240
(IPCreasa ) OecTenss in Iracs and ciher rocevatles 16 (00,312 B30,047
bess mavements if fecevaliles melaling 1o fems ol pASSING through the CSCNE 16 55,670 185,130
(Inrease)deonease in nweniones 14 (28,124) 103316
Increase/{decreass ) in trade and other payabies | 8 583 225 1,872,768
M8 MOvements in payables relating 1o Bems nol passing through the CSCHE L (128.323) (2 089,452)
Ut of pravidions 20 {1,833.785) [1,425,786)
Congumplion of slockpded goods 11.14 0,453 744
Translor of provisions 1o payables 0 (520,344} (B2, 365)

InCro e[ Jacraasd ) s pension dedct provison
Orihaeer cash Bcrsy froum operaling acinibes
Mt cash cutfiow from operating activites (68,200, 465) (58 B4, 520)

Cash flows Trom investing activities

Purchase of propary, plant and equipment 11,19 {3.370,232) (4,127 390
Purchase of inkangitls assels 1219 {483, 225) (441, 542)
Proceseds of disposal of proparty, plant and aguipmaent 300,568 153,506
Procaeds of dsposal of intangibbes 2,778 10,085
Puschass ol e ments 13 (351,578) [E7.733)
Desposal of invesiments 13.18 B, 204 [37.493)
Loans 1o olher bodes

e investing casfilows

Mt cash outflow from Investing activities {3,884 434) {4,530 887)

Cash Nows from GRencing activities

From the Contoldaled Fund {Supply) - Oumen yoar 05,885,270 B 4100, DK
Advances from the Conlingencied Fund

Fepaymenis o the Conbingendees Fund

Capital sbemant of payments in resped] of finance kases and on-50FF PFI contracts [363.563) (209 527)

Financing from ihe Mational Insurance Funsd 16,863,807 17,907 818

Crtheesr Caapilal recespls

Ot 54 4TH 309,863

Mt inancing 102,748 890 102,308,151

Mt incressed|decre in h and cash #guivalents in the period belor receipls and payments 1o he

C-mur:ld.lﬂ Fl.m-dml g B4, 340 832,955

Recoipts dus 15 the Conscldaied Fund which are outiide e 5c0pe of Bhe Depariment s acivites

Cash ransiemed

Parymani of Emounts dus 1o the Conschdaled Fund {735, BA5) [175)

Met increasa/[decraasa) in cash and cash equivalents in the period after adjustment for recaips and

payment to the Conaalidated Fund (T0,805) 932,779

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the pariod B854 420 4 920, 440

Adpsiment for mergeds i} {7,802}

Restated cash [end) cash equivalents (and bank overdrafia) ai the beginning of thi financial year 5855354 4,521 647

Caah and cash squivalents at the end of the period 17 5, TR 440 5.854.425
Foolnote

1) The Depariment has applied the IAS & impracticability exemplion 1o the elimination of restaled prior period trading transaclions
and balances, with all prior period consolidated figures being unaudited as a result. Whilst the Depariment has made every
reasonable effort to produce accurale, fully comparable prior pariod information, this may not be the case in respect of
consolidated comparative income, expenditure, payable and receivable figures. As the 2011-12 Consolidated &mmn'l_am_af Cash
Flows discloses movemenis between the opening and closing payables and receivables balances, any inaccuracies in those
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opening balances will create similar inaccuracies in the reporied in-year movements. As any inaccuracy in receivables will ba
offset by an equal and opposile inaccuracy in payables there is no impact on the bottom line of the 2011-12 Consalidated
Statement of Cash Flows. The reasons for applying this exemplion, along with an explanation of the methodology usad o |
produce the prior period comparatives, are disclesed in Note 1b below. ;

2) The in-year movements reported in the restated 2010-11 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (for example the
*(Increase)idecrease in trade and other receivables™) may not comespond to the apparent movemenis in the Stalement of
Financial Position (SoFP). In cases of restatement, I1AS 1 requires disclosure of a third SoFP. This third SoFP relates 1o the year
starting 1 April 2010. The Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows compares balances at 31 March 2010 against balances
reported at 31 March 2011, The 31 March 2010 balances differ from those al 1 April 2010 due o opening balance adjusiments
including transforming Community Services transfer adjustments.

3)  The “Other” line within the "Cash flows from financing activities® section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows includes
cash flow items recorded by underlying NHS bodies not separately identified within the Resource Account format, This includes
an immaterial adjustment 1o ensure the internal consistency of the Resource Account Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

The notes on pages 111-207 form part of these accounts.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Taxpayer's Equity

Statemant of Changes in Tanpayers® Equity
for B bl and 31 Mawch 3012

Core Depariment Departmantal Group
Grnrusel [Fund R Bt Tazpayers'  Gacswdal Fund Ripvakailion Tazpayers”
Fasaron Equity Roserve  Oiher Roserves Equity
Mote e v n] E000 o] E000 000 £l (o= v ]
Balance ai 31 WMarch 2041
Chargies in BECounling polcy
Restabed balance at 1 Apdl 2011 25158903 454 1011 28 22 534 5007 pss 5,800, 345 12 ATE 15,570 581
Opdneg balances adpistmont B E - 75660 fEl-ch] 5311 maTa
Adpustmant fof varsler of knclions - : . {10 3004 [134) ST {B.91%)
Restated balance @ 1 fpril 2011 23158923 454 011 25 622,934 E,O73,216 5,795, 820 158,104 i, T Bl
Mist P Rty Tunding - OF e doeri 85,885 200 BE BAS 270 5 BAS 270 - B85 BES.ITO
Met paiamectany hasdeg - Sesmed E2 6H% $82 689 983689 ] G R0
Cordoidnied fund standang senices . A : .
Met frances fnom ihe cormngoncias fund = . - ;
Miataonad Wisurnce contnbulons 16,553,807 16,863,807 16,853 BOT ' 1 B BT
Suppdy | Syl s gl Sdsnmant (0, D55 ) (G0 005 (B0 005 . 50, 0|
CFERS 83 Ol imounis pariabis b the
Consoldabed Fund {4,009y (] {4,029 . 4, 05)
POC evvestmant adgistmont - = = . -
Comnprenans ios Mol Exparciurg for the Yoar (102 055 143 (P02 606, 143)  (105.500,556) v (105,500, %565)
Man-caih sdjusimanis:
Mon cash changes - Sudor's munanation BS BB B48 933 , 933
Mowemants in Roesarves
RAwdgass of reservas o 1he CSCNE & . - E {1,224} s {1,224}
Recognasd n 51 i of Comgieh ol
Esxgrsnciiturg
gand| aluaton of propety, Bl
:ﬂunmr:ﬁ::mm BE1S 8815 AR 2 851,133
Mat gRn[loss) on revaluaton of Assets hald for
Sl 1,608 - 1,668
Mat ganllcss) on revaluabon of mlangble siset £33 B84 533 B8 £33 723 - 533,733
Nt gani{ioss) on revaluaton of mmsesiments (15,501} (15,801} {15,530} = (15 538,
Mt gainilcas) on disposal of avmiable for sake
fmancial assets : - (187} B = [284)
Imgarments and reversals [42) (LH] {BOT 115 = (BT 115
Mt Actuanad Gain/(Loss) on Defined Beneld
Patiion Schime x . (1,151} (5,5 [56.734)
Oenad gains and l0sses . - 52,001 [80.518) 2030 382
Flasarees sbmnated o6 G550ktion g5 18.35%) : =1
Transler of imp £, 1 it resaras 1
Tenealir s Eirlwlsn Te5ervEs 35854 (35, 54 - aTIEIT [276.210) [105) {3, 658)
Oaher Transfens {42, 148) - (42,148 (122,154) (40T (313} {122,674)
Badance at 31 March 2012 25,381,018 952,677 26,333 80 3,848,803 10,333,502 164,134 14,334 539
Footnotes

1) The General Fund is used in public sector accounting to reflect the tatal assets less liabilities of an entity, which are not assignad to
nother special purpose fund. : : :

;: The ﬂaﬂ1mlﬂ1 Reserve is a capital reserve used when an assel has been revalued but for which no cash benefit is received.

Revaluations are completed periodically to reflect the fair markel value of an assel owned by an organisation,

3) Other Reserves are used in NHS bodies to account for a difference between the value of non-current assets laken cver by them at

establishment and the corresponding figure in the opening capilal debl. This could arise where opening capital debt is set on estimaled

values, or where there has been an error. Additionally, they may arise to reflect pension assetsfliabilities in respect of staff in non-NHS

defingd benefit pension schémes.
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Unauwdited Prior yoar: for the year end 31 March
2011

Core Department Deparinental Group
Genarsl Fund  Revahsbon Tazpayors”  Gonenad Fund Ravakuation Taxpayers'
Rirkira Equity Rosores  Other Reserves Equity
Hate E000 E000 000 000 E000 000 £'000
Balance at 31 March 2010 24,548,378 285,509 25.219.007 7,185,700 855 437 BaT 54 17 545 800
Oponing balencs sduilmsnt - - - 26,550 {32 678} 24638 (3, 7&aO)
Adpustmint for ransder of functions : 5 . 510,427 115,518 {740, 335) (14450}
Fustated balence at 1 April 2010 24,948 378 MOAZ  76319.007 7,822 726 9,548,579 150885 17,531,600
Mol parkamantary lunding - dranen down B4, 800,000 Bl 800, 000 14, 400,000 - 84,400,000
Ned parkamontary furdeng - doamsad 1,328,185 1.328. 185 1,228, 185 - 1,338 185
Cormobdated hund slandng soracas . a = = X
Het Bnances from e cortngencies fund . - = -
Mationed nsurancn conlribulions 17,907 845 17,807 815 17,607 815 s 17 907,815
Supply {payalieirecoable adustment 1.1 (982 E80) (882 B89) [k T - {582 Bag)
CFER# and other amounts. payabile Io e
Consolduted Furd Fi {750, 5] (50,288, (750 286) - {750 284
PO ifrvisidment adustmant - k - - :
Comprehandive Mat Expanciun for the Year {401,850, 744) (1001 B T4} (102071780 - (10207 176)
Hon-cadh adjustments:
NN CaSh e ik - BUcHIo0S reemLrssraton T 665 BE5 780 7ol
Mavameants in Resorves
Fioloass of resenms o the CSCNE - . - 19 (S00) 4By (965
Recogrased in Statemsnt of Compesnens v
Expanditure
Ml gaind{loss) on revalhastion of property. plant
aned duapmeant Taase 73,858 856 886 1,334 BE0, 110
N Qi iass] on reaiusaicn of Asgais habd fo
Salo £
Nat gainiicas) on rvakiaton of nlangible assots 197726 137 798 138,018 . 138,018
$oot uird(loss) an revalustion of Svestments 115,724 118,724 115,597 : 115,507
Nod gaendt{loss| on diposal of availabls Tor Sok
fnancil assots . - - 158 {158) ~ -
Impairmants arsd rnvedsals (28,534 (38,834 (491,861 ) {1.518) (483,377}
Hat Actuarial GanvLoss) on Defned Benali
Pansion Schame - . 7. 758 4457 az.ne
Othar gains and 103563 - - 118778 (115, 186) 454 o, il
Riisared ahm nabed on desohulon 318 - (7. 1] (1]
Transler of impaimants om nevakustion reserve io
penaral furd
Transders botwesn roserves 104,582 (100, 202 . 256, Guld (253, 86T) {4, B85 {1,774}
b Transtors 2, 30E - 92,308 B4,551 &1 3,527 BE 119
Balance al 31 March 2011 28,188,002 464011 38,822,933 6,007,054 8,800,248 182376 15,970,501
S —
Footnotes

The Consolidated Statemant of Changes in Taxpayer's Equily has been restated in respect of the following:

1) The expansion of the accounling boundary to include NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and all Arms Length Bodies.

2) The change in accounting policy in respect of the donated assel resarve and government grant resene.

3)  The reclassification of National Insurance Contributions from income to funding, with such contributions now being credited to the
general fund upon receipt.

4)  The reclassification of £735,792,000 of 2010-11 excess appropriations-in-aid from “CFERs payable 1o the Consolidated Fund” to

“Other amounts payable to the Consclidated Fund™. Under the Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation, Estimate control tolals are
voted net of income and thus excess approprialions-in-aid can no longer exist, Following HM Treasury guidance, however, all prior

pericd CFERSs, including excess appropriations-in-aid, remain payable o the Consolidated Fund, and this requires the amount fo
reclassified to “Other amounts payable lo the Consclidated Fund”.

ba

5) The 2010-11 Core Depariment general fund balance has been increased by £2.201,062 to recognise a working capital float provided
to the NHS Business Services Authority, but owned by the Depariment, which was excluded from the Depariment’s 2010-11 Annual

Report and Accounts in error. Furiher details of this prior period adjustment can be found in Note 1b Restaterment,
6)  In previous years, Core Department "Net Parliamentary Funding — Drawn Down® represented in-year cash drawn down from the

Consolidated Fund less funding payments made to bodies within the Depanimental Group. Following HM Treasury confirmation that,

under alignmenl, Funding to Group Bodies and Grant in Aid should be treated consistently, the Core Department columns of this
account have been restated to show Funding to Group bodies as an expanditure item, rather than a debit to "Mel Parliamentary

Funding - Drawn Down". The “Net Parliamentary Funding — Drawn Down" figures above therefore represent the in-year cash drawn
down from the Consolidated Fund only, and, when added o deemed supply and National Insurance Contribution receipts, represent
the lotal funding made available 1o the Depariment. The Deparimental Group figures are unaffecied by this restalement as Funding to

Group Bodies is eliminated in full upon consalidation.
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INOTES TO THE DEPARTMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

1 Statement of accounting policies

{ HM Treasury have directed that the financial statements of the Department of Health shall meet the accounting

i requirements of the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM). Consequently, the financial statements

| within this Annual Report and Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2011-12 FReM issued by

| HM Treasury. The Department of Health's Annual Report and Accounts are prepared on a going concern basis

{ and provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Department at the end of the financial year, and of
the results for the year. The functional and presentational currency is pounds sterling and figures are
expressed in thousands of pounds unless expressly stated otherwise.

HM Treasury has required Government bodies to follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), in
place of UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UKGAAP), since 2008-10. The accounting policies
contained in the FReM follow IFRS to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to Government
bodies. Whether the standards are meaningful and appropriate is determined by HM Treasury acting on the
advice of the Financial Reporting Advisory Board (FRAB). Where the FReM permits a choice of accounting
policy, the policy that is judged to be most appropriate by the Department to its particular circumstances,
especially for the purposes of giving a true and fair view, has been selected. The particular policies adopted by
the Department are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered
material in relation to the accounts.

In recent years, new international accounting standards have been issued in the form of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) whereas older standards, many of which remain in use, are described as
International Accounting Standards (IAS). Other than when referring to a specific standard, the two terms are
used interchangeably in these accounts.

The FReM requires the Department to prepare the following primary statement in addition to those required
under IFRS:

+ The Statement of Parliamentary Supply: This statement and its supporting notes show outturn against
Estimate for the net resource requirement and net cash requirement.

A significant number of accounting policy changes have arisen in-year as a result of changes to FReM
requirements that have been driven by HM Treasury's Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation [Constitutional
Reform and Governance Act 2010). The primary aim of this legisiation has been to align budgets, Estimates
and accounts in a way that enhances accountability to Parliament and the public, underpins the Government's
fiscal framework and incentivises good value for money. The most profound impact of the legislation on the
Department's 2011-12 accounts relates to the expansion of the Resource Accounting Boundary to include all
Arms Length Bedies, NHS Foundation Trusts and NHS Trusts. This, along with all other in year accounting
policy changes, is described within this note.

The 2011-12 Annual Report and Accounts includes five departures from the FReM which have been agreed
with HM Treasury:

+  Public Dividend Capital issued by the Department on the creation of new NHS Trusts, or written-off on the
dissolution of NHS Trusts, is debited or credited, as appropriate, to the General Fund rather than to the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

+  National Insurance Contributions are recognised on a cash basis.

- Some NHS organisations whose accounts are consolidated into the Department's Annual Report and
Accounts receive donations that are held on trust. For 2010-11 and 2011-12, HM Treasury has agreed that
NHS bodies should not consolidate the NHS charitable funds for which they are trustees. Consequently, any
such charitable funds are not consalidated into the Annual Report and Accounts.

« The 2010 Spending Review Settlement Letter expanded the boundary of the Department's Administration
Budget to include Arms Length Badies, Strategic Health Authorities and the commissioning functions of Primary
Care Trusts. Expenditure on the direct provision of healthcare by NHS provider organisations (including NHS
Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) remains classified as programme. The 2010-11 comparators have not
been restated to reflect the revised administration/programme split of income and expenditure (and will thus
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reflect the administration/programme regime in place at the time), as HM Treasury and the FRAB have agreed
that it is impracticable to restate in respect of this change. HM Treasury guidance in respect of the
Department's own classification of income and expenditure as between administration and programme

categories has also been amended. The revised guidance re-categorises a number of Core Department |

administration and programme expenditure types, with the movement being predominantly from programme to
administration. The Department has applied this revised methodology from 1 April 2011, thus ensuring a
consistent date of application for the revised Administration costs regime across the Departmental Group.

* Under the Transforming Community Services (TCS) initiative, services historically provided by Primary
Care Trusts have transferred to other providers; notably NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts. The FReM
requires that such transactions be accounted for by use of merger accounting. Merger accounting principles will
be applied in full in 2011-12. However, for TCS transactions specifically, as was the case in 2010-11, HM
Treasury and the FRAB have agreed that it is impracticable to adjust prior period comparators. Restatement is
therefore effected by an adjustment to 1 April 2011 opening balances rather than by full restatement of 2010-11
comparators.

The in-year accounting policy changes detailed within this note have necessitated retrospective restatement of
financial statement items. In line with IAS 1 requirements, three Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
have been presented. As in 2010-11 the restated 1 April 2010 balances are presented at primary statement
level detail only

Whilst not a FReM departure, the Department has applied the impracticability exemption allowed under IAS 8
Accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors in respect of the requirement to produce full restated
financial statements for 2010-11, and a 2009-10 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position which contain
eliminations of inter-company trading transactions and balances that can be demonstrated as being materially
accurate. All consolidated prior period figures are unaudited as a result. Due to the Alignment legislation, the
accounting boundary of the Department has grown significantly from 169 entities in 2010-11 to 437 in 2011-12.
In 2010-11, when completing the agreement of balances exercises, the majority of entities that are now
included within the group did not take part. Therefore, in 2011-12, despite the Department having carried out
three Agreement of Balances exercises to try to obtain the information required to restate its 2010-11 and
2008-10 financial statements, a material mismatch has remained. As the Depariment has made every
reasonable effort to produce the data required for accurate elimination of intra-group transactions, balances
and transfers, and a material mismatch still exists, it has chosen to apply the IAS 8 impracticability exemption
for 2010-11 and 2008-10. HM Treasury and the National Audit Office (NAO) agree that the non-recurrent
application of this exemption is appropriate, given the unique set of circumstances affecting the DH Group
account in 2011-12 because of Alignment.

Under the IAS 8 exemption, the Department has adopted a “best endeavours” approach to restating its
comparators, under which prior year figures have been restated to the greatest extent possible, whilst
recognising that they cannot be restated to a fully comparable level due to the remaining material mismatch. As
detailed in Note 1b below, all practicable restatements, including those relating to the expansion of the
accounting boundary and the elimination of all non-trading inter-company transactions and balances, have
been made, with the "best endeavours™ approach being applied to the elimination of trading inter-company
transactions and balances. Under this approach, the Department has replicated, as far as possible, the
elimination techniques applied in the current accounting period, therefore producing prior period comparative
figures that are as comparable, accurate and meaningful to the users of the accounts as possible,

The 2010-11 Annual Report and Accounts included the following two additional departures from the FReM
which are no longer relevant:

* Income from NHS bodies received by the Department or bodies within the accounting boundary is excluded
and netted off the relevant expenditure. This departure is not required in the 2011-12 Annual Report and
Accounts as all NHS bodies now fall within the expanded Resource Accounting Boundary, with income and
expenditure between all Group bodies being subject to elimination upon consolidation.

* In the Analysis of net operating cost by spending body, formerly Note 13, the Department has grouped the
spending bodies, rather than listing them individually. This departure is not required in the 2011-12 Annual

Rengﬂl anzd Accounts as the FReM reguirement to analyse net operating cost by spending body was withdrawn
in =12,
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‘1.1 Operating segments

Income, expenditure, depreciation and other material items are analysed in the Statement of Operating Coslts
by Operating Segment (Note 6) across the headings of: DH Core, PCT, SHA, NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation
| Trusts, ALBs (Special Health Authorities) and ALBs (Executive Non Departmental Public Bodies), as reported
to, and used by, the chief operating decision makers of the Department.

1.2 Accounting convention

These E_mcuunis-lhave been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to account for the
revaluation to fair value of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, certain financial assets and
financial liabilities and current cost for inventories.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

The basis of consclidation in the Department's Annual Report and Accounts differs from that of a group
consolidation in a private sector entity. HM Treasury requires that Government departments consolidate the
accounts of those bodies that meet the appropriate requirements for consolidation under IFRS, provided that
they are both inside the departmental accounting boundary, as defined in the Government Financial Reporting
Manual, and are the subject of in-year budgetary and spending control by the parent department. Note 32
provides a list of the entities within the Department of Health's accounting boundary whose accounts are
consolidated into these financial statements, and those which are not. Transactions between entities included
in the Resource Accounting Boundary are eliminated on consolidation

The Depariment's Resource Accounting Boundary, as defined in the FReM, has expanded significantly in
2011-12 as a result of the changes to FReM requirements which have been driven by HM Treasury's Clear
Line of Sight (alignment) legislation. In contrast to prior years, the Department now also consolidates the
individual accounts of all Arms Length Bodies, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts (in addition to the
accounts of Strategic Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts and the Core Department itself). This accounting
policy change has been applied retrospectively which means that all prior period results have been restated to
reflect the enlarged Departmental Group. As mentioned above, the Department has applied the IAS 8
exemption to the restatement of prior period data where inter-company elimination of trading transactions and
balances is required. Whilst the Department has restated its comparators to the greatest extent possible it is
recognised that these figures cannot be restated to a fully comparable level.

More information on the individual entities within the Departmental family can be found in the annual reports
and accounts of those organisations, and in the NHS Foundation Trusts Consolidated Accounts prepared by
Moaonitor.

1.4 Going Concern

The Department of Health's Annual Report and Accounts are produced on a going concern basis. Under the
Health and Social Care Act 2012 all Strategic Health Authorities and Primary Care Trusts (whose accounts we
consolidated into these accounts) will be abolished by April 2013. However, the majority of functions of these
bodies will be transferred to, or subsumed by, new or exisling bodies within the Resource Accounting
Boundary. The Department is supply financed and thus draws the majority of its funding from the Consolidated
Fund. Parliament has demonstrated its commitment to fund the Depariment for the forseeable future via the
latest Spending Review and it is therefore considered appropriate to adopt the going concern basis for the
preparation of these accounts.

As detailed in Note 32, the General Social Care Council is not preparing its underlying statutory accounts on a
going concern basis due to the provisions relating to its future, as set out in the Health and Social Care Act
2012. The going concern basis remains appropriate for the Department's Annual Report and Accounts,
however, as the transactions and balances associated with the General Social Care Council are not significant

in the context of the Departmental Group.
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1.5 Staff costs

Short-term employee benefits

In relation to the Core Department, salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the
period in which the service is received from employees, except for non-consolidated performance pay, which is
recognised when paid on the grounds of immateriality. Annual leave that has been earnad but not taken at the
year end is not accrued by the Core Department, as it is not material.

In relation to Strategic Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts, NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and Arms
Length Bodies, salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the
service is received from employees. Where material, annual leave that has been earned but not taken at the
year end, and non-consolidated performance pay, are recognised in the financial statements of the underlying
organisations.

Retirement benefit costs:

Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme

Past and present employees of the Department are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service
Pension Scheme (PCSPS) which is described at Note 7.3. The defined benefit schemes are unfunded and are
non-contributory except in respect of dependents’ benefits. The Department recognises the expected costs of
these elements on a systematic and rational basis over the period during which it benefits from the employees'
services, by payment to the PCSPS of amounts calculated on an accruing basis. Liability for payment of future
benefits is a charge on the PCSPS. In respect of the defined contribution schemes, the Department recognises
the contributions payable for the year.

The Department recognises the full cost of benefits paid under the Civil Service Compensation Scheme,
including the early payment of pensions.

NHS Pension Scheme

Fast and present employees of the NHS are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details
of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at

www.nhsbsa.nhs.ukipensions

This scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme which covers NHS employers, General Practices and
other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not
designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities. Therefare, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the
cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as being equal to the contributions payable to the
scheme for the accounting period.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health, the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the
organisation commits itself to the retirement, regardiess of the method of payment. '

The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an
accounting valuation every year. More details can be found in Note 7.3.

Local Government Superannuation Scheme

Some NHS and Arms Length Body employees are members of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme
which is a defined benefit pension scheme. The scheme assets and liabilities attributed to these employees can
be identified and are recognised in the organisation's accounts. The assets are measured at fair value, and the
liabilities at the present value of future obligations.

The increase in the liability arising from pensionable service eamed during the year is recognised within
operating expenses. The expected gain during the year from scheme assets is recognised within income. The
interest cost during the year arising from the unwinding of the discount on the scheme liabilities is recognised
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within expenditure. Actuarial gains and losses during the year are recognised in the General Fund and reported
on the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity.

Other Pension Schemes

Some NHS Foundation Trusts, NHS Trusts, the Care Quality Commission and the General Social Care Council
have employees who are members of defined benefit pension schemes other than the NHS Pension Scheme
or the Local Government Superannuation Scheme. Where the NHS organisation is able to identify its share of
the underlying scheme liabilities these are accounted for as a defined benefit pension scheme (‘'on Statement
of Financial Position'). Otherwise, these are accounted for as defined contribution pension schemes (‘off
Statement of Financial Position').

For further details, including a list of all these defined benefit pension schemes, please refer to the 2011-12
NHS Foundation Trusts Consolidated Accounts or the underlying statutory accounts of the relevant NHS
organisation.

1.6 Administration and programme costs

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (hereafter referred to as the CSCNE) is
analysed between administration and programme cosis, as defined by HM Treasury. Prior to 2011-12,
administration costs reflected the costs of running the Core Department only. However the 2010 Spending
Review Settiement Letter expanded the boundary of the Department's administration costs regime to include
Arms Length Bodies, Strategic Health Authorities and the commissioning functions of Primary Care Trusts.
Expenditure on the direct provision of healthcare or healthcare related services by NHS provider organisations
(including NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts) remains classified as programme. From 2011-12,
administration costs reflect the costs of running the Department and other non-provider NHS organisations, and
do not directly relate to the provision of front-line services. Programme costs reflect non-administration costs,
including payments of grants and other disbursements by the Department, as well as certain staff cosls where
they relate directly to, or support, front-line service delivery. Expenditure on the direct provision of healthcare by
NHS provider organisations (including the running costs of those bodies) is also classified as programme.

The analysis of 2010-11 income and expenditure between administration and programme categories has not
been restated to reflect the wider interpretation of administration costs adopted in 2011-12, rather it continues
to reflect the administration costs regime in place at the time. As agreed with HM Treasury and the Financial
Reporting Advisory Board (FRAB), the Department deems it to be impracticable, within the definition set out in
IAS 8, for NHS bodies to restate prior period income and expenditure figures based on an administration costs
regime that was not in place at the time.

In 2011-12, HM Treasury recategorised a number of administration and programme expenditure types in the
core Department, with the movement predominantly being from programme to administration. Reclassified
items include certain items of grant-in-aid expenditure and policy payments. The Department estimates the net
impact of this recategorisation to be in the region of a £250 million increase in core Department administration
costs with a corresponding decrease in programme costs. The analysis of 2010-11 Core Department
expenditure continues to reflect the categorisation in place at the time, as the impact of the recategorisation s
not material, and it ensures a consistent date of application for the revised administration costs regime across
the Departmental Group.

The format of the expenditure notes (Notes 8 and 9) has been revised in 2011-12 to give mare detail in respect
of the types of expenditure incurred across the Departmental Group, and to ensure that all significant items are
listed individually. Whilst there is no impact on the overall value of expenditure, the 2010-11 expenditure figures

have been restated to ensure comparable categorisation.

1.7 Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) and Annually Managed Expenditure (AME)

The Statement of Parliamentary Supply is analysed between DEL and AME, as defined by HM Treasury. DELs
are agreed with HM Treasury as part of four year spending plans set during Spending Reviews, with the
associated income and expenditure deemed to be within the Depariment's direct control. All income and
expenditure is classified as DEL unless the Chief Secretary to the Treasury has determined that the
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programme to which it relates should be classified as AME. AME income and expenditure is generally demand-
led or exceptionally volatile in a way that could not be controlled by the Department. Alternatively, a programme
may be classified as AME if it is so large that the Department could not be expected to absorb the effects of
any related volatilities within its DEL, or for other reasons the programmes are not suitable for inclusion in firm
four year spending plans set during Spending Reviews.

1.8 Estimate structure

The format of the 2011-12 Statement of Parliamentary Supply, and its supporting note: Analysis of net resource
outturn by section (Note 2), have changed significantly in comparison to prior years as a result of the Clear Line
of Sight (alignment) legislation. Estimates are now prepared on a budgeting basis with a reconciliation provided
between net resource outturn and net operating cost. Requests for Resources no longer exist, with net outturn
against Estimate instead being analysed between Resource DEL, Capital DEL, Resource AME and Capital
AME, as well as between Voted and Non-Voted net expenditure. The 2010-11 Statement of Parliamentary
Supply and supporting note have been restated to reflect the new Estimate structure, and thereby ensure
comparability with the current year.

As the Statement of Parliamentary Supply is now produced on a budgeting basis, the reconciliation between
net resource outturn and net operating cost highlights items which are treated differently under accounting and
budgeting guidelines. The main reconciling items in the Department's Annual Report and Accounts are:

* IFRIC12 adjustments. within the accounts, PFI/LIFT schemes follow IFRS accounting requirements, under
which the majority of schemes are accounted for on the Statement of Financial Position. Budgets follow ESA95
(European System of National and Regional Accounts), a regime more closely aligned to accounting under UK
GAAP, by which the majority of schemes are classified as off-Statement of Financial Position.

* Capital grants: these are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure but
for budgeting purposes are classified as capital DEL.

« Utilisation of provisions: under budgeting rules the creation of a provision scores to AME, but on utilisation,
the amount used is reversed out of AME and reclassified to DEL. Although the utilisation of provisions has no
impact on the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the movement between budget
categories must nevertheless be recorded in the Statement of Parliamentary Supply.

* Consolidated Fund Extra Receipts: these are recorded as income in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure but are excluded from the Statement of Parliamentary Supply as they fall
outside the Ambit of the Vote and are thus excluded from the Estimate.

1.9 Grants payable

Grants made by the Department are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are paid, as grant
funding is not intended to be directly related to activity in a specific period.

1.10 Audit costs

A charge reflecting the cost of audit is included in operating costs. The Department of Health is audited by the
Comptroller and Auditor General. No cash charge is made for this service but a notional charge representing
the cost of the audit is included in the accounts. This charge covers the audit costs in respect of the
Department's Annual Report and Accounts. With the exception of NHS Foundation Trusts, other Group bodies
are audited by the Comptroller and Auditor General or an Audit Commission appointed auditor and include
expenditure in respect of audit fees in their individual accounts. The accounts of NHS Foundation Trusts are
audited by auditors appointed by their board of governors and also include expenditure in respect of audit fees.
(Note 9 to the accounts refers).

1.11 Value added tax

Most of the activities of the Department are outside the scope of VAT. Imecoverable VAT is charged to the
relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of non-current assets. Where output
tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
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1.12 Corporation tax

With the exception of some NMHS Foundation Trusts, bodies within the Departmental Group are not liable to pay
corporation tax.

! The Finance Act 2004 amended 5.519A Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1898 in order to give power to the
" Treasury to make certain non-core activities of NHS Foundation Trusts potentially subject to corporation tax.
| Subsequently, HM Revenue and Customs decided that Corporation tax would not be payable by NHS
| Foundation Trusts until the 2010-11 financial year.

The Corporation Tax expense recognised in these financial statements represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable surpluses generated during
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position (SoFP) date,
and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Using the liability method, deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the SoFP date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each SoFP date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

1.13 Income

Income principally comprises fees and charges for services provided on a full cost basis, investment income
and public repayment work. It includes income Voted during the Estimates process and Consolidated Fund
Extra Receipts (CFERs) which fall outside the Ambit of the Vole and must therefore be returned to HM
Treasury. Income in respect of services provided is recognised when the service is rendered and the stage of
completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
economic benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the Department. Income is measured at fair value
of the consideration receivable.

Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year. that
income is deferred.

In prior years, National Insurance Contributions were recognised as income within consclidated entries rather
than within entries for the core Department. From 2011-12, as a conseguence of the Clear Line of Sight
(alignment) legislation, National Insurance Contributions are classified as funding rather than income, and are
therefore credited to the general fund upon receipt. Comparator figures for 2010-11 have been restated as
appropriate to reflect this change and to ensure comparability with the current year.

Another consequence of the Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation is that from 2011-12 Estimates are
Voted by Parliament on a net basis. As a result, the concept of excess appropriations-in-aid (A-in-A) no longer
exists, and the Department retains all income generated with the exception of that falling outside the Ambit of
the Vote. In 2010-11 the Department classified £735,792,000 of income as excess A-in-A_ In line with HM
Treasury guidance the Statement of Parliamentary Supply and all supporting notes have been restated to
reflect this change, with the effect that the value of the 2010-11 net cash requirement has been reduced by this

£735,792,000.

The format of the income note (Note 10) has been revised in 2011-12 to give more detail about the types of
income earned and to ensure that all significant items are listed individually. Whilst there is no impact on the
overall value of income, the 2010-11 income figures have been restated to ensure comparable categorisation.
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1.14 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if.

= itis held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

+ it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the
Department;

* it iz expected to be used for more than cne financial year;

+ the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and either

« the item cost at least £5,000; or

+ collectively, a number of items have a total cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than

£250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are
anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control.

Where an asset includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are
treated as separate assets and depreciated over their individual useful economic lives.

Expenditure incurred on NHS Connecting for Health programmes has been split between capital and revenue
using a financial model that analyses contractor costs over the life of the project.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment (excluding assets relating to NHS Connecting for Health
programmes)

All property, plant and equipment is measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying
amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.
Fair values are determined as follows:

* Land and non-specialised buildings — market value for existing use
+ Specialised buildings — depreciated replacement cost, modern equivalent asset basis

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses
immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and depreciation
commences when they are brought into use.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational
use are valued at depreciated historic cost as a proxy for fair value.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for
the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of
the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease is only recognised as an impairment charged to
the revaluation reserve when it does not result from a loss in the economic value or service potential to the
extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses
that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised
in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment assets relating to NHS Connecting for Health programmes

The plant and equipment relating to the NHS Connecting for Health programmes is held at depreciated
replacement cost. The Department revalues these non-current assets at the end of each financial year, by
indexing their original cost using the modified historic cost accounting (MHCA) approach. Given the very
significant value of these assets, the Department apphes as an uplift the difference between the Retail Price
Index (RPI) operating in the month of purchase and the RPI as at 31 March. RPI is considered by the
Department to be the most appropriate measure of indexation to use with this group of assets, as no other
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.r'ndmrtalinn factor is available that (i) more accurately reflects the commercial environment in the computer
services sector or (i) would not be compromised by the very high value of this group of assets. This valuation
imethod is reviewed each year by the Department to determine whether it remains the most appropriate index to
luse.

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable
cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the
expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to
operating expenses.

Specific NHS Accounting Treatment of Land, Buildings, Dwellings and Assets under Construction

Until 2009-10, the PCT, SHA and NHS Trust accounts followed a FReM departure which had been agreed with
HM Treasury, whereby the accumulated depreciation at the end of the previous financial year was netted off
against the cost of the asset brought forward at the beginning of the current financial year. This applied to the
following classes of assets:

- Land

- Buildings

- Dwellings

- Assets under construction

From 2010-11 onwards, all consolidated bodies are required to show gross values in respect of these classes
of assets. unless assets have been revalued in the year. This change ensures consistency of presentation
across the Departmental Group. Where an asset has been revalued, the accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the
revalued amount of the asset.

1.15 Intangible non current assets

Intangible non-current assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale
separately from the rest of the Department's business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.
They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be
provided to, the Department; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably; and where the cost is at
least £5,000.

Intangible non-recurrent assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software that is
integral to the operation of hardware is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.
Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware is capitalised as an intangible assel.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or,
where no active market exists, at replacement cost if the asset is not yet available for use or amortised
replacement cost if it is, as a proxy for fair value.

Recognition and Valuation of intangible assets relating to NHS Connecting for Health programmes

The Department commissioned KPMG LLP to carry out a review of accounting principles in respect of NHS
Connecting for Health programme transactions. A product of this review was the development in 2006 of
financial models designed to apportion expenditure between revenue and capital for the Local Service Provider
contracts pertaining to the South and London. The model is reviewed regularly, with the latest such review
being carried out in March 2012. Applying the financial models, NHS Connecting for Health programme assets
are capitalised by reference to the two contracts and not individual assets. In terms of valuing these Local
Service Provider assets, the financial model output alone is used.

No Local Service capital expenditure is apportioned between tangible and intangible non-current assets. The
Department therefore makes a judgement that, unless the tangible element is significant, all the non-current IT
assets should be accounted for as intangible, as it concludes that the intangible element is more significant.
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The intangible assets relating to NHS Connecting for Health programmes, are held at depreciated
replacement cost which is calculated by indexing the historic cost of the assets by the movement in the Retail
Price Index between the month of purchase and the Statement of Financial Position date. The modified
historic cost accounting methodology is used to apply these indexation adjustments.

1.16 Research and development

Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

+  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use

* the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it

+ the ability to sell or use the intangible asset

+ how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential

* the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and
sell or use it

* the ability to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the criteria for recognition are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.

1.17 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Freehold land, assets under construction or development, investment properties, stockpiled goods and assets
held for sale are not depreciated/amortised.

Otherwise, depreciation or amortisation, as appropriate, is charged to write off the costs or valuation of
property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, on a straight-line
basis over their estimated remaining useful lives. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which
the Department expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset. Estimated useful lives
and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective
basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful life.

At each financial year-end, the Department determines whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment or intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an indication of
such an impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a
loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually at the
financial year-end.

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as
an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the
asset being impaired and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of
economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount
that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss
is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the
revaluation reserve.

Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed
Expenditure (AME) from 2011-12. This is necessary to comply with HM Treasury's budgeting guidance. DEL
limits are set in each Spending Review, and Depariments may not exceed the limits that they have been set.
AME budgets are set by HM Treasury and may be reviewed with departments in the run-up to the Budget.
Departments need to monitor AME closely and inform HM Treasury if they expect AME spending to rise above
the level forecast. Whilst HM Treasury accepts that in some areas of AME inherent volatility may mean
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departments do not have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in that financial year, any expected
increases in AME still require HM Treasury approval.

1.18 Donated assets

Following the accounting policy change outlined in the 2011-12 FReM, a donated asset reserve is no longer
maintained. Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to
income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and
losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are treated in the same way as purchased assets. Deferred
income is recognised only where conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the
gain.

This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively with the result that the 2010-11 resulis have
been restated.

1.19 Government grants

Following the accounting policy change outlined in the 2011-12 FReM, a government grant reserve is no longer
maintained by Group bodies in receipt of government grants. Government grant funded assets are capitalised
at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. Deferred income is recognised only where
conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

This accounting policy change has been applied retrospectively and consequently the 2010-11 results have
been restated.

1.20 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is satisfied once all of the following criteria
are mef:
«  the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and
customary for such sales
+ the sale must be highly probable i.e..
(i) management are committed to a plan to sell the asset
(ii) an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale
{iii) the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price
(iv) the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as “Held for
Sale"; and
(v) the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or
significant changes made to it.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. On disposal, the balance for
the asset in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for
sale. Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-

recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.21 Investment property

Investment properties are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised as revenue gains or
losses.
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Only those assets which are held solely to generate a commercial return are considered to be investment
properties. Where an asset is held, in part, for support service delivery objectives, then it is considerad to be an
item of property, plant and equipment. Properties occupied by employees, whether or not they pay rent at
market rates, are not investment properties.

1.22 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised at the inception of the lease at
fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease
obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in the CSCNE.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually
assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases.

1.23 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and NHS Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) transactions

HM Treasury has determined that Government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI and NHS LIFT
schemes, where the Government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the arrangement, as service concession arrangements, following the principles set
out in IFRIC 12. Consolidated bodies therefore recognise the PFI/LIFT asset as an item of property, plant and
equipment together with a liability to pay for it, on their Statement of Financial Position.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation
technigues where necessary:

+ Payment for the fair value of services received;
+ Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and
+  Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

a) Services received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within
‘operating expenses’,

b) PFl and LIFT assets, liabilities, and finance costs

The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment when they come into use. They are measured
initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequent measurement is carried at fair
value in accordance with IAS 16. A PFILIFT liability is recognised at the same time as the assets are
recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount as the fair value of the assets and is subsequently
measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 17.

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease
liability for the period, and is charged to the CSCNE.
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The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the
annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term.

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is treated as contingent rent
and is expensed as incurred.

¢) Lifecycle replacement

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised
where they meet the consolidated bodies' criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they
are provided by the operator and are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of
the contract from the operator's planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is
provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised
respectively.

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the
difference is recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the
amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is
recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract
period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assets contributed by consolidated bodies to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment

Other assets contributed by consolidated bodies to the operator

Other assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the consolidated bodies to the operator
before the asset is brought into use, where these are intended to defray the operator's capital costs, are
recognised initially as prepayments during the construction phase of the contract When the asset is made
available to the consolidated body, the prepayment is treated as an initial payment towards the finance lease
liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.

1.24 Inventories
Inventories and stockpiled goods are held at fair value.

Inventories held by the Core Department are held at last price paid as a proxy for fair value. The Department
undertakes an annual review of the difference between the last price paid for inventory and fair value. Where
the difference is found to be material, the inventory is revalued to fair value. In 2011-12, the adult and childhood
vaccines and emergency preparedness inventories were both revalued to fair value. Inventories held by NHS
Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and Primary Care Trusts are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.

Strategic goods held for use in national emergencies are held as non-current assets within property, plant and
equipment. These inventories are maintained at minimum capability levels by replenishment to offset write-offs
and so are not depreciated, as agreed with HM Treasury.

1.25 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not mare
than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition
and which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of cash management.
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Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at current values. Interest earned on bank accounts and
interest charged on overdrafts are recorded as, respectively, ‘Interest receivable’ and ' Interest payable’ in the
periods to which they relate. Bank charges are recorded as operating expenditure in the periods to which they
relate.

1.26 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Department has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Department will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying
armount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury's discount rate of 2.2% in real terms,
except for early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions which both use the HM Treasury's pension
discount rate of 2.8% (2010-11; 2.9%) in real terms.

1.27 Clinical and non-clinical negligence costs

Clinical and non-clinical negligence costs are managed through schemes run by the NHS Litigation Authority
(NHSLA). The Existing Liability and Ex-Regional Health Authority schemes are funded by the Department of
Health, whilst the Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts, Liability to Third Parties and Property Expenses
Schemes are funded from Trust contributions. The accounts for the schemes are prepared by the NHSLA in
accordance with IAS 37. A provision for these schemes, disclosed in Mote 20, is calculated in accordance with
IAS 37 by discounting the gross value of all claims received.

Calculation of the provision for each scheme is made using:
= probability factors. The probability of a claim having to be settled is assessed between 10% and 94%. This
probability is applied to the gross value to give the probable cost of each claim; and

« adiscount factor calculated using HM Treasury's real discount rate of 2.2%, RPI of 3% and claims inflation
(varying between schemes) of between 5% and 10%, is applied to the probable cost to take into account the
likely time to settlement.

The difference between the gross value of claims and the amount of the provision calculated above is also
discounted, taking into account the likely time to settlement, and is included in contingent liabilities as set out in
Note 26.

Existing Liabilities Scheme (ELS) and Ex-Regional Health Authorities (Ex-RHA) Scheme

Claims are included in the ELS provision on the basis that the incident ocurred on or before 31st March 1995.
Qualifying claims under the Ex-RHA scheme are those which were brought against the former Regional Health
Authorities whose clinical negligence liabilities passed to the NHS Litigation Authority with effect from 1st April
1996.

The NHS (Residual Liabilities) Act 1996 requires the Secretary of State to exercise his/her statutory powers to
deal with the liabilities of a Special Health Authority, if it ceases to exist. This would include the liabilities
assumed by the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of these schemes.

Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST)

A provision f::alr this scheme is calculated in accordance with IAS 37 by discounting the gross value of all claims
received relating to incidents that occurred on or before 31 March 2012 and after 1 April 1995.

Claims are included in the provision on the basis that the CNST members have assessed:-
* the probable cost and time to settlement in accordance with scheme guidelines,
» thatthey are qualifying incidents; and
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= that the Trust remains a member of the scheme,

As at 31st March 2002 all outstanding claims for incidents post-1st April 1995 became the direct responsibility
of the NHSLA. This ‘call in' of CNST claims effectively means that member Trusts are no longer reponsible for
: accounting for claims made against them although they do remain the legal defendant.

The NHS (Residual Liabilities) Act 1996 requires the Secretary of State to exercise his/her statutory powers to
deal with the liabilities of a Special Health Authority, if it ceases to exist. This would include the liabilities
assumed by the NHSLA in respect of this scheme.

Property Expenses Scheme and Liability to Third Parties Scheme

These schemes are managed and funded via the same mechanisms as CNST except that specific excesses
exist for some types of claims. The provisions for these schemes are calculated in accordance with IAS 37 but
relate only to the organisation's proportion of each claim.

Incidents Incurred but not reported (IENR)

IAS 37 requires the inclusion of liabilities in respect of incidents which have been incurred but not reported to
the NHS Litigation Authority as at 31 March 2012 where the following can be reasonably forecast:

« that an adverse incident has occurred;
« that a transfer of economic benefit will occur; and
» that a reasonable estimate of the likely value can be made.

The NHSLA uses its actuaries, Lane, Clark & Peacock, to assess the potential value of IBNRs against each of
the schemes it operates. The actuaries review existing claims records, and using an appropriate model,
calculate values in respect of IBNRs for all schemes. The provisions and contingent liabilities arising are
shown in notes 20 and 26 respectively. The sums concerned are accounting estimates, and, although
determined on the basis of information currently available, the ultimate liabilities may vary as a result of
subsequent developments.

1.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is:

+ a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurmence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Department, or

+ a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably.

A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Department. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

In addition to contingent liabilities disclosed in accordance with 1AS 37, the Department discloses for
Parliamentary reporting and accountability purposes certain statutory and non-statutory contingent liabilities
where the likelihood of a transfer of economic benefit is remote, but which have been reported to Parliament in
accordance with the requirements of Managing Public Money. These comprise.

. items over £100,000 (or lower, where required by specific statute) that do not arise in the normal course of
business and which are reported to Parliament by Departmental Minute prior to the Department entering into
the arrangement;

« all items (whether or not they arise in the normal course of business) over £100,000 (or lower, where
required by specific statute or where material in the context of the Annual Report and Accounts) which are
required by the Financial Reporting Manual to be noted in the Annual Report and Accounts.
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Where the time value of money is material, contingent liabilities which are required to be disclosed under 1AS
37 are stated at discounted amounts and the amount reported to Parliament is separately noted. Contingent
liabilities that are not required to be disclosed by IAS 37 are stated at the amounts reported to Parliament.

1.29 Financial instruments

The Department of Health mainly relies on Parliamentary voted funding and receipt of a proportion of National
Insurance Contributions to finance its operations. The Department holds investments in private limited
companies and other items such as trade receivables and payables that arise from its operations and cash
resources. It does not enter into speculative transactions such as interest rate swaps. The Department enters
into forward contracts where a specific amount of foreign currency is required at a particular date in the future.

The Department's investment in NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and the Medicines & Healthcare Products
Regulatory Agency is represented by Public Dividend Capital (PDC) which, being issued under statutory
authority, is not classed as being a financial instrument.

Foreign currency forward purchase contracts are measured at fair value with movements in fair value being
charged or credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. The fair value is measured as the
difference between the currency's closing mid-market rate at the date of valuation (representing the spot rate)
and the rate stipulated in the contract, mulliplied by the number of contracted units of currency. The
Department obtains the closing mid-market rate from the Bank of England. The forward contracts will only have
a fair value up to their date of settlement Once each contract has been settled, it is removed from the
Department's Statement of Financial Position. Any forward contracts are purchased from the Bank of England.
As at 31 March 2012 the Department had no foreign currency forward purchase contracls in place.

1.30 Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the Deparment
becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or
services have been delivered. Financial assels are de-recognised when the contractual rights have expired or
the asset has been transferred. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is determined
by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation technigues.

As available for sale financial assets, the Department's investments are measured at fair value. With the
exception of impairment losses, changes in value are taken to the revaluation reserve. Accumulated gains or
losses are recycled to the CSCNE on de-recognition.

Where the Department has a formal investment in another public sector entity that does not meet the criteria for
consolidation (for example its investment in the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency) the
investment is measured at historic cost, less any impairment, as required by the FReM.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. This is the
rate that exactly discounts eslimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in value recognised in the CSCNE.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Depariment assesses whether any financial assets are
impaired. Financial assets are impaired, and impairment losses recognised, if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
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present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The loss
is recognised in the CSCNE.

1.31 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the Department
| becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when
the goods or services have been received. Note that the Core Department sets the following de minimis
threshold levels for the raising of manual accruals: £2,499 for accruals relating to administration budgets and
£9,999 for accruals relating to central programme budgets. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the
liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

Derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in value recognised in the CSCNE.

| After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life of
the asset to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest
method.

1.32 Foreign exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of all consolidated bodies are pounds sterling.

The large majority of the Department's foreign currency transactions relate to European Economic Area (EEA)
medical costs. Because of delays in submission of medical cost claims by member states, the Department
estimates annual medical costs and adjusts future years' expenditure when actual costs are claimed. Estimated
costs are converted into sterling at average rates calculated using EU published rates. Payments made are
valued at prevailing exchange rates and the Department enters into forward confracts for the purchase of Euros
for this purpose. Amounts in the Statement of Financial Position at year-end are converted at the exchange rate
ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date. Exchange rate gains or losses are calculated in accordance
with accepted accounting practice.

1.33 Assets belonging to third parties

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts
since the Department has no beneficial interest in them. These amounts are disclosed in Miote 30.

1.34 Losses and Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for
the Department or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are
therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into
different categories, which govern the way each individual case is handled. Futher information can be found on
the HM Treasury website: www.hm-treasury gov.uk. Losses and special payments are disclosed in Note 27.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings, including losses which would
have been made good through insurance cover had the Department not been bearing its own risks.

1.35 Transfer of Functions

In the course of 2011-12, certain functions were transferred to or from entities consclidated in this account, the
counter parties being other public sector entities. The majority of the transactions were in connection with the
“Transforming Community Services” (TCS) initiative, whereby elements of PCTs' provider functions transferred
to NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts or Social Enterprises.
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Such transactions are outside the scope of IFRS 3 Business Combinations. HM Treasury requires that merger
accounting is to be applied when functions transfer between two public sector bodies.

Merger accounting involves the presentation of the current year's results as if the recipient of the functions had
exercised those functions from the commencement of the year, whatever the actual date of the transfer.
Similarly, the entity relinquishing the functions presents results that exclude any transactions relating to those
functions for the full 12 month period. The Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure follows
this presentation and so excludes certain transactions carried out by PCTs, for example, where these are now
accounted for as 2011-12 NHS Trust or Foundation Trust transactions.

For TGS transactions specifically, HM Treasury and the FRAB have agreed that it is impracticable for NHS
bodies to re-state prior-period comparator figures in view of the degree of estimation and risk of mis-statement
that would have attended re-statements of financial data by individual NHS bodies. Had such information been
available, 2010-11 comparator figures in respect of, mainly, the provision of healthcare by PCTs would have
been reduced. The corresponding adjustments would have been found in NHS Trusts' and Foundation Trusts’
accounts which also consolidate into these accounts, meaning that the vast majority of TCS transfers have nil
impact at the consolidated account level as they are internal transfers between two Group bodies. As it is
impracticable for Group bodies to restate their prior periods, restatement is effected by an adjustment to 1 April
2011 opening balances rather than by full restaterment of comparators.

1.36 Accounting for the costs of the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme

The Department participates in the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme, which is in its
introductory phase until April 2014, The Department is required to purchase and surrender allowances,
currently retrospectively, on the basis of emissions, i.e. for carbon dioxide produced as energy is used. A
liability and an expense are recognised, measured at the best estimate of the allowances for the energy usage
in 2011-12.

1.37 Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2011-12. The
application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts in 2011-12, were
they applied in that year:

+ IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements (Other Comprehensive Income) - subject to consultation
» |AS 12 - Income Taxes (amendment) - subject to consultation

« |AS 19 Post-employment benefits (pensions) - subject to consultation

+ |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements - subject to consultation

= IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - subject to consultation

+ |FRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures (annual improvements) - effective 2012-13
« IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation

+ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - subject to consultation

+ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - subject to consultation

» IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - subject to consultation

+ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to consultation

IPSAS 32 - Service Concession Arrangement - subject to consultation

1.38 Significant Accounting Policies and material judgements

Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis by management. Areas of
significant judgement made by management are:-

IFRS 5 Assets Held qu Sale - impose conditions to be met for assets to be classified as Non Current Assets
Held for Sale. In meeting these conditions the Department has made a judgment that the asset sale will be
highly probable and the assets carrying amount will be recovered through a sale of the asset.
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IAS37 Provisions - judgement is made on the best estimate that can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties.

IAS38 Intangible Assets - Accounting note 12 shows the Department's consolidated position of Intangible
Assets. Recognition and measurement of Intangible Assets is in line with I1AS38. Management have made
| judgement to use the Retail Price Index as the most appropriate index for use in valuing the National
Programme for IT. The RPI has been used as it is the Department’s consideration that, given the size of the
National Programme for IT, any IT specific index would be skewed by the programme itself.

IAS36 Impairments - Management make judgement on whether there are any indications of impairments to the
camrying amounts of the Departments Assets. The Department recognised impairments in respect of the
Emergency Preparedness Stockpile goods of £6 million in 2011-12, and in respect of the Pandemic Flu
Countermeasures Stockpile goods of £21 million. Both Impairments resulted from the stockpiled goods
reaching their shelf life. There was a marked reduction in UK demand for a number of stockpiled medicines and
as a result, it was not possible to sell all the stocks back to the market. An impairment of Essential Medicines
stockpile goods of £1 million has been recognised as a result. As a result of contract negotiations with CSC
NHS Connecting for Health undertook a review of the assets held on the non-current asset register. As a result
an impairment of £44 million has been recognised.
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1b Restatement

A significant number of accounting policy changes have arisen in-year, primarily as a result of changes to
FReM requirements driven by HM Treasury Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation. Except where explicitly
agreed with the Financial Reporting Advisory Board and HM Treasury, in line with IAS 8 requirements, these
accounting policy changes have been applied retrospectively and prior period comparators restated to ensure
comparability. Additionally, three Core Department prior period errors have been amended via prior period
adjustments, all of which affect the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position only. The overall impact of
the restatement on the 2010-11 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure and Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2011 is shown below. An explanation of the nature and value of
the various items contributing to the restatement is also provided.

Restatement: Consolldated Statemant of Comprehensive Not Expenditure
Fior the year ended 31 March 2011

2010-11 restated account as reported oo 2049.11 published account (B
in 2011-12 (&) o " e variance (A-B)

For the yaar anded 31 March 2011 For the year ended 31 March 2011

Corm Deparimental Core Capartmental Core Departmantal
Dapariment Group Department Group Dopartmant Group
£000 £000 L1000 L1000 E'000 E'000
Adminkstration Cosia:
Siafl cosls 167 572 167,572 167572 167,572
COrtheesr administration costs T 450 76,450 76,490 76,450 - .
Oiparating incoms {4,405} (4,406) (4 ,405) {4,405) = {1
Grant in Aid to MDPBEs + - - - E E
Funding io Group Bodies . - . - - €
Programmae Costs:
Stal Costs 182,108 45,599,102 162108 T.8E3 207 = 38 T15.895
Programme Costs 6,155,682 62 676434 6473140 98776992 {317 448) (35,689, 558)
Income (1,200,645) (5.608.017) {1,200,648) (21,362, 114) = 15,754, 007
Granl in Asd ta NOFBs 313 447 - - e 13447 -
Funding ta Group Bodies 8 200 492 . . - 96, 200 497 =
Neot Operating Costs for the year
anded 31 March 2011 101,580,747 10,207 175 5694 256 85,636,742 965, 196,491 18,570,433
Total sxpendiure 103,095, 801 106,619,508 6,898 310 107,003 261 6,196,491 2,818,337
Total income {1,206, 054) (B612.429) {1,205, 054) {21,388 519) - 15,754 087
Nt Operating Costs for the yoar
anded 31 March 2011 101 BS0, T4T 104 207 175 56484 _I56 85,636,742 96,196 491 18,570,433
Other Comprihanshne Expenditure
Hel (gainkioss an:
revaluation of propeny, plant and
equpmen (73,858) (850,110 (T3, B58) {234 451) = (525.654)
revaluation of Assets hehd for
rovaluation of intangibles {137, 726) (13%8.018) {137, 726) {137, 726) = (25@)
revaluation of imaestments {115,724) (115.997) {115,724 {115,784) - (233
Impasrmanl and resersais 28,834 £63 377 28,634 131,805 - 361,472
transfermed 1o revaluation ressne
- dispasal of available for 58k
fingncial assels . - = - E
= other reserees - [135) . - - {135)
- Achuanial gainsi losses) on
dafinad beanafi
fl pension schemes : (32.216) ¢ A : (32.218)
- fifer gains and (s3e8) - (4,048) . (4,045)
Release of resenms o the CSCHE - 965 2 5 - 65
Total Comprehensive
Expanditune fof the year ended 31
March 2011 101,852,073 103,550,955 & 395 587 85,280,708 06,196,481 18,270,289
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Restalement: Consolidmed Stitemen of inancial position

LR PR L LY

2010-11 restaled account &s reported in 204913 (4] Par 201011 published sccouni (B) Wariance [A-B]
2011 2011
000 000 000
Core Depastmentsl Care Deparimental Core  Gepattmantsl
Deparment Group Dapardment Groiap Department Group
Non-Curmant suses
Prosgiety el 33 deyaapeminn! 1.7 571 47 366,085 1,207 008 B T30 [X2Ty 3 B 508
Inmacitrman propanty 3H B4, BOF . . i3 B4 80T
Innlangplin ALsaty 1, 4005 G55 1,504, 42 1,465 608 AT i al L]
Financial &isals 25323817 1,080, 823 25323847 25 3T = (34,212, 888)
e NOA-CLIENY &Sl 13 8TE k] 129,075 03 AR - &0 TS
Total ron-current asssts 8,247,186 (A B TR TAT. 198 35, BE1.B13 = 15,168,167
Current assels.
Assaty Classifed as Fald for sobe 5,084 25682 B0 77238 . 138 42T
IPip el el BG. 428 00 2 B9 48 ag, TT . TH 545
Tende and el recenabies 100,883 1,007,057 b lore] BOS 434 5 884 108
CHnas cument sty 184,434 1,233,178 184 458 540,020 - [TTRE]
Forubical Baaaty 189,138 47 551 180,128 164, 768 - {148 20
it B CaSh Sguivalants 1,624 255 5 B 68T 1,519,343 1,724,488 5013 4,187 169
Tolal eurrenl assets 2,194,151 9,398,865 2,183,778 3,612,748 19,877 5,685 T18
Totsl saasts 30,441,148 0,338,445 30,430,472 29,474, 66 16,877 20,853,883
Current labiiities.
Trade and olhed
pary bl {1986.507) {5, 184 061) {19,009 {4,420,320) [2,568) (TE3.T41)
Other Ratasas (2708, 1209 (8,140,804} {2,004 033 (4, 708, 523} 154 S04 3434 411)
Frovsons (270, 508 {3,068, 331) {270 005 {2,700, 44T) = {350, 154)
Total current Mabilibes [3176,712) (16,394 336} 13,365,058 [11,834, 890§ 10138 4,557, 336
Non-Curent ELses
plusiess net
current
ssneiniiakiitios
T, 827 43,834,119 IO A4 7,637 672 23,213 16, 796, 4T
Mon-cunmer llabities
Cenar payabies (52719 BTT.X5 (157,438 [211.701) {105.280) [405,6234 )
Prowsions (121801 (18,704 i) (1.298,0000 118,215,774 ; {480, G0}
Pt pabreenn aes el (habwbty | . (21 ) - . {21 068)
Financul babdises (T s {1048 STH) (72685 20tk - [AGSAS)
Testal pon-current labilites {11, 04) (27006279 [1.446,414) {78,837 61E) {196,280) __ (hBS4.841)
Total Axsats bria Wabilites 15831933 18,047 840 25,615,000 §,109,954 7433 8,927 BLE
Taxpaysn’ squity
Genanl fund 25,158 933 BOTIZE 25 150,009 .04 07 TEa (Ea )
Eirraluaton resaray 484011 279 530 #4041 1.5 872 - T, 1 BB
Cicrafesd Fabal iadei = . 12 s = [fr=diail]
Cihar rosenves - 158 104 . - = 164, 104
Totsl Tazpayers” Equity 15622033 1B 03T B0 25.815,000 0, 008, BE 7033 8,927,838

The Department's Annual Report and Accounts have been restated in respect of the following:

« Under HM Treasury's Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation the Departmental Group has expanded to
include NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and all Arms Length Bodies. The number of individual
organisations’ accounts consolidated into the Departmental Group account has therefore increased from
169 in 2010-11 to 437 in 2011-12.

« As mentioned in Note 1 Statement of accounting policies the Department has applied the impraticability
exemption allowed under IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in estimates and errors. By this: “Applying a
requirement is impracticable when the entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so.”
The element of restatement considered impracticable is the elimination of trading inter-company
transactions and balances for the expanded DH Group. In 2010-11, when completing the Agreement of
Balances exercises, the majority of entities that are now new to the group were not required to participate.
Therefore, despite the Department having carried out three Agreement of Balances exercises in an attempt
1o obtain the information required to restate its 2010-11 financial statements and the 2009-10 Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, a material mismatch has remained. This mismatch creates uncertainty with
regards to the accuracy of the elimination of inter-company transactions and balances upon consolidation,
and, given that the Department has made every reasonable effort to recreate the data required for accurate
elimination, and a material mismatch still exists, it has chosen to apply the IAS 8 impracticablity exemption
for 2010-11 and 2009-10. HM Treasury and the NAO agree that the non-recurrent application of this
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exemption is appropriate, given the unigue set of circumstances affecting the Departmental Group account
in 2011-12 because of Alignment.

In applying the IAS 8 impracticability exemption, the Department recognises that its consolidated prior
period income, expenditure, payable and receivable figures cannot be restated to a fully comparable level,
Given these figures may not represent a true and fair view of the activities of the Departmental Group the
consolidated prior period figures have not been audited, with each consolidated comparative column
headed “unaudited” to highlight this. The Department has nevertheless adopted a “best endeavours”
approach to producing prior period comparators for its 2011-12 accounts. Under this approach, whilst
recognising and disclosing the limitations resulting from the residual Agreement of Balances mismatch, the
Department has produced prior period figures that are as comparable, accurate and meaningful to the
users of the accounts as possible, as required by IAS 1. The key features of the Department’s approach to
producing prior period comparatives are as follows:

o The Department's Annual Report and Account continues to include prior period comparatives,
including three consolidated Statements of Financial Position as required by IAS 1;

All practicable restatements, whether required as a result of Alignment or other accounting
changes and as detailed in this restatement Note, have been made, including those relating to the
expansion of the accounting boundary and the elimination of all non-trading inter-company
transactions and balances (e.g. public dividend capital, funding transactions and loans);

A “best endeavours” approach has been used in relation to the elimination of trading inter-company
transactions and balances in prior periods. As far as possible, the Department has replicated the
elimination techniques appied in the current accounting period; and

The Department's Annual Report and Accounts contains namrative disclosures to explain the
application of the |1AS 8 impracticability exemption, and to highlight where figures cannot be
restated to a fully comparable level. This includes a footnote to each primary statement affected by
the exemption.

The prior period agreement of balances discrepancies create uncertainty over the level of inter-company
transactions and balances to eliminate. If, for example, too much income was eliminated (resulting in an
understatement of consolidated income) too much expenditure would also be eliminated meaning there is a
classification error in the prior period accounts but no bottom line impact on either net operating cost or net
assets. The 2011-12 opening balances are similarly unaffected. The NAO have included an emphasis of
matter report in their opinion, which cross refers to the Department’s own disclosures on this matter and
highlights the fact that they are not providing an audit opinion on the comparatives and explains why this
was not possible.

Following a change in the interpretation of IAS 20 for the public sector context, the 2011-12 FReM changes
the accounting treatment in respect of government grants, donations and lottery grants. From 2011-12,
Group bodies will no longer hold Government Grant or Donated Asset Reserves. The balances on such
reserves have been transferred to the General Fund and Revaluation Reserve as appropriate. Where
assets are funded by government grant or donation the financing element of the transaction is now
recognised as income and taken through the CSCNE. The closure of these reserves means that there will
na longer be any release from the reserves to current year income to, for example, offset depreciation and
loss on disposal transactions. The restatement of prior period comparators, so as to present these figures
as if the new accounting policy had always applied, relates solely to certain Departmental Group bodies as
the Core Department does not hold donated or government granted assets. As reported in the published
2010-11 Department of Health Annual Report and Account, the 2010-11 NHS Trust Summarised Account,
the 2010-11 Consolidated Foundation Trust Account and the published 2010-11 annual accounts of the
Department of Health’s Non Departmental Public Bodies, the collective balance on the donated asset and

government grant reserves held by bodies within the Departmental Group was £1,540m at the 31 March
2011,

In prior years, National Insurance Contributions were recognised as income in the Departmental Group
Consolidation rather than within the Core Department. From 2011-12, as a consequence of the Clear Line
‘.’f Sight (alignment) legislation, Mational Insurance Contributions are classified as funding rather than
income, and are thus credited to the general fund upon receipt. 2010-11 income associated with the

Departmen_tm Group has been reduced by £17,172,023,000 to reflect this change and so ensure
comparability with the current year.
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From 2011-12, as a consequence of HM Treasury’s Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation, Estimates
are Voted on a net basis. As a result, the concept of excess appropriations in aid (A-in-A) no longer exists,
and the Department retains-all income generated with the exception of that falling outside the Ambit of the
Vote. In 2010-11 the Department classified £735,792,000 of income as excess A-in-A. In line with HM
Treasury guidance, the Statement of Parliamentary Supply and all supporting notes have been restated to
reflect this change. As the £735,792,000 remains payable to HM Treasury, it remains within the 2010-11
payables note (Note 19) but has been recategorised as an "Other amount payable to the Consoclidated
Fund® as it is no longer a Consoclidated Fund Extra Receipt.

The format of the 2011-12 Statement of Parliamentary Supply, and its supporting note: Analysis of net
resource outturn by section (Mote 2), have changed significantly in comparison to prior years as a result of
the Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation. Estimates are now prepared on a budgeting basis with a
reconciliation provided between net resource outturn and net operating cost. Requests for Resources no
longer exist, with net outturn against Estimate instead being analysed between Resource DEL, Capital
DEL, Resource AME and Capital AME as well as between Voted and Non-Voted net expenditure. The
2010-11 Statement of Parliamentary Supply and supporting note have been restated to reflect the new
Estimate structure and so ensure comparability with the current year. This is a categorisation change only
and does not result in a change to overall net resource outturn,

In the course of 2011-12, certain functions were transferred to or from entities consolidated in this account,
the counter parties being other public sector entities. The majority of the transactions were in connection
with the “Transforming Community Services™ (TCS) initiative, whereby elements of PCTs' provider functions
transferred to NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts or Social Enterprises. Such transactions are outside the
scope of IFRS 3 Business Combinations. HM Treasury requires that merger accounting is to be applied
when functions transfer between two public sector bodies. Merger accounting involves the presentation of
the current year's results as if the recipient of the functions had exercised those functions from the
commencement of the year, whatever the actual date of the transfer. Similarly, the entity relinquishing the
functions presents results that exclude any transactions relating to those functions for the full 12 menth
period. For TCS transactions specifically, HM Treasury and the FRAB have agreed that it is impracticable
for NHS bodies to re-state prior-period comparator figures in view of the degree of estimation and risk of
mis-statement that would have attended re-statements of financial data by individual NHS bodies. As it is
impracticable for Group bodies to restate their prior periods, restatement is effected by an adjustment o 1
April 2011 opening balances rather than by full restatement of comparators.

Investment property is defined as property (land, buildings or part of a building) held by the owner or by the
lessee under a finance lease to earn rentals, or for capital appreciation, or both, rather than for a) use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or b) sale in the ordinary course of
business. In previous years investment property has not been separately disclosed due to the immaterial
value of investment property held by bodies within the Departmental Group. Rather it was included within
land and buildings in the Property Plant and Equipment note. The expansion of the accounting boundary to
include NHS Foundation Trusts has significantly increased the value of investment property held by
consolidated bodies and thus, per IAS 40 Investment Property requirements, investment property is now
separately disclosed. Prior period Statement of Financial Position figures have been restated to ensure
comparability, with £0.3m and £66.5m of investment property now separately disclosed in respect of the
Core Department and Departmental Group respectively as at 31 March 2011

The analysis of Other administration costs (Note 8), Programme costs (Note 8) and Administration and
programme income (Note 10) has been revisited in 201 1-12 to ensure that all items of significance to the
Departmental Group are individually listed. As a result, a number of income and expenditure categories are
now separately disclosed which were previously incorporated within larger aggregate figures, or which were
reported in more detail in the NHS Summarised Accounts. Whilst the 2010-11 figures have been restated to
ensure comparability, this is a recategorisation change only, with nil impact on the overall income and
expenditure totals.

The CSCNE has been restated to separately disclose the £313 million of grant in aid provided to NDPBs in
2010-11. In previous years these amounts were included within other costs.

The Core Department columns of the account have been restated to show Funding to Group Bodies as an
expenditure item rather than a reserves movement. This follows Treasury confirmation that under
Alignment Funding to Group Bodies and Grant in Aid to NDPBs should be treated consistently. The 2010-
11 Core Department “Net Parliamentary Funding — Drawn down" figure, which previously showed in-year
cash drawn down from the Consolidated Fund net of funding paid to Deparimental Group bodies, has
increased by £96,200,492k as a result, with Core Department expenditure having increased by the same
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amount. The Departmental Group figures are unaffected by this restatement as Funding to Group Bodies
is eliminated in full upon consolidation.

« The losses and special payments note (Note 27) has been restated to separately disclose losses and
special payments incurred by the Core Department and the Departmental Group. The value of losses and
special payments incurred is unaffected by this restaterment.

« The Statement of Operating Costs by Operating Segment (Note &) has been restated to ensure that the
reported operating segments mirror the information reported to the Departmental Board (the Depariment’s
chief operating decision maker) as required by IFRS B Operating Segments. In 2010-11, the operating
segments were NHS, DH Programme and DH Admin, whereas from 2011-12 onwards the operating costs
are further broken down between DH Core, PCT, SHA, NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts, ALBs
(Special Health Authorities) and ALBs {Executive Non-Departmental Public Bodies) as well as by
administration and programme income. The significant items of income and expenditure that are separately
disclosed by segment have also been restated to reflect the enhanced level of breakdown included within
the income and expenditure notes. The note also provides additional breakdowns of NHS information that
has historically been reported in the NHS Summarised Accounts.

« The Software Licences category of Intangible Non-Current Assets (Note 12) has been renamed "Software
Licences and Internally Developed Software” so it is clear that both types of intangible asset are included
within the category. This terminology change has nil impact on the current or prior year figures because
internally developed software has always been incorporated within this category.

A

« The provisions for liabilities and charges note (Note 20) has been restated to separately disclose pension,
restructuring and redundancy provisions. These provision types were previously included in the Other
category but are now considered sufficiently significant to warrant separate disclosure given the expansion
of the accounting boundary and the extent of restructuring arising from the Health and Social Care Act
2012.

« The NHS Business Services Authority acts as a payment agent for all injury benefit payments. The
expenditure in respect of pre-1997 injury benefits, for which the Department is responsible, is included
within the Department's accounts upon providing for such costs. The NHS Business Services Authority
then invoice the Department for the in-year amount paid against the provision. The expenditure in respect
of post-1997 injury benefits, for which NHS organisations (the employing authorities) are responsible, is
included by means of provisions within the accounts of those employing authorities, with the NHS Business
Services Authority again acting as a payment agent and recovering the amounts paid from each employing
authority. The Department has provided a working capital “float” to allow the NHS Business Services
Authority to undertake its role as a single payment agent for all injury benefit payments. This float provides
the working capital required to fund the gap between cash payment of injury benefit claims and the
subsequent recovery of funds from the Department, employing authorities or other organisations. The
Department retains ownership of the working capital float. However, in previous years the working capital
iterns constituting the float were excluded from the Department's accounts in error. Whilst this omission is
not considered material by value in the context of the Department's accounts, the 2010-11 figures have
nevertheless been restated to ensure the accuracy of the 2010-11 year-end cash balance which would
otherwise adversely impact the in-year cash movement disclosed in the Department's Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows. Note that the 2009-10 Statement of Financial Position has not been adjusted to
include the working capital float as insufficient data is held to make the adjustment. The impact of the 2010-
11 restatement is to increase receivables by £5,864k, increase cash by £1,011k, increase payables by
£4 674k and increase the closing general fund balance by £2 201k.

« £4 million of hosted cash used to make pharmaceutical payments has been added to the Core Department '
Statement of Financial Position via a prior period adjustment. This cash is held and administered by the
NHS Business Services Authority on behalf of the Department and was previously omitted from the
Department's accounts in error.

« In order to better reflect the true commercial substance of the outsourced Supply Chain arrangement, NHS
Business Services Authority (NHS BSA) have revised their accounting treatment in this area, with prior
period figures having been restated to reflect the revised accounting treatment. Previously, the individual
components of Supply Chain working capital totalling £65.5 million were reported separately in the
Statement of Financial Position and its associated notes. This total, which reflects the amount due to the
NHS BSA at the end of the arrangement on 30 September 2016, is now shown as a Financial Asset.
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Analysis of net resource outturn by section
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2.2 Analysis of net capital outturn by section

This nole compares outturmn with the figures approved by Parliament
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3,928,956 {142 685) 3,786,270 4,362 665 566,295 4,158 605
Arnually Mansged Expenditure (AME]
Vated:
PCT & SHA axpanciune - = - . - .
D+ Programme sapandituns (NHS) o - - . . 7.878
Spacuil Hadith ALRhont s apssnddurd
DH Pregrarrms and Admeresiralion
aEparSLeY
MHS Trusts nat expandiure d ) - o - -
MHS Foundaton Trusls nel axndiug - - - - = E
Non Depanmental Pulbe: Bodes n = - =
L
= - - - . 7,876
Tatal 3,928,956 (142,685) 3,786,270 4,152 565 556,205 4,166,481

Explanations of variances between Estimate and outturn are given in the Annual Report & Management
Commentary.
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3 Reconciliation of outturn to net operating cost and against Administration Budget

3.1 Reconciliation of net resource outturn to net operating cost

Unaudited
Restated
2011-12 2010-11
£°000 £'000
Mote Outturn Qutturn
Total resource outturn in Staternent of Parliamentary Supply

Budget 2.1 104 782,249 103,452,191

MNon-Budget 2.1 -
104,782,249 103,452,191
Add Capital Grants 206,948 260,163
PFUILIFT expenditure under IFRS 2032628 1,712,526
2,329,576 1,972 6849
Less: Income payable to the Consolidated Fund 5.1 {4,028) (14.494)
Donated asset'government granted income {167,151} {126,2486)
PFILIFT expenditure under UK GAAP (1,445 688) {1.116.954)

Prios parrod ad;usim&nls &
(1,610,868) {1,257.704)

Met Operating Cost in Consolidated Statement of
Comprehansive Net Expenditure 105,500,956 104,207 176

3.2 Outturn against final Administration Budget and Administration net operating cost

Unaudited

Restated

201112 2010-11

E'000 £°000

Outturn Outturn

Estimate - Administration limit 4,432 478 215,280

Outturn - Gross Administration Costs 3,817,220 244 061

Outturn - Gross income relating to adminisiration cosis {276,495) 4,354)

Qutturn - Net administration costs 3,540,725 238,707

Reconciliation to operating costs:

Add: Capital Grants 1,203
Add: PFULIFT expenditure under IFRS 34,264
Less: provisions ulilised (transfer from Programme) (73,255)
Less: PFILIFT expenditure under UK. GAAP (19,807)

Less: Income payable to the Consolidated Fund 2 {32}

Administration Met Operating Costs 3,483,330 239,655
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4  Reconciliation of net cash requirement to increase/{decrease) in cash

Unaudited
Restated
201112 2010-11
Mote £000 E'000
Met cash requirement (B5,263.864)  (B4,745,456)
From the Consobdated Fund (Supply) - current year B5.885 270 B4, 400,000
Amounts due 1o the Consolidated Fund received in prior year
and paid ovar {735,845) {176)
Amounts due to the Consolidated Fund received and not paid
over a5 53
Other amount repayable to the Consolidated Fund - 735,792
Maovement in overdrafi 415 (2,368)
Other 5.161 {98)
Increasel{decrease) in cash held by Department [excluding
MHS Trusts, Foundation Trusts and NDPBs) (1,108,768) 387,707
Add - Increasef{decrease) in cash hald by all other
consolidated bodies 1,022 258 522,624

Mel increase/{decrease) in cash held by deparimental group (86, 469) 910,331

5 Income payable to the Consolidated Fund

5.1 Analysis of income payable to the Consolidated Fund
In addition to income retained by the Department, the following income relates to the Department and is
payable to the Consolidated Fund (cash receipts being shown in italics).

Unaudited

Restated

Outtum 201112 Outtwen 2010-11

£000 £000

Income Receipts Income Receipls

Operating INCome outside the ambit of the Estimate 4029 95 14,454 =
Excess cash surenderable 1o the Consobidated Fund -

Total income payabile to the Consolidated Fund 4,029 85 14,494 53

5.2 Consolidated Fund Income

There were no amounts collected by the Department in cases where it was acting as an agent of the
Consolidated Fund.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS {

7  Staff numbers and related costs

7.1 Staff costs comprise:

Unaudited
Restated 2010
201142 1
E000 £000
Parmanently
employed Special
Todal wtaff Others Ministars_ Adviscrs Tolal
Salanes and Wages 38 835,154 35 B52 112 2,983 663 220 158 30 498 490
Social Securily Cosls 2,880,775 2 B55.718 31,013 4 20 2816404
MHS Pension 4,103,697 4,083,035 10,6682 - . 4 148 447
Oiher pension costs 90 855 81,004 9,859 1 42 25,230
Termination benelits 45T, 254 #59 661 7654 . 24 480,212
Sub-total 45 389,010 43,345,620 3,042,891 282 247 46,968,783
Less recovenes in respect of Outward Secondments [ 5.265) (5. 209 - = E 16.824)
Total Hot Costs 45 383,741 43,340,351 3,042,891 252 247 46,961 959
Of which Core Depatment Revenws Expenditure is 266,347 139,854 125,954 262 247 349,680
O which Core Depatiment Capital Expendiure is 15 841 a7 15,604 B . 27,804
O which other Depadmental Group bodes Rewnus
Expandilure is 46,023, 482 43,137,376 2,885 106 - - 46,575,994
Of which other Depanmental Group bodies Capeial
Expenditure i TR 2T &3,084 15 187 = - 67 481
Footnobe

1) NHS Connecting for Heath (responsible fer implementing major IT programmes in the NHS) is a major companent of the Department’s
Informatics Directorate. The employment contracts or secondment agreements of almost all of its staff are held for the Department on a
*hosted” basis by the NHS Business Services Authority. The staff costs associated with these employees are reported in the “Others”
column as they do not have a permanent employment contract with the Department.

7.2 Average number of persons employed

The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed during the year is shown in the table below.
These figures include those individuals working in the Department as well as in other bodies included within the
consolidated Departmental Annual Report and Accounts.

Average number of whola-time equivalent employees

Unaud ited
Restated
201112 2010-11
Humbar Numbar
Parmanant Special
Total stalf Othaers Ministers Advisors Total
Core Department (excluding NHS Connecting for
Haalth) 2,753 2.350 96 5 2 3,358
MWHE Connecting for Haalth 1,311 25 1.2686 - = 1.433
Primary Cars Trusts 51,528 47 G610 1,818 = - 185652
Strategic Health Authorities 3,880 2877 13 - - 4. 256
NHS Trusts 475,060 442 B0& 32,451 - - 449 853
KHS Foundation Trusts 566 702 527 GBS 39,037 - = 486,118
Special Health Authorities 4,246 3829 417 . - 4 456
hon Deparimental Public Bodies 6,080 5693 38T - - 5487
Cithars . - - . . -
Total 1,111,570 1,032,757 78,808 5 2 1,141,581
CH the above, the following stafl were engaged on capital projects:
Core Depafment (including MHS Connecting for
Haalth) 137 1 136 - - 214
Other Departmentsl Group bodies GEE 577 a9 4 - 280
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The average number of whole time equivalent persons employed during the year by NHS Foundation Trusts,
NHS Trusts and Primary Care Trusts (as set out in the table above) is analysed by employee type below.

Unaudited
Restatad
201112 2010-11
Humber MHumber

NHS HNHS
Foundation Primary  Foundation Primary Care
Trusis MHS Trusts Care Trusts Trusts MNHS Truats Trusts
Medical and gental 55,916 48 577 1,299 50,770 49 749 4,688
Ambulance staff 6,852 22,802 TS 3,501 26.513 116
Administration and eslates 116,718 100,030 31,977 104,122 a7 729 &6, 725
Healthcare aggistants and other support staff TE. 777 76,554 4,558 85,321 67,354 25,854
Nursing, midwilery and health wisiting staff 197,153 154,491 8,119 166,873 143 987 57,311
Mursing, migwifery and health visiting learners 2,580 1.618 30 1,895 1,561 519
Sciantific, therapeutic and lechnical staff B0 45T 66,181 4,058 65 514 59,332 26,401
Social Care staff 2 554 307 231 2429 238 1,352
Other 24 686 3.500 1.181 24 491 3,358 2525
Total 566,702 475 060 51,528 486,116 448 BEZ 185,652

Staff numbers in the accounts are calculated using a financial year average.

Core Department

The £83.33 million decrease in staff costs attributable to Core Department Revenue Expenditure (£266.35
million compared to £349.68 million in 2010-11) results from the interaction of two main elements: (i) the costs
of the recent voluntary exit scheme were predominantly reported in the prior year (with a value of £20.73
million). The costs of exit in 2011-12 reduced to £2.26 million (a £18.47 million decrease); (i) a departmental
objective to reduce the number of non-permanent workers predominantly accounts for a £52 .84 million
reduction in “Other” staff costs (£125.99 million compared to £178,83 million in 2010-11).

NHS Workforce

On the basis of financial year average whole time equivalent numbers as reported in the accounts of NHS
organisations, the total number of staff employed within the NHS reduced during 2011-12 by 2.55%, from
1,125,877 to 1,097,180.

Strategic Health Authorities

Strategic Health Authorities will remain statutory bodies until the end of the 2012-13 financial year. The average
number of staff employed in the SHA sector reduced by 366 or 8.60% (from 4,256 to 3,890) compared to 2010-
11. This modest decrease is principally because SHA staffing levels have been maintained throughout the year

to manage close down activities across SHA areas, and to ensure the proper transfer of functions to successor

organisations, most notably the NHS Commissioning Board and Health Education England. However, there has
been a clear movement from permanent to non-permanent staff categories.

Primary Care Trusts

The average number of staff employed by PCTs decreased by 134,124 (or 72.2%) in 2011-12 to 51,528. This
very significant reduction is a direct result of the transfer of functions under the “Transforming Community
Services” initiative, under which large numbers of staff moved into NHS Foundation Trusts, NHS Trusts and a
small number of community interest companies and social enterprises. The number of PCT managers and
senior managers has also reduced significantly (30% reduction in full-time equivalents), which, apart from the
impact of TCS, reflects the commitment to reduce administration costs and the clustering of PCTs in advance
of their abolition at the end of March 2013.
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NHS Trusts

The average number of staff employed by NHS Trusts in 2011-12 increased by 25,207 or 5.6%, (from 449 852

to 475,058). A principal reason for this increase has been the transfer of provider functions from Primary Care
Trusts under the Transforming Community Services initiative.

NHS Foundation Trusts

The average number of staff employed by NHS Foundation Trusts in 2011-12 increased by 80,586, or 16.6%,
(from 486,116 in 2010-11 to 566,702 in 2011-12). In a similar way to NHS Trusts, one principal reason for this
increase has been the transfer of provider functions from Primary Care Trusts.

Arms Length Bodies

The average number of full time equivalent staff employed in the Department's Arms Length Bodies (Special
Health Authorities and Non-Departmental Public Bodies) decreased by 597, or 5.5% (i.e. from 10,923 in 2010-
11 to 10,326 in 2011-12). This decrease is the net result of a total reduction of 868 full time equivalent staff in
existing ALBs, offset by an increase of 181 to reflect the appointment of staff to two new organisations (The

NHS Commissioning Board Special Health Authority and the Health Research Authority) and of 80 in NICE and

Monitor to reflect the extended roles for those organisations as set out in the Health & Social Care Act 2012,

7.3 Reporting of Civil Service and other compensation schemes - exit packages

[ ARy
M4
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Exd paciage vost Wit ool Conit of ipacil L] Mymbar of Codz 2f 1008
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Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Civil Service
Compensation Scheme, a statutory scheme made under the Superannuation Act 1972. Exit costs are
accounted for in full in the year of departure. Where the department has agreed early retirements, the
additional costs are met by the department and not by the Civil Service pension scheme. lll-health retirement
costs are met by the pension scheme and are not included in the table.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages taken by staff leaving in the year. The expense
associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period. Where early
retirements have been agreed, the additional costs are met by the organisation and not by the NHS pension
scheme. lll-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pension scheme and are not included in the table.
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Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS)

The Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme.
As such, the Department of Health is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The
scheme actuary valued the scheme as at 31 March 2007. Details can be found in the Annual Repert and
Accounts of the Cabinet Office: Civil Superannuation www civilservice gov. uk/pensions.

For 2011-12, employers' contributions of £22 237,894 were payable to the PCSPS (2010-11 restated:

£24 447 529) at one of four rates in the range 16.7% to 24.3% (2010-11: 16.7% to 24.3%) of pensionable pay,
based on salary bands. The Scheme Actuary reviews employer contributions usually every four years following
a full scheme valuation. The contribution rates are set to meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2011-12
to be paid when the member retires and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners.

Employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an employer
contribution. Employers' contributions of £92,249 were paid to one or more of the panel of three appointed
stakeholder pension providers. Employer contributions are age-related and range from 3% to 12%.

Employers also match employee contributions up to 3% of pensionable pay. In addition, employer
contributions of £7.298. 0.8% of pensionable pay, were payable to the PCSPS to cover the cost of the future
provision of lump sum benefits on death in service and ill health retirement of these employees.

Contributions to the Partnership pension providers at the Statement of Financial Position date were £8,181.
Contributions prepaid at that date were ENil.

One individual retired early on ill-health grounds; the total additional accrued pension liabilities in the year
amounted to £4,140.

From 1 April 2012, most members of the various PCSPS arrangements will pay extra contributions towards
their pensions. In its 2011 Budget, the Government accepted the recommendations put forward by Lord Hutton
in his independent review of public service pension schemes. In completing this review, Lord Hutton recognised
that people are generally living longer whilst also noting that, in the past, improvements to the life expectancy of
PCSPS members had been mostly paid for by taxpayers as a whole, rather than those scheme members
themselves. This had given rise to a relatively urgent need to rebalance contributions. The new contribution
rate will be assessed on the value of pensionable eamings at 31 March 2012, However, members of the
scheme who earn a full-time equivalent of less than £15,000 per year will not see an increase in their
contributions. There are no plans to change the four rates of employer contribution as set out above. Neither
will there be any change to partnership pension arrangements.

MHS Pension Scheme

The NHS Pension scheme is an unfunded, multi-employer defined benefit scheme. Individual NHS bodies are
therefore unable to identify their shares of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. The scheme actuary
valued the scheme as at 31 March 2004. Details can be found on the pension scheme website at
www.nhsbsa.nhs uk/pensions.

For 2011-12, employers’ contributions were payable to the NHS Pension Scheme at the rate of 14% of
pensionable pay. The scheme's actuary reviews employer contributions every four years following a full
scheme valuation. The last review took effect from April 2008 with the employer contribution rate maintained at
14%_ These costs are included in the NHS pension line of note 7.1.

Of the £4,104 million (2010-11 restated: £4,147 million) against NHS pension costs in note 7.1, £220 million
(2010-11 £709 million) is attributable to PCTs, £20 million (2010-11 £22 million) to SHAs, £1,782 million (2010-
11 £1.662 million) to NHS Trusts and £2,074 million (2010-11 £1 ,780 million) to NHS Foundation Trusts.

Other Pension schemes

Within the Departmental Group, the Care Quality Commission and a number of Foundation Trusts account for
defined benefit pension scheme assels and liabilities primarily in respect of local government superannuation
schemes. These schemes are immatenal to the group account and therefore have not been disclosed
separately within these financial statements. Full disclosures are available in the underlying bodies own

published accounts.
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& Other administration costs

Unaudited
Restated
201112 201011
[n: o] £000
Core Departmental Core  Departmental
Mzt Department Group Department H
Rertal Unger Qperatng Leases any 40223 1417 11,417
Interest Crarpes 13 B 18 16
Char and non-daboutive Directors” costs 37 15182 - -
PCT Executive Committes member cosis . 16,845 - -
Suppilies and serwces - Cirecal (exciuding Drugs) - 10624 E =
Goods and servces from other NHS bodes - 5588 - -
Ml Professional Education and Training (MPET) - E - -
GPMS, APMS and PCTMS - 14 343 e =
Mon GMS Sarvces from GPg - 18,130 - -
Consultancy senices 17.831 111,228 (264) 264
Estabiishment 30163 21T AN 10,087 10,087
Transport (Business Travel) 185 16,498 3338 338
Fremisas 17,144 390341 12,037 12.027
Non cash items
Movement in provision for mpairment of recenables. - 8999 126} (126}
Deprecialion on propérty. plant and Squipmsnt 12,815 1T2.119 522 5222
Amortisation on ntangible assets 10897 B ESS 833 B335
Proft on desposal of property plant and equipmsent B 4 . -
Loss on disposal of property plani and eguapment 4 8685 - 3
Profit on disposal of intangible non cument assets - - . b
Loss on disposal of intangible non Curment 3338ts % a3 - =
Frofit on disposal of Assats held for Sake , - = -
Loss on disposal of Assets held for sake - - - -
Profit on desposal of financial asset nvestments - - - -
Loss on dgpossl of Snancial asset investments = “ k -
Imparments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 252 413 18 18
Impairments and reversals of mestment properbes - - - =
impasmments and reversais of intangible assels - 1.600 Lo 895
Imparments and eversals of ingncial assats - 27.985 - -
impaaments and reversais of non-cument assets hekd for
EER - = = =
Aupgi feas - non cash a 545 833 B&5 BE&S
Orthveer mion-Carsh E (1,338) - -
Inveniones impasment and wite off 2 % = =
Irvitores revabsaton - - -, -
Inventones consumed - - - -
Legal feas : - 2,893 5 -
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Audit feas - statutory audit - 31,428 -

Other audilors remuneration - 5.581

Clinical neghgence ‘ : 3377

Research and development 10,640 13,496 51 51
Education and training 1.601 62,658 1,346 1,346
Insuranca 1 10 T a7
Grants 1o Local Authofites - - - .
Granis o Other bodies - 10,642 - -
Capital Grants = 1,203 g -
MHS Informatics Major Contracts Cost T.861 7.8581 - :
Othar 54,528 432 056 6614 26,614
Sub total 195,642 1,872,126 76,490 76,490
Grant in Ald 143 689 - . T
Funding 1o Group Bodies 2,828,338 . . -
Toal 3,167,668 1,872,126 76,490 76,450

Mote a - The Core Department audit fee represents the cost of the audit of the Department’s Annual Report and Accounts
carried out by the Comptreller and Auditor General.

Note b - The total of non-cash ransactions included in the Reconciliation of Operating Costs to Operating Cash flows in the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows comprises.

Unaudited
Restated
201112 2010-11
000 £'000
Departmental Departmental
Group Group
Othar administration costs - non-cash iems [Note 8) 260,187 14,811
Programme costs - non-cash iterns (Nobe 5) 14,834 T 13,905,091
Other non-cash amounts charged fo operating axpendibure - .
Less non-cash income: - incoma recognised in nkspect of Donated Assets {128,610) {130,0358)
Tolal non-cash transactions 14,968,308 13,789,866
Movement in provisson for impasmrent Oof recenvalbles {114,232} {102,833}
Inveriones revaluation 15,010 =
Inventones consumed {5, 70T 64T} (5,082 442)
inveniones impairmant and wate off (8.703) (B2.251)
Less non cash movements on S5oFP balances analysed separately in the Cash Flow statement {5.813.572) (5,257 628)
Total non cash transsctions s per Consolidated Statement of Cash flow 9,152,736 8,532,240
Footnotes
1) As detailed in Note 1.6, the 2010 Spending Review Settlement Letter expanded the boundary of the Depariment’s administration costs

2)

3)

)

regime to include Arms Length Bodies, Strategic Health Authorities and the commissioning functions of Primary Care Trusts
Expenditure on the direct provision of healthcare or healthcare related services by NHS provider organisations (including NHS Trusts
and NHS Foundation Trugts) remains classified as programme. The 2010-11 Administration costs figures have not been restated 1o
reflact the wider interpretation of Adminisiration costs adopled in 2011-12, rather the 2010-11 adminigtration and programme cost
figures within this account continue fo reflect the Administration costs regime in place at the time. As agreed with HM Treasury and the
Financial Reporting Advisory Board, it is impracticable, as defined by 1AS8, for NHS bodies to restate prior period income and
expenditure figures based on an Administralion costs regime that was nol in place ai the time. Consolidated administration costs have
therefore increased significantly in comparison to the prior year due to the reclassification of costs which were previously recorded as
programme. Additicnally, in 2011-12 HM Treasury re-calegorised a numbaer of core Department administration and programme
expenditure types, with the movement being predominantly from programme to administration. Reclassified items include cenain
grant-in-aid expenditure and pelicy payments. The Department has applied this revised methodology from 1 April 2011, thus ensuring
a consistent date of application for the revised Administration costs regime across the Depanmental Group. The Depariment
estimates the net impact of this re-categorisation to be in the region of a £250 million increase to administration costs.

Due o the major re-categorisation of costs between adminisiration and programme from 201112, year-on-year cost comparisons are
best undertaken at the aggregate level (i.e. administration and programme costs collectively). Overall Core Depariment expenditure
on grant in aid reduced from £313.45 million in 2010-11 to £242.15 million in 2011-12 (3 £71.30 million reduction).

General Medical Services /Personal Medical Services (G/PMS), Alternative Provider Medical Services (APMS) and Primary Care
Trust Madical Services (PCTMS) are differing models for providing primary care Services.

In 2014-12 the Mon cash transaction balance taken to the Cashflow, is £68.9m greater than the letal balance above. This is due Lo the
reclassification of Computer Sciences Corporation’s (C5C) assels.
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kol
Rantal Under Dpatating Loases
Rentals Under Oparating Leases
Inberest charges
Chair and not-executive Dirnssions’ costs
PCT Executive Commithee member cosls
Supplies and services - clinikal (exchuding Drugs)
Supplies and services - ganaral
Goods and services from olher NHS bodies
Punchase of healhcans fom non NHS bodiss
Purchase of Social Care from independent Providers

Expendiung on Drug Action Teams
General Dental Services (G0E) and Personal Damal Senscas
{FDS)

Muki Professional Education and Trasning (MPET)

Prescribing Costs

Fhamaceutical Services’

General Dphthalmic Senaces

G/PME, APMS and PCTME"

Mon GMS Services from GPs

Consulancy senvices

Esiablishment

Transpon (Business Trawel)

Premises

Legal fees

Mon cash iems
Movament in provison lor mpasrment of recevables
Depreciation on property, plant and equigment
Amorlisation on intangible asses
Profit on cisposal of propeny plam and equipment
Lass on disposal of propeny plant and equipment
Praifit on dispasal of inkangible nom curment assets
Loss on dispasal of intangible non cument assels
Prafit on disposal of Assets held for sabs
Loss on dispasal of Assats hald for sabs
Prodit on disposal of financial asset imvestments
Loss on daposal of inandcial assel masiments
Impairmients and reversals of property. pland and squipment
Impairmenis and reversals of ifvesiment propertsas
Impairments and reversals of inlangible asses
Impairmaenis and myversals of financial assels invesiments
Imipairmierts and reversals of non-curment assels hald for sake
A fees - non cash®
Provision provided for in year - EEA®
Provision provided for in year - Clinical Negligancs
Provision provided for in year - injury Benedit
Provision provided fof in year - Oriher
Urreiriding of discount on prowvissons
Crher non-cash Expendture
Invenionies imparment and wrile off
Inventories revallation

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Unaudited

Restabed

w142 2010-11

000 £000

Com DogartmenLal Cor Copartmental

Dapartmant Group Dapartment Group

458 790,366 12.108 681579

2618 450,962 4035 (A= ]

24872 ; 43579

318 18,330

4,433 624 3487 903

1,355,723 : 1,307,316

22,728 - 25558

8,674,886 8,562, 480

120,565 - 385 424

373,025 356,855

2812681 2652979

1,121,804 - 1,158,580

8,243 489 8,280,308

2,130,334 2,039,563

450,440 4T8ETS

7,455,062 7,304 40

166,844 149, 577

308 362,003 22 482 485,554

98 810 1,102,500 132,831 1,374,525

512,371 128 514,541

1,958 3,178,586 5,980 3,347,933

45,074 4234

(1,208) 105,233 215 103,058

93,189 2,224 518 04,322 2,330,130

L4701 631,684 586,712 E8E 714
{1.224) {27.017) {1,405) (28,043} |
§.802 17,741 5522 26,620 |
{1,518) |
0 B4 1,391 |
{2.783) (803) '

a0 724

(2.345) (2)

- 1
38835 1,233,143 11,083 1,438 554 |

- 175 z

43 890 L4160 6,153 15,220

2247 3,168 5485 31,956
- 26,108 - §.308 |

" B5
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Unaudited
Restaled
201112 01011
£000 £ 000
Programms Costs Nate continued wd mpa-::: n“"";:::: D-w::: mpm;:r;
Inventonied conumed 205,578 5,707,547 168,530 5083 442
Audi fees - siatulory sudi (cash] 31,182 E7 629
Oher SUGAOES remunaration 11,372 17,803
Clinical reghgonce 34,288 71.249
Research o devalopment G04.018 1,051,806 520,530 1,053,744
Education and braining 858 322502 TAaa 00,520
Earty rétirements 5927 757
Insurance 8 17655 13 16,274
Granis to Locad Aulhomics 1,345,185 1,346,195 1,325 445 1,525 445
Giranits 10 Other bodies 234 B74 384 005 321,678 72,225
Capatal Grans 237 484 795,745 1546 625 260,163
IMHS Informatics Mapor Contracis Cost 445 BEE 445 556 473,680 433 580
PDC Dwvidend Fayabio
Oithes 654 931 912 243 816,128 1,455,821
Sub toial 8,668,801 83,561,762 6,158,691 B2876 434
Grant in A 98450 313 447
Funding 10 Group Bodied 94,820,215 5,200,452
Tatal 100,588,578 53,661,763 102,659,620 62 876 434
Unaudited
Rastated
201142 201011
E000 £000
Audiors’ rmuneriiicn
Auditors” Ramuneraton - Ausdit Fees 3,192 67 628
Auditors’ Remuneration - Othes Faes 11,372 17,602

The audit fee represents the cost of the audit of the financial statements of group bodies consolidated within the
Departmental Group account. The Comptroller and Auditor General and auditors appointed by the Audit
Commission undertake these audits.

Footnotes

1) Please see the footnote to Note B Adminisiration costs which explains differences in the classification of cosls between administration
and programme batween 2010-11 and 2011-12.

2) General Dental Services (GDS) and Personal Dental Services (PDS) are alternative maodels for dental care.

3) Pharmaceutical Services includes Local Pharmaceutical Services Pilots and the New Pharmacy Contract.

4) GeneralPersonal Medical Services (GIPMS), Allernative Provider Medical Services (APMS) and Primary Care Trust Medical Semvices
(PCTMS) are differing models for providing primary care semnices.

5) The audil fee represenis the programme cost for the audit of the underlying financial statements of consolidated bodies. Wilh the
exception of NHS Foundalion Trusts, consolidated bodies are audited by the Complroller and Auditor General (Arms Length Bodwes and
Special Health Authorities) or an Audit Commission appointed auditor (MHS Trusts, Primary Care Trusis and Strategic Health Authontes)
and include expenditure in respect of audit fees in their individual accounts. The accounts of MHS Foundation Trusts are audded by
auditors appointed by lheir board of governers and also include expenditure in respect of audit fees.

B) Provisions provided for in year in respect of European Economic Area (EEA) medical cosis decreased from £788.30 millien in 2010-11 1o
E613.75 million in 2011-12 (a reduction of £174 55 million). The main réasons for this decrease are as follows: i) A favourable move in the
euro exchange rale; ii) The actual claims activity of France being lower than expected in 2010 leading 1o revised claims estimates for 2011-
12, and iii) a bilateral agreement with Ireland made in 2011 lowenng (he original activity assumplions,
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10 Income

10.1 Administration Income

Unaudited
Restated
201112 w1011
000 £'000
Departmental Cepartmental
Core Departmant Group Core Department Group
Audministration income:;
Income from Local Authorities . 14,975
Sale of Goods and Sorvices 8,241 BE1S 614 614
Incom innespes of EEA daims
Qb Men Trading Income
Oiher Fees and Charges . 9,048
Education, training and research - 1,524
Dither non-NHS palisnt carn sensces = 8548
Charilable and offhar contnbulicns 1o expenditune - 883
Hon-patiend cane sedvices |o other bodies - 1,658
Rantal revenus from Enance basss .
Rarial revenue from cperating loases 3115 17.518 3087 3,087
Imlenes] froen Overseas
It and nvistiment income : 2178
Devdends
Ureiniding o descouni on neceivables
Incoms i respect of Stafl Cosls = 15 366
Other 11587 203,543 725 125
Hon cash income
Total Adminkstration Income 12,513 2TE 405 4,406 4,408
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10.2 Programme Income

Unauditisd
Restated
201112 2010-11
E000 000
Dopartmental Departmental
Core Dbpanmant Group Coors Department Giroup
FRevenue from Patient Care activities
Incouma froem Local Bulhonisas 550,331 A 304
Incoms from Privsle patiems 454,062 430 560
Incomen from Ouerseas palienis {ron-reciprocal) 32714 95 405
Incorm Brom Injury COSLS fecaweny 221,718 210,449
income in respect of EEA claims 36,218 30218 71,630 1,630
Sabe of Goods and Senaces M3 43 351 BOL216 875,570
Other Non Trading Income
Prissaniption Prcing Reguiation Scheme 65,316 85,316 0,456 T, 456
Presciption Fees and Charges &5 085 455,056
Dantad Feas and Charges BaT 121 B17.004
Ciher Foes and Charges 267,058 288 BS54
FDC Dividend Receied B46.102 866,025
Patsant Iransport services 1.Ta6 5,762
Ebucation, raining and nessarnch 164 607 204,450
Oiher pon-MNHS palignl cang seraces 226018 257 145
Charitabie and ciher contributons 10 expedEing 64T 154,507
Receipl of dorations tor capilal acquisitions 1281599 121,578
Fpcespl of grants o capal aoquisibons 41 B45T
Blon-patient cace Services o other bodies 255 BT4 244 BTS
Fantal revonu Irom Rancs Bases ZETT 3,089
Rental revenue from operating leases 432 148268 126,508
Inderast irom (herseas 1,531 1831 2810 2810
Inferest ard irvastmaenl ncome 28 006 0818 38,650 B3 B4
Interes! Recarabia on NHS Trust Loans 10,428 15,201
inerest Fecaable MHS Capital Loans (LT) 16,771 12,955
Interesi Recsivable FT Financing Fasility Loans 31,505 71,3682
Drvconds 2am 221 1,583 1,583
Amortisation of PF| delerred credits
- Mmn schem k] L]
- Addaional Mocycle 188l received 2
Ureiredifig & (RSCoun] on receivabias 3,158 3,158 3,070 3,070
Income i respect of Statl Cosls B0,BET B2, 190
Cither 37,050 1,182 877 16,820 250,338
Mo cash income
Totsl Frogramme Income 1,113,936 &, 048 66 1,200,650 5,808,017
Total Income 1,106, 445 B.322. 761 1,205,058 5612423
Fooilnote

1) Income in respect of European Economic Area (EEA) medical costs has decreased from E71.64 million in 21}113-1_1 1o £36.22
million in 2011-12 (£35.42 million reduction). This is predominantly due lo an income reduction resuling from a bilateral
agreement with Ireland. There has also been a reduction in the number of EU membar stales’ visitors 1o the UK in the last twelve
monihs, which has also reduced the accrued income for 2011-12.
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201112
Departmental Group
Fees and Charges
Income  Full Cost of Service Suplus/{Deficit)
£'000 £'000 E'000
Dental 637,121 2,812 681 (2,175,560)
Prescription 426 085 8,243 469 (7,817,374)
Other Fees and Charges for
which the cost of providing the
service is over E1million 96,023 137,219 {41,196)
Total 1,159,239 11,183,369 {10,034.130)
Unaudited
2010-11
e Departmental Group
Fees and Charges
Income  Full Cost of Service Suplus/{Deficit)
£000 £'000 E£'000
Dental 617,014 2692979 (2,075,865)
Prescription 455 956 8,280,308 (7.824 352)
Other Fees and Charges for
which the cost of providing the
senvice is over £1million 91,489 81,200 289
Total 1,164 459 11,084 487 (9,900,028)

The fees and charges information in this note is provided in accordance with section 5.4.28 of the HM Treasury
FReM. It is provided for fees and charges purposes and not for IFRS 8 purposes. The Core Department does
not provide services for which a fee is charged, therefore all disclosures relate to consolidated bodies. Primary
Care Trusts receive income in respect of Prescription and Dental charges to patients. The financial objective of
Prescription and Dental charges is to collect charges only from those patients that are eligible to pay. Other
fees and charges for which the cost of providing the service is over £1 million, relate to services provided by
Arms Length Bodies and Special Health Autherities. A significant proportion of this, (income £85.99 million
(2010-11: £80.06 million) and Expenditure £128.09 million (2010-11: £80.06 million)) relates to Regulatory
income at the Care Quality Commission.

Further information relating to fees and charges, can be obtained from the financial statements of underlying
bodies.
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Footnaotes

1) Stockpiled goods are not depreciated, as agreéad with HM Treasury

2] NHS Connecting for Health (responsible for implementing major IT programmes in the NHS) is part of the Department's Informatics
Directorate, Whilst it is not a separate antily, s figures are separately disclosed due (o their significance in relation to the Depariment
as a whole,

3) As detailed in Note 1b Restafement, the value of investment property held by the Departmental Group became significant as a result
of the expansion of the Resource Accounting Boundary. Investment property is now separately disclosed (see Nole 11.1) and is no
longer included within the Core Department Froperty Plant and Equipment (land) figures. Consequently, the land balance as at 31
March 2011 has reduced by £E338k.

4) Plant and machinery depreciation charged in year in respeci of the Core Depariment is negative due to the in-year correction of an
immalerial prior period over deprecialion ermar.

5) Included within the Transfers ines are the following transfers out of assets (o Bio Products Laboratory (BPL): i) E7.95 million transfer
of land; i) £27.46 million transfer of buildings and a £0.45 million transfer of the associated depreciation; i) £27.32 million transfer of
furniture and fittings within the DH Core account, and a £1.68 millizn transfer of the associated depreciation. These assels are owned
by BFL but were recognised by the Depariment in ermor in 2010-11. These fransfars have resulted in the in-year de-recognition of the
assats, thus comecling the immaterial prior period ermor,

B) Of the £56.6 million stockpiled goods transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment, E39.5 million is transferred {o Inventory. A
further £17.1 million transfer incorporales wrile downs associated with stocks thal have been replaced and the reversal of temporary
recategorisations from prepayments.

7)  The reclassifications within this Mote do not net to zero within PPE primarily because of the transfer of a £30.963 million PFI scheme
&t University Hospitals Birmingham NHES Foundation Trust. The assel was previously recorded as a financial asset whilst it was under
construction. On completion the assel has been reclassified to PPE.
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Revaluation Reserve surplus in respect of Core Department PPE assets

£'000
As at 1 April 2011 116,684
Movement in year 549
As at 31 March 2012 117,533

Property has been valued as follows:

« The Civil Estate (land and buildings held for use by the core Department) was valued on 1 September 2010
by independent valuers employed by the Department. Since then, Investment Property Databank indices
have been applied, as appropriate, to uplift values as at the year end using the IAS 16 revaluation model
methodology.

« Land and buildings held by NHS bodies were valued, by independent valuers, to a modern equivalent basis
as required by HM Treasury, during either 2008-09 or 2009-10.

All valuations have been undertaken according to Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) guidelines.
The Retained Estate comprises land and buildings which were primarily intended for use by NHS bodies
but which are now surplus to requirements and are therefore held by the Department. The Retained Estate
was revalued by professional valuers as at 31 March 2010. Additional valuations were carried out as
necessary in circumstances where there were indications that values had substantially changed.

The ranges of estimated useful lives are currently:

* Buildings and dwellings: 1 - 188 years
+ Transport equipment: 1-21years
= Information technology: 1 - 40 years
+ Plant and machinery: 1 - B0 years
+ Furniture and fittings: 1 - 99 years

Explanation of Opening Balance Adjustments

« PCT mergers
A number of PCTs divested provider functions to NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and Social

Enterprises during 2011-12 as part of the “Transforming Community Services” initiative. HM Treasury
require that merger accounting principles are applied in these circumstances. This has resulted in a
restatement of prior year balances. Paragraph 1.35 of Note 1 refers.

Explanation of material impairments in the Core Department

The Core Department recognised impairments in 2011-12 of £36 million. These include impairments of £28
million relating to stockpiled goods where these have reached the end of their shelf life, become damaged or
where there is a difference between the contract price and the external market price of the goods.

An impairment of £8 million of leased plant and machinery was also identified to recognise the incorrect
capitalisation in prior years of pass through costs in respect of equipment purchased as part of the Ambulance

Radio Programme for use by Trusts.
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11.1 Investment Property

Unaudited
Restated
201112 2010-11
£'000 £°000
Core Departmental Core Departmental
Department Group Department Group
Carrying Value at 1 April 2011 338 64,807 313 55,238
Opening batance adjustment - . - 2850
Adjustment for transfer of functions - - - -
Restated Carrying Value as at 1 April 2011 338 64,807 313 58,088
Al start of period for new NHS Foundation Trusts = = - -
Additians - aa0 E
Reclassifications from PPE - - i) [
Revaluatons . 579 = 5483
bmpairrment (3 172 -
kmpairment reversals - = i &
Transiers to assets hald for sale {72) {2.916) (500 545
s chargis - 2,917 E 536
Carrying Value at 31 March 2012 263 66,549 338 54,807
11.2 Investment property income and expenditure
Unaudited
Restated
201112 2010-11
£000 £°000
Core Departmental Core Departmental
Depariment Group Department Group
Irvestment Property mosme - 3,281 - 1,688
Dirgct operatng expenses ansing om imestment
property that

a) generated rental Incorme duing thi pendd
b did nod generate nental income during the period - - - -

Investment property within the Departmental Group is measured at fair value. Core Department investment
property assels are valued on the same basis as property, plant and equipment assets: i.e. they are initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value (see Note 1.14 for further details).

The majority of investment properties within the Departmental Group (£58.9 million as at 31 March 2012 {(2010-
11; £46.8m)) are held by NHS Foundation Trusts. Where relevant/significant the following information is
disclosed in the underlying accounts of the consolidated bodies holding investment properties:

+ The methods and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair value of investment property,
including information on whether the determination of fair value was supported by market evidence or was
more heavily based on other factors because of the nature of the property and lack of comparable data.

+ The extent to which the fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer
who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location

and category of the investment property being valued. If there has been no such valuation, that fact will be
disclosed.
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» The existence and number of restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the remittance of
income and proceeds of disposal. No such restrictions exist in respect of Core Department investment
property.

« Contractual obligations to purchase, conduct or develop investment property, or in relation to repairs,
maintenance or enhancements to that property. The Core Department has no such contractual obligations.

In respect of the Core Department, the amounts recognised in the CSCNE for: a) rental income from
investment property; and b) direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from
investment property, are insignificant and are not therefore separately disclosed in the income and expenditure
notes.
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12 Intangible Mon-Current Assets

Intangible non-current assets comprise: Purchased Software Licences and Internally Developed Software,
Trade Marks and Development Expenditure relating to both the Department and the entities consolidated within
these financial statements.

011412
Softeans Licencas
and Internally
Developed Drvebopermint

Sofware Expanditure Othor Total
£'000 £7000 000 E000

Cost or valustion
AL 1 Apail 2011 3.793.753 154,712 57,755 4,006,220
Opening balance adjustment (735) (1) i1 (141}
Adyastraent for lransher of funclions {B40) - - (540
Restated Balance as at 1 Aprid 2011 3,792,374 154,711 57,754 4,004,839
Addons-purchased A5 804 273 36,151 420,978
Addeions-donated 342 328 1,358 2,028
Impairmren trarsfered bo Revaluaton Resene (718 {161) 2 (879
Impainmeerd bransferred o the CSCNE {97.265) [14,088) - (111,331)
ImMpEinTsan reversals = = = =
Transiers 1,618 413 509 2,640
Reclassficaton 1o assets held for sale {576 - {77y (1,349)
Crher Reclassifications {385.712) 19,067 {17.871) {364,516}
Revalustion and indexation 415,095 {35} . 415,056
Disposals {508,112 (8.646) {778} (BAT.53T)
At 31 March 2012 3,422 680 178,780 76440 A 678870

Amprtisation

At 1 April 2011 2,026,658 68,350 5.288 2,101,338
Dipenirg balance adjustmen (741} - . (741}
Adpastment Tor transfer of functions (218 - - (218)
Restated Balance as at 1 Apsil 2011 2,025,739 60,3150 5288 2,100,377
Chargad in year B4 204 24 599 2,520 B71,743
Impairment iransfemed 10 Revaluation Reserwe -
Impadrment transfemed 1o the CSCHE (52 24 15,893} 2,559 [55,5648)
Impairment reversats 2 - = 2}
Translers {1,061} (B43) . 11,904)
Reclassification to assets hald lor sale (342} * {480} {BOZ)
Ot Risclassifications {248,367 134 153 (248,080}
Prevaduation and indexation (118,587 153 - {118,850)
Disposals (EBE, 234) (6282 (177} (692 693)
At 31 March 2012 1,563,126 81,412 9,583 1,654,429
Het book valua at 31 March 2012 1,888,523 98,368 6,566 2,024, 457
Med boak value at 31 March 2011 1,767,055 85,362 52 46T 1,904 B84
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Unaudited
Restated
2010-11
Software Licences
and Internally
D::fl":‘:: ﬁ:m: Other Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2010 3435204 159,600 33,844 3,632,738
Opening balance adjustment (827) {487) {1,314)
Agjustment for transter of functions (17 676 659
At 1 April 2010 3,438,450 159,789 33,844 3.632,083
Additions - purchased 340,383 28,204 45,011 413,688
Additions - donated 1.048 {14} 87 1.4T1
Additions - Gowernment granted 465 GG 1.3M
Impairment transfermed to Revaluation Reserve 41 (1] (125) (B4)
Impairment transferred o the CSCNE {1.441) (421) (1.862)
Impairmant reversal A
Transfers {635) 384 (283) (528)
Reclassification to assets hald for sale {202) & (202)
Other Reclassifications 287 B25 (12.853) (21,3200 253,652
Revaluation and indexalicn 154,118 {1,681) 152 455
Disposals (425,872) {19,276} (675) (445,823)
At 31 March 2011 3,783,753 154,712 57.755 4,006,220
Amortisation
At 1 April 2010 1,673,467 50,868 3,581 1,736,018
Opening balance adjustment {581) - - (581)
Adjustment for transber of funclions (BT) 185 - 122
At 1 April 2010 1,672,819 60,057 3,581 1,736,457
Charged in year 673,360 19,827 1.863 805 050
Impairment iransfemred 1o Revaluation Reserve o = -
Impairment transferred to the CSCNE 6,302 - 5,302
Impairmant reversal o
Transbers 2 13 1n B3
Reclassification lo assets held for sake {120) - {120}
Cther Reclassification 83,526 1,134 28 84 688
Revaluation and indexation 15,768 (173 15, 505
Disposals (424,958) {11,593) {167) (438,719)
At 31 March 2011 2,026,698 69,360 5,288 2,101,336
Het book value at 31 March 2011 1,767,055 85,382 52 487 1,904 884
Met book value at 31 March 2010 1,765,827 99,732 30,263 1,895 822
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Software Licences
and Internally
D'm Development
Expanditurs Other Total
£000 £000 E£'000 E000
Of the total:
Core Department (excleding NHS Informatics) 123,454 1,458 124,512
NHS Informatics’ 1,370,782 1,370,782
Primary Care Trusts 23,472 2.027 1,025 26,524
Strategic Health Avthonties 3 5
NHS Trusts 95,334 24,759 18,981 141,074
NHS Foundation Trusis 104 847 28178 31,388 164,374
Special Health Authorities 41 680 9,050 105 50,833
Non Departmental Public Bodes 5205 16,882 26 0er
Cithar
Ml book valud at
31 March 2011 1,767,085 85,362 52467 1,904,564
Footnobe

1) NHS Connecting for Health (responsibke for implementing major IT programmes in the NHS) is part of (he Department's informalics
Direciorate. Whilst it is not a separate enlity, its figures are separately disclosed due to their significance in relation to the Departiment as a
whole.

2) Included within the total value for Software Licences and Internally Developed Software, £28.0 milion (nel book value) relates to
internally developed software for the Core Depariment.

Net book value of intangible assets in the Revaluation Reserve

£'000
As at 1 April 2011 123,142
Movement in year 457 044
As at 31 March 2012 581 085

The ranges of estimated useful lives are currently:

+ Software licences: 1 - 20 years
s Internally Developed Software:  1- 15 years
+ Development expenditure: 1-99 years

The Department revalues intangible non-current assets associated with NHS Connecting for Health
programmes at the end of each financial year, by indexing their original cost. Given the very significant value of
these assets, the Department applies the difference between the Retail Price Index (RPI) operating in the
month of purchase and the RPI at the end of the year. RPI is considered the most appropriate measure of
indexation to use with this group of assets, as no other indexation factor is available that more accurately
reflects the commercial environment in the computer services sector, or would not be compromised by the high
value of the assets. This valuation method is reviewed annually to ascertain whether RPI remains the most

appropriate index to use.

The effective date of revaluation for NHS Connecting for Health non-current assets is 31 March 2012

NHS Connecting for Health non-current assets (whether classified as property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets) are not added to the Department's Non-Current Asset Register until confirmation has been
received from the appropriate NHS organisation that the relevant system has been deployed successfully.
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13 Financial Assets — Investments
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1) The Core Department’s PDC investment in, and loans 1o, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts eliminale on consolidation,
and so are not shown as consolidated Departmantal Group investmants as they ane not with bodies external to the Group. With
the exception of MHRA, PDC is only issued to bodies within the Deparimental Group.

2) The consolidated “Other bodies loans® figure has increased significantly between 2010-11 and 2011-12, primarily due 1o the NHS
Business Services Authority making £300 million of working capital available to the outsourced Supply Chain arrangement to

faciltate aggregated capital purchases for the NHS.

3) The "Repaid” line records repayments of non-current amounis: i.e. repayments of amounts in advance of tha dates specified in
the relevant loan agreements/schedules. The repayment of the current element of financial assets is accounted for in the

receivablas note.

4)  The “lssued” line records the full value of all new loans let in-year. These loans will comprise a current and non-current element,
with the current element being immedialely transfermed to receivables via ihe "Current element of loans issued in-year transfermed

o neceivables” line.
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Investments categorised as "Other” include Dr Foster Intelligence Ltd, Plasma Resources UK and NHS
Professionals. These investments are for sale, but do not currently meet the IFRS 5 criteria for assets held for
sale, and are shown in aggregate in these accounts on the grounds of commercial sensitivity.
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Where the Department has a formal investment in another public sector entity that does not meet the criteria for
consolidation (for example its investment in the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency) the
investment is measured at historic cost, less any impairment, as required by the FReM.

The Department values its other financial investments internally each year with reference to quoted market
prices. Independent valuations are carried out at intervals of no more than three years. The Department's
investments in Community Health Partnerships, Plasma Resources UK Ltd, SBS, MHS Professionals and Dr
Foster Intelligence Ltd were all subject to independent valuation in 2011-12.

One of the main considerations, in both the internal and independent valuation techniques employed by the
Department, is an assessment of the value of future liabilities of the entities, including future pension liabilities.
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The Government began a consultation on the Fair Deal for Pensions policy in 2011, in response to a
recommendation made in an interim report by the Independent Public Service Pensions Commission.

This consultation covers the options on pension provision in the public sector, and potentially creates significant
uncertainity with regard to the future value of public sector pension liabilities.

The Department’s investments predominately relate to organisations that have a substantial number of
employees with public sector pensions. These could potentially be affected by the outcome of the Fair Deal
consultation. When the Department’s investments were subject to independent valuation for these accounts,
the Government's application of the Fair Deal reforms were, and still are, subject to significant uncertainty. It is
not yet clear to what extent, if at all, the proposed changes will affect the staff employed in the organisations, so
there was no impact on the value of the Department's investments in 2011-12.

The Department’s share of the net assets and results of the relevant bodies are summarised below:

Medicines and
Hoalthcare :
products Pilasma Comemunity Joint Dr Foster
HHS  Foundation Rugulatorny Resources Health Venbures  Intelligence HHS
Trusta Trusts Agancy UK Limited  Parnsmships 5BS Ltd Professionals
£ E£'000 000 E'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Mot Assots at M March 2012 12,115 6428 17,497,184 5411 o4 267 56,419 5872 5676 15,537
Turncwer 30,911,248 35 855 513 17,247 123,069 620 82 447 14,853 311,024
Surplusiprofit Tor the year (before
SrEncng) {T17.571) 16,156 17,215 {18,238) 2915 4,168 (9,435} 3423
Het Assets at 31 March 2011 13,414,007 16,238 865 79,283 53,650 53,514 1,704 18,213 32514
Turmoves 20,482 AT 30,704 81T 122, 531 80,497 411 53,265 20,320 287 600
Surplusiprofit for the year (before
financing) (329,216} [305,672) 30,5946 3,567 3,058 2481 {1,465) 305

Investments held by the Department of Health in 2011-12

The figures for Plasma Resources UK, SBS and Dr Foster Intelligence Ltd are for the financial year ending 31st
December 2011.

Credit Guarantee Finance (CGF) is a loan, guaranteed by banks, monclines or other acceptable financial
institutions, from the sponsoring Department to a PFI project Special Purpose Vehicle on ‘market’ terms. The
CGF loans undertaken by the Department are pilots at two NHS PFI projects — Leeds and Portsmouth. Other
than these pilots, the Department will not be undertaking any further CGF loans.

New Social Enterprise loans of £3.5 million have been issued in 2011-12. Additionally, £299 000 of loans made
in prior periods have been written off over a number of years and reported as losses in Note 27: Losses and
Special Payments.

NHS Property Services Ltd is a company wholly owned by the Department of Health. It was established on 20
December 2011 and registered at Companies House. The Department owns a single ordinary £1 share and
has made no further investment in the company to date. The company will become active in the latter half of
the 2012-13 financial year as the Department plans for the transfer of PCT estate assets with associated
liabilities and staff to the company following PCT abolition. From that point, the company will own and run the
ex-PCT estate and will take over the PCT role in relevant arrangements (for example landlord responsibilities
and strategic management).

Investments held by other NHS bodies in 2011-12

In ml'dar to better reflect the commercial substance of the outsourced Supply Chain arrangement, the NHS
Business Services Authority (NHS BSA) has revised the accounting treatment in this area. Previously, the
individual components of Supply Chain working capital totalling £65.6 million were reported separately in the
Statement of Financial Position (SoFP) and its associated notes. This total. which reflects the amount due to
the NHS BSA at the end of the arrangement on 30 September 20186, is now recorded as a financial asset. As
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detailed in Note 1b Restatement, prior year figures have been restated to reflect this revised accounting
treatment. In 2011-12 a further £300 million of working capital has been made available to facilitate aggregated
capital purchases for the NHS.

Further details relating to investments can be found in the accounts of underlying bodies.
Financing of NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts
The Department has two means of financing MHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts:

(1) Public Dividend Capital (PDC) - issued as either structural capital when NHS Trusts are established, or
when the Department needs to provide additional financing to NHS Trusts or NHS Foundation Trusts after
establishment.

(2) Loans — normally made under standard Government loan terms, i.e. 6§ monthly equal instaiments of
principal and interest charged on outstanding balances. National Loan Fund rates of interest (as published by
the UK Debt Management Office) are applied.

Both PDC and Loans are held at historic value.

In 2011-12, three NHS Trusts defaulted on loan principal repayments with a value of £26.4 million. The
Department has rescheduled two of the principal repayments and the third is in negotiation (£14.3 million). All
the loans remain repayable in full. There was no default of interest payments in the year.

The Department judges that there is no material credit risk associated with either form of investment. The
financial performance of NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts is rigorously managed by Strategic Health
Authorities and the independent regulator Monitor, not least through their respective powers of intervention. No
loan to NHS Trusts or NHS Foundation Trusts has been written off since the re-introduction of loan-financing
for NHS providers in 2004,
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2011142
Adult and Pandemic Flu
Emargenty Childhood Wik in Essential Countar- Pre Pandemic

Core Deparimant preparedness Vaccines progress Medicines MEdSUNEs Flu Cithar Tatal

£000 E'000 E'000 E'000 £'000 £000 000 E£'000
Balance a3 ai 1 April 2011 - B34 - - T 9428
Opening balance adjestment .
Adpusimeni for ransfer of
fisnictions
Restated Balance &3 &8 1 April
2011 - B34l - T 89,428
Addibions - M3 AT4 . - - 203474
ConsumedDispased of [164) (166,897) (8,E56) (30.462) . {7 (238, 3848)
Virithsn down charged o
CSCHE - (T {Tiay
Rl ahion - 14672 14,872
Tramsier (10} § from mon-currenl
assils 164 B854 30,4682 - . 35482
Oher
Balance a8 at 31 March 2012 A 107,980 N Y . . i 107,960

2011-12
Adult and Pandomic Fiu
Emargancy Chikdhood Work in Esasntial Counter.  Pire Pandemic

Departmental Group preparedness Vaccines progress Medicines MEASUNESs Flu Cthar Total

£ 000 E004 E'DOO E'000 £'000 000 E'000 E'O00
Balance as at 1 April 2011 158 B9 468 4,77 " 218 477 210,718 905,761
Qpaning balance adusimant a8 48
Adpistmeni 1o ranshes af
Tuncticns (2,46T) (246T)
Rostated Balance as at 1 April
201 155 §0.468 4,727 : 218 o477 E08,296 03,42
Additions 185 203,702 6,202 . 0 5 5,674 673 5884, TOT
ConsumedTisposed o {338} (199,115) (5.185) (8.856) (30,727} (26) (5400701}  (5.744.015)
Wiritten down charged 1o
CSCHE - (7109 15, 728) (6,438}
Revaluation . 14,672 (22} 4,850
Tranafer (b) § Brom non-curnent
FEET 256 z B.858 30,482 - {18,346) 21,243
Consumaties and Raw
Matarials . : . (131, 766) {131, 768)
Odher 34 - 150 3 {10, 137) (9.523)
Balance as at 31 March 2012 380 108,019 5778 < 134 437 817,268 31,888
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Core Department

Balance as at 1 April 2010

Opening balance adjustment
Adtpastimend for iranster of
Turstions

Restated Balance a8 4t 1 April
0o

ABDILONE
ConsumedDisposed ol
Writsens down charged Lo
CECNE

Foirvahaation

Transbor (1o / irom non-cuament
astals

Consumabiles and Riaw
Milenas

Other
Balance as at 31 March 2011

Dwpartmanial Group

Balance as at 1 April 2010
Opaning balance adjustment
Adpastmend for transter of
funclions

Restated Balance as at 1 April

2010

At
ConsumpdThaposed of
Wriltten down charged lo
CSCHE

Revaluation

Transter (1) / irom non-cumenl
FLEmE

Consumables and Raw
Malerais

Other
Balamce as at 31 March 2011

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

01011

Adult and Pandamic Flu

Emaergancy Childhood Work in Essantial Couanter- Pre Pandamic

preparedness Vaccines progress Madicines maasures Flu Cither Total
£000 E000 £000 £000 E£000 E000 £'000 E'0D0
12,130 145,002 58,5003 . - - 215,634
12,138 146,892 56,503 - - - 218,834
128, B01 - - - 128,801
(04, 223) (7,744 - - - (211,567
(2.261) (2.361)
[12.139) {48, T59) (9318) . . {70,218
20,112 2318 . T Fat R
B4 = - . - T 89,428
Unaudited
Ratated 2010
1

Adult and Pandemic Flu

Emergancy Childhaod Wk in Essantial Counter- Pre Pandemic

prepanedness Vaccines prograss Madicines MDA UrDS Flu O Taortal
C000 £'000 E'0sD0 [y £000 [ £000 000
12,8587 147,056 3452 56,500 822 61 T86.0%0 1.00% 081
L] (1-1]
12,887 147,036 5 452 54,502 922 551 o8 042 1,004,073
- 128,906 4943 . 30 n 5,080,110 5154971
(700K (204,308 (5.508) (7. 744 {1,242y (105)  [4.886.402) (5, 106,180}
[1=1] {2.261) (10.289) (12 558)
: : 17 17
(12,138 {48, TEE) {2.318) - {15,485) (85,701
20,112 - GNE - (124, 411) FETRECR
{61 {0y = - - 1163 1,017
155 89,468 a7t . 218 477 810,715 $048, T84
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15  Impairments

Impalimments charged to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Het Expenditure

Property Flant and Equipment impasrnents

Intangible asset impairments

Financipl assel impairmens

Mof Current Assels Held for Sale impairments

Invesiment Fropeny smpairments

Total impairments charged to Consolidated Statemant of
Comprahansive Net Expenditure

Impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve
Property Plant and Equipment impainments

Intangibe asset impairments

Financial asset iImpaiments

Total impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve

Total impairments charged in year

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REFORT AND ACCOUNTS

Unaudited
Restated
201112 201112 201011 2010-11
Core  Dopartmental Care Departmental
Department Group Department Group
£'000 £'000 £000 E'000
36, BET 1,333,558 11,110 1,439,011
43,560 55,760 6,840 15,918
2247 31,153 5,485 3,956
20,108 - 9,308

175 -
82,724 1,449,753 23,444 1,468,191
az 502,983 42,804 507, 262
. 679 B
1040, 306 100,306 E z
100,348 704,168 42,804 507,346
183,072 2,163,921 66,248 1,975,537
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16 Trade Receivables and other current assets

16.1 Analysis by type

Unaudited
Restated
201112 2010-11
E000 E000
Core Departmental Core Departmental
Departmeant Group Departmant Group
Amounts falling due within ong year;
Trade recevables 43 750 2485 788 45,652 232 458
Deposits and advances - 2188 - 120
Capital recaivables - propérty plant and equepment . 55,085 - 54 660
Capital receivables - infangibla non curent assats . 1,103 - 419
Inerest receivable 210 1,920 30 1,251
Other reciivabies T4 181 470 564 55,007 727039
PEfGion pRépayrments Matunng in one year - - .
Consolidatéd Fund Extra Receipls recaivable 272 27,279 23,345 23.345
Other prepayments and accnued incomd 205 8596 1,505,001 161,113 1184704
Current part of lbans repayable transfered from invesimants 231,953 4,748 189,138 47,561
Currend part of PFI and other sarvice concassion
arrangements prepayments - 34,931 - 25,192
583,269 2,418,118 AT4,285 2,297,249
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Trade récerables - 71,327 - BS 549
Capital recervables - proparty plant and equipment - 15,757 . 15674
Capital recesvablas - intangible non current assels - 385 - 285
Other recervables. 110,974 301,50 117,913 327 496
Pension prepayments maturing afier one year - - 201
Other Prepayments and accrued ncome 11,752 160,506 12.062 161,004
Hon-current parl of PFI and other sanice concission
amangerments prepayments - 63,169 - 52,006
122,726 513,145 129,975 541,702
Total receivables at 31 March 2012 705,595 3,031,263 504, 260 2,940,951
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16.2 Intra-Government balances

16.2 Iintra-government balances

Balances with other central govammant bodus
Balances with local authorntes

Balances with NHS bodies outside the Depatmantal Group
Balances with Public Comporations and Trading Funds
Subtotal: Intra-government balances

Balancas wialh bodies exlemal 1o governmient

Total receivables

Balancas wah olhar conirad governmaent bodies
Balancas wah lecal authontses

Balances with NHS bodiet outaide the Depanmantal Group

Balancas wih NHS bodias inside the Depanmental Group
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds
Subtotal: Intra-governmant balances

Balances with bodies exdemal bo gowsimman

Total recoivables

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Departmental
A Group

Amounts falling Amaunts falling
due within one Amounts falling due within one Amaunts falling
yadr dus after one yoear year  due after one year
£7000 E000 £'000 £°000
Unaoed itaed Unaudited
201112 201112 Fastated Restated
201011 2010-11
538,900 19,248 710,638 38,915
81,678 400 234,160 2144

307 504
730,885 19,848 W61 582 41,085
1,687 333 553,497 1.5, 667 G602 642
2,418,118 613,145 2,297,249 B43,701
Core
Department

Arnounts falling Amounts falling
due within one Amounts falling due within cne Amounis falling
year due after one year yoar  dud afber one yoar
£'000 £'000 E000 E£7000
201112 201142 201011 201011

52 187 9,555
g 3
250,250 -
312,448 9,656 -
270,823 122,728 464,730 1289875
583,269 122,726 474,288 129,976
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17 Cash and cash equivalents

Unaudited

Restated

2011-12 2010-11

£'000 E'D00

Core Deparimantal Core Departmental

Department Group Dapartmant Group

Balance as at 1 April 2011 1,624,356 5,890,719 1,237,866 4 988 210

Adpustment for transfer of functions . (5.464) . {3.081)

Opening balance adjustment : 6,382 - (4.721)

Restated Balance as at 1 April 2011 1,624,356 5,891,667 1,237,866 4,980 408

Met change in cash (1,104,208) (86, 469) 386,490 910,331

Balance at 31 March 2012 520,148 5,805,198 1,624,356 5,890,739
The following balances al 31 March were held al:

Office of HM Paymaster General . . : BB1,624

Commercial banks and cash in hand 520,148 5,763,719 1,624,356 4 GET 81T

Shart berm wnstients - 41,479 - 41,2598

Balance at 31 March 2012 520,148 5,805,198 1,624,356 5.880,739

Following the introduction of the Government Banking Service (GBS) in 2009-10, cash balances held in bank
accounts operated by the Office of HM Paymaster General have reduced to zero during the year. Cash held in
ZBS accounts are included within the Commercial banks and cash in hand line of the above note.

As a result of tighter cash management across the Group during the financial year the Department was able to
plan for a significantly reduced level of cash than was anticipated when the Supplementary Estimate was

completed.
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18 Assets classified as held for sale
Departmental Group

201112
Plantand  Stockpiled intangibie
Land Bulldings MEzhimery o Adddld Total
E'000 €000 E'000 E000 £000 £000
As at 1 April 2011 153,758 58,363 3,548 - {7 215,662
Dpening balkance adustment 8 (10} (4) - 4 {1
Aadusiment for transfier of functions 1 : . - - i
Restated Balance as at 1 April 2011 153,768 58,3531 3,544 - (k1] 215,682
Assaets hedd for sake in year 137 482 132,608 6,006 - 54T 276 641
Assats sold in year {126,060} {69, 250) (4 B41) - {30y {200 381}
Imipairment of assats held for sale (19.956) (15 448) (561) - - (35, 665)
Reversal of impainments of assats hedd for sale 4195 041 - - - 5136
Assats no longer held fior sale (for reasons other than saba) {2.27T6) {12,172} (B45) . - (15,003)
Gainf{lozs) on bransfer o assets hedd for sale - - : = L 2
Transfer to NHS Foundation Trusts = = 5 . - =
As at 31 March 2012 147,153 95,000 3,503 - 14 246,000
Liabilines associaled with assets held for sale a1 31 March 2012 {E8) (71 - : - [25)
Amount attributable to Core Department:
Plantand  Stockpiled
Land Buildings Machinery goods Intangibles Total
£000 E£00d £9000 £'000 00 £000
Core Depariment as al 31 March 2012 7,847 B9 - 8,656
Departmental Group
Unigisd ited
Rastated
2010-11
[Plant and Stockpiled lrviangilble
Land ‘Buldings Mschirry gands dinyats Total
£'000 €000 (] E£000 E'000 E'D00
As at 1 April 2010 129,969 67,010 36 - - 167,285
Assats designated as held for sale in year 129,754 82 894 9,162 . 82 221692
Assats sold in year (72,260 (74.489) {5,810) . {89) (152 678)
Irngpainmient of assets held for sale (4.541) (8,736) (11) - - {13, 288)
Reversal of impainments of assats held for sale 1398 1,708 - - - 3,103
Assats no longer held for sale (for reasons other than sabe) (30,532) (2.821) {109 ! ! (40 452)
Transéer 1o NHS Fowndation Trusts - . - = - <
As &t 31 March 2011 153,758 58,363 3,548 - [T} 215,662
Liabsities associated with assats held for sale al 31 March 2011 ; - - - . =
Amount attributable to Core Department:
Pilant and Stockpiled
Land Buildings Machinary poods Irfangibles Todal
£'000 £'000 1000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Core Department as al 31 March 2011 5 RS i . : : 6.084

The Department holds Retained Estates that are property not transferred to the ownership of the NHS with a
total book value of £55.6m. Of this total, the department propases to sell property with a book value of £45 9m
to_third parties. Only £8.7 million of these planned asset sales meet the IFRS 5 *held for sale” recognition
criteria and are therefore included within this note.

178



Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

19 Trade Payables and other current liabilities

19.1 Analysis by type

Ui weelii tivcd
Restated
2011-12 2010-11
E'000 000
Core Departmental Core Dwepartmental
Dapartmant Group Dspartmant Group
Amounts falling due within ons year:
Bank Cvardraft . 20,748 ad 36,313
AT = ER 21,384 28,040
Drihaer laxation and social securly 3,270 T3, 060 3862 TGO, TED
Trad payablos 47 300 3.511.260 56 B4T 3.T17.576
Capial payablas - propamy plant and equspmant 4 Sa8 224 : 462 555
Capial payablas - Wiang Dk non Cumsnt s o5, 180 106,970 122,362 130, 555
Oitharr payables 4,028 823,483 15,388 833,702
Early retrement costs payable within one year . 252 - 3a
EEA Madical Costs Accrual 541,503 541,593 EET. 106 S&T 106
O AConials 325,403 4 TT8,357 310,674 3.948 459
Dafamed grants income (including transfer from resanves 1o 15.303
match degreciation) . 20,178 g :
Defemed income - goods and sanicas &8 800 407 508 50,823 518,070
Defaned incoma - rent of land . 7 - 319
Ot AalaTTod WCome . 03,614 - 158 569
Cument part of financs lbabae 8,253 62 085 13,337 149,873
Current part of impuied finance lease ol d of on S el
of Financial Position PFI coniracis and othar sendce
CONCESEREN AITANGEMmants - 260,547 - 231,804
Amount issuad from ihe Consolidated Fund for supply but not
apent al yaar and 04 085 604 085 982 689 982 6a%9
Consolidated fund extra recoipls dus to be paid to the
Consalidated Fund - Receed 85 85 53 53
Consolidaied fund axira recaipis due to be paid to the
Consolidated Fund - Receivabile 2r.27a 27,2789 23,345 23,345
Other amount payable o the Consoldated Fund . = 735, THZ T35 Ta2
Currant loans payable by NHS Trusls 1o andities oulside the
accounting boundary - 3,230 - 226
Invesimant payabies - - - =
Pengion Liabdites . Ga2 - Gra
1.725,118 12,737 8448 2,808,726 13,422,665

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Finance keases 55816 354 486 72,865 Y66 680

Imputed finance iease slament of on Stalement of Financial
Position PFI contracts and aiher Sandce concassion

amangements . 11,454 005 - 10,081,508
Trade payables - 21.521 . 23,417
EEA Medical Coats Accrual 160,831 160,831 195,280 185,280
Capital payables - propanty plant and aguipment 5 5 B48 = 8,055
Capial payables - intangiblé fon Curnent assels 104,313 104, 387 133,510 133,694
Orihier payables . 144 714 - 135,647
Dedermed grants incoma (including transher from resanes 1o
maich depreciation) - AB0 = 19,081
Defarmed income - goods and senicos 18,328 72418 23,8208 57,800
Dfarngd income = rent of Bnd N 1.228 - 1.503
Oithar defermed inCome - O 443 . BB 523
Men-current loans payable by NHS Trusts 1o entitbes culside
iy Bccounting boundary E 5,885 ] 6.374
Pansicn Liakbiltaes B 6,685 - 4,379
3319.288 12,427,081 425 B84 11,169,987
Total payables 2,084,408 25,164,737 3.331.410 24,5832 812

179



Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12

Department of Health irs
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Footnola

1} As detailed in Note 1b Restaternent, in 2010-11 the accruals associated with European Economic Area (EEA) medical costs
wers incorrectly calegorised within the payables nole. In particular, all long term accruals were incomectiy ised as
amounts falling due within 1 year and some accruals were incorrectly recorded as Other accruals rather than EEA Medical Costs
Accruals. Whilst this classification error does nol affect the bottom lingé and i nol considered a fundamental error, the 2010-11
figures have nevertheless been restated Lo ensure comparability with the current year. The impact on the individual items in the
2010-11 payables nole is as follows; EEA Medical Costs Accrual (amounts falling due after one year) increased by E195.28
million, EEA Medical Costs Accrual (amounts falling due within one year) decreased by £82.56 million and Other Accruals
{amounts falling due within one year) decreased by £111.02 millon,

2) From 2011-12, as a consequence of HM Treasury’s Clear Line of Sight (alignment) legislation, Estimates are Voled on a net
basis. As a result, the concept of excess appropriations in aid (A-in-A) no longer exists, and the Depariment refains all income
generated with the exception of that falling culside the Ambit of the Vote. In 2010-11 the Department classified £735,792,000 of
incOme as excess A-in-A. In line with HM Treasury guidance, the Statement of Parliameniary Supply and all supporting notes
have been restated to reflect this change. As the £735 792,000 remains payable to HM Treasury, it remains within the 2010-11
payables note but has been recategorised as an “Othar amount payable to tha Consolidated Fund™ as it is no longer a
Consclidated Fund Exfra Receipt. The equivalent 2011-12 figure is zero as excess A-in-A no longer exists.

19.2 Intra-Government balances

Departmantal
Group
Amounts
falling due  Amounts falling  Amounts falling  Amounts falling
within one due after more due within cne due after more
yEar than one yoar year than one year
£'000 £°000 £'000 E'000
Unaudited Unaudited
Restated Restated
2011-12 2011-12 201011 2010-11
Balances with other central government bodies 1,106,897 2 779.291 B BES
Balances with local authorities 248,324 4,358 284,424
Ealances with NHS bodses outside the Departmental Group -
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 5448 24 632
Subtotal: Intra-government balances 1,360,673 4,398 3,088,407 8,665
Balances with bodies exiemal to govemment 11,376,873 12,422 653 10,334,148 11,151,292
Total payables 12,737 646 12,427,091 13,422 555 11,159,957
Core Department
Amounts
falling due  Amounts falling  Amounts falling  Amounts falling
within one due after more dug within ong dug after more
yaar than one year year than ane year
£°000 E'000 £°000 £'000
201112 201112 2010-11 2010-11
Balances with other central government bodies 650,804 1,739,609 -
Balances with local authorites 588 - =
Balances with MHS bodies outsida the Departmental Group .
Balances with MHS bodies insida the Departmental Group T3, 088
Balances with Publc Corporations and Trading Funds £05
Subtotal: Intra-government balances T28.3T8 - 1,739,600 -
Balances with bodies external to government OO0, 743 339,288 1,166,117 425684
Total payables 1,725,118 339,288 2,905,726 425,684
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Clinical Negligence
The Department of Health provides for future costs in a number of cases where it is the defendant in legal
proceedings brought by claimants seeking damages for the effects of alleged clinical negligence.

Strategic Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and NHS Trusts retain legal
responsibility for all liabilities covered by the clinical negligence schemes: the Ex-Regional Health Authority
Scheme (ex RHA), Existing Liabilities Scheme (ELS) and Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST), but
the NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) accounts for all the liabilities under these separate schemes. Actuaries
appointed by the NHSLA undertake regular reviews to identify movements in the value of likely future
settlements under these schemes, and these are recorded in the NHSLA's annual accounts.

The movements in provisions recorded in the Statement of Financial Position of the NHSLA are made up of
several elements namely: changes to the value of existing claims brought forward at the start of the financial
year, the outstanding value of new claims received in year which remain open at the end of the financial year,
and an allowance for claims incurred during 2011-12 which are yet to be reported.

Known reported claims are individually valued using likely costs to resolve the claim and probability factors to
take account of the potential of a successful defence, whilst incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims are valued
using actuarial models to predict likely values. The NHSLA reviews its actuarial models twice each year as it
seeks to compare previous forecasts to actual activity in year. In 2011-12 an independent review of actuarial
projections was undertaken to provide additional assurance to the NHSLA. During 2011-12, the value of known
provisions charged was higher than in 2010-11 mainly as a result of an increase in the volume of claims
reported. In 2011-12, the reported number of new clinical negligence claims increased by approximately 6%
compared to 2010-11, a significant increase but a substantially lower one than in 2010-11 (31% increase
compared to 2008-10) and lower than each of the previous three years. Other types of claims also increased by
approximately 6%. Following a review of these new claims, it appears that this growth can be principally
attributed to faster reporting patterns i.e. claims being made faster than predicted, and not to a systemic
increase in the incidence of clinical negligence.

Clinical negligence claims which may succeed, but are less likely or cannot be reliably estimated, are
accounted for as contingent liabilities.

Clinical negligence provisions in the accounts of the NHSLA as at 31 March 2012 include £32,419,000 for the
RHA scheme, £2,273,076,000 under the ELS and £16,314,504,000 for CNST.

Of the total £18,619,999,000 clinical negligence provisions, £2,062,595,000 is expected to be payable within 1
year, £4,754 160,000 in 1 to 5 years and £11,803,244 000 after 5 years. These estimates are based on the
anticipated timing and progress of claims through the legal process.

Early Departure

These financial statements provide for the additional future costs, beyond the normal benefit awards for which
employees are eligible under the terms of their pension scheme, arising from compensation payments for
termination of employment through redundancy, severance or early retirement. The provision also takes
account of arrangements with pension schemes under which employees can make prepayments to meet future
liabilities. On the basis of the age of retirees, expenditure is likely to be incurred over a period of up to nine
years.

The provision mainly relates to early retirement liabilities in Primary Care Trusts, NHS Trusts and NHS
Foundation Trusts.

Primary Care Trust liabilities total £196,274,000. Of the total, £23,865,000 is expected to be payable within 1
year, £85,191,000 in 1 to 5 years and £87,218,000 after 5 years. NHS Trust liabilities total £154,784,000, of
which £13,248,000 is expected to be payable within 1 year, £55,658,000 in 1 to 5 years, and £85,878,000 after
5 years. NHS Foundation Trust liabilities total £172,617,000, of which £15,254,000 is expected to be payable
within 1 year, £58,704,000 in 1 to 5 years, and £98,659,000 after 5 years.
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Further amounts of £3,614,000 are included in Strategic Health Authorities, of which £245,000 is expected to
be payable within 1 year, £2,433,000 in 1 to 5 years, and £936,000 after 5 years; £4,453,000 in Special Health
Authorities and Arms Length Bodies of which £2,581,000 is expected to be payable within 1 year, £1,247,000 in
1 to 5 years and £625,000 after 5 years; and £9,283,000 in the Department of Health, of which £3,503,000 is
expected to be payable within 1 year, £5,141,000 in 1 to 5 years and £639,000 after 5 years.

Injury Benefits

The Department's Annual Report and Accounts provide for the future costs of permanent Injury Benefits
awarded up to April 1997 to NHS staff injured in the course of their duties. From this date, the respective NHS
body which employed the injured person has been liable for the costs. The Injury Benefit awards are
guaranteed minimum income levels, and are granted for the life of the individual. The award is based on an
assessment of the nature of the injury and the effect on the individual's earning capacity which results. The total
claim provided for is £653,001,000 of which £47 496,000 is expected to be payable within 1 year, £179,821,000
in 1to 5 years and £425 684 000 after 5 years.

EEA Medical Costs

EEA Medical Costs refer to medical costs incurred by UK Citizens in other European countries which are
accounted for as liabilities payable by the UK to those European countries.

The total cost provided for is E617,863,000 of which £161,138,000 is expected to be payable within 1 year and
£456,725,000in 1 to 5 years.

Other
These financial statements disclose other provisions of £1,757,278,000, which relate to the following:

» The future support of patients who contracted HIV from contaminated blood supplies. The total provision is
£108,185,000 of which £5,071,000 is expected to be paid within 1 year, £24,081,000 in 1 to 5 years and
£79,033,000 after 5 years.

+ Legal claims against Primary Care Trusts amounting to £34,139,000, of which £18,757,000 is expected to
be paid within 1 year, £6,117,000 in 1 to 5 years and £9,265,000 after 5 years.

» Legal claims against Strategic Health Authorities amounting to £5,887,000, of which £3 650,000 is expected
to be paid within 1 year and £2,237,000 in 1 to 5 years.

+ Legal claims against NHS Trusts amounting to £38,839,000, of which £25,012,000 is expected to be paid
within 1 year, £8,677,000 in 1 to 5 years and £5,150,000 after 5 years.

+ Legal claims against NHS Foundation Trusts amounting to £41,203,000, of which £28,877,000 is expected
to be paid within 1 year, £4,616,000 in 1 to 5 years and £7,710,000 after 5 years.

+ Restructuring provisions recorded by Primary Care Trusts amounting to £16,990,000, of which £14,934,000
is expected to be paid within 1 year, £1,839,000 in 1 to 5 years and £217,000 after 5 years.

« Restructuring provisions recorded by Strategic Health Authorities, with a total value of £1,907,000, of which
£1,692,000 is payable within 1 year and £215,000 payable within 1 to 5 years.

+ Restructuring provisions recorded by NHS Trusts amounting to £75,888,000, of which £71,260,000 is
expected to be paid within 1 year, £4,269,000 in 1 to 5 years and £3508,000 after 5 years.

« Restructuring provisions recorded by NHS Foundation Trusts amounting to £40,794,000, of which
£38,762,000 is expected to be paid within 1 year, £671,000 in 1 to 5 years and £1,361,000 after 5 years.

+ Redundancy provisions recorded by Primary Care Trusts amounting to £73,810,000, of which F52,163,000
is expected to be paid within 1 year, £11,536,000 in 1 to 5 years and £111,000 after 5 years.

« Redundancy provisions recorded by Strategic Health Authorities, with a total value of £12,583,000, of which
£10,820,000 is payable within 1 year and £1,773,000 payable within 1 to 5 years.

+ Redundancy provisions recorded by NHS Trusts amounting to £55,365,000, of which £52,179,000 is
expected to be paid within 1 year and £3,186,000 in 1 to 5 years.
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e Redundancy provisions recorded by NHS Foundation Trusts amounting to £52 482,000, of which
£49,110,000 is expected to be paid within 1 year, £2,371,000 in 1 to 5 years and £1,001,000 after 5 years.

s Continuing Care provisions recorded by Primary Care Trusts amounting to £133,819,000, of which
£107,291,000 is expected to be paid within 1 year, £23 507,000 in 1 to 5 years and £3,021,000 after 5

years.

= A scheme in respect of persons who have contracted Hepatitis C through blood and blood products in the
course of treatment by the NHS. The total amount provided 1s £218,323,000 of which £15,624,000 is
expected to be paid within 1 year, £0in 1 to 5 years and £202 699,000 after 5 years.

« Non-clinical claims administered by NHSLA under the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme (LTPS) and the
Property Expenses Scheme (PES), with a total value of £246,937 000, of which £130,837,000 is expected
to be paid within 1 year, £100,000,000 in 1 to 5 years and £16,000,000 after 5 years.

» Of the remaining £600,117,000 balance in Other provisions (of which £323,567,000 is payable within 1 year,
£182,610,000 in 1 to 5 years and £93,940,000 after 5 years) £527,254,000 relates to miscellaneous
provisions recorded by SHAs, PCTs, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts. These relate to a range of
issues, including: equal pay, onerous contracts, lease dilapidations, Independent Sector Treatment Centres,
and partially completed treatments,
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21 Capital Commitments

Unaudited

Restated

201112 2010-11

E£°000 £°000

Core  Departmantal Corée  Departmantal

Dapartmant Group Dapartmant Group

Property, plant and equipment 513.295 1,527,242 1.098 1,383,719

Intangiblé non-cument assels 667,288 00,825 1,881,505 1,915,081
Total contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise

ingluded in these financial statements 1,180,583 2,227 0BT 1,882,603 3,298,780

This note discloses commitments to future capital expenditure, not otherwise disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements. Included within capital commitments are non cancellable contracts and purchase orders
which commit the Department to capital expenditure in a future period. Commitment to expenditure under other
forms of agreement such as Memorandums of Understanding may be considered as capital commitments if
they, in exceptional circumstances, effectively commit the Department to the expenditure as it would be
reputationally or politically damaging for the Department to withdraw from the agreement. Any future capital
funding within the Department's accounting boundary does not represent a capital commitment. The above
methodology has been applied prospectively from 2011-12.

A large proportion of Core Department capital commitments relate to contracts entered into by NHS Connecting
for Health for the delivery of the National Programme for IT (see note 23 for further details). In 2011-12 NHS
Connectling for Health had capital commitments amounting to £534m (2010-11: £1,866m). The principle reason
for the reduction from 2010-11 relates to the renegotiation of the CSC contract, where the commitment has
reduced by £969m.

The Department has additional Capital Commitments of £188 million in respect of the construction of the
Frances Crick Institute for Bio Medical Research, £126 million for the confirmed Capital Grant Allocations in
respect of the Community Capacity Grant for Adult Personal Social Services, £113 million for the Midland
Medical Accommodation Project which establishes the West Midlands as the central focus for the Defence
Medical Services. There is a further £94 million for the purchase of residual interests in Independent Sector
Treatment Centre (ISTC) schemes at three NHS syndicates, and £30 million relating to the Olympics to fund
three National Centres for Sports and Exercise Medicine. The establishment of these National Centres will fulfill
one of the Government's key 2012 Olympic Games bid commitments and will be a lasting legacy of the Games.

Of the Departmental Group's capital commitments, £572 million and £380 million are within the accounts of
NHS Foundation Trusts and NHS Trusts, respectively.
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Commitments under leases

21.1 Operating leases

£85 million of the Core Department’'s minimum payments relate to the rental of office accommodation. The
Department rents accommeodation in 12 buildings and the term of the leases will expire in the period 2012-
2018,

Unaudited
Restated
201112 201011
E000 000
Core  Departmental Cora Departmental
Dapartment Group Department Group

Payments recognised as an axpensa
Minimum lease payments 22215 809,820 23,526 G758, 102
Contingent rants . 8,303 . 6,825
Sub-lease paymens - 12,376 - 11.018
Total 22215 830,589 23,526 £92,945

Total future minimum lease payments under operating leases are given in the table below for each of the
following periods.

Unaudited
Restated
2011412 2010-11
£'000 £'000
Core  Deparmental Core Dapartmental
Departmant Group Dapartment Group
Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases
Land:
ot later than 1 year . 10,019 - 12,804
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years - 21,835 - 20,260
Later than 5 Years . 78,260 - 86 101
- 110,114 - 138,255
Buildings:
Mot later than 1 year 20,988 548,582 24 613 366,532
Later than 1 year, nol later than 5 years 66,082 1,151,664 B1,550 1,055,947
Later than 5 Years 7.851 1,777,838 17,181 1,728,001
94,929 3,478,284 123,354 3,151,480
Cither:
Mot laber than 1 year 76 184,951 127 190,533
Later than 1 year, not tater than 5 years 41 325 684 4 320,820
Later than 5 Years - 64,021 16 59,154
17 574,858 207 570,507
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Operating Lease receipts

Receipts recognised as revenue
Minirmum lease receipts
Contingent rents

Sub-tease receipls

Total

Total future minimum lease receipts under non-

cancellable operating leases

Land:

Mol later than 1 year

Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years
Later than 5 Years

Buildings:

Mot later than 1 year

Later than 1 year, nol |ater than 5 years
Later than 5 Years

Othar:

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year, nod Laler ihan 5 years
Later than & Years
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Unaudited

Restated

201112 201011

E'000 £000
Core  Deparmantal Core Departmantal
D partmant Group Departmant Group
3.547 152,104 127,003
13,454 11,578

3,547 165,568 - 138,581
Unauditad

Restated

2014142 201011

£'000 £°000

Lore  Departmantal [T Uapartmental
Department Group Dapartment Group
2,354 1.467

5318 2570

- 78057 28,008
85,720 - 33,054

1,686 23,040 1,814 20,328

3,282 65.052 4,535 60,641

1,454 98,2491 226 115,161
6,462 186,383 6,575 196,130
310,916 142,198

74,302 - 361,505

1,105,833 * 804,779

- 1,581,051 1,413,480
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21.2 Finance leases

The Department's significant finance leases relate to the Ambulance Radio Programme, where leased assets
include terminal equipment for radio dispatchers and associated voice systems, and to the Renal Programme,
where leased assets are used in the delivery of services, and which comprise land, buildings (wards and
theatres) and equipment. Different types of equipment are contained in the facilities and the major items include
water treatment plants, the Commissioning Data Set (CDS) and dialysis machines.

The minimum payments of the Ambulance Radio Programme are £41,582 000 and the lease expires in 2020-
21. The minimum payments of the Renal Programme are £20,896,000 and the lease expires in 2016-17.
Commitments under finance leases are as follows:

Unaudited
Rastatod
201112 2010-11
Minimum lease payments: £'000 E'000
Core  Departmental Core Departmental
Department Group Dapartmeant Group
Bulldings:

Mot later than 1 year 1,373 : 25,732 1,373 102,284
Laler than 1 year, not laler than 5 years 17,055 133,220 8767 143,324
Later than 5 Years = 302,761 9,661 316,696
18,428 461,713 19,801 562,304
Less interest element (2,403) {234,604) (2.992) (251,743)
16,025 227,104 16,805 310,561

Other:
Mot later than 1 year 9,874 56,381 17,975 72,292
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years. 30828 130,193 48 951 153,255
Later than 5 Years 775 20,836 15,462 40,536
56,877 216,210 B2428 266,083
Less interes! element (8,833) (31,044) (12,935) (38,929)
48,044 185,166 69,493 227,154

Land:
Mot later than 1 year . a79 - 1,861
Later than 1 year, nol later than 5 years - 2377 - 4,736
Later than 5 Years - 11,138 . 15.914
: 14,3594 . 22,511
Less interest abermant = {10,094) - {13,563)
- 4,300 - 8,948
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Unaudited
Restated
201112 2010-11
Present value of minimum lease payments: £'000 £'000
Core Departmantal Core Departmental
Department Group Department Group
Buildings:

Mot later than 1 year 812 12,789 TE4 87, 826
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years 15,213 94 433 5,696 58, 962
Later than 5 Years - 117,955 49,329 122,330
16,025 225177 16,809 308,118

Other:
Mot later than 1 year 7441 47,1045 12,553 60,560
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years 34,031 108,724 30.280 128,582
Later than 5 Years 6,572 25928 17,660 39,444
48,044 181,761 659,493 228,586

Land:
Meoa later than 1 year - 2 187 - 1,587
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years . 2.8 - 2557
Later than 5 Years - 4,555 = 4,805
9,633 - 8,949
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21.3 Finance lease receivables

Amounts receivable under finance leases

Gross Investments in leases

Mod later than 1 year

Later than 1 yaar, not later than 5 years
Latar than 5 Yaars

Less future finance income

Present value of minimum lease payments

Less cumulative provision for uncollectable payments

Total finance lease receivables chgnll&d In the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Of minimum lease payments

Within 1 year
Batwaan 1 and 5 yaars
After § years

Less fulure finance income

Present value of minimum lease payments

Less cumulative provision for uncollectiable paymeants:

Total finance lease recelvables recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

incheded in:

Current finance laase recaivables
Mon-curment finance lease recaivablas
Sub total

Rantal revarue
Contingent rant
Oitheer

Total rental revenuea

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Unaudited

Restated

201112 201011

E"D00 E"000

Core Departmantal Cora Departmaental
Department Group Dapartmaent Group
1,438 - 926

6,542 - 8,532

40,023 = 43 1889

(19,940} = (21,658)

= 28,964 = 28,985

- 28,964 - 28,988
Unaudited

Restated

201112 201011

£'000 £'000

Core Dapartmantal Core Dapartmaental
Department Group Departmant Group
476 227

- 2,273 2153

- 26,215 26,809

= 28,964 - 28,989

- 28,964 - 28,989
466 217

- 28,458 28,772

= 28,964 - 28,9859
2,430 - 1,570

4 - 2,048

2,434 : 3,619
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22 Commitments under PFl and LIFT contracts

Details of PFI and LIFT contracts in respect of each of the following categories are recorded in the individual
accounts of relevant PCTs, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts.

22.1 NHS LIFT schemes deemed to be off Statement of Financial Position

In this financial year, four PCTs reported off-Statement of Financial Position LIFT schemes (2010-11: four
PCTs). The estimated capital value of these schemes is £6,770,000 (2010-2011: £6,709,000). The assels
which make up this capital value are not assets of the PCTs. The amount included within operating expenses
for these schemes is £1,123,000 (2010-11; £864,000).

22.2 NHS LIFT schemes deemed to be on Statement of Financial Position

PCTs

In this financial year, 80 PCTs reported on-Statement of Financial Position LIFT schemes (2010-11: 80 PCTs).
The assets of these schemes are treated as assets of the PCTs. The substance of each contract is that the
FCT has a finance lease, and payments comprise an imputed finance lease charge and a service charge. The
amount included within operating expenses for the service element of these schemes is £48 876,000 (2010-11;
£43,748,000).

MHS Trusts

In this financial year, two NHS Trusts (2010-11 three) reported on-Statement of Financial Position LIFT
schemes. The assels of these schemes are treated as assets of the trusts. The substance of each contract is
that the NHS Trust has a finance lease and payments comprise an imputed finance lease charge and a service
charge.

Details of the individual LIFT schemes are included in the accounts of each NHS Trust

Total obligations for the on-Statement of Financial Position NHS LIFT Schemes due:

Unaudited

Restatod)|

201112 2010-11

E000 £000

Cone Deparimental Core Dapartmantal

Department Group Departmant Group

ot Later thamn 1 year . 148 412 - 128,775
EI.HHII-H'I- 1 year, not Liler than 5 years - 584,005 - 513,608
Later than 5 years = 2092 988 - 2852 G7E
Sub total . 3,727,383 - 3,293,750
Less inferes) alement . (2,080 542) - {1858, 048))
Total - 1,627,741 = 1,435,701

193



Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

22.3 Charges to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure in respect of NHS LIFT
Contracts

The total charged in the year to expenditure in respect of off-Statement of Financial Position NHS LIFT
contracts and the service element of on-Statement of Financial Position NHS LIFT contracts was £50,296 000

(2010-11; £44,276,000).

The PCTs and NHS Trusts with NHS LIFT contracts are committed to the following total charges:

Unaudibed

Restated

201142 2010-11

| Core Lepartmental Lore Dapmmmhll
Department Group Departmont Gl‘nl.ll:i

NHS LIFT Scheme Expiry i
Mot Laler than 1 year - 56,716 - 50,107)
Later than 1 year, nof laber than 5 years . 251,368 . 221.52?;
Laler than 5 years . 1,387 658 . 1,237 056/
Total . 1,686,073 - 1,508,730

22.4 PFIlSchemes deemed to be off Statement of Financial Position

PCTs
In this financial year, no PCTs reported off-Statement of Financial Position PFl schemes (2010-11: Nil).

NHS Trusts

In this financial year, four NHS Trusts reported off-Statement of Financial Position PF| schemes (2010-11: four
trusts). The estimated capital value of these schemes is £16,001,000 (2010-11 Restated: £16,851,000). The
assets which make up this capital value are not assets of the individual organisations. The amount included
within operating expenses for these schemes is £12,658,000 (2010-11 Restated: £11,983,000).

Details of the individual PFl schemes are included in the accounts of each NHS Trust.

NHS Foundation Trusts

The assets used to provide the services under the PFl schemes are not assets of the Foundation Trust. The
gross amount included within operating expenses for these schemes is £7,971,000 (2010-11: £10,459,000).
Details of the individual PFI schemes are included in the accounts of each Foundation Trust.
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22.5 NHS PFl schemes deemed to be on Statement of Financial Position

Unaudited

Restated

2011-12 2010-11

£°000 E'000

Core Dopartmental Core Departmental

Departmant Group Department Group

Mot later than 1 year - TG7,528 - 685,380
Later than 1 year nol Later ihan 5 years - 3,058,185 - 2,751,083
Later than 5 yaars - 16,535,358 - 15,285,566
Sub total - 20,358,075 - 18,722,068
Less: interest glament - (10,272,371} - (8.825,595)
Total . 10,086, 704 . 8,856,473

PCTs and NHS Trusts

In this financial year, 28 PCTs and 46 NHS Trusts reported on-Statement of Financial Position PFI schemes
(2010-11; 28 PCTs and 48 trusts). The assets of these schemes are treated as assets of the PCT/NHS Trust.
The substance of each contract is that the PCT/Trust has a finance lease, and payments comprise an imputed
finance lease charge and a service charge. The amount included within operating expenses for the service
element of these schemes is £463 547 000 (2010-11: £433,568,000).

Details of the individual PFI schemes are included in the accounts of each PCT and MNHS Trust.

NHS Foundation Trusts

The assets of these schemes are treated as assets of the NHS Foundation Trust The substance of each
contract is that the organisation has a finance lease, and payments comprise an imputed finance lease charge
and a service charge. The amount included within operating expenses for the service element of these
schemes is £390,617,000 (2010-11; £347 872,000).

Details of the individual PFI schemes are included in the accounts of each NHS Foundation Trust.

22.6 Charges to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure in respect of NHS PFI
contracts

The total charged in the year to expenditure in respect of off-Statement of Financial Position PFI contracts and
the service element of on-Statement of Financial Position PFl contracts was £874,794,000 (2010-11:
£803,882,000).

Unaudited
Restated
201142 2010-11
£'000 £'000
Long Ugpartmental Gona Departmental
Departmant Group Departmant Group

FFi Scheme Expiry
Mol Later than 1 year - 828,755 - 785,561
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years . 3477159 - 3239471
Later than 5 years . 25,328,802 - 23,572 404
Tatal . 29,635,716 . 27,996,836

195



Department of Health Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

23 Other Financial Commitments

Unaudited

Restated

201112 201011

£'000 £'000

Core Dapartmental Core Departmental

Department Group Department Group

Mot later than 1 year 3089420 3,282,990 1,106 802 1,200,727
Later than 1 year, not later than 5 years 1,487 578 1,731,975 3,283,289 3,433,451
Later than 5 Years B4 226 150,851 146,007 273,694
4,661,224 5,165,816 4,535,808 4,907,877

This note discloses commitments to future expenditure, not otherwise disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements. Included within other financial commitments are non cancellable contracts and purchase orders
which commit the Department to revenue expenditure in a future period. Commitments to expenditure under
other forms of agreement such as Memorandums of Understanding may be considered as commitments if they,
in exceptional circumstances, effectively commit the Department lo the expenditure as it would be
reputationally or politically damaging for the Department to withdraw from the agreement. Any future funding
within the Department's accounting boundary does not represent a financial commitment. The abaove
methodology has been applied prospectively from 2011-12.

At the end of the reporting period, NHS Informatics had entered into various contracts which, if delivered
according to the terms of those contracts, would result in financial commitments of £1,042,043,000 (2010-11:
£2,703,947 000) over the next & years. The main reasons for this reduction are due to the change in
methodology noted above, and the renegotiation of the CSC contract, which resulted in reducing the
commitment by £510m.

The contracts relate to Programmes managed under the National Programme for IT, which will in the future
continue to be delivered by NHS Informatics, a Directorate of the Department of Health, for the purpose of
bringing modem computing systems into the NHS to improve patient care and services. Over the life of the
programmes, they will connect over 30,000 GPs in England and almost 300 hospitals, and will give patients
access to their personal health and care information, transforming the way the NHS works. The contracts are
such that the obligation to pay does not arise until the suppliers have successfully implemented solutions in the
required locations, and it has been accepted after a period of live running.

The largest element of the commitment for NHS Informatics relates to Local Service Provider contracts which
are contracts over a fixed term and therefore there is a reduction in the total committed amount year on year.
In addition, contract renegotiations for the North Midlands and East Local Service Provider contract has
reduced the level of commitment over the remaining term of the contract.

Additionally, the Department has entered into commitments for a £1,374 million grant for Adult Personal Social
Services delivered through Local Authorities, £393 million for the purchase of Childhood and Adult Vaccines
and Pan Flu, £331 million for Independent Sector Treatment Centres, and research and development of £639
million with a number of NHS organisations, universities and private research organisations. The purpose of
research and development arrangements varies from the development of the health research workforce and
research infrastructure in the NHS and the provision of research support by the NHS to specific research
programmes or projects. The overall purpose of the work is to develop an evidence base for improved health
care.

Of the Departmental Group's other financial commitments, £231 million, £124 million and £88 million are within
the accounts of NHS Foundation Trusts, Primary Care Trusts and NHS Trusts, respectively.

- The Department has publically communicated its intention to provide national support to a small number of
NHS Trusts with significant PF1 debts. Whilst up to £1.5 billion will be made available to these organisations
over a 25 year period, the support is not in the nature of a contractual commitment and does not therefore form
part of the Other Financial Commitments figure disclosed in these accounts.
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24 Financial Instruments

As the cash requirements of the Department are met through the Estimates process, financial instruments play
a more limited role in creating and managing risk than would apply to a non-public sector body of a similar size.

Currency Risk

The Department undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, the vast majority of which
are transactions relating to European Economic Area (EEA) medical costs.

Due to delays in the submission of medical cost claims by member states (as per current EU regulations), the
Department estimates annual medical costs and adjusts future years' expenditure when actual costs arise (are
claimed). Estimated costs are converted into sterling at average rates calculated using EU published rates.
Payments made are valued at prevailing exchange rates and the Department enters into forward contracts for
the purchase of Euros for this purpose ie. to mitigate risk of exposure to ‘Sterling/'Euro’ exchange rate
fluctuations. Amounts in the Statement of Financial Position at year-end are converted at the exchange rate
ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date, with any exchange rate gains or losses calculated in
accordance with accepted accounting practice.

Foreign currency forward purchase contracts are measured at ‘fair value’, with movements in fair value being
charged or credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

The Department's investments in NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and the Medicines & Healthcare
Products Regulatory Agency are represented by Public Dividend Capital (PDC) which, being issued under
slatutory authority, is not classed as being a financial instrument.

The Department did not have any forward currency contracts outstanding as at 31st March 2012, and so no
financial asset existed at the Statement of Financial Position date. However, a new Forward currency contract
was entered into on 2nd April 2012. The Exchange rate exposure on this covers approximately 66% of 2011-
12 in year EEA revenue DEL expenditure.

The NHS sector is made up principally of domestic organisations with the great majority of transactions, assets
and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. Exposure to currency rate fluctuations is therefore low.

Liquidity risk

The income within the Department of Health Group mastly originates from Central Government and remains
within the group. Due to the continuing service provider relationship that health bodies have with each other,
they are not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. NHS Trusts and Foundation
Trusts, for example, generate their income from contractual arrangements with their commissioning NHS
Primary Care Trusts based either on a tariff for services performed or on assumptions for the amount of work to

be carried out.

Interest rate risk
The Departmental Group has limited exposure to Interest Rate Risk:

NHS Trusts borrow from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability. The borrowings are for 1-
25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans rate, fixed
for the life of the loan. NHS trusts therefore have low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

NHS Foundation trusts have the power to enter into loans and working capital facilities with commercial
lenders. They are also able to borrow from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility (FTFF), managed by the
Department of Health. The term of FTFF loans can range up to 25 years with the interest rate fixed at the
National Loan Fund fixed rate for the period of the loan prevailing on the date of signing of the loan agreement.
NHS foundation trusts are required to maintain their borrowing within a limit determined by a code devised by

Monitor.

Credit risk
The vast majority of the NHS sector's income is generated from public sector bodies and as such is exposed to

low credit risk.
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25 Contingent Assets and Liabilities disclosed under IAS 37

25.1 Contingent Assets

It is probable the Department will receive “overage” payments following a portfolio transfer of almost 100
properties to the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) between 2005 and 2007. A base payment of £320
million was received with further possible payments when the cash received from the subsequent sales of the
properties by the HCA, less their costs of holding and disposal, exceeds the base payment. The HCA estimates
that future overage payments in the region of £92 million may become payable to the Department, with £23
million of this overall figure being considered a highly probable future inflow of economic benefit.

Primary Care Trusts have £54 071,000 of contingent assets (2010-11: £48,936,000), mainly in respect of legal
charges held on properties which have been purchased using grants from PCTs. Strategic Health Authorities
have no contingent assets (2010-11: £0). NHS Trusts have £1,813,000 contingent assets (2010-11: £817,000).
Foundation Trusts have £2,000,000 contingent assets (2010-11: £2,000,000).

25.2 Contingent Liabilities

The contingent liabilities considered most important to the users of the accounts are detailed below. Further
information for all contingent liabilities can be found in the underlying accounts of individual bodies

Clinical Negligence

The Department is the actual or potential defendant in a number of actions regarding alleged clinical
negligence, or liabilities relating to the NHS property or third parties. In some cases, costs have been provided
for or otherwise charged to the accounts. In other cases, there is a large degree of uncertainty as to the
Department's liability and the amounts involved. Possible total expenditure might be estimated at £8.46 billion
(2010-11: £7.75 billion), although £7.83 billion (2010-11: £7.14 billion) relating to the Clinical Negligence
Scheme for Trusts (CNST), Property Expense Scheme (PES) and Liability to Third Parties Scheme (LTPS)
would be expected to be met by payments from NHS Trusts.

NHS Contingent Liabilities
Within Primary Care Trusts’ accounts at 31 March 2012, there were net contingent liabilities of £55,637,000
(2010-11; £48,796,000). These are mainly in respect of continuing care liabilities.

Within NHS Trusts' accounts at 31 March 2012, there were net contingent liabilities of £47 927,000 (2010-11:
£52,482 000). These are mainly in respect of legal and litigation claims.

Dr Foster

The joint venture contract between the Department and Dr Foster LLP includes a put option whereby if, anytime
from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2013, Dr Foster LLP shareholders wish to sell their share in the
investment, the Department would be obliged to buy out their share of the business, at market value, if no other
buyer can be found.

Social Enterprise Investment Fund {SEIF)

The Social Enterprise Investment Fund supports social enterprises involved in the delivery of health and social
care services. Investment is available for new social enterprises to start up and existing social enterprises to
grow and improve their service. By its nature the fund invests in organisations for which commercial bank
support might not be readily available in order to bridge the gap between business and service need and
commercial risk. Therefore, it is prudent to acknowledge that although there is a strict due diligence process in
place to mitigate risk of default, there may be some level of default on SEIF loan assets. At 31 March 2012
there is no indication that any defaults will occur other than that specifically provided for in the accounts.

Nursing and Midwifery Council

The Department has recorded a contingent liability in relation to the Nursing and Midwifery Council pension
scheme. As an employer in the NMC Scheme, the Department is liable to pay a proportion of any funding
shortfall that arises following the Scheme's Actuarial valuation. It is unlikely that the next valuation will be
published until 2014, which will take into account the Scheme's liabilities as at 31 March 2013 and therefore it is
unlikely that any liabilities will crystallise before 2015. Due to recent market trends, the estimated DH funding
position in relation to its portion of the Scheme liabilities has fallen from a small surplus as at 31 March 2011 to
a small shortfall as at 31 March 2012 and so immaterial additional contributions may be required. However as
the position is quite volatile, this could change significantly by the date of the next valuation.
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Injury Benefit Scheme

An investigation into the administration of the injury benefits scheme began in 2006 following a decision by the
Pensions Ombudsman. As a result of the review, monies were due to be paid to some 10,000 pecple who had
not received the correct payments due to irregularities in the administration of the injury benefits scheme
between 1972 and 2006. Due to difficulties in contacting beneficiaries, it has not been possible to make full
payment to all the affected individuals in this financial year. There are still people for whom the Department
retains a financial liability but who currently cannot be traced. This financial liability currently stands at
£2,574,619. Although at this stage the Department cannot estimate how many of these claims will be
successful nor how much benefit will eventually be owed.

Other

There are a number of recorded contingent liabilities relating to changes in funding arrangements between the
Department and other bodies. These cases relate to potential costs for terminating contracts early but as these
contracts may transfer to new organisations, a reliable estimate of costs or timings cannot be made.

26 Contingent Liabilities not required to be disclosed under IAS 37 but included for Parliamentary
reporting and accountability purposes

26.1 Quantifiable

The Department of Health has entered into the following quantifiable contingent liabilities by offering
indemnities or by giving letters of comfort. None of these is a contingent liability within the meaning of IAS 37
since the likelihood of a transfer of economic benefit in settiement is too remote. They therefore fall to be
measured following the requirements of IAS 39. HM Treasury's guidance Managing Public Money requires that
the full potential costs of such contracts be reported to Parliament. These costs are reproduced in the table

below.
Amssunt
reported o
Liabilities Obligation Parigmant by
Increase  cryatallised in supired in 31 March 2012 31 March 2012 departmental
1 April 2011 in yaar yOar PRar Cost Humbar Minute
[y Ha, C000 E£000 £'000 £000 Ha, £'000
Guaranies: - 1.500 1,500 1 1,500
Indemnetios; 23,750 3 1,250 65,000 3 58,000
Lettiers of comilcrt -
93,750 3 2,750 96, 500 4 6500

26.2 Unguantifiable

The Department of Health has entered into a number of unquantifiable or unlimited contingent liabilities with
various health bodies and private companies. There were 31 indemnities. None of these is a contingent liability
within the meaning of IAS 37 since the possibility of a transfer of economic benefit in settliement is too remote.
Full details of these can be found in the Statement of Contingent or Nominal Liabilities held at the Department.
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27 Losses and Special Payments and other Accounting Notes

27.1 Losses Statement

Unaudited

Restated

201112 2010-11

Total £'000

Cases £'000 Cases £'000

Total £0.434 202,849 02,723 322,490
Cases over £260,000

Cash losses 3 2,058 - -

Claims abandoned 2 1,830 4 2,054

Cancellation of Public Dividend Capital (PDC) 1 32,669 - -

Administrative write-offs : : - -

Fruitless payments 7 27178 3 38,897

Constructive Loss B 67229 1 6,153

Store losses . - & 89,946

Of the lofal the followang relatles to the Core Deparment 118 235,132 136 273,758

In 2011-12, HM Treasury clarified that loss of accountable stores should only be recorded as a stores loss
where there is an element of blame: e.g. from theft, arson or other culpable causes. Where a loss arises
through the normal course of business this should be recorded as a constructive loss. Losses resulting from
date expired stocks which had been correctly ordered and stored have therefore been categorised as
constructive losses in 2011-12. Equivalent losses in 2010-11 were categorised as stores losses which explains
the significant year-on-year increase in constructive losses and corresponding decrease in stores losses.

Department of Health Share of Mational Insurance Contribution Losses

Included within its total losses, the Department has recorded a technical loss of £115,593,623, which is its
share of the overall, cross-Government loss relating to Mational Insurance Contributions (NICs). Such losses
occur when contributions cannot be collected because companies have ceased to exist during the year. Her
Majesty's Revenue & Customs (HMRC) allocates this category of loss to those Departments which are partially
funded from NICs, an a proportional basis. It should be noted that the disclosure of this category of loss is a
technical requirement which is completely outside the Department's control.

Cancellation of Public Dividend Capital (PDC)

By means of an HM Treasury Minute laid before Parliament, the Department has recorded a loss of
£32,869,000 relating to PDC cancelled in 2011-12. This was in respect of the outstanding PDC of
Worcestershire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust which was dissolved on 1 July 2011. £32 412,000 was
issued to the successor body, Worcestershire Health & Care NHS Trust, in the form of Originating Capital by
means of a statutory instrument. The £457 000 difference between the value of PDC cancelled and the newly
issued PDC reflects movements in both the composition and valuation of the assets of the dissolved NHS
Trusts in the years since their initial establishment. There is consequently no overall loss of PDC.

Claims abandoned

The Social Enterprise Investment Fund

The Department has recognised a loss of £304 290 relating to an investment made by The Social Enterprise
Fund (SEIF). The SEIF supports social enterprises involved in the delivery of health and social care services.
Investment is available for the start up of new projects or the development of existing social enterprise
schemes, particularly where it might have been difficult to obtain commercial finance. A loan was provided
through SEIF in 2008 to promote and develop products and services which enabled independence for disabled
and older people. However, the organisation to which the loan was issued experienced cashflow problems in

EQ1 1 and proved non-financially viable, at which point it was deemed necessary to write off bath the loan
principal and interest.
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Constructive losses

Emergency Preparedness Stockpile

The Department authorised write-offs relating to date expired inventory items in line with existing accounting
standards. The Department holds countermeasures inven tory for use in the event of an accidental or malicious
release of chemical, biological, radiclogical or nuclear agents. If no such incidents oceur the inventory inevitably
reaches the end of its useable life and needs to be disposed of and replaced in order to maintain a measure of
protection for the UK's population. The value of inventary written-off in the period April 2011 to March 2012 due
to expiration of their shelf life was £14,088,609.

Pandemic Flu Countermeasures Stockpile

The Department wrote-off £51,162,113 in relation to countermeasures held for pandemic flu preparedness that
have now passed their shelf life. These write offs are a planned consequence of our preparedness strategy that
involves central stockpiling.

Essential Medicines Stockpile
The Department wrote-off £1,103,546 in relation to the essential medicines stockpile. This write-off is in respect
of stockpile goods items that have now passed their shelf life.

CSC missed deployment payments

Through negotiations with CSC in 2008, agreement was reached to include a £19.9 million payment relating to
the fixed element of previously missed deployments as part of the renegotiation of the CSC Contract for the
NME region as per contractual terms. This payment was incorrectly capitalised and added to the non-current
asset register at that time and has been remaved during 2011-12. This has resulted in the net book value of
£8.8 million being written off in 2011-12.

NHS Losses
Losses within the NHS are predominantly within Foundation Trusts (48,850 cases totalling £23,115,000), NHS
Trusts (34,655 cases totalling £20,158,000) and Primary Care Trusts (2,728 cases totalling £9,730,000).
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27.2 Special Payments

Unaudited
Restated
201112 201011
Tatal £'000
Cages £'000 Cases £°'000
Todal 10,706 139,300 10,642 37122
Defails Of Cases Cwver £250,000 4 105,304 ] 6,654
Of the total the following relates to the Core Department 17 100,177 19 4 400

CSC de-commitment payment

During negotiations with CSC, agreement has been reached to include a £100 million de-commitment payment
as part of the renegotiation of the CSC Contract for the North, Midlands and East (NME) region. Under the new
terms of the contract, the NHS is no longer obligated to put forward 222 NHS Trusts to procure the CSC
product; in addition CSC's exclusivity in the NME territories will be removed. By making these changes, the
Coalition government's localisation agenda will be promoted, as NHS Trusts will be able to procure either the
CSC product or other available solutions which meet their specific requirements.

NHS Special Payments
Special Payments within the NHS are predominantly within Foundation Trusts (5,410 cases totalling
£18,555,000), NHS Trusts (4,825 cases totalling £15,007,000 ) and Primary Care Trusts (363 cases totalling

£4,080,000).

28 Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions associated with the Core Department are disclosed within this note. Details of
related party transactions associated with other bodies within the Departmental Group are disclosed in their
underlying statutory accounts. As disclosed in Note 32, the Department acts as the parent of the group of
organisations (Strategic Health Authorities, Primary Care Trusts, NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts,
Executive Non-Departmental Public Bodies and Special Health Authorities) whose accounts are consolidated
within this Annual Report and Account. It also acts as the sponsor for the trading funds which are not
consolidated. These bodies are regarded as related parties with which the Department has had various
material transactions during the year.

In addition, the Department had a small number of transactions with other Government Departments and other
central Government badies in 2011-12.

A number of Ministers, Non-Executive Directors and members of either the Departmental Board or Department
of Health Management Committee have connections with a wide range of outside organisations for reasons
unrelated to their work in the Department. In the normal course of its business during the year, the Department
may enter into business transactions with such outside organisations or related parties. In cases where an
individual within DH has an outside connection with one of these related parties, the Department is obliged to
disclose the extent of its own transactions with those organisations, as set out in the table below:
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Payables
with Purchases from m:m Sales to
related related party related party
party party
2011-12 201142 201142 201112
Sub Hote £000 £'000 E£7000 E'000
Reoyal College of Physicians 1 107 08 - L
Marig Curia” 2 - 3 088
Thamis Valley University 3 223
Quiren's Nursing Institute 4 - 10 .= -
Mandical Reseanch Council 5 - 6,885 e 16,817
Machway Hospital NHS Trust [ 5 : £ 29
The Royal Colege of General Practitioners i 1 oz - -
University of Birmingham i 14 B0B 1 "
Birmingham Children's Hospital 9 - 1,780 - -
Urnitied Litilites Pic i} - T - -
Crvil Service Benevolent Fund 11 - 40 - -
London School of Economics 12 - 4,116 5 20
Sub Note

1) Frona Adshead holds a position a1 Royal College of Physicians

2) Darne Christing Beasley is a Trustee of Mane Curie Cancer Cang (a registered charity)

3) Dame Chaistine Beasley is Pro-Vice Chancellor al Thames. Valley University

4) Dame Christing Beasley is & leligw a1 Queen's Mursing Instilute

5) Dame Sally Davies is a Council Mamber of Medical Research Couneil

6} Richard Douglas’ wife is employed by Medway Hospital NMS Trust

7} Sir Davad Nicholson is an Honorary Fellow a1 the Royal College of General Practitioners

8) Sir David Nicholson is an Honorary Fellow a1 the University of Birmingham Health Service Management Centre
8) Sir David Nicholson's wife is the Chief Executive of Birmingham Children's Hospital NHS Faundation Trust
10) Cathering Bell is a Non Executive Director for United Utilities

11) Catherine Bell i 3 trustes (pro bono) of the Civil Service Benevolent Fund

12) Catherine Bedl is a Governor of the London School of Economics

The sub-note above identifies those individuals with outside connections to the organisations listed in the
Table. It is important to note that the financial transactions disclosed were between the Department itself and
the named organisation. The individuals named in the sub-note have not benefited from those transactions.

Apart from where disclosed in this note, no other Minister, Board member, key manager or other related party
has undertaken any material transactions with the Department during the year.

29 Third Party Assets

Met in-year
1 April 2011 mavement 31 March 2012
£1000 £'000 £000
Monetary assets
Bank balances 93,706 9,064 102,770
Monses. on deposits 10,985 {1,408) 8578
Total 104,692 7,656 112,348

Third party assets are those which do not belong to the Department and are therefore not included in the
financial statements. The above third party monetary assets, at 31 March 2012, were held by the Department of
Health (but are not included in the financial statements) and include £85,931,000 held by NHS Foundation
Trusts (2010-11: £77,188,000), £8,404,000 held by NHS Trusts (2010-11 £8,307,000) and £1,358,000 held by
NHS Primary Care Trusts (2010-11 restated: £2,538,000) in banks and in hand in respect of monies held on
behalf of patients. They also include £16,654,358 (2010-11: £16,658,512) held by the Department of Health in
Escrow accounts relating to NHS Connecting for Health. These amounts are in relation to service and delay
deductions and are calculated in line with the contractual clauses in respect of Service Level Agreements and

Key Milestone dates.
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30.1 Movements in defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets

Reconciliation of movements in the defined obligation and the fair value of plan assets during the year for the
amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

Present value of the defined
benefit obligation 1 April 2011

Current service cost

Interest Cost

Contributions from members
Actuarial gains and (losses)
Benefits paid

Business combinations

Past service cost
Settlements and curtailments
Other

At 31 March 2012

Flan assets at fair value at 1 April 2011
Expected return on assets

Actuarial gain/(losses)

Contributions by the employer
Contributions by the plan participants
Benefits paid

Business combinations

Settlements

At 31 March 2012

Plan surplus/(deficit) at 31 March 2012

30.2 Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Net Expenditure

Current service cost
Interest cost

Expected return on assets
Past service costs
Settlement or curtailment
Total

Unaudited

Restated

201112 2010-11
E'D0D £'000
(328,648) (366,922)
(7.660) (10,242)
(18,220) (20,825)
(2,877) (3,138)
(39,153) 26,511
8,118 11,591
(905) =

- 32,783
[¥7,329) (219)
1,813
(396,674) (328,648)
306,980 294 817
20,820 19,469
(21,150) (6,400)
6,689 7.547
2,877 3,138
(8.118) (11,591)
792 -
309,090 306,980
(87,584) (21,668)
Unaudited

Restated

201112 2010-11
£°000 £'000
(7,660) (10,242)
(18,220) (20,825)
20,820 19,469
- (32,783}
(7.329) (219}
(12,389) (44,600)
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Included within the above pensions note are th

Quality Commission and General Social Care
follows:

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

& pension obligations held by NHS Foundation Trusts. Care
Council. The planned Surplus/ (Deficit) can be broken down as

2011-12 2010-11

(£'000) (£°000)
MHS Foundation Trusts (5.633) (2,8923)
Care Quality Commission (67,768) (13,857)
General Social Care Council (14,183) (4,788)
Total _ (87,854) (21,668)

Further information regarding these pension obligations can be found in

these bodies.

31 Events after the Reporting Period

the underlying financial statements of

The Accounts were authorised for issue by the Accounting Officer on the 15 October 2012,

205



Department of Health

Annual Report and Accounts 2011-12

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

32 Entities within the Departmental boundary

Ministers had some degree of responsibility for the following bodies during the year 2011-12:

Consolidated in the Departmaents Annusl Repen and Accownts

Supply financed sgemcian

Crthver Bodies
Stratege Health Authorities’
Primary Care Trusss?

HHS Tnasis

KRS Foundabion Trusts
KHS Dinect
Skipton Fund Livsied

Special Health Authorities:
NHS Busiress Services Authonty
e Infermation Canire
Mational Irsiriute for Heaith and Chimcal Excellance
NHS Liigation Authority
National Teaatmant Agercy ko slistanc misuss’
Matioral Patiend Satety Agency”
HHS Insstubs kv |ovaon Bnd IPgrovernent”
MHS Commissioning Boad”
Feaith Fresaarch Authorty™

Exstutivs Hom-Deparimental Public Badies
Apponiments Commigsion”
Humaen Fartiksation and Embryology Authality
General Social Cane Councl’
Haalth Protection Agency”
Cane Cuality Commission
Indapandant Rieguiaior of WHS Foundation Trusts
Coundll for Mealthcare Regutaory Exceliencs™
Human Tissue Auiharity

Db advisory committses/adyisnry NOPRs

Theesir achdsory bodestadviszony HDPBs ace nol sepanate legal entites, rather they an pan of the Core
Duparimen with thedr associaled Costs being included within the Comn Depanment account. As such, ey

W oL SApAratedy Consolidatod a0 MeEE Snancial SIHeMmants.

Adminisiration of Radiasciive Substances Advisary Commitiee

Adasory Committes on Animicrobial Resistances and Hoalthcare Associated infecson
Arasory Commiltes on Dangems Pathogens (0H)

Advisory Geoup on Hepalitis

Commsties on Carcincgeniclly of Chamicals in Food, Consumer Products &nd the Ermironmend
Commities on the Medical Aspects of Radiation in ihe Ernaronmisnt

Commitiss on the Mutagenicity of Chemicals in Food, Consumer Products and tha Emiroomaent
Commithée on the Medical ESects of Alr Poliutants (DH)

Expart Adwisory Group on A0S

Expart Group on Vilamirs. and Minarals

Gang Thaarsgy Advisory Commitbes

Genetics and Insurance Commitiee

Health Research Autharity

Huamide Génétics Comemission

Jank Commies on Vaccination ard nmunisadion

NHE Commisscring Board

Thit WHS Piry Frviow Biody

Ry Boxdy on Doclons’ and Dentists' Remuneration

Sceentific Advisory Commiltes on Mutriton

Kot Consolidstad

Trading Funds

Medcines & Heathcare Products Requistery Agency |

HHES Blood and Transplant

OH Costrodling Equity Investmants '™
Flasma Fescunces LK
Cract Guarantes Fund

D Fosses Intelbgence Lid
MHE Professionsis Lid

Communsty Health Parnerships
NHS Property Services Limiled
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1] Sirategas Hastn Auth il b d on 1 Apnl 2013
Z) Prnary Cane Traats will be abolished on 1 Apal 2013

3) Tha Nabional Teaatment Agency ke gy i by ry 191 Al 201 subiect o the S iage of legesl 1. S mes] of it frchions trarsfemed 1o Pubsc Health Engung

4} T Kol Hiﬂﬁdm’mmhh%mmhl!mmﬂnmwunmcmmm
ﬂTuwmmrmmwmquuWMHﬂmmmmrwmr‘mmmﬂum - Ty e PG, ]
Board

1) The Apportmerts Comimia s (& due i be aboiskes with g I tomed within e,

hhwmmmﬂmmmmmnmmm

) Thes MHS, T wng Board Sp Heaith Authority wid setablished on 31 Oclober 2011 and i & prep ¥ Excacly o D QNens T FODOSEd COMMITROrEng Landscsss
dervmlopeany A8 Butina iy functonds mmmﬂmmmumumsmwmhﬂrhnmnumu
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The Annual Reports and Accounis of the bodies bslnd Can i Sbleced from the loloang Haces

Siraceg Haaith Authontss Avalabie or the witite of tre resan sgansation
Primary Cade Trusts Avislabie on e wibits of the relevant crgiriaton
KHS Truiti Awvaslable on ine of the ek (g sabon
Awdabie 00 T vl of T FEeRan LIg LN
- @ity the Congs # i of Foundation
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coigoldated:
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PP Pt DG ErTiEs. org Lk Homadl ot L s
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Annex A

GLOSSARY OF IFRS TERMS

The adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) from 2009-10 has brought with it some
changes in terminology. The following is a list of new IFRS terms and the names by which they were
previously known under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP):

IFRS name UK GAAP name

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure  Operating Cost Statement

Statement of Financial Position Balance sheet
Non-current assets Fixed Assels
Inventories Stocks
Receivables Debtors
Payables Creditors
Property, plant and equipment Tangible assets

GLOSSARY OF GOVERNMENTAL TERMS

Administration Limit An overall limit applied to administration costs within the Department which should not
be exceeded by the administration expenditure for the year.

Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) A Treasury budgetary control for spending that is generally difficult to
control, large as a proportion of the Department's budget, and volatile in nature.

Comptroller & Auditor General Head of the National Audit Office. Responsible for auditing the Department's
Resource Accounts and NHS Summarised Accounts.

Consolidated fund The Treasury's account at the Bank of England which is used by most Government
Departments for processing payments or receipts.

Consolidated Fund Extra Receipts (CFERs) Receipts which the Department cannot use to finance
expenditure and which are surrendered to the Consolidated Fund. CFERs can be revenue or capital in nature.

Core Department The Department of Health only. It does not include any of the bodies listed in Note 32.

Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) A Treasury budgetary control for spending that is within the
department's direct control and which can therefore be planned over an extended (Spending Review) period
(such as the costs of its own administration, payments to third parties, etc).

Estimate A summary of the resources and cash voted by Parliament to the Department for a particular year
and against which expenditure is monitored. It is analysed by Requests for Resources, each being monitored
separately.

General Fund The General Fund represents the historic cost of the total assets less liabilities of the
Department, to the extent that it is not represented by other reserves and financing items. It is included in
Taxpayer's Equity on the Statement of Financial Position.

Net Cash Requirement The amount of cash required and authorised from the Consolidated Fund for the

Department to carry out the functions specified in the Estimate. Actual cash used during the year is described
as the outturn of the net cash requirement.
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Net Resource Qutturn This is the net total of income and expenditure consumed by the Department during the
financial year.

Programme costs Programme costs include the running costs of NHS bodies funded directly by the
Department but otherwise reflect non-administration costs, including payments of grants and other
disbursements by the Department.

Arms Length Bodies

Arms Length Bodies are organisations set up by the Department to complete specific and specialised functions
on behalf of the Department.

The Department of Health has two types of Arms Length Bodies:

1) Special Health Authority — these organisations are funded by the Department through Parliamentary Funding
2) Non Departmental Public Body — theses organisations are funded by the Departrent through Grant in Aid.
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NAO REPORTS PRINCIPALLY FOR DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

NHS National Programme for L.T. in the NHS: an update on delivery of detailed care records systems.
{(May 2011)

The National Audit Office (NAO) reported that central to achieving the Programme's aim of improving services
and the quality of patient care, was the successful delivery of an electronic patient record for each NHS patient.
Although some care records systems are in place, progress against plans has fallen far below expectations and
the Department has not delivered care records systems across the NHS, or with anywhere near the
completeness of functionality that will enable it to achieve the original aspirations of the Programme. The
Department has also significantly reduced the scope of the Programme without a proportionate reduction in
costs, and is in negotiations to reduce it further still. The NAQ found a steady reduction in value delivered not
matched by a reduction in costs. On this basis the NAO concluded that the £2.7 billion spent on care records
systems so far does not represent value for money, and could not find grounds for confidence that the
remaining planned spend of £4.3 billion will be different

The Department did not agree with the NAO's conclusion and considers that the money spent to date has not
been wasted and will potentially deliver value for money. This is based on the fact that more than half of the
Trusts in England have received systems under the programme and no supplier is paid for a system until that
system has been verified by the Trust to have been deployed successfully. The Department believes that the
flexibility provided by the future delivery model for the programme will deliver functionality that best fits the
needs of the clinical and managerial community. The future architecture of the programme allows many
sources of information to be connected together as opposed to assuming that all relevant information will be
stored in a single system. This approach has been proven in other sectors and is fully consistent with the
Government's recently published ICT strategy

Establishing social enterprises under the Right to Request Programme (June 2011)

The NAO found that it is too early to assess the costs and benefits from the Right to Request Programme as
only 20 social enterprises are operational, and have not yet established a track record. The majority have only
recantly launched in April 2011. Nevertheless, there are a number of risks to be managed if value for money is
to be achieved for the sums expended on the programme and for the £900 million contracts awarded to the
enterprises non-competitively. Not setting separate objectives for the programme makes it difficult to judge
whether success and value for money is achieved. PCTs have not contracted for any benefits that social
enterprises could deliver over and above what they would have required of alternatives, reducing the likelihood
that such benefits will be delivered. Many risks and liabilities still reside with PCTs and will need to be managed
if value for money is to be achieved. The sustainability of social enterprises is, currently, heavily dependent
upon funding and cash flow from the NHS.

The Department disagreed with the NAO's report for the following reasons:

It would be against the principles of NHS competition to offer Right to Request providers different contracts to
any other provider. PCTs as commissioners must treat all provider organisations equally when contracting for
the provision of services. Social enterprises as a class cannot and should not be contracted with by NHS
commissioners on different terms from other providers and should not be expected to deliver more or less
through their contracts than other provider forms. Commissioners stipulate through contracts the service to be
delivered, and in delivering these contracts social enterprises are also able to provide additional benefits to
local communities through their social mission.

It 1s not accurate to claim that there were not clear objectives for the Right to Request programme. R2R was
not a stand-alone programme, but as a sub-set of the wider Transforming Community Services (TCS),
contributed to delivery of the objectives of this programme - objectives were clearly articulated in the NHS Next

Stage Review Final Report (June 2008). R2R schemes also had to demonstrate significant service
improvements.
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Transforming NHS Ambulance Services. (June 2011)

The NAQ reported in England, urgent and emergency healthcare and patient transport services are

provided by 11 regionally-based ambulance services, with separate arrangements for the Isle of Wight. In
2008-10, the cost of ambulance services was £1.9 billion, of which around £1.5 billion was for urgent and
emergency services. In 2009-10, 7.9 million emergency ‘999’ calls were received by the ambulance service,
which resulted in 6.4 million ambulance incidents and 4.7 million emergency or urgent patient journeys. The
number of emergency or urgent calls that the ambulance service receives has increased by about 4 per cent
each year since 2007-08. Until 1 April 2011, ambulance responses were split into three categories: A -
immediately life-threatening; B - serious but not immediately life-threatening; or € — not immediately serious or
life-threatening (Figure 1). For category A incidents, the service has a target of an emergency response arriving
at the scene within eight minutes in 75per cent of cases, and a vehicle able to transport the patient in a
clinically safe manner, if required, to attend within 19 minutes in 95 per cent of cases. There was a

similar 19-minute target for category B incidents. Category B responses and the associated target were
abolished by the Department of Health (the Department) from1 April 2011, and a set of clinical guality indicators
were introduced to complement the response time target for category A incidents.

The report concluded the ambulance service provides life-saving assistance to patients, is highly regarded by
the public, and rightly remains committed to providing a rapid response to urgent and emergency calls at a time
of steadily growing call volumes. But, until April 2011, the Department's emphasis on response time as a
measure of performance rather than on a more rounded view of clinical outcomes meant that the incentive
structure did not encourage resource optimisation .In addition, limitations in management information and
benchmarking prevent the Department, commissioners and the ambulance service driving improvement - as
Transforming NHS ambulance services demonstrated by the wide variations in the efficiency of resource use
across the ambulance services, even after allowing for external factors such as geographic variations. These
differences indicate that value for money is not being achieved across the entire network. The introduction of a
new outcome measurement regime, together with the NAO recommendations, may begin to address these
problems and help deliver better value for money in the future.

Formula Funding of local public services (July 2011)

The NAO reported that the Department of Health has had long-standing objectives for its formula. The

terms of reference for a working party established in 1975 to consider formula funding set the first objective of
the weighted capitation approach: “to ensure equal opportunity of access to health care for people at equal
risk”. A second objective was added in 1999: “to contribute to the reduction in avoidable health inequalities”.
These continue to be the objectives of the independent Advisory Committee on Resource Allocation,

which advises the Department on the funding formula. An independent report commissioned by the Department
of Health on behalf of the Advisory Committee on Resource Allocation2 criticised the inequalities objective as
being too broad to enable the design of the formula to target accurately.

The report concluded that while the Department of Health is to be credited with setting transparent objectives,
the objectives may benefit from further refinement to provide clearer direction and public accountability

Over sight of user Choice and provider competition in care markets. (September 2011)

The NAQO reported that the Department has recognised that delivering care through user choice and provider
competition brings different risks to those associated with delivering or commissioning care directly. The
Department provided £520 million to help local authorities manage the changes required by increasing
personalisation. The ‘Putting People First' Consortium (the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services,
the Local Government Association and the Department of Health) created milestones to track the progress of
local authorities introducing user choice and competition. Most local authorities reported that they had met the
five milestones by April 2011, and 83 per cent reported they had achieved the April 2011 milestone that

at least 30 per cent of eligible users should have a personal budget, though 25 (17 per cent) did not. The
Department has few formal levers over and above legislation, policy advice and the outcomes framework to
influence those authorities that are struggling to implement the Department's preferred delivery method
although it is working closely with the sector’s ‘Think Local Act Personal’ partnership and with the sector-led

improvement agencies.

The report concluded evaluations suggest that, to date, most social care users have gained improved
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well-being and control from using personal budgets, and some local authorities report they have led to
efficiency improvements. The Government intends to extend personal budgets to all eligible users of social care
by 2013. For this to deliver value for money, sufficient oversight arrangements must be in place to ensure that
care markets operate effectively. Currently, however, there are wide variations between local authorities in the
amount of engagement and support offered to personal budget users. In addition, some self-funders do not feel
well informed. Market oversight at the local level is very varied, and there are no formal arrangements to
monitor markets at the national and regional levels. These shortcomings must be addressed if value for money
is to be secured in the future.

Achievement of Foundation Trust status by NHS hospital trusts. (October 2011)

The Department required all remaining NHS Trust to complete a ‘tripartite formal agreement’ (TFA) to
summarise the main challenges they faced, and the resulting actions to be taken by the trust, Strategic Health
Authority (SHA), and the Department. The NAO reported that the process of developing and committing to
TFAs has made much more transparent the challenges trusts face to demonstrate their long-term viability, and
has forced the signatories publicly to accept accountability for addressing them. Some of these issues, though
well-known within the local health economy, have lain unresolved for a number of years.

It has taken six months to finalise TFAs. The time taken reflects the extent and complexity of the issues faced
by some trusts and the degree of effort being taken to ensure they are an accurate assessment of both the
challenges faced and the actions required. Different SHAs have been involved to differing extents in drafting
the documents. The Department asked for all draft TFA documents to be submitted by trusts in March 2011.
There were guestions about the quality of some original submissions, and the Department identified a need to
develop national responses for trusts with commeon financial problems. The Department signed the TFAs for the
final 46 of the 113 trusts on 30 September 2011 committing trusts to agreed actions, although for some of the
most challenged trusts the process of agreeing the set of actions they, their SHAs, and the Department will
nead to take is not complete.

The Department has put in place a national framework to monitor progress against milestones and track risks.
Now that TFAs are agreed, progress against timelines will be monitored by SHAs. The Department has asked
each SHA to report monthly on progress against milestones and, following discussion with the Department, to
agree the level of risk in each case. Ultimately, this information will flow to the NHS Operations Board. If there
are concerns about trusts’ progress, the SHA will address these through its existing performance management
arrangements.

The level of resources being devoted to ensuring that TFAs are robust varies considerably between SHAs. The
progress of trusts through the pipeline will also require continued investment of staff time and monitoring by
SHAs. Those that are most challenged will require the closest scrutiny and support. A number of SHAS have
developed robust local performance management systems, for example in the North West and East of England,
but these are not universal and there is scope to learn from exemplars. As part of the Government's wider
health reforms, the ten existing SHAs were grouped into four clusters on 1 October 2011. The Department and
the new clusters are developing a single operating model to manage trusts’ performance through the pipeline
ahead of the introduction of the NHS Trust Development Authority in 2013.

The report concluded, based on stalements in the TFA documents, the processes the Department has put in
place have introduced a new sense of purpose among NHS trusts in the pipeline for foundation trust status.
The Department has made it clear that it is not in the business of maintaining back-door subsidies to financially
weak trusts with a record of poor care. Even where foundation trust status is a realistic possibility, many trusts
will need to substantially improve their performance. This will involve a step change in the quality of local
management, together with close performance monitoring, and timely intervention by SHAs, the Department
and, in due course, by the NHS Trust Development Authority, if trusts start to miss milestones. There are,
however, at least 20 trusts that face such substantial and leng-standing problems that they are not viable in
their current form. The Department is now in the process of determining, with the NHS, how it will deal with
these trusts.

Care Quality Commission: regulating the quality and safety of health and social care. (November2011.)

The NAD reported the regulators for health and social care have been subject to considerable change in the
last 10 years. The Commission is the third regulator for each sector, although it is the first to cover both health
and social care providers. The changes have created disruption for providers and confusion for the public. The
proposal to extend the Commission’s role into new areas risks distracting the Commission from its core work of
regulating health and social care. The Department proposes that the Commission should take on a variety of
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additional responsibilities, such as overseeing fertility clinics and responsibility for HealthWatch England, the
national consumer body for health and social care. There is a gap between what the public and providers
expect of the Commission and what it can achieve as a regulator. Although the Commission's role is clearly
defined, it has not been communicated effectively and the Commission has not made clear what success in
delivering its priorities would look like.

The report concluded the Commission had a challenging task in merging three former regulators to establish a
new organisation and implementing a new regulatory approach, which integrates health and social care, at a
time of diminishing resources. It was inevitable that there would be some transitional difficulties and that it
would take time for the Commission to settle down into a steady state. In the event the difficulties were
considerable.

The ultimate measure of the Commission’s value for meney is the impact of regulation on the quality and safety
of care, relative to the cost. In the absence of measures of impact, we assessed value for money in terms of
whether the Commission delivered what it set out to deliver. With the exception of NHS trusts, the Commission
did not meet the deadlines set for registering providers; at the same time, levels of compliance and inspection
activity fell significantly, although the Commission was hampered by government-wide recruitment constraints
which made it difficult to fill vacancies quickly. We therefore conclude that, although regulation is being
delivered more cheaply, the Commission has not so far achieved value for money in regulating the quality and
safety of health and social care. The NAO stated it is not clear exactly where the balance of responsibility lies
between the Commission and the Department for failing to achieve value for money; but it is clear that
responsibility is shared.

Services for people with neurological conditions. (December 2011.)

The NAQ reported that this was a ‘new style' Framework, developed to reflect changes in the way that the NHS
was managed, significantly devolving decision making. By design, it did not have the traditional levers to
support implementation including national monitoring, targets and ring-fenced funding for specific initiatives.
Health spending on neurological services has increased significantly since the introduction of the Framework in
2005. Between 2006-07 and 2005-10 health spending increased by 38 per cent in real terms, from £2.1 billion
in 2006-07 to £2.9 billion in 2009-10. This was part of local commissioners’ general budget and was not ring-
fenced by the Department. Social services' spending on adults with a physical disability, of which a significant
propaortion will have a neurclogical condition, has remained flat in real terms since 2005-06. The Department
put in place no specific arrangements for monitoring how commissioners implemented the Framework. As a
result, the Department was unable to hold local commissioners to account for implementation. There was no
national baseline assessment of the cost, access to and quality of neurclogical services, when the Framework
was introduced, and no national monitoring of its impact. The Framework indicated that local delivery
organisations should establish a baseline of services. However, the Department does not know how local
organisations have gone about this, if at all. Therefore, the Department has no way to measure the effect of the
additional spending on services or patient outcomes. With the Department cancelling its mid-point review of the
Framework, agreed by the previous Government, it is not clear how lessons will be learnt and integrated into
the design of the Department's new long-term conditions strategy. Data limitations mean that it is difficult to
assess progress in implementing the Framewaork.

Overall, the achievement of the quality requirements within the Framework has been poor. For example, a
North East Public Health Observatory report of an audit undertaken in 2008, rated performance against the
Quality Requirements for all Primary Care Trusts in its region as below 'the good-doing well' standard. A report
by Neurological Commissioning Support of its audit of 11 sites across England found that not one had fully met
a single quality requirement. However, a minority had met some of the Quality Requirement's individual
evidence-based markers. Further, the 2011 Royal College of Physicians and the Multiple Sclerosis Trust audit
concluded that there had been no major improvements in many aspects of service provision for people with
multiple sclerosis since 2006.

The report concluded the Department has clearly improved access by delivering against the 18 week waiting
time target and reduced occupied bed days. However, although the Framework specified increased devolved
decision making, it had none of the levers or incentives necessary to motivate local organisations to implement
its 11 quality requirements. In addition, the Department did not put in place empirical baselines or
arrangements to monitor implementation. The evidence presented in our key findings, therefore, leads us to
conclude that cumrent spending on neurolegical health and social services is not value for money as the
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE REPORTS PRINCIPALLY FOR THE DEPARTMENT
National Health Service health landscape review (April 2011)

The report pmvidgs an overview of aspects of the reforms where Parliament requires clarification and draws
out a number of risks associated with the transition to the new model that need to be managed.

The report focus is in respect of the health reform programme is on accountability for taxpayers' money. With
the health reforms still at an early stage, there are some aspects of the accountability arrangements which have
yet to be resolved. There are also a number of risks during the three-year transition period which need to be
managed

NHS National Programme for I.T. in the NHS: an update on delivery of detailed care records systems
(August 2011)

The Committee reported that the National Programme for IT in the NHS (the Programme) was an ambitious
£11.4billion programme of investment designed to reform how the NHS in England uses information to improve
services and patient care.

The Programme was launched in 2002,and the Department of Health (the Department) has spent some £6 4
billion on the Programme so far. This report is concerned with a central part of the Programme, where the aim
was to create a fully integrated electronic care records system, which is expected to cost around £7 billion in
total. The original objective was to ensure every NHS patient had an individual electronic care record which
could be rapidly transmitted between different parts of the NHS, in order to make accurate patient records
available to NHS staff at all times. This intention has proved beyond the capacity of the Department to deliver
and the department is no longer delivering a universal system

Transforming NHS Ambulance Services. (September 2011)

The Committee reported that there is wide variation in the cost of responding to an incident across ambulance
services, which is underpinned by variation in a number of other factors, such as sickness absence, overtime
and back office costs.

Ambulance services need to produce more consistent performance data in order to benchmark and share best
practice so that efficiency can be improved and variations reduced across the country. For example, they do
not currently collect and share comparable data on the extent to which ambulance crews are utilised when on
duty. Although we note the Department's and ambulance services’ commitment to provide more reliable
benchmarking data and reduce variation.

Under the NHS reforms, the Committee believes there is still a great deal of vagueness around who will be
responsible for what in the new system. It is not clear who will be responsible for commissioning ambulance
services, who will be responsible for improving efficiency across ambulance services, or who will intervene if a
service runs into financial trouble or seriously underperforms. In the future, ambulance services will become
foundation trusts and be directly accountable to Parliament, but it is not realistic for each ambulance service to
be individually accountable to us for value for money. The report states there should be greater clarity on the
roles and responsibilities of the Department, commissioners and ambulance trusts, with appropriate structures
for accountability to Parliament on value for money. Other parts of the health system affect ambulance services'

performance.

The committee stated a more integrated emergency care system is required to ensure that ambulances are not
kept waiting outside accident and emergency, can hand over patients faster and get back out to help others.
The Department has plans to align the objectives of those involved in the provision of urgent and emergency
care providers. There are also varying levels of collaboration between ambulance, fire and police services
which should be strengthened and the Committee will look to government to investigate the scope for further
co-operation to identify savings in areas such as procurement and back-office services.

Use of high value equipment in the NHS (October 2011)
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The committee reported that the NHS currently has inadequate information to assess cost, performance and
capacity across the system as a whole. Commissioners and trusts have no mechanism to understand the
reasons for large variations that persist in the use of MRI and CT machines, as they are unable to compare
their performance with other trusts. The NHS needs to make high quality, comparable data available on
machine use and cost. We welcome the Department’s plan to require all trusts to produce data on MRI and CT
scan use. A standardised. national dataset would help trusts to compare unit costs and benchmark their
performance. It would also enable commissioners to identify the large variations in utilisation across trusts and
take appropriate action.

The committee stated the procurement and management of high value equipment is fragmented and
uncoordinated, leading to wasted resources and variable standards of services. Trusts have three main ways to
purchase high value equipment: by dealing directly with suppliers; through framework agreements, managed by
NHS Supply Chain; or by joining up with other trusts in collaborative purchasing arrangements.

Formula funding of local public services (November 2011)

The Committee reported that the priorities accorded to different elements of the formulae are judgements which
have a direct impact on the distribution of funds. In some cases the basis for the judgement is guided by
authoritative, published independent advice. One example of this is the weighting the Department of Health
applies to the health inequalities element of Primary Care Trust Allocations

Oversight of user choice and provider competition in care markets (December 2011)

The Committee reported that there are risks to the future functioning of the social care market from local
authority budget reductions. Social care homes face inevitable increases in costs at the same lime as local
authorities inevitably reduce what they will pay to fund places. At present, 63% of funding of care comes from
the public purse. Reducing this funding could create some degree of pressure in the market.

Most users hold personal budgets in high regard, and the early research shows that they like having choice and
control. However, users need more support to obtain optimum value from their budgets. Some users are
confused about what they can spend their budget on, and there are wide disparities in the level of information
and support they receive across different authorities. Only around half of users find it easy to change their
support, or get relevant information and advice, and around a third of users find the experience of employing
personal assistants to provide their care daunting. The committee found the procedures for users to complain
or get redress when things go wrong to be inadequate. These issues must be addressed if personal budgets
are to be successfully sustained.

The Department has to rely on local authorities to implement its policy of universal provision of personal
budgets to eligible users by April 2013 but it cannot compel local authorities to act. In consequence there are a
small number of local authorities which are dragging their feet in offering personal budgets to users. There
should be a clear line of accountability on policies that are generally agreed. A more radical option might be to
enshrine in law people's rights to a budget.

Care Quality Commission: regulating the quality and safety of health and social care (March 2012)

The Committee reported that the Commission has more responsibilities but less money than its predecessors.
Despite this it has consistently failed to spend its budget because of delays in filling staff vacancies. It is
overseen by the Department of Health (the Department), which underestimated the scale of the task it had set
in requiring the Commission to merge three bodies at the same time as taking on an expanded role. The
Commission did not act quickly on vital issues such as information from whistleblowers. Neither did it deal with
problems effectively, and the Department is only now taking action.

The Committee has serious concerns about the Commission’s governance, leadership and culture. A Board

member, Commission staff, and representatives of the health and adult social care sectors have all been critical
of how the Commission is run.

Meither tI}e Enmmis;iun nor the Department have defined what success would look like in regulating health and
adult social care. This makes it hard for the Committee to know whether the Commission has the resources it
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needs to operate effectively. In addition, while the Commission reports what it does, it does not measure the
quality or impact of its work. Where information is available, it is not presented in a way that allows the public to
make meaningful comparisons between care providers. As a result, the public are unclear what the
Commission’s role is and lack confidence that it is an effective regulator.

The Commission faces a major challenge later in 2012 with the registration of 10,000 GP practices. In the past,
the Commission’s inspection work has suffered when it has had to register large groups of providers. It shifted
its focus to registration and carried out far fewer inspections than planned. In the light of these problems, the
Commission has changed the registration process. Registration will now be decided primarily on the
information provided by the GPs themselves. GP practices will be required to declare whether or not they are
meeting the essential standards. This process carries risks and the Commission must make sure the
registration process is robust and provides meaningful assurance about the quality of GP practices.

Achievement of Foundation Trust status by NHS hospital trusts (December 2011)

The committee reported that a vital component of a successful health service is that everybody wherever they
live should have ready access to a high standard of care through a network of acute hospitals that are subject
to strong clinical and financial governance. The Department of Health (the Department) sees self-governing
foundation status as necessary if hospitals are to succeed in a financially demanding environment. Becoming a
foundation trust requires strong governance, long-term financial viability, and a framewaork to secure delivery of
quality services. NHS foundation trusts were first created in 2004 and, between then and the end of September
2011, 138 NHS trusts attained foundation status. The Government intends that the majority of the remaining
:13;!—!5 trusts will become foundation trusts by April 2014.1t is already clear that this will be extremely difficult
o achieve,

The challenges facing those hospitals which have still to attain foundation status are more severe than
previously thought. Four out of five now face financial difficulties; 78% say they have to tackle strategic issues;
two thirds acknowledge they have performance and quality challenges and nearly 40% say they need to
strengthen their governance and their leadership.

Creating a national network of hospital trusts which are autonomous and financially viable presents hugely
difficult challenges. It remains unclear whether all the problems trusts have highlighted can be resolved. Making
all trusts viable will involve reconfiguration of some services, including through mergers. It is critical that local
communities are consulted on these decisions and benefit from them. Where changes are proposed, trusts will
need to demonstrate how merging organisations will create healthcare benefits to local communities while
addressing the root causes of the financial problems that exist. Many of these trusts are in deprived areas and
solutions should not reduce access to services for vulnerable people, thereby exacerbating health inequalities
The Committee are particularly alarmed that the healthcare system in London has been allowed to deteriorate
despite its problems having been known about for many years. At least half of the acute trusts in London are
not viable in their current form. The Department reassured the Committee that none of trusts’ current plans
invalve closing hospitals, but some trusts are in such a poor financial state it is difficult to see why other
organisations would want to take them on.

Strong leadership is urgently needed if those trusts facing clinical and financial difficulties are to meet the
challenge of achieving foundation status. The flow of trusts through the ‘pipeline’ towards foundation trust
status is already behind schedule. Decisions about changes to services, need to be taken promptly but wisely,
and some trusts are still putting off difficult decisions. A particular problem is the quality of leadership, but
prolonged uncertainty makes it harder to recruit good board members and clinical staff.

The Department has made an explicit commitment to intervene if trusts fail to tackle problems.

Services for people with neurological conditions (March 2012)

The Committee reported that people with neurological conditions need a wide range of services that can cross
boundaries between health and social care, employment and benefit services, transport, housing and
education. Despite these complex needs, coordination of care for individuals is poor, and there is a lack of
integration between health and social services. There is still a lack of neurological expertise, both in hospitals
and in the community, and access to services varies widely.
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Implementation of the Framework lags behind those for cancer and stroke care, even though many
neuralogical conditions severely affect quality of life and cause lifelong disability. Of particular concern is the
329% increase in emergency admissions, and the increased rate of readmissions to hospital within 28 days from
11.2% to 14%, since the introduction of the Framework. Rates are well above those for the NHS as a whole,
and represent poor outcomes for people with neurological conditions and poor value for money for the NHS.

Unlike the Cancer and Stroke strategies the model used to implement the Framework has not worked.
Implementation was left to local commissioners without the national leadership necessary to drive
improvements. No baseline for services or outcomes was established when the Framework was introduced.
There was no monitoring of progress, and local commissioners were not held to account for implementation.

There are key lessons to be learnt as the Department develops its proposed new health and social care
landscape. The Department intends to decentralise and localise decision making, with central monitoring, and it
will be vital that it sets clear objectives for the outcomes and services for people with neurological conditions.
The delivery model needs to work better and put patient needs at its heart if services and outcomes are to

improve,
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OUTSTANDING PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

Managing High Value Equipment in the NHS in England.

Recommendation

Government Response

Recommendation 2

The Department has pledged to
produce a dataset by April 2012
covering the use of MRI and CT
machines by trusts, and the Committee
welcomes this. From 2012-13 onwards,
the NHS Commissioning Board should
ensure that this dataset enables local
clinical commissioning groups to hold
trusts to account for their performance,
and to drive improvements in efficiency.

Subject to finalising the necessary approvals, it is expected
that both NHS trusts and NHS

foundation trusts will be mandated to implement the
Diagnostic Imaging Dataset from April 2012 with the first data
available in summer 2012.

Recommendation 4

Commissioners should require trusts to
share their plans for the replacement of
high value equipment with NHS Supply
Chain and / or other collaborative
procurement bodies. This would enable
NHS Supply Chain and others to
aggregate orders across trusts to
secure better prices.

The NHS Commissioning Board is considering what guidance
is needed to support effective commissioning, for example to
support CCGs to contract better for patient care whilst
achieving value for money. The Board will take the
Committee’s recommendation into account in these
considerations.

A new service is being developed by NHS Supply Chain (NHS
SC), with the support of the Depariment, based around a
combined capital planning, procurement, maintenance and
finance offering for the NHS. This will involve NHS SC taking
a more proactive approach. Rather than waiting

for NHS trusts and NHS foundation trusts to send them their
plans, NHS SC propose to visit potential customers to discuss
their needs and then help them to develop and shape their
plans for a ten year

period. This should result in a higher quality of capital planning
across the NHS.

Participation by all trusts will be voluntary, but the greater the
number of NHS trusts and

foundation trusts making use of this service, the greater
understanding of NHS-wide capital requirements that NHS SC
will develop and the greater the opportunity for NHS SC to
aggregate demand to achisve savings. NHS SC is also
actively considering the opportunities for bulk purchasing, at
risk, certain types of medical equipment in order to maximise
the competitiveness of their offering in response to anticipated
future demand for replacement equipment. Details should be
available later in the year.

Achievement of Foundation Trust status by NHS hospital trusts.

Recommendation 5

PFl is an additional challenge facing a
few hospitals and PFI service charges
arg

contributing significantly lo some lrusts’

A number of potential solutions to this issue are being
considered by the Government and the Department will work
to complete this before Summer 2012,
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financial problems. Analysis
commissioned by the Department has
identified six trusts where their PFI
coniract is a major obsfacle to

them becoming financially viable.

The Department recognises that those
financial commitments need to be mef,
but has not yet explained how it will
support these trusts without
disadvantaging others. The Department
will need to ensure the long term
sustainability of these hospitals whilst at
the same time minimising any extra
financial support it offers.

Services for people with neurological conditions.

Recommendation 2.

The Department lacks the data to
measure the effectiveness of services
for people with neurological conditions.
The Framework lacked an empirical
baseline from which progress could be
measured nationally or locally for health
and social care, and the Department
has no way of assessing what
resources and activities result in the
best outcomes.

The Department should develop a
neurological data set covering
resources, sernvices and outcomes,
which should include linking existing
health and social care dala using the
patient's NHS number, Key indicators
from the dala set, including emeargency
admissions and readmissions for
neurological conditions, should be
included in the NHS and Adult Social
Care Outcomas Frameworks with
appropriale largets for reduction.

Target implementation date: April 2014.

The Department acknowledges that there was not an
established baseline to support measurement of progress
against the National Service Framework (NSF) for long term
neurclogical conditions. However, there is currently data
available including:

« the Long term neurological conditions reference dataset (70
data items) available via the NHS Information Centre;

« neurological data is included in NHS Comparators;

« Quality Neurology — an audit tool that can be used by
Primary Care Trusts and CCGs to scope progress against the
Quality requirements; and
* Neurological Commissioning Support has developed Neuro
Navigator, a tool to support commissioners to assess the
budget required to provide services across the whole care
pathway for Parkinson's Disease, Multiple sclerosis and Motor
neurone disease based on population size.

Recommendation 3

The quality of services for people with
neurological conditions varies around
the country, with some areas having
insufficient expertise both in hospitals
and in the community. The compliance
of individual Primary Care Trusts with
the Framework's quality requirements
has been poor and so the support and
treatment available to people continue
to depend on where they live. The
Department should set out in its reply to
the Committee how if will ensure all
people with neurclogical conditions
have appropriate access to services.
The Committee would expect this to
include how the Department will drive
improvements through the quality
section of the NHS Standard Contract,
the Commissioning Outcomes

Target implementation date: April 2013.

& number of developments to the health and care system
provided by the Health and Social Care Act 2012 will ensure
improved access and more local accountability for services to
the needs of individuals, including people with long term
neurclogical conditions.
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Framework, the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessments and the Health and
Wellbeing Boards.

Care Quality Commission: regulating the quality and safety of adult social care.

Recommendation 3

The Commission's role is unclear and it
does not measure the quality or impact
of its own work. The Commission's
objeclive, as set out in legislation, is to
‘protect and promote the health, safety
and welfare of people who use health
and social care services' but it has not
defined what success in delivering this
objective would look like. It is unclear to
what extent the Commission’s role
involves improvement beyond the
essential basic standards of quality and
safety. Although the Commission is a
Cluality Commission it only measures
itself against quantitative, activity-based
performance measures, with no
measures of quality or impact. The
Commission, working with the
Department, showld set out clearly what
it is seeking to achieve and develop
measures of quality and impact which
can be used fo assess its effectiveness.

While CQC need to be clear on how it carries out its functions
within the system, the Department has ultimate responsibility
for overall system design. To help address the uncertainty on
CQC's role, the Department, through the National Quality
Board, intends to build on work already underway with CQC
and others to develop explicit statements as to the distinctive
roles of national bodies in assuring quality and providing
incentives for quality improvement by autumn 2012.

CQC will publish, in December 2012, a new strategy, which
will set out more clearly CQC's role, its aims and the
measures of success. The strategy will be tested extensively
with the public and stakeholders, as part of a full consultation
during summer 2012,

In April 2012, CQC published a scorecard based on success
measures in its business plan such as progress towards an
inspection target and achievement of target time limits for
registering new applications. These success measures will be
developed alongside the strategy. Some of these measures
are proxy measures and whilst they may reflect improved
efficiency, they may not address the issue of impact.
Therefore, CQC is also undertaking a review of the processes
and supporting IT systems used to define, collect and confirm
organisational performance data. The output from this review
will set out the system and processes required to support
future operational and organisational needs.

CQC is implementing information system improvements that
will allow CQC, at individual inspector level, to capture and
analyse decisions that led to inspection activity and resulting
judgements about compliance. This and other information,
such as the amount of time taken to deliver an inspection, and
feedback from providers, will allow the Department and CQC
to menilor and review its effecliveness as a regulator. These
changes will be completed by September 2012, which will
allow CQC to gather the first set of data on effectiveness by
Decemnber 2012. A further review will be undertaken by April
2013,

Recommendation 5

The registration of GP practices must
involve a meaningful assessment of
compliance with the essential standards
of quality and safety. The proposed
process will involve GP praclices
declaring areas where they are not
compliant, and the Commission told us
that it will seek to draw on other sources
of information to indicate which
practices give rise for concern. The
Committee is not convinced that this
approach will work in practice,
particularly given the number of GP
practices to be registered, and the

Target implementation date: Completion of GP registration by
April 2013.

The registration of GP practices by the Commission will
provide assurance that these providers are meeting and will
continue to meet essential levels of safety and quality. The
Department accepts that the process of registering GP
practice should be meaningful. The Commission will carry out
a compliance pilot with GP practices in two regions in 2012
and this pilot will inform CQC's approach to registration.
CQC’s engagement with GPs ahead of registration has been
extensive. CQC has a sectoral advisory group and an online
community which has commented on and helped it improve its
documentation for GPs registering.

221




Department of Health

Resource Accounts 2011-12

Annex D

Commission risks becoming simply a
post box. The Commission should
review and set out how it will make sure
that the assessment of GP practices is
meaningful. It should develop clear
criteria to use to judge when it needs (o
undertake further investigations before
a practice can be registered.

The Commission also has groups helping design the
streamlined online registration system which is significantly
simpler and more tailored than previous tranches of
registration. Over 450 people have been involved in web chats
to explore what registration means for them. Additionally,
CQC co-produced its engagement plan with key stakeholders
and issued its guidance documents far earlier to GPs as a
result.

Registration is not automatic. The CQC has to make a
judgment as to whether applicant providers have made
credible legal declarations that they will meet the essential
standards and that they are fit to provide care services. CQC
intends to review every registration application in conjunction
with information from other sources including the General
Medical Council (GMC), the Criminal Records Bureau (CRB)
and from whistleblowers, Assessing applications is only the
start of the process. CQC has criteria which will prompt its GP
registration assessors to look more closely at certain
applications. These include issues with GMC registration,
information of concern from the Primary Care Trust cluster
and whistieblowing correspondence. CQC will follow up in
each case and where it has concerns, will visit the practice
and conduct an interview.

Once registered, GP practices are required to continue to
meet the essential standards of care quality and safety and
the Commission has a range of enforcement powers that it
can use to address non-compliance. Providers of primary
medical services will be inspected by the Commission at least
1920

once every two years, and it is through this regular inspection
process, as much as through initial registration, that the
Commission will identify and address non-compliance by GP
practices.

Recommendation &

There are inconsistencies in the
judgements of individual inspectors and
in the Commission's approach to
enforcement. The Commission's own
internal auditors found variations in how
inspectors assess risk and the
Committee received evidence that there
is insufficient focus on both the quality
and consistency of inspectors’ work. In
addition, the approach to enforcement is
variable, with action more likely to be
taken against care homes than
hospitals. The Commission should
provide training and guidance fo
inspectors that specifically addresses
the risk of inconsistent judgements in
inspections and enforcement, and
should use parformance data to monitor
trends and identify areas of concemn.

Target implementation date: Evaluation of the use of specialist
expertise to be completed by December 2012.

CQC is making significant enhancements to its compliance
regime. These will be completed by September 2012 and
include a new framework for risk, which will enable inspectors
to assess risk in a timely and systematic way.

CQC is recruiting a team of Quality, Risk and Assurance
Managers to work with inspectors to ensure levels of
consistency and quality are maintained. The managers will
work within a quality framework, reporting internally on the
quality checks being undertaken and identifying potential
improvements. These arrangements will be embedded in a
revised corporate governance framework aimed at
strengthening decision making within CQC and the way in
which risks are escalated to Board level.

CQC has an eight-week training and induction programme for
new inspectors, designed to equip them with a thorough
understanding of how to make judgements about compliance
and appropriate enforcement action. This includes spending
time shadowing experienced compliance inspectors. All
inspectors have access to formal and informal support to aid
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